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BANK OF CHINA (HONG KONG) LIMITED

Report of the Directors

The Directors are pleased to present their report together with the audited consolidated financial statements of the Group for the year
ended 31 December 2015.

Principal Activities

The Bank is a licensed bank authorised under the Hong Kong Banking Ordinance. The principal activities of the Group are the
provision of banking and related financial services. An analysis of the Group’s performance for the year by business segments is set
out in Note 43 to the Financial Statements.

Results and Appropriations

The results of the Group for the year are set out in the consolidated income statement on page 36.

On 16 June 2015, the Board declared an interim dividend of HK$0.057 per ordinary share amounting to approximately HK$2,454
million, which was paid on 30 June 2015.

On 28 August 2015, the Board declared an interim dividend of HK$0.077 per ordinary share amounting to approximately HK$3,314
million, which was paid on 24 September 2015.

On 27 October 2015, the Board declared a special dividend of HK$0.006 per ordinary share amounting to approximately HK$258
million, which was paid on 30 November 2015.

On 31 December 2015, the Board declared an interim dividend of HK$0.084 per ordinary share amounting to approximately
HK$3,616 million, which was paid on 31 December 2015.

On 30 March 2016, the Board declared an interim dividend of HK$0.080 per ordinary share amounting to approximately HK$3,443
million. This declared interim dividend is not reflected as a dividend payable in the financial statements, but will be reflected as an
appropriation of retained earnings for the year ending 31 December 2016.

The Board does not recommend the payment of a final dividend for the year 2015.
Donations

Charitable and other donations made by the Group during the year amounted to approximately HK$8 million.

Note: These donations do not include the donations and sponsorships made by BOCHK Charitable Foundation (“the Foundation”). The Foundation is a
separate legal entity established in Hong Kong and is a charitable institution exempt from tax under the Inland Revenue Ordinance.

Debentures Issued

During the year, BOCHK issued the following debentures to raise funds for general working capital purpose.

Class Amount issued Consideration received

Senior notes RMB1,000,000,000 RMB1,000,000,000
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Report of the Directors (continued)
Directors

The Directors of the Bank during the year and up to the date of this report are:

Chairman TIAN Guoli®
Vice Chairmen CHEN Siqing*
YUE Yi (re-designation as Executive Director and appointment as Vice
Chairman effective from 6 March 2015)
HE Guangbei (resignation effective from 6 March 2015)
Directors REN Deqji* (appointment effective from 20 October 2015)
GAO Yingxin® (re-designation as Non-executive Director effective from 11
March 2015)
XU Luode® (appointment effective from 20 October 2015)
LI Zaohang® (retirement effective from 16 June 2015)
ZHU Shumin® (resignation effective from 2 April 2015)
LI Jiuzhong (appointment effective from 31 March 2015)
CHENG Eva*
KOH Beng Seng*
SHAN Weijian*

TUNG Savio Wai-Hok*

# Non-executive Directors

* Independent Non-executive Directors

In accordance with Article 87 of the Articles of Association, the terms of office of Mr YUE Yi, Mr GAO Yingxin and Mr SHAN Weijian will
expire at the forthcoming annual general meeting. Mr SHAN Weijian has notified the Bank that he has decided not to stand for
re-election at the forthcoming annual general meeting. The other two retiring Directors, Mr YUE Yi and Mr GAO Yingxin being
eligible, will offer themselves for re-election. Further, pursuant to Article 85 of the Articles of Association, any Director appointed by the
Board during the year shall hold office only until the next following annual general meeting, and shall then be eligible for re-election at
such meeting. Accordingly, the terms of office of Mr REN Degi and Mr XU Luode, who had been appointed on 20 October 2015, will
expire at the forthcoming annual general meeting and, being eligible, will offer themselves for re-election.
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BANK OF CHINA (HONG KONG) LIMITED

Report of the Directors (continued)

Directors (continued)

Save for the list of Directors of the Bank as set out above, other directors of the Bank’s subsidiaries during the year ended 31

December 2015 are as follows:

XIAO Wei

ZHU Yanlai*

CHAN Ka Pui

CHAN Yiu Fai

CHENG Zeyu

CHOW Tak Man

FUNG Kam Chung Astrid
HU Haozhong

LAN Hong Tsung, David
LEUNG Ka Chun

LU Ying

NG Leung Sing

TAN Wan Chye

WANG Jiangiang
WONG Kine Yuen
WOO Chia Wei

ZHAO Chuntang

LI Kit Mei*

YEUNG Jason Chi Wai*

LIN Jingzhen
ZHONG Xiangqun
CHAN Kam Lun
CHANG Hsin Kang
CHEUNG Wai Hing
CHU Wing Yiu

FUNG Yin Fan Kamill
HUANG Ling

LAU Hon Chuen
LEUNG Yuen Hong
Neil Anthony TORPEY
SHING Sze Yee

TO Chi Wing

WANG Tong

WONG Man Chiu
YANG Ruhai

FONG Siu Wah*

LO Ping Wa*

YIN Rong*

YUAN Shu

SUl Yang

CHAN Sai Ming

CHEN Zhong Xin
CHEUNG Wing Shing Vincent
CHUNG Chun Wa
GONG Huazhang

KAI Chi On

LAU Tim

LIU Xin Qun

NG Chui Sheung

SO Shing Shun

TSE Siu Ling

WANG Yunchao
WONG Man Yee

YIP Man Kai

Graham David MASON*
NG Sai Keung Derek*
ZHU Min*

HUANG Hong

KUNG YEUNG Ann Yun Chi
CHAN Siu Ping Chordio
CHENG Po Kee
CHOW Chak Chee
FANG Hongguang
GWEE Siew Ping
KWONG Shu Ming

LEE Hoi Yin, Stephen
LIU Yalin

NG Kwok Yuen

SZE Ying Tat

WANG Jian

WONG Chek Ming
WONG Siu Man

YU Kwok Chun

LEE Alex Wing Kwai*
SO Tat Wai*

* Resigned/retired during the year.

Directors’ Interests in Transactions, Arrangements or Contracts

No transactions, arrangements or contracts of significance, in relation to the Group’s business to which the Bank, its holding
companies, or any of its subsidiaries or fellow subsidiaries was a party and in which a Director or his/her connected entity had a
material interest, whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end of the year or at any time during the year.

Management Contracts

No contracts concerning the management and administration of the whole or any substantial part of the business of the Bank
were entered into or existed during the year.

Permitted Indemnity Provision

Pursuant to the Articles of Association, every Director shall be indemnified out of funds of the Bank against all liabilities incurred by
him/her to the extent permitted by the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance. The Bank has maintained insurance for the benefit of
Directors against liability which may lawfully be insured by the Bank.
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BANK OF CHINA (HONG KONG) LIMITED

Report of the Directors (continued)
Compliance with the Banking (Disclosure) Rules

This Annual Report complies with the applicable requirements set out in the Banking (Disclosure) Rules under the Banking
Ordinance.

Auditor

The financial statements for the year 2015 have been audited by Ernst & Young (“EY”) who has been appointed as new auditor of the
Bank at the annual general meeting of the Bank held on 28 May 2013 upon the retirement of PricewaterhouseCooper. EY will retire
and offer themselves for re-appointment at the 2016 annual general meeting.

On behalf of the Board

% 2
A
TIAN Guoli
Chairman

Hong Kong, 30 March 2016
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Corporate Governance

The Bank is committed to maintaining and upholding high standards of corporate governance in order to safeguard the interests of
shareholders, customers and employees. The Bank abides strictly by the relevant laws and regulations in Hong Kong, and observes
the rules and guidelines issued by regulatory authorities including the HKMA and Hong Kong Securities and Futures Commission. It
is in full compliance with the guidelines as set out in the Supervisory Policy Manual module CG-1 entitled “Corporate Governance of
Locally Incorporated Authorised Institutions” (“SPM CG-1") issued by the HKMA. To further enhance corporate governance standard,
the Bank will revamp its corporate governance system and strengthen relevant measures by referencing to market trend as well as
guidelines and requirements issued by regulatory authorities.

Corporate Governance Policy

The Bank recognises the importance of high standards of corporate governance and maintains an effective corporate governance
framework which delivers long-term success of the Bank. The Bank is also strongly committed to embracing and enhancing sound
corporate governance principles and practices. The established and well-structured corporate governance framework directs and
regulates the business ethical conduct of the Bank, thereby protects and upholds the value of shareholders and stakeholders as a
whole in a sustainable manner.

Corporate Governance Framework
Responsibilities of the Board and Management

The Board is at the core of the Bank’s corporate governance framework and there is a clear division of responsibilities between the
Board and the Management. The Board is responsible for providing high-level guidance and effective oversight of the Management.
Generally, the Board is responsible for:

« formulating the Group’s mid and long-term strategy and monitoring the implementation thereof;
« reviewing and approving the annual business plans and financial budgets;

« approving the annual, interim and quarterly results;

» reviewing and monitoring the Group’s risk management and internal control;

» ensuring good corporate governance and effective compliance; and

+ monitoring the performance of the Management.

The Board authorises the Management to implement the strategies as approved by the Board. The Management is responsible for
the day-to-day operations of the Group and reports to the Board. For this purpose, the Board has formulated clear written guidelines
which stipulate the circumstances whereas the Management should report to and obtain prior approval from the Board before making
decisions or entering into any commitments on behalf of the Group. The Board will conduct regular review on these authorisation and
guidelines.

Roles of the Chairman and the Chief Executive

To avoid concentration of power in any single individual, the positions of the Chairman and the Chief Executive of the Bank are held
by two different individuals. Their roles are distinct, clearly established and stipulated in the Board’s Mandate. In short, the Chairman
is responsible for ensuring that the Board properly discharges its responsibilities and conforms to good corporate governance
practices and procedures. In addition, as the Chairman of the Board, he is also responsible for ensuring that all Directors are properly
briefed on all issues currently on hand, and that all Directors receive adequate, accurate and reliable information in a timely manner.
The Chief Executive is responsible for providing leadership for the whole Management and implementing important policies and
development strategies as adopted by the Board. Led by the Chief Executive, the Management Committee fulfils responsibilities
including management of the Group’s routine operation, implementation of business development strategies and realisation of the
Group’s long-term targets and strategies.
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Corporate Governance (continued)
Corporate Governance Framework (continued)
Board Committees

Taking into consideration market practices and international best practices in corporate governance, the Board has established five
standing Board Committees to assist in performing its responsibilities. They are the Audit Committee, the Nomination Committee, the
Remuneration Committee, the Risk Committee, and the Strategy and Budget Committee. In addition, the Board will authorise an
Independent Board Committee comprising all Independent Non-executive Directors as and when required to review, approve and
monitor connected transactions (including continuing connected transactions) in accordance with relevant rules and regulations that
should be approved by the Board.

Each of the Board Committees has a well-defined Mandate and makes recommendations to the Board on relevant matters within its
scope of responsibilities or makes decisions under appropriate circumstances in accordance with the power delegated by the Board.
All Board Committees are assigned a professional secretarial department which ensures that the Board Committees have adequate
resources to perform their duties effectively and properly. The Board and Board Committees will participate in the annual
performance appraisal of those professional secretarial departments to ensure and enhance the services provided and ensure that
adequate and efficient supports are provided to the Board and Board Committees. In addition, according to their respective Mandates,
the Board and each of the Board Committees will evaluate and review their work process and effectiveness annually, with a view to
identifying areas for further improvements.

The following chart sets out the Bank’s corporate governance framework:

Shareholders and
other Stakeholders

The Board of
Directors

! - ) ) Strategy and
Audit Nomination Remuneration Risk Bu :{W—t M
- ; : ; . dge ageme
Committee Committee Committee Committee L anagement
Committee

Details including the Bank’s corporate governance principles and framework adopted by the Board, the composition of the Board and
each of the Board Committees and their respective Mandates, Corporate Governance Policy and Information Disclosure Policy are
available under the sub-section “Corporate Governance” of the section headed “About Us” on the Bank’s website at www.bochk.com.

Board of Directors

Composition and Terms of Office of the Board

The Board of the Bank is composed of majority of Non-executive Directors and Independent Non-executive Directors that ensures the
independence and objectivity of the decisions of the Board, as well as comprehensive and impartial control of the Management. The

Board acts honestly and in good faith so that decisions are made objectively with a view to delivering long-term and maximum
shareholder value and fulfilling its corporate responsibility to other stakeholders of the Group.
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Corporate Governance (continued)
Board of Directors (continued)

The Board currently has eleven members, comprising four Independent Non-executive Directors, five Non-executive Directors and
two Executive Directors. Mr YUE Yi, has been re-designated from Non-executive Director to Executive Director and appointed as
Vice Chairman and Chief Executive of the Bank effective from 6 March 2015, he ceased to be a member of the Risk Committee but
remains as a member of the Strategy and Budget Committee of the Bank. Mr GAO Yingxin has been re-designated from Executive
Director to Non-executive Director effective from 11 March 2015 and appointed as a member of each of the Risk Committee and the
Strategy and Budget Committee of the Bank. Mr LI Jiuzhong was appointed as Executive Director of the Bank effective from 31
March 2015. Mr REN Deqi was appointed as Non-executive Director, Chairman of the Strategy and Budget Committee and member
of the Risk Committee of the Bank effective from 20 October 2015. Mr XU Luode was appointed as Non-executive Director, member
of each of the Remuneration Committee and the Strategy and Budget Committee of the Bank effective from 20 October 2015. Mr HE
Guangbei resigned as Vice Chairman, Executive Director and Chief Executive and ceased to be a member of the Strategy and
Budget Committee of the Bank with effect from 6 March 2015. Mr ZHU Shumin resigned as Non-executive Director and ceased to be
a member of each of the Risk Committee and the Strategy and Budget Committee of the Bank with effect from 2 April 2015. Mr LI
Zaohang retired as Non-executive Director and ceased to be the Chairman of the Strategy and Budget Committee and a member of
the Remuneration Committee of the Bank with effect from 16 June 2015. Save as disclosed above, there were no other changes to
the composition of the Board and Board Committees during the year and up to the date of this Annual Report.

All the existing Non-executive Directors and Independent Non-executive Directors of the Bank have been appointed for a fixed term
of approximately 3 years, with formal letters of appointment setting out the key terms and conditions of their appointment. In
accordance with Article 87 of the Articles of Association, the terms of office of Mr YUE Yi, Mr GAO Yingxin and Mr SHAN Weijian will
expire at the forthcoming annual general meeting. Mr SHAN Weijian has notified the Bank that he has decided not to stand for
re-election at the forthcoming annual general meeting. The other two retiring Directors, Mr YUE Yi and Mr GAO Yingxin being eligible,
offer themselves for re-election. Further, pursuant to the Articles of Association, any Director appointed by the Board during the year
shall hold office only until the next following general meeting or the next following annual general meeting of the Bank, and shall then
be eligible for re-election at such meeting. Accordingly, the terms of office of Mr REN Degi and Mr XU Luode, who were appointed on
20 October 2015, will expire at the forthcoming annual general meeting and, being eligible, offer themselves for re-election. Further
details regarding the proposed re-election of Directors are set out in the section headed “Report of the Directors”. In addition, the
Bank has also established a written and formal process for the appointment of Independent Non-executive Directors to ensure that
the appointment procedures are standardised, thorough and transparent.

Diversity and Independence of the Board Members

The Bank recognises the importance and benefits of board diversity. In order to promote Board efficiency and standards of corporate
governance, the guidance set out in the “Board Diversity Policy” adopted by the Bank will be considered in identifying suitable and
qualified candidates to be a Board member, which covers a number of aspects, including but not limited to gender, age, cultural and
educational background, ethnicity, geographical location, professional experience, skills and knowledge, etc., in order to have an
appropriate proportion in the Board composition from various aspects as afore-mentioned. At the same time, all Board appointments
are made on merit, in the context of the skills and experience the Board as a whole required and the various perspectives of Board
diversity elements as mentioned above shall also be adequately considered.

Under the current board membership, all Directors possess extensive experience in banking and management. In addition, over
one-third of them are Independent Non-executive Directors, some of whom are experts in strategic development, financial and/or risk
management. The Board has formulated the “Policy on Independence of Directors” which stipulates the criteria on independence of
Independent Non-executive Directors. The Bank has received from each of the Independent Non-executive Directors an annual
confirmation of his/her independence by reference to the said independence policy. Based on the information available to the Bank, it
considers that all of the Independent Non-executive Directors are independent.

22



@ ¥ 8 4 47 (5 ) B mAT

BANK OF CHINA (HONG KONG) LIMITED

Corporate Governance (continued)
Board of Directors (continued)
An analysis of the Board Composition during the year is set out below:

Number of Directors

| Fomat e
Independent
10 X .
Non-executive Singapore
9 Director
56-65 over 6 years
8
7 :
China 4-6 years
6 Male
5 Non-executive
Director
4 45-55 0-3 years
3
2
Executive
1 Director
Directorship
Geographical with the
Gender Designation Age group location Bank
(Number of
years)

Mr TIAN Guoli and Mr CHEN Siqging are Executive Directors of BOC. Mr REN Degqi, Mr GAO Yingxin and Mr XU Luode are Executive
Vice Presidents of BOC. Mr YUE Yi, Mr LI Zaohang and Mr ZHU Shumin were Executive Vice Presidents of BOC (they resigned such
positions with effect from 6 March 2015, 11 June 2015 and 2 April 2015 respectively). Save as disclosed above, there are no other
relationships between the Board members, including financial, business, family or other material relationships.

In addition, it is expressly provided in the Board’s Mandate that, unless the applicable laws or regulations allow otherwise, if a
substantial shareholder or Director has a conflict of interest in the matter to be considered by the Board, a Board meeting must be
convened and attended by Independent Non-executive Directors who have no material interest, and give professional advice to the
subject matter for further consideration and approval.

Directors’ Liability Insurance Policy

During the year, the Bank has arranged for appropriate cover on Directors’ Liability Insurance Policy to indemnify the Directors for
liabilities arising from the corporate activities. The coverage and the amount insured under such policy are reviewed annually by the
Bank.

Directors’ Training and Professional Development

To ensure the newly appointed Directors to have adequate understanding of the Bank’s business operations and to enable all
Directors to update their knowledge regularly so as to provide informed recommendation and advice and make contribution to the
Bank, the Board establishes a set of written policy specifying guidelines on Directors’ induction and training upon appointment.

The Bank also provides regular updates to Board members on material changes to regulatory requirements applicable to the
Directors and the Bank on a timely basis; and arranges regular meetings with the Management to facilitate the understanding of the
latest business development of the Bank. In addition, Board members are encouraged to participate actively in continuous training
programmes. The Bank also arranges relevant professional training programmes for Board members at the expense of BOCHK
(Holdings).
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Corporate Governance (continued)
Board of Directors (continued)

During the year, all Directors have participated in continuous professional development to develop and refresh their knowledge and
skills. In 2015, the Bank invited experts to deliver seminars to the Directors and senior management with regard to cyber security
awareness and the latest supervisory requirements and industrial trends on anti-money laundering. Each of the Directors received a
series of training locally or overseas as he thought fit, hosted or attended briefings, meetings, seminars and conferences organised
by the Bank and other organisations. Relevant training included, among others:

— development of national and global economy;
— cyber security and innovation of technologies;
— corporate governance;

— regulatory updates; and

— banking industry development trend, etc.

The Directors’ records of annual training information have been entered in the register of directors’ training records maintained and
updated by the Bank from time to time. The following summarises continuous professional development participated by all Directors
of the Bank during the year:
Banking industry
development trend and

Corporate global/national
Directors "™° Governance Regulatory updates economy
Non-executive Directors
Mr TIAN Guoli v v v
Mr CHEN Siqing v v v
Mr REN Degqi v v v
Mr GAO Yingxin v v v
Mr XU Luode v v v
Independent Non-executive Directors
Mdm CHENG Eva v v v
Mr KOH Beng Seng v v v
Mr SHAN Weijian v v v
Mr TUNG Savio Wai-Hok v v v
Executive Directors
Mr YUE Yi v v v
Mr LI Jiuzhong v v v

Note: The training records for those Directors who resigned or retired during the year have not been included therein. Please refer to the section headed
“Composition and Terms of Office of the Board” under “Board of Directors” for details of changes in Directors during the year and up to the date of
this Annual Report

Directors’ Attendance of the Meetings of the Board of Directors, Board Committees and General Meeting

Eleven Board meetings were held during 2015 with an average attendance rate of 82%. Regular meeting schedule for the year was
prepared and approved by the Board in the preceding year. Ad hoc Board meetings will be convened as appropriate. In general,
formal notice of regular Board meetings shall be sent to all Directors at least 14 days before the date of the scheduled meetings and
Board agenda and meeting materials are despatched to all Board members for review at least seven days prior to the scheduled
meetings. Board agenda is approved by the Chairman following consultation with other Board members and the senior management.
In addition, in order to facilitate open discussion with all Non-executive Directors and on their requests, the Chairman will meet with all
Non-executive Directors (including Independent Non-executive Directors), in the absence of Executive Directors and the senior
management, during the discussion session before each Board meeting. Relevant practice has been incorporated in the Working
Rules of the Board.
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Board of Directors (continued)

Details of respective Directors’ attendance at the Board meetings, Board committee meetings and annual general meeting in 2015
are set out as follows:

Number of meetings attended/Number of meetings convened during directors’ term of office
Board Committees General Meeting
Strategy Annual

Audit Nomination Remuneration Risk and Budget General
Directors " Board Committee Committee Committee Committee Committee Meeting
Number of meetings
held during the year 11 6 5 5 6 4 1
Non-executive Directors
TIAN Guoli (Chairman) 711 - 4/5 - - - 0/1
CHEN Siqing (Vice 9/11 - 5/5 5/5 - - 11

Chairman)
REN Deqi 2/2 - - - 2/2 2/2 -
GAO Yingxin 10/11 - - - 6/6 3/4 11
XU Luode 1/2 - - 0/1 - 1/2 -
LI Zaohang (retired) 1/6 - - 0/3 - 11 0/1
ZHU Shumin (resigned) 1/3 - - - 01 01 -
Independent Non-executive Directors
CHENG Eva 11/11 6/6 - - - 3/4 11
KOH Beng Seng 11/11 6/6 5/5 5/5 6/6 - 0/1
SHAN Weijian 711 6/6 3/5 4/5 - - 0/1
TUNG Savio Wai-Hok 10/11 5/6 5/5 5/5 6/6 4/4 11
Executive Directors
YUE Yi (Vice Chairman  11/11 - - - - 4/4 11
and Chief Executive)

LI Jiuzhong 8/8 - - - - - 1M
HE Guangbei (resigned) 11 - - - - - -
Average Attendance
Rate 82% 96% 88% 80% 96% 81% 60%

Note: Please refer to the section headed “Composition and Terms of Office of the Board” under “Board of Directors” for details of changes in
Directors during the year and up to the date of this Annual Report

Apart from formal Board meetings and annual general meeting, the Bank arranges, on a regular basis, other casual events for the
Board members and the senior management to facilitate their communication and interactions. For example, the Bank organises
working meals from time to time, Board members and senior management have been invited to join and share insights on the Bank’s
business and strategic issues. Further, a board retreat has also been held during the year to enhance communication between the
Board and the senior management.
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Corporate Governance (continued)

Board Committees

Audit Committee

The Audit Committee comprised four members during end of the year, all of which are Independent Non-executive Directors. Its
composition, main duties and major works performed during the year are as follows:

Mr SHAN Weijian (Chairman) .
Mdm CHENG Eva

Mr KOH Beng Seng

Mr TUNG Savio Wai-Hok

Composition Main duties

integrity of financial statements and financial reporting process
monitoring of risk management and internal control systems

effectiveness of internal audit function and performance appraisal of the Head of Group
Audit

appointment of external auditor and assessment of its qualification, independence and
performance and, with authorisation of the Board, determination of its remuneration

periodic review and annual audit of the Bank’s and the Group’s financial statements,
and financial and business review

compliance with applicable accounting standards as well as legal and regulatory
requirements on financial disclosures

corporate governance framework of the Group and implementation thereof

Major works performed during the year (included the review and, where applicable,
approval of)

the Bank’s financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2014 and the annual
results announcement that were recommended to the Board for approval

the Bank’s interim financial statements for the six months ended 30 June 2015 and the
interim results announcement that were recommended to the Board for approval

the audit reports and report on internal control recommendations submitted by external
auditor, and the on-site examination reports issued by regulators

the appointment of external auditor, the fees payable to external auditor for the annual
audit, interim review and other non-audit services

the Group’s audit plan for next year and key areas identified

the deployment of human resources and pay level of the Internal Audit, its budget for
next year and review of the effectiveness of the internal audit function

the 2014 performance appraisal and key performance indicators for the Head of Group
Audit and the Group Audit for next year

the annual review of the effectiveness of the Group’s risk control and internal control
systems

The “Policy on Staff Reporting of Irregularities” adopted by the Board is proved to be effective. During the year, reports on a number
of cases were received and handled satisfactorily through the channels and procedures set out in the said Policy.
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Corporate Governance (continued)

Board Committees (continued)

Nomination Committee

The Nomination Committee comprised five members during end of the year, including two Non-executive Directors and three

Independent Non-executive Directors. Its composition and main duties during the year are as follows:

Composition

Mr TIAN Guoli'(Chairman)
Mr CHEN Siging'

Mr KOH Beng Seng®

Mr SHAN Weijian®

Mr TUNG Savio Wai-Hok®

Main duties

overall human resources strategy of the Group

selection and nomination of Directors, Board Committee members and Senior
Management

structure, size and composition (including but not limited to gender, age, cultural and
educational background, ethnicity, geographical location, professional experience, skills
and knowledge, etc.) of the Board and Board Committees

effectiveness of the Board and Board Committees
training and continuous professional development of Directors and Senior Management

code of conduct applicable to employees

Major works performed during the year (included the approval, review and proposal
to the Board)

consideration of the matters relating to the recruitment, adjustment and appointment of
Directors and Senior Management

consolidation of self-evaluation results of the Board and Board Committees, put forward
recommendations to the Board to further enhance the functions and effectiveness of the
Board and Board Committees

annual review on the “Policy on Independence of Directors”

Notes:
1. Non-executive Director

2. Independent Non-executive Director

Remuneration Committee

The Remuneration Committee comprised five members during end of the year, including two Non-executive Directors and three

Independent Non-executive Directors. Its composition, main duties and major works performed during the year are as follows:

Composition

Mr TUNG Savio Wai-Hok' (Chairman)
Mr CHEN Siging?

Mr XU Luode®

Mr KOH Beng Seng'

Mr SHAN Weijian'

Main duties

remuneration strategy and incentive framework of the Group

remuneration of Directors, Board Committee members, Senior Management and Key
Personnel

Major tasks performed during the year (included the approval, review and proposal
to the Board)

performance appraisal result of the Executive Directors and Senior Management for
year 2014

proposal on staff bonus for year 2014 and salary adjustment for year 2015 for the
Group, including the Senior Management

remuneration relating to the appointment of Senior Management
key performance indicators of the Group and the Senior Management for year 2016

proposal on human resources budget of the Group for year 2016

Notes:
1. Independent Non-executive Director
2. Non-executive Director
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Corporate Governance (continued)

Board Committees (continued)

Risk Committee

The Risk Committee comprised four members during end of the year, including two Non-executive Directors and two Independent

Non-executive Directors. Its composition, main duties and major accomplishments during the year are as follows:

Composition

Mr KOH Beng Seng' (Chairman)
Mr REN Degi?

Mr GAO Yingxin®

Mr TUNG Savio Wai-Hok'

Main duties

formulation of the risk appetite and risk management strategy of the Group and
determination of the Group’s risk profile

identification, assessment and management of material risks faced by various business
units of the Group

review and assessment of the adequacy and effectiveness of the Group’s risk
management policies, systems and internal controls

review and monitoring of the Group’s capital management
review and approval of the Group’s target balance sheet

review and monitoring of the Group’s compliance with risk management policies,
systems and internal controls, including the Group’s compliance with prudential, legal
and regulatory requirements governing the businesses of the Group

review and approval of high-level risk-related policies of the Group
review and approval of significant or high risk exposures or transactions

review of key reports, including risk exposure reports, model development and
validation reports, and credit risk model performance reports

Major works performed during the year

review/approval of key risk management policies, including the “Risk Appetite
Statement of BOCHK Group”, the “BOCHK Group Operating Principles”, the “Risk
Management Policy Statement of BOCHK Group”, the “Capital Management Policy of
BOCHK?”, the “BOCHK Group Financial Instruments Valuation Policy”, the “Staff Code
of Conduct”, the “Technology Risk Management Policy”, the “Policy for Validating
Internal Rating Systems”, the “Connected Transactions Management Policy”, the
“Stress Test Policy of BOCHK” and stress test scenarios, and a range of risk
management policies covering strategic risk, credit risk, market risk, liquidity risk,
interest rate risk, operational risk, legal, compliance and reputation risk, etc.

review of the risk adjustment method for group bonus funding mechanics and the
approval of the results of risk adjustment of BOCHK Group for 2014

review/approval of the Group’s operating plans, including the Group’s target balance
sheets, the BOCHK’s banking book investment plans and portfolio key risk indicators,
as well as risk management limits

review and monitoring of Basel Accord implementation, including review of model
validation reports and model performance reports, and receiving the status reports of
the allocation of risk-weighted assets

review of various risk management reports

review/approval of significant high risk exposures or transactions

Notes:
1. Independent Non-executive Director
2. Non-executive Director
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Corporate Governance (continued)

Board Committees (continued)

Strategy and Budget Committee

The Strategy and Budget Committee (“SBC”) comprised six members during end of the year, including three Non-executive Directors,
two Independent Non-executive Directors as well as the Executive Director and Chief Executive of the Bank. Its composition, main
duties and major works performed during the year are as follows:

Mdm CHENG Eva®
Mr TUNG Savio Wai-Hok ?

Composition Main duties
Mr REN Deg;’ (Chairman) » prepare, with input from the Management, Group’s medium to long-term strategic plans
Mr YUE Yi? for Board approval
. .1
Mr GAO Yingxin * review, motion and monitor the Group’s medium to long-term strategy
Mr XU Luode'

review the process for formulating the Group’s medium to long-term strategy to ensure
that they are sufficiently robust to take into account a range of alternatives

monitor implementation of the Group’s medium to long-term strategy through
pre-determined metrics and provide guidance to the Management

make recommendations to the Board on major investments, capital expenditure, and
strategic commitments of the Group and monitor implementation of the same

review budget for Board approval and monitor performance against budgeted targets

review and monitor the Group’s regular/periodic (including annual) business plan and
financial budget

Major works performed during the year

in response to the launch of Free Trade Zone policies, SBC discussed the latest
development and business opportunity of Free Trade Zone and put forward strategic
directions with collaboration of BOC and concerns on risk areas

reviewed the proposal on potential restructuring of the Group in the ASEAN Region, and
discussed the latest work progress and submitted to the Board

discussed on the asset disposal of the Group and submitted to the Board

reviewed and monitored the implementation of the Group’s financial budgets and
business plans for 2015, and also reviewed and endorsed the financial budgets and
business plans submitted by the Management for the year 2016 and recommended the
same to the Board

Notes:
1. Non-executive Director
2. Executive Director

3. Independent Non-executive Director
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Corporate Governance (continued)
Directors’ Securities Transactions

BOCHK (Holdings) has established and implemented the “Code for Securities Transactions by Directors” to govern the Directors’
dealings in securities transactions of BOC and BOCHK (Holdings). Upon inquiry by BOCHK (Holdings), all Directors confirmed that
they had strictly complied with the provisions as set out in both the said Code and the “Model Code for Securities Transactions by
Directors of Listed Issuers” as contained in Appendix 10 of the Listing Rules throughout the year 2015.

Directors’ Remuneration

The Remuneration Committee has the delegated responsibility from the Board to determine the remuneration packages of the
Executive Directors and Senior Management, including benefits in kind, pension rights and compensation payments (including any
compensation payable for loss or termination of their office or appointment, early payout of deferred remuneration), as well as the
performance-based remuneration. Moreover, it will recommend to the Board on their remuneration package upon joining, sign-on
bonus and contract guaranteed bonus, etc.

Remuneration and Incentive Mechanism

The Remuneration and Incentive Mechanism of the Group is based on the principles of “effective motivation” and “sound
remuneration management”. It links remuneration with performance and risk factors closely. It serves to encourage staff to enhance
their performance, and at the same time, to strengthen their awareness of risk so as to achieve sound remuneration management.

The Remuneration and Incentive Policy of the Group is generally in line with the broad principles set out in the HKMA'’s “Guideline on
a Sound Remuneration System” and applicable to the Bank and all of its subsidiaries (including the branches and institutions in and
out of Hong Kong).

* “Senior Management” and “Key Personnel”

The following groups of employees have been identified as the “Senior Management” and “Key Personnel” as defined in the
HKMA'’s “Guideline on a Sound Remuneration System”:

« “Senior Management”: The senior executives designated by the Board who are responsible for oversight of the firm-wide
strategy or material business lines, including Chief Executive, Deputy Chief Executives, Chief Financial Officer, Chief Risk
Officer, Chief Operating Officer, Board Secretary and Head of Group Audit.

+ “Key Personnel”: The employees whose individual business activities involve the assumption of material risk which may have
significant impact on risk exposure, or whose individual responsibilities are directly and materially linked to the risk
management, or those who have direct influence to the profit, including heads of material business lines, heads of major
subsidiaries, head of trading, as well as heads of risk control functions.

¢ Determination of the Remuneration Policy

To fulfil the above-mentioned principles and to facilitate effective risk management within the framework of the Remuneration
Policy of the Group, the Remuneration Policy of the Group is initiated by Human Resources Department with consultation of the
risk control units including risk management, financial management and compliance in order to balance the needs for staff
motivations, sound remuneration and prudent risk management. After the proposed Remuneration Policy is cleared by the
Management Committee, it will be submitted to the Remuneration Committee for review and thereafter to the Board for approval.
The Remuneration Committee and the Board will seek opinions from other Board Committees (e.g. Risk Committee, Audit
Committee, etc.) where they consider necessary under the circumstances.

* Key Features of the Remuneration and Incentive Mechanism
1. Performance Management Mechanism

To reflect the “performance-driven” corporate culture, the Group has put in place a performance management mechanism to
formalise the performance management at the levels of the Group, units and individuals. The annual targets of the Group will be
cascaded down under the framework of balanced scorecard whereby the performance of the “Senior Management” and different
units (including business units, risk control units and other units) would be assessed from the perspectives of financial, customer,
building blocks/key tasks, human capital, risk management and compliance. For individual staff at different levels, annual targets
of the Group will be tied to their job requirements through the performance management mechanism. Performance of individuals
will be appraised on their achievement against targets, their contribution towards performance of their units and fulfilment of risk
management duties and compliance, etc. Not only is target accomplishment taken into account, but the risk exposure involved
during the course of work could also be evaluated and managed, ensuring security and normal operation of the Group.
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Corporate Governance (continued)
Remuneration and Incentive Mechanism (continued)
2. Risk Adjustment of Remuneration

To put the principle of aligning performance and remuneration with risk into practice, based on “The Risk Adjustment Method”, the
key risk modifiers of the Bank have been incorporated into the performance management mechanism of the Group. Credit risk,
market risk, interest rate risk, liquidity risk, operational risk, legal risk, compliance risk and reputation risk form the framework of
“The Risk Adjustment Method”. The size of the variable remuneration pool of the Group is calculated according to the risk adjusted
performance results approved by the Board and is subject to the Board’s discretion. This method ensures the Group to fix the
Group’s variable remuneration pool after considering risk exposures and changes and to maintain effective risk management
through the remuneration mechanism.

3. Performance-based and Risk-adjusted Remuneration Management

The remuneration of staff is composed of “fixed remuneration” and “variable remuneration”. The proportion of one to the other for
individual staff members depends on job grades, roles, responsibilities and functions of the staff with the prerequisite that balance
has to be struck between the fixed and variable portion. Generally speaking, the higher the job grades and/or the greater the
responsibilities, the higher will be the proportion of variable remuneration so as to encourage the staff to follow the philosophy of
prudent risk management and sound long-term financial stability.

Every year, the Group will conduct periodic review on the fixed remuneration of the staff with reference to various factors like
remuneration strategy, market pay trend and staff salary level, and will determine the remuneration based on the affordability of
the Group as well as the performance of the Group, units and individuals. As mentioned above, performance assessment criteria
include quantitative and qualitative factors, as well as financial and non-financial indicators.

According to the “Group Bonus Funding Policy”, the size of the variable remuneration pool of the Group is determined by the
Board on the basis of the financial performance of the Group and the achievement of non-financial strategic business targets
under the long-term development of the Group. Thorough consideration is also made to the risk factors in the determination
process. The size of the pool is reached based on pre-defined formulaic calculations but the Board can make discretionary
adjustment to it if deemed appropriate under prevailing circumstances. When the Group’s performance is relatively weak (e.g.
failed to meet the threshold performance level), no variable remuneration will be paid out that year in principle. However, the
Board reserves the rights to exercise its discretion.

As far as individual units and individual staff are concerned, allocation of the variable remuneration is closely linked to the
performance of the units, and that of each individual staff as well as the unit he/she is attaching to, and the assessment of which
should include risk modifiers. The performance and remuneration arrangement of risk control personnel are determined by the
achievement of their core job responsibilities, independent from the business they oversee; for front-line risk controllers, a
cross-departmental reporting and performance management system is applied to ensure the suitability of performance-based
remuneration. Within the acceptable risk level of the Group, the better the performance of the unit and the individual staff, the
higher will be the variable remuneration for the individual staff.

4. Linking the payout of the variable remuneration with the time horizon of the risk to reflect the long-term value creation of the Group

To work out the principle of aligning remuneration with the time horizon of risk and to ensure that sufficient time is allowed to
ascertain the associated risk and its impact before the actual payout, payout of the variable remuneration of staff is required to be
deferred in cash if such amount reaches certain prescribed threshold. The Group adopts a progressive approach towards deferral.
The longer the time horizon of risk in the activities conducted by the staff, the higher the job grade or the higher amount of the
variable remuneration, the higher will be the proportion of deferral. Deferral period lasts for 3 years.

The vesting of the deferred variable remuneration is linked with the long term value creation of the Group. The vesting conditions
are closely linked to the annual performance of the Group in the next 3 years and the individual behaviour of the staff concerned.
When the Group’s performance has met the threshold requirement, the deferred variable remuneration would be vested following
the corresponding schedule. However, if a staff is found to have committed fraud, or any financial or non-financial factors used in
performance measurement or variable pay determination are later proven to have been manifestly worse than originally
understood in a particular year, or individual behaviour/management style pose negative impacts to the business unit and even
the Group, including but not limited to improper or inadequate risk management, etc., the unvested portion of the deferred variable
remuneration of the relevant staff would be forfeited.
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Remuneration and Incentive Mechanism (continued)
« External Remuneration Consultant

To ensure the suitability and competitiveness of the remuneration and incentive mechanism, the Group appointed Towers Watson
Hong Kong Limited and McLagan Partners Asia, Inc. for independent consultation in areas of pay management mechanism and
market remuneration data of Senior Management and key positions.

¢ Disclosure on Remuneration

The Group has fully complied with the guideline in Part 3 of the “Guideline on a Sound Remuneration System” issued by the
HKMA to disclose information in relation to our remuneration and incentive mechanism.

External Auditor

Pursuant to the “Policy on External Auditor Management” adopted by the Board, the Audit Committee reviewed and monitored and
was satisfied with the independence and objectivity of Ernst & Young, the Group’s external auditor, and the effectiveness of its audit
procedures, based on the principles and standards set out in the said Policy that were in line with international best practices. Upon
the recommendation of the Audit Committee, the Board will propose that Ernst & Young be re-appointed as auditor of the Group at
the Bank’s 2016 annual general meeting. Subject to shareholders’ authorisation, the Board will authorise the Audit Committee to
determine the remuneration of Ernst & Young. For 2015, the fee charged by Ernst & Young was HK$41 million, of which HK$27
million was for audit services and HK$14 million related to other services (mainly including tax-related and advisory services). For
2014, the fee paid by the Group to Ernst & Young was HK$37 million, of which HK$26 million was for audit services and HK$11
million related to other services (mainly including tax-related and advisory services). The Audit Committee was satisfied that the
non-audit services in 2015 did not affect the independence of Ernst & Young.

Risk Management and Internal Control

The Board is responsible for evaluating and determining the nature and extent of the risks it is willing to take in achieving the Group’s
strategic objectives, and ensuring that the Group establishes and maintains appropriate and effective risk management and internal
control systems. The Board oversees the Management in the design, implementation and monitoring of the risk management and
internal control systems. According to the Board’s scope of delegation, the Management is responsible for the day-to-day operations
and risk management, and the Management needs to provide a confirmation to the Board on the effectiveness of these systems.

The risk management and internal control systems are designed to manage rather than eliminate the risk of failure to achieve
business objectives, and can only provide reasonable and not absolute assurance against material misstatement or loss; to manage
the risk of system failure; and to assist in the achievement of the Group’s objectives. In addition to safeguarding the Group’s assets, it
also ensures the maintenance of proper accounting records and compliance with relevant laws and regulations.

The Group conducts an annual review of the effectiveness of its risk management and internal control systems covering all material
controls, including financial, operational and compliance controls as well as risk management. The review is conducted by reference
to the guidelines and definitions given by the regulatory and professional bodies for the purpose of assessing five different internal
control elements, namely, the control environment, risk assessment, control activities, information and communication, and
monitoring. The assessment covers all the major internal controls and measures, including financial, operational and compliance
controls as well as risk management functions. The review also considers the adequacy of resources, staff qualifications and
experience and training of the Group’s accounting, financial reporting and internal audit functions. The review is coordinated by the
Group'’s internal audit which, after the Management and various business departments have performed their self-assessment and the
Management has confirmed the effectiveness of the relevant systems, then carries out an independent examination and other
post-assessment work on the review process and results. The results of the 2015 review, which have been reported to the Audit
Committee and the Board, revealed that the Group’s risk management and internal control systems were effective and adequate.

The key procedures that the Group has essentially established and implemented to provide internal controls are summarised as
follows:

« a rational organisational structure with appropriate personnel is developed and whose responsibility, authority, and accountability
are clearly delineated. The Group has formulated policies and procedures to ensure reasonable checks and balances for all the
operating units, reasonable safeguard for the Group’s assets and adherence to relevant laws and regulations and risk
management in its operations;
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Corporate Governance (continued)
Risk Management and Internal Control (continued)

« the Management draws up and continuously monitors the implementation of the Group’s strategies, business plans and financial
budgets. The accounting and management systems that are in place provide the basis for evaluating financial and operational
performance;

« the Group has various risk management and human resources policies. There are specific units and personnel that are
responsible for handling reputation, strategic, legal, compliance, credit, market, operational, liquidity and interest rate risks. There
are also procedures and internal controls for the handling and dissemination of inside information. The Group has set up
mechanisms to identify, evaluate and manage all the major risks, and has established corresponding internal control procedures
as well as processes for resolving internal control defects. (The Group’s risk management is given on pages 299 to 305);

« the Group has established an information technology governance structure that produces a range of reports on information
systems and management, including information on the monitoring of various business units, financial information and operating
performance. Such information facilitates the Management, business units and the regulatory bodies in assessing and monitoring
the Group’s operation and performance. Proper communication channels and reporting mechanisms are in place at various
business units and levels to facilitate exchange of information;

» pursuant to a risk-based approach and in accordance with the internal audit plan approved by the Audit Committee, the Group’s
internal audit conducts independent reviews on such aspects as financial activities, various business areas, various kinds of risks,
operations and activities. Reports are submitted directly to the Audit Committee. The Group’s internal audit closely follows up on
the items that require attention in a systematic way and reports to the Management and the Audit Committee in a timely manner;
and

» the Audit Committee reviews the reports submitted by external auditor to the Group’s Management in connection with the annual
audit as well as the recommendations made by regulatory bodies on risk management and internal control. The Group’s internal
audit follows up on the same to ensure timely implementation of the recommendations, and also periodically reports the status of
the implementation to the Management and the Audit Committee.

The Group is committed to upholding good corporate governance practices and the internal control system of all subsidiaries are
reviewed regularly. During the year of 2015, continuous improvements on the organisation structure and segregation of duty, the risk
management policy and procedure, and the enhancement of disclosure transparency have been undertaken by the Group. In
response to internal and external changes in global economic condition, operating environment, regulatory requirement and business
development, the Group has implemented a series of measures and undertaken an on-going review on the effectiveness of the
internal control mechanism. In 2015, areas for improvement have been identified and appropriate measures have been implemented.

Directors’ Responsibility Statement in relation to Financial Statements

The following statement should be read in conjunction with the auditor’s statement of their responsibilities as set out in the auditor’'s
report. The statement aims to distinguish the responsibilities of the Directors and the auditor in relation to the financial statements.

The Directors are required by the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance to prepare financial statements, which give a true and fair view
of the state of affairs of the Bank. The financial statements should be prepared on a going concern basis unless it considers
inappropriate. The Directors are responsible for ensuring that the accounting records kept by the Bank at any time reasonably and
accurately reflect the financial position of the Bank, and also ensure that the financial statements comply with the requirements of the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance. The Directors also have duties to take reasonable and practicable steps to safeguard the assets
of the Group and to prevent and detect fraud and other irregularities.

The Directors consider that in preparing the financial statements, the Bank has adopted appropriate accounting policies which have
been consistently applied and supported by reasonable judgements and estimates, and that all accounting standards which they
consider to be applicable have been followed.
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Independent Auditors’ Report

Ernst & Young

22/F, CITIC Tower
ﬁ* 1 Tim Mei Avenue

Central, Hong Kong

To the members of Bank of China (Hong Kong) Limited
(Incorporated in Hong Kong with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Bank of China (Hong Kong) Limited (the “Bank”) and its subsidiaries set out
on pages 36 to 258, which comprise the consolidated balance sheet as at 31 December 2015, and the consolidated income
statement, the consolidated statement of comprehensive income, the consolidated statement of changes in equity and the
consolidated cash flow statement for the year then ended, and significant accounting policies and other explanatory information.

Directors’ responsibility for the consolidated financial statements

The directors of the Bank are responsible for the preparation of consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in
accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such internal control as the directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation of
consolidated financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditors’ responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated financial statements based on our audit. Our report is made solely to
you, as a body, in accordance with section 405 of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for no other purpose. We do not
assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any other person for the contents of this report.

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on Auditing issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants. Those standards require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the consolidated financial
statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditors’ judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material
misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditors
consider internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation of consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in order
to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates made by the directors, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the consolidated
financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.
Opinion
In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair view of the financial position of the Bank and its subsidiaries

as at 31 December 2015, and of their financial performance and cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards and have been properly prepared in compliance with the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

b

Ernst & Young
Certified Public Accountants
Hong Kong, 30 March 2016
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Consolidated Income Statement

(&%)
B &% (Restated)
For the year ended 31 December Notes 2015 2014
AEEET A EET
HK$’'m HK$'m
CONTINUING OPERATIONS
Interest income 35,830 36,539
Interest expense (12,328) (11,974)
Net interest income 6 23,502 24,565
Fee and commission income 15,850 12,885
Fee and commission expense (4,204) (3,792)
Net fee and commission income 7 11,646 9,093
Net trading gain 8 2,604 2,202
Net loss on financial instruments designated at
fair value through profit or loss (22) (14)
Net gain on other financial assets 9 1,150 555
Other operating income 10 702 502
Net operating income before impairment
allowances 39,582 36,903
Net charge of impairment allowances 11 (931) (146)
Net operating income 38,651 36,757
Operating expenses 12 (11,511) (10,454)
Operating profit 27,140 26,303
Net gain from disposal of/fair value adjustments
on investment properties 13 798 360
Net loss from disposal/revaluation of properties,
plant and equipment 14 (63) (24)
Share of profits less losses after tax of
associates and a joint venture 25 54 34
Profit before taxation 27,929 26,673
Taxation 15 (4,181) (4,778)
Profit from continuing operations 23,748 21,895
DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS
Profit from discontinued operations 36 2,827 2,650
Profit for the year 26,575 24,545
Profit attributable to:
Equity holders of the Bank
- from continuing operations 23,455 21,587
- from discontinued operations 2,827 2,650
26,282 24,237
Non-controlling interests 293 308
26,575 24,545
Dividends 16 13,085 8,867

The notes on pages 42 to 258 are an integral part of these financial statements.
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Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income

FfsE:
For the year ended 31 December Notes 2015 2014
EEET A EETT
HK$’'m HK$'m
Profit for the year 26,575 24,545
Items that will not be reclassified subsequently
to income statement:
Premises:
Revaluation of premises 3,642 3,306
Deferred tax 34 (481) (449)
3,161 2,857
Items that may be reclassified subsequently to
income statement:
Available-for-sale securities:
Change in fair value of available-for-sale
securities (678) 2,206
Release upon disposal of available-for-sale
securities reclassified to income
statement (1,323) (647)
Amortisation with respect to
available-for-sale securities transferred
to held-to-maturity securities reclassified
to income statement 232 288
Deferred tax 34 385 (594)
(1,384) 1,253
Change in fair value of hedging instruments
under net investment hedges 51 49
Currency translation difference (671) (292)
(2,004) 1,010
Other comprehensive income for the year,
net of tax 1,157 3,867
Total comprehensive income for the year 27,732 28,412
Total comprehensive income attributable to:
Equity holders of the Bank 27,432 28,075
Non-controlling interests 300 337
27,732 28,412

The notes on pages 42 to 258 are an integral part of these financial statements.
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Consolidated Balance Sheet

As at 31 December

ASSETS

Cash and balances with banks and other
financial institutions

Placements with banks and other financial
institutions maturing between one and
twelve months

Financial assets at fair value through profit or
loss

Derivative financial instruments

Hong Kong SAR Government certificates of
indebtedness

Advances and other accounts

Investment in securities

Interests in associates and a joint venture

Investment properties

Properties, plant and equipment

Deferred tax assets

Other assets

Assets held for sale

Total assets

LIABILITIES

Hong Kong SAR currency notes in circulation

Deposits and balances from banks and other
financial institutions

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or
loss

Derivative financial instruments

Deposits from customers

Debt securities and certificates of deposit in
issue

Other accounts and provisions

Current tax liabilities

Deferred tax liabilities

Subordinated liabilities

Liabilities associated with assets held for sale

Total liabilities

38

fseE
Notes 2015 2014
B EET BT T
HK$’m HK$'m
19 230,652 398,252
64,208 37,436
20 30,760 35,106
21 43,102 33,359
101,950 90,770
22 920,109 1,014,041
24 484,531 403,678
25 376 324
26 15,400 14,690
27 50,249 55,041
34 58 167
28 27,188 19,069
36 300,473 -
2,269,056 2,101,933
29 101,950 90,770
207,606 235,780
30 10,942 12,260
21 40,142 20,772
31 1,406,474 1,483,398
32 6,976 11,901
33 29,012 46,557
2,658 2,777
34 6,431 7,997
35 19,422 19,676
36 252,402 -
2,084,015 1,931,888
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Consolidated Balance Sheet (continued)

As at 31 December

EQUITY

Share capital
Reserves

Capital and reserves attributable to the equity
holders of the Bank

Non-controlling interests

Total equity

Total liabilities and equity

The notes on pages 42 to 258 are an integral part of these financial statements.

F&E
Notes 2015 2014
BEEET A ETT
HK$’'m HK$'m
37 43,043 43,043
139,861 124,912
182,904 167,955
2,137 2,090
185,041 170,045
2,269,056 2,101,933

Approved by the Board of Directors on 30 March 2016 and signed on behalf of the Board by:
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At 1 January 2014

Profit for the year
Other comprehensive
income:

Premises

Available-for-sale
securities

Change in fair value
of hedging
instruments under
net investment
hedges

Currency translation
difference

Total comprehensive
income

Release upon disposal
of premises

Transfer from retained
earnings

Dividends

At 31 December 2014

At 1 January 2015

Profit for the year
Other comprehensive
income:

Premises

Available-for-sale
securities

Change in fair value
of hedging
instruments under
net investment
hedges

Currency translation
difference

Total comprehensive
income

Release upon disposal
of premises

Transfer from retained
earnings

Dividends

At 31 December 2015
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

B A SR TREER
Attributable to the equity holders of the Bank
ki
Reserves

ot e

N THE

R *Eé‘*ibfé%ffﬁ

_ eserve for

JRIEE fair value .
FfGEEF changes of JeidifEs: i

B Premises  available-  EXEEEE* HEEHE  BIEE Non-  HAKEH
Share  revaluation for-sale  Regulatory Translaton  Retained 485t controlling Total
capital reserve securities reserve* reserve earnings Total interests equity
ANEETT BWEET  OBNEEIT BNYEEST OBEEETT BN EET BNEET  BEEA T BEEET
HK$'m HK$'m HK$'m HK$'m HK$'m HK$'m HK$'m HK$'m HK$'m
43,043 34,753 (873) 8,994 1,051 58,938 145,906 2,037 147,943
- - - - - 24,237 24,237 308 24,545
- 2,836 - - - - 2,836 21 2,857
- - 1,237 - - - 1,237 16 1,253
- - - - 46 - 46 3 49
- (3) 41 - (319) - (281) (11) (292)
- 2,833 1,278 - (273) 24,237 28,075 337 28,412
- (6) - - - 6 - - -
- - - 1,017 - (1,017) - - -
- - - - - (6,026) (6,026) (284) (6,310)
43,043 37,580 405 10,011 778 76,138 167,955 2,090 170,045
43,043 37,580 405 10,011 778 76,138 167,955 2,090 170,045
- - - - - 26,282 26,282 293 26,575
- 3,134 - - - - 3,134 27 3,161
- - (1,382) - - - (1,382) (2) (1,384)
- - - - 49 - 49 2 51
- (9) (6) - (636) - (651) (20) (671)
- 3,125 (1,388) - (587) 26,282 27,432 300 27,732
- (365) - - - 365 - - -
- - - 868 - (868) - - -
- - - - - (12,483) (12,483) (253) (12,736)
43,043 40,340 (983) 10,879 191 89,434 182,904 2,137 185,041

40

or other unforeseeable risks, in addition to the loan impairment allowances recognised under HKAS 39.

The notes on pages 42 to 258 are an integral part of these financial statements.

* In accordance with the requirements of the HKMA, the amounts are set aside for general banking risks, including future losses
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Consolidated Cash Flow Statement

b5
For the year ended 31 December Notes 2015 2014
AREETT A EETT
HK$’m HK$'m
Cash flows from operating activities
Operating cash (outflow)/inflow before
taxation 38(a) (64,603) 62,007
Hong Kong profits tax paid (4,649) (4,395)
Overseas profits tax paid (766) (738)
Net cash (outflow)/inflow from operating
activities (70,018) 56,874
Cash flows from investing activities
Purchase of properties, plant and equipment 27 (1,166) (1,016)
Purchase of investment properties 26 (47) -
Proceeds from disposal of properties, plant
and equipment 467 44
Dividend received from associates and a
joint venture 25 2 2
Net cash outflow from investing activities (744) (970)
Cash flows from financing activities
Dividend paid to the equity holders of the
Bank (12,483) (6,026)
Dividend paid to non-controlling interests (253) (284)
Interest paid for subordinated liabilities (409) (410)
Net cash outflow from financing activities (13,145) (6,720)
(Decrease)/increase in cash and cash
equivalents (83,907) 49,184
Cash and cash equivalents at 1 January 403,407 362,940
Effect of exchange rate changes on cash and
cash equivalents (11,122) (8,717)
Cash and cash equivalents at 31 December 38(b) 308,378 403,407

The notes on pages 42 to 258 are an integral part of these financial statements.
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BA SRR M st Notes to the Financial Statements
1. FEHEE 1. Principal activities

REHE T ENEEIEERAER The Group is principally engaged in the provision of banking and related financial services in
17 B AERH 2 RS - Hong Kong.

KT R—FINE B ILAA The Bank is a limited liability company incorporated in Hong Kong. The address of its
IRAER AT - AT 2T registered office is 14/F, Bank of China Tower, 1 Garden Road, Hong Kong.
TR 1 5Pk 14 1 -

2. FEEHPEE 2. Significant accounting policies

ARG M EEHFz T The principal accounting policies applied in the preparation of these consolidated financial
Tt BRI T - statements are set out below.

W RIEEERSL - e s These policies have been consistently applied to all the years presented, unless otherwise
W—BOER R A IR stated.

BT -

2.1 EEIESE 2.1 Basis of preparation
REE > S ITEET % The consolidated financial statements of the Group have been prepared in accordance
IBE e Ei A e E 2 & with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (HKFRSs is a collective term which
BRI TR A R (F AT includes all applicable individual Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards, HKASs and
R B 45 FE B Al Interpretations) issued by the HKICPA and the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.
FERTA B 2 BB S

QN AR R )
e SFFEEE (AFEIR
Bil) ZHUE -
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MR (48)
2. EEEETBOR (8

Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

2. Significant accounting policies (continued)

21 EREE (8D

2.1 Basis of preparation (continued)

REREF A T R
AL AR B > MERLE (]
SRS - AT EE
(BT AR 2 A E
e e E (BN SR
TE)~ BIAHES IR &
B~ DAHEYIIRZ 1%
B R LA A B A
EAORR REHTE R R ET R
ERERIIIRZ BEES
HEE o FFINEZREMHS
el E & & LR E E
B PEIBREHERAZ
BHEHE SRR - AE 7 HI5
BRHTEE 2.2 )2 2.23

TR PRI i B HI 4
B BRI - PR
FERZGFHEHE - B
EAEN AN EE g
ST BRI LA T I -
B R R HI e - R
ZHIHE ~ SR ER ST
RIS BERFE R
RS R 3 -

PREFY 2015451 1 HiE
e PR L
SEE R AN B AR
SCHN 1L 2015 SEASERIR
AR H A AR SAERT -
WHZF T EE BN B R
AERRA SR 7 A
RGHERTE -

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared under the historical cost
convention, as modified by the revaluation of available-for-sale securities, financial
assets and financial liabilities (including derivative financial instruments) at fair value
through profit or loss, precious metals at fair value, investment properties which are
carried at fair value and premises which are carried at fair value or revalued amount less
accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment losses. Disposal group and
repossessed assets held for sale are stated at the lower of their carrying amounts and
fair values less costs to sell as further explained in Notes 2.2 and 2.23 respectively.

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with HKFRSs requires the use of
certain critical accounting estimates. It also requires the Management to exercise
judgement in the process of applying the Group’s accounting policies. The areas
involving a higher degree of judgement or complexity, or areas where assumptions and
estimates are significant to the consolidated financial statements are disclosed in Note 3.

Except for the annual improvements to HKFRSs that are already mandatorily effective for
accounting period beginning on 1 January 2015, there is no other standard or
amendment adopted by the Group in 2015. The impact of the adoption of these annual
improvements is not material to the Group’s financial statements.

43



@ ¥ 8 4 47 (5 ) B mAT

BANK OF CHINA (HONG KONG) LIMITED

MR (48)
2. EEEETBOR (8
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2. Significant accounting policies (continued)

2.1 Basis of preparation (continued)

Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

(a) Standards and amendments issued that are not yet mandatorily effective and
have not been early adopted by the Group in 2015

The following standards and amendments have been issued and are mandatory for
accounting periods beginning on or after 1 January 2016:

JEAABRAFIMEARY -
ERERZEE  REAEE
Applicable for A SR EAE R
5 N financial years Currently
2R /fEs] & beginning relevant to
Standards/Amendments Content on/after the Group
EAEERHEAE 198 PR E EE 20161 H1H 2
(&fE237)
HKAS 1 (Amendment) Disclosure Initiative 1 January 2016 Yes
AR 16 5t - TG B AENEY 2016 F1H1H &
EJJ% 41 5% (&4E3T)
HKAS 16 and HKAS 41 Agriculture: Bearer Plants 1 January 2016 No
(Amendments)
EEEEAIG 16 9f - TBEE JBEITE R nT R T A 2016 1 H1H &
JJ 38 5% (4&%{&57)
HKAS 16 and HKAS 38 Clarification of Acceptable Methods of Depreciation and 1 January 2016 No
(Amendments) Amortisation
et RIS 27 57(2011) T B R N IR R A 2016 FE1 H1H 2
(#&f&sT)
HKAS 27 (2011) (Amendment) Equity Method in Separate Financial Statements 1 January 2016 Yes
e ST 28 57(2011) & HEFHAR SR AEE R MVEENESUEA FFE =
A B S AR 10 57
(&&fes5T)
HKAS 28 (2011) and Sale or Contribution of Assets between an Investor and its To be determined Yes
HKFRS 10 (Amendments) Associate or Joint Venture
AR 28 57(2011) - B REEE o tHREVNEEETIIE 2016 F1H1H &
A5 s R RIS 10 97 R B AR S
AR 12 57 (&1E&:5T)
HKAS 28 (2011), HKFRS 10 and Investment Entities: Applying the Consolidation Exception 1 January 2016 No
HKFRS 12 (Amendments)
TS AERIE 9 5t SRITH 20181 H1H &
HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments 1 January 2018 Yes
EAVBEREERSE 198 (&E5T) WiaEEsita 2 gt 2016 FF1 H1H &
HKFRS 11 (Amendment) Accounting for Acquisitions of Interests in Joint Operations 1 January 2016 No
B HESEAIE 14 57 SEEEIRE 2016 F1H1H &
HKFRS 14 Regulatory Deferral Accounts 1 January 2016 No
EIB B E S A 15 98 R E P EERIA 20181 H1H 2
HKFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers 1 January 2018 Yes
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PR (&) Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

2. FEEHESE (8) 2. Significant accounting policies (continued)
21 FEEIEE (8) 2.1 Basis of preparation (continued)

(a) EMRMHEHRIEHIMESE
BERGEAEEBR
2015 FFARATRGIZ %
RUBAEET ()

T LA S EH R 2
7 R A R
FIary

o EHEEGIHEAE 1R
(&RHE5T) " oefamy
HEME, - Bk
A1 5RREET 5
T HE — 20 Gl ) 1 28
T E AR
TEAE I B ik
BWFEHIEN - 1
- BEEETHRMER Y
HAMRFIEAR
EA B mes
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& 04 75 92 95 19 5%
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ot 2 T B e 88
N - ZIRERTH A S
BRI B ®EI2H
HARE -
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a .

(a) Standards and amendments issued that are not yet mandatorily effective and

have not been early adopted by the Group in 2015 (continued)

Further information about those HKFRSs that are expected to be applicable to the
Group is as follows:

« HKAS 1 (Amendment), “Disclosure Initiative”. The amendments to HKAS 1 are

designed to further encourage companies to apply professional judgement in
determining what information to disclose in their financial statements. For
example, the amendments make clear that materiality applies to the whole of
financial statements and that the inclusion of immaterial information can inhibit the
usefulness of financial disclosures. Furthermore, the amendments clarify that
companies should use professional judgement in determining where and in what
order information is presented in the financial disclosures. This amendment will
not have material impact on the Group’s financial statements.

« HKAS 27 (2011) (Amendment), “Equity Method in Separate Financial Statements”.

The amendment restores the option to allow an entity to apply the equity method
to account for its investments in subsidiaries, joint ventures and associates in its
separate financial statements. Early application is permitted. Entities electing to
change to the equity method in its separate financial statements shall have to
apply the same accounting for each category of investments so elected and are
required to apply this change retrospectively. This amendment will not have any
material impact on the Group’s financial statements.
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PR (&) Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

2, FESHECR (&) 2. Significant accounting policies (continued)
21 HEEUEE (&) 2.1 Basis of preparation (continued)
(a) BHEME HRoamies (a) Standards and amendments issued that are not yet mandatorily effective and
OBk WA E B R have not been early adopted by the Group in 2015 (continued)

2015 FRATRGZ &
HUBAERT ()

o Hk@ztAERIE 28 « HKAS 28 (2011) and HKFRS 10 (Amendments), “Sale or Contribution of Assets
582 (2011) Kz & # B4 between an Investor and its Associate or Joint Venture”. The amendments
IR EREE 10 5% address an acknowledged inconsistency between the requirements in HKFRS 10

(&f&zT) "#%&H and those in HKAS 28 (2011), in dealing with the sale or contribution of assets
HH = A B S between an investor and its associate or joint venture. The main consequence of
¥HENEEDE the amendments is that a full gain or loss is recognised when a transaction
BUEA S o ZIEEE] involves a business (whether it is housed in a subsidiary or not). A partial gain or
ST EHE G HEH] loss is recognised when a transaction involves assets that do not constitute a
5 28 5%(2011)E1FK business, even if these assets are housed in a subsidiary. The amendments are to
BB EERE be applied prospectively, early application is permitted. The application of these
10 SR A REE amendments will not have a material impact on the Group’s financial statements.
FHERERAEE
¥ B EEH
BEOE AT —

FiE - EANEET 2

WENE W
B — {8 & M A 1 %X
2 (s HR R
AT o MERER
SEHRL  EEX
DB KA A% A
JEE AR e — {2
HHEG (RIEEET SN
EHE) o MEMERRHED
SyiEss o ZIRIEETIL
BN - T
TERTERAA - SRAZIE
BT A S B Y A
WRILHERE -
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PR (&) Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

2, FESHECR (&) 2. Significant accounting policies (continued)
21 HEEUEE (&) 2.1 Basis of preparation (continued)
(a) BHEME HRoamies (a) Standards and amendments issued that are not yet mandatorily effective and
OBk WA E B R have not been early adopted by the Group in 2015 (continued)

2015 FRATRGZ &
HUBAERT ()

o T B HE AR « HKFRS 9, “Financial Instruments”. The issuance of IFRS 9 “Financial Instruments”
EOYE BMTH completes the International Accounting Standards Board's comprehensive
F;@éfj T%f}%%ijgﬁ” response to the financial crisis. HKFRS 9, the equivalent standard of IFRS 9 under
# 9 5 ﬁ\ﬁél/g‘” HKFRS, includes a logical model for classification and measurement, a single,
B A A1 50 BT [ ; o . ) . !
@b H 2 B o b orward-looking “expected loss llmpalrment model .and a tlghtclar linkage of risk
4o Bl M B 2 TR [ rr?anégement to hedge accounting. The changes introduced in HKFRS 9 are
JE o SR TS e highlighted as follows:

RIEE 9 5% » BIEHEIA
BmEERZ TS
JieE B PR i 5 o 5

RIZE 9 SRAVE ST
URNEIE SR oD
R REHERA > B
ELE AR T THA
B ) IRERE - K
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B & ET T
% o HE IS E
RIS O SRAVIERTRE
HHRFALLN T -

(i) SEFRETE (i) Classification and Measurement

SHEE Financial assets

ERNEERTER Financial assets are required to be classified into one of the following
STER LU H measurement categories: (1) measured subsequently at amortised cost, (2)
Z—HEEM measured subsequently at fair value through other comprehensive income (all
Al (ﬂL)H?’Eﬁ%BZ fair value changes other than interest accrual, amortisation and impairment will
$1’E\{§f§a#§;ﬁ be recognised in other comprehensive income) or (3) measured subsequently
gilf}:“ﬁi';{i\% at fair value through profit or loss. Classification is to be made on transition, and
H&;Ti{’ﬁgé\é%f%%i subsequently on initial recognition. The classification depends on the entity’s

(B T R business model for managing its financial instruments and the contractual cash
PRI RO flow characteristics of the instruments.

EE ISP
(E 8Bt A
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(3) BA2x ¥ (8%
et AR IER
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TR » Z1%
RFE RSB TERRIS
HERE 3% JEHL
RN
il TR SE P
B DUR#ZTA
HIE B SR
.

47



@ ¥ 8 4 47 (5 ) B mAT

BANK OF CHINA (HONG KONG) LIMITED

MR (48)
2. EEEETBOR (8

Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

2. Significant accounting policies (continued)

21 FEEIEE (8) 2.1 Basis of preparation (continued)

(a) CHEMEEREHIEE
BRREAEER
2015 FERATHRGZE
RIR BT (&)

(a) Standards and amendments issued that are not yet mandatorily effective and
have not been early adopted by the Group in 2015 (continued)

() HEEEE (8D

(i) Classification and Measurement (continued)

SPEE (8) Financial assets (continued)
41 DL 65 Bl A 5 A financial instrument is subsequently measured at amortised cost only if it is a
—IE R T H debt instrument, and the objective of the entity’s business model is to hold the

TTIRGETE  Hab
A HER T
B Rt SEATZER
R ERAZE
FE AW HL & 4938
St R HAT > DUk
ZEEN G
R E A &R
BAEERAA S
BRI - 40F
HEBTHEIYE
BEA 5 15 [F I
W HL & 49 3R & 0
M EE#E
7E > Mz LEAS

asset to collect the contractual cash flows, and the asset’s contractual cash
flows characteristics represent only unleveraged payments of principal and
interest. A debt instrument is subsequently measured at fair value through other
comprehensive income if it is held in a business model whose objective is
achieved by both collecting contractual cash flows and selling financial assets
and the instrument fulfils the contractual cash flows characteristics. All other
debt instruments are to be measured at fair value through profit or loss.

FaafEEeR

0 Az EH L

He DA PHE

bt AR M2 H

W G AT (R G 5T

i o FirA H M E R

THFEUAFEE

S bat AfE s ET

.

Bty s T H— Equity instruments are generally measured subsequently at fair value with
LA S EAE & limited circumstances that cost may be an appropriate estimate of fair value.
st BRIEESE Equity instruments that are held for trading will be measured at fair value
HHE R TR A through profit or loss. For all other equity investments, an irrevocable election
T E AT can be made at initial recognition to recognise unrealised and realised fair value
NE - FFEER gains and losses in other comprehensive income without subsequent
5 ik 2 W oy 1 reclassification of fair value gains and losses to the income statement even
s T EL K DLA S upon disposal. Dividend income is recognised in the income statement when
B AEZR the right to receive payment is established.
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2. EEEETBOR (8

Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

2. Significant accounting policies (continued)

21 FEEIEE (8) 2.1 Basis of preparation (continued)

(a) CHEMEEREHIEE
BRREAEER
2015 FERATHRGZE
RIR BT (&)

(a) Standards and amendments issued that are not yet mandatorily effective and
have not been early adopted by the Group in 2015 (continued)

() TEREE (8

(i) Classification and Measurement (continued)

SREE Financial liabilities

Fgs T e W T A Except for the two substantial changes described below, the classification and
B4 - RbEEN measurement requirements of financial liabilities have been basically carried
SR NETEREA forward with minimal amendments from HKAS 39.

RE T EAG R

HIZE 39 SRAYH
KIRAKRZERT

BIEREAEEE The accounting for fair value option of financial liabilities were changed to
fgr - RERINAERI4: address own credit risk. The amount of change in fair value attributable to
Rl R PR 258 changes in the credit risk of the financial liabilities will be presented in other
RN R e comprehensive income. The remaining amount of the total gain or loss is
i1 - FleRaEn included in the income statement. If this creates or enlarges an accounting
HAZ SR bmry i mismatch in profit or loss, then the whole fair value change is presented in the
MEEATA B income statement. The determination of whether there will be a mismatch will

B> BYIRFHEAL
EHEEE © UXEREL
gtz e Rp TSl
sy e R
W - EHILEOR & E
A BB A &
STEEIC > AEETEN
PEZEFIIRR
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{5 B\ i e
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EiSEnYSdURE

need to be made at initial recognition of individual liabilities and will not be
re-assessed. Amounts presented in other comprehensive income are not
subsequently reclassified to the income statement but may be transferred within
equity. This removes the volatility in profit or loss that was caused by changes in
the credit risk of liabilities elected to be measured at fair value. It also means
that gains caused by the deterioration of an entity's own credit risk on such
liabilities will no longer be recognised in profit or loss.
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21 GmEERE (8

(a) EMRMHEHRIEHIMESE
BERGEAEEBR
2015 FFARATRGIZ %
RUBAEET ()

() TEREE (8

(ii)
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

2. Significant accounting policies (continued)

2.1 Basis of preparation (continued)

(a) Standards and amendments issued that are not yet mandatorily effective and
have not been early adopted by the Group in 2015 (continued)

(i) Classification and Measurement (continued)
Financial liabilities (continued)

The standard also eliminates the exception from fair value measurement
contained in HKAS 39 for derivative financial instruments that are linked to and
must be settled by delivery of an unquoted equity instrument.

(ii) Impairment

The standard introduces a new, expected-loss impairment model that will require
more timely recognition of expected credit losses. Specifically, it requires entities
to account for 12 months expected credit losses from inception when financial
instruments are first recognised and to recognise full lifetime expected credit
losses on a more timely basis when there have been significant increases in
credit risk since initial recognition. The impairment for financial instruments that
are subsequently measured at amortised cost, fair value through other
comprehensive income (debt instruments), loan commitments and financial
guarantees will be governed by this standard.
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PR (&) Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

2. FEEHESE (8) 2. Significant accounting policies (continued)
21 FEEIEE (8) 2.1 Basis of preparation (continued)
(a) EMHEME EREEMLE (a) Standards and amendments issued that are not yet mandatorily effective and
AR A EBE R have not been early adopted by the Group in 2015 (continued)

2015 FFARATRGIZ %
RUBAEET ()

(iii) EFhErst (iii) Hedge accounting

AR g sty The requirements related to hedge accounting would better align the accounting
HER < et iR treatments with risk management activities and enable entities to better reflect
T B iR o S HOE these activities in their financial statements. It relaxes the requirements for
B2 % assessing hedge effectiveness which more risk management strategies may be
% F AR KB % eligible for hedge accounting. It also relaxes the rules on using non-derivative
EETNIEN-H financial instruments as hedging instruments and allows greater flexibility on
I8 K5 T 3L R hedged items. Users of the financial statements will be provided with more
R AL Y 2 relevant information about risk management and the effect of hedge accounting
Ko HEERE st on the financial statements.
FHEHNESH

JoE e i BER SRS » NI
o T ELAY |
{56 P e [ 3 P =2
LT E B R T

Ho DURA i I
BRI H Ay 5
M- R IFRETENS
BHERENES
A B R B EL Y
&l R ERET
G M BERE
F 2 -

G AR ESENE Early application of HKFRS 9 in its entirety at the same time is permitted. Only the
9 SR ETIR AT ERANE part related to own credit risk can be elected to be early applied in isolation. The
WhEB Y[R R —OFE Group has already formed a groupwide project team to assess the impact of HKFRS
it - BEEEREEN 9, formulate the work plan and implement the standard. Significant works has been
B oy FIAT ZE R TR done on analysing our financial instruments, building models and designing new
RIEREN - REEER workflows. Due to the complication of the project, no quantitative information of the
IEEEMAYIE HH potential effect is concluded yet.
ST 7 AR i o A

HIZE 9 SRAvse» &
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PR (&) Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

2. FEEHESE (8) 2. Significant accounting policies (continued)
21 FEEIEE (8) 2.1 Basis of preparation (continued)
(a) EMHEME EREEMLE (a) Standards and amendments issued that are not yet mandatorily effective and
AR A EBE R have not been early adopted by the Group in 2015 (continued)

2015 FFARATRGIZ %
RUBAEET ()

o EFABMEHR SRR « HKFRS 15, “Revenue from Contracts with Customers”. HKFRS 15 applies a single
15 55 RN R F&E model and specifies the accounting treatment for all revenue arising from contracts
A S - BT with customers. The new standard is based on the core principle that revenue is
iEi%E%q%15 I recognised to reflect the consideration expected to be entitled when control of
ﬁg?j\%iﬂiﬁaﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁ promised good or service transfers to customer. It is also applicable to the
Eg;%gmgﬁg recognition and measurement of gains or losses on the sale of some non-financial
BB DB EI D Bt assets such as properties or equipment that are not an output of ordinary activities.
S TR P S B R TS HKFRS 15 also includes a set of disclosure requirements about revenue from
P R S customer contracts. The new standard will replace the separate models for goods,
B SR B A services and construction contracts stipulated in different standards under the
DU WL TEEAEE: > /E current HKFRS. Early application is permitted. The Group is considering the
8 - HIREA R financial impact of the standard and the timing of its application.
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PR (&) Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

2. FESHBER (8) 2. Significant accounting policies (continued)
21 FEEIEE (8) 2.1 Basis of preparation (continued)
(b) BEEHBUEHEAER] (b) Improvements to HKFRSs

N e =/ AR TS e e “Improvements to HKFRSs” contains numerous amendments to HKFRSs which the
HI | &% TaW R He HKICPA considers not urgent but necessary. It comprises amendments that result in
FHEA g A IR accounting changes for presentation, recognition or measurement purpose as well as
BHEERENEST - 544 terminology or editorial amendments related to a variety of individual HKFRSs. The
FEG [FAEYIR ~ HERREL amendments will be effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January
SEE IR s 2016. The adoption of these improvements does not have a material impact on the
PHEET > DU 25 TEEL(E Group’s financial statements.

N AT s el 5 2 A

HHEA 2 firsB i 4miE -1y
BET - ZEEETHR
2016 4FE 1 5 1 HiLE%G
BV ETEERE AR - BRAN
HRIETE AL
HHFGFEAYE -

(c) & (AEHEBD) (c) Hong Kong Companies Ordinance
T (AEEED %9 The requirements of Part 9 “Accounts and Audit” of the Hong Kong Companies
TR E R ET ) FTET Ordinance came into effect for the first time during the current financial year. The
INER AR BUEE & main impact to the Group’s financial statements is on the presentation and disclosure
RARY - EWEZEGIE of certain information in the Group’s financial statements.
B Z XN R Y)
BN ETERNY]

TRELYEE
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2. EEEETBOR (8

Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

2. Significant accounting policies (continued)

2.2 Consolidation

2.2 GAEMBHREK

The consolidated financial statements include the financial statements of the Bank and
all of its subsidiaries for the year ended 31 December.

GEVBEREEEAIRTR
FrA Hi & A m 812731
H s -

(1) WEAH (1) Subsidiaries

B A E 2 A EE Subsidiaries are entities (including structured entities), directly or indirectly, controlled
NEREEINER S iR by the Group. Control is achieved when the Group is exposed, or has rights, to
¥ (issSEsEN) - variable returns from its involvement with the investee and has the ability to affect
eI RS IR A EEH S those returns through its power over the investee (i.e., existing rights that give the
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3BT P Bl T E)
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Group the current ability to direct the relevant activities of the investee). When the
Bank has, directly or indirectly, less than a majority of the voting or similar rights of an
investee, the Group considers all relevant facts and circumstances in assessing
whether it has power over an investee, including: (a) the contractual arrangement
with the other vote holders of the investee; (b) rights arising from other contractual
arrangements; and (c) the Group’s voting rights and potential voting rights.
Subsidiaries are fully consolidated from the date on which control is transferred to the
Group. They are de-consolidated from the date that control ceases.

If the Group loses control over a subsidiary, it derecognises (i) the assets (including
goodwill) and liabilities of the subsidiary, (ii) the carrying amount of any
non-controlling interest; and recognises (i) the fair value of the consideration
received, (ii) the fair value of any investment in that former subsidiary retained;
reclassifies the amounts previously recognised in other comprehensive income to the
income statement or retained earnings, as appropriate, on the same basis as directly
disposed of the related assets or liabilities; recognises any resulting differences as
gain or loss in income statement.
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2. EEEETBOR (8

Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

2. Significant accounting policies (continued)

22 GEMBERR (8

2.2 Consolidation (continued)

(1) WEAE (8D

(1) Subsidiaries (continued)
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If the Group is committed by the Board to a sale plan involving loss of control of a
subsidiary (a disposal group) that is unlikely to be withdrawn or changed significantly,
the Group shall classify all the assets and liabilities of that subsidiary as held for sale
only when the following criteria are met on or before the end of the reporting period:
(i) the carrying amount will be recovered principally through a sale transaction rather
than through continuing use; (ii) the subsidiary is available for immediate sale in its
present condition subject only to terms that are usual and customary for the sale of its
kind and its sale must be highly probable, including a high probability of shareholders’
approval, if needed; (iii) an active programme to locate a buyer at a reasonable price
has been initiated and to complete the sale within one year, regardless of whether the
Group will or will not retain a non-controlling interest after the sale. Disposal group
(other than investment properties and financial instruments) is initially recognised and
subsequently remeasured at the lower of its carrying amount and fair value less costs
to sell. Property, plant and equipment classified as held for sale are not depreciated.

(i) Business combinations not under common control

Acquisitions of businesses not under common control are accounted for using the
acquisition method. The consideration transferred in a business combination is
the fair values at the acquisition date of the assets transferred, the liabilities
incurred (including contingent consideration arrangement) and the equity
interests issued by the Group in exchange for control of the acquiree.
Acquisition-related costs are expensed in the income statement as incurred.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

2. Significant accounting policies (continued)

22 GEMBERR (8

2.2 Consolidation (continued)

(1) WEBAE (&

(1) Subsidiaries (continued)

(i) JERILEERIAER

(i) Business combinations not under common control (continued)
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Goodwill is measured as the excess of the sum of the consideration transferred,
the amount of any non-controlling interests in the acquiree, and the fair value of
the Group’s previously held equity interest in the acquiree (if any) over the net of
the acquisition-date amounts of the identifiable assets acquired and the liabilities
assumed. If after assessment, the fair value of the acquiree’s identifiable net
assets exceeds the sum of the consideration transferred, the amount of any
non-controlling interests in the acquiree and the fair value of the Group’s
previously held interest in the acquiree (if any), the excess is recognised
immediately in the income statement as a bargain purchase gain. Subsequently,
goodwill is subject to impairment testing at least annually.

Where the consideration transferred by the Group in a business combination
includes assets or liabilities resulting from a contingent consideration
arrangement, the contingent consideration is measured at fair value at the
acquisition date and considered as part of the consideration transferred in a
business combination. Changes in the fair value of the contingent consideration
that qualify as measurement period adjustments are adjusted retrospectively, with
the corresponding adjustments being made against goodwill or gain on bargain
purchase. Measurement period adjustments are adjustments that arise from
additional information obtained during the measurement period about facts and
circumstances that existed as of the acquisition date. Measurement period does
not exceed one year from the acquisition date.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

2. Significant accounting policies (continued)

2.2 Consolidation (continued)

(1) Subsidiaries (continued)

(i) Business combinations not under common control (continued)

On an acquisition-by-acquisition basis, the Group recognises any non-controlling
interests in the acquiree either at fair value or at the non-controlling interests’
proportionate share of the fair value of the acquiree’s identifiable net assets.

(ii) Business combinations under common control

For a combination with a company under common control, the merger accounting
method will be applied. The principle of merger accounting is a way to combine
companies under common control as though the business of the acquiree had
always been carried out by the acquirer. The Group’s consolidated financial
statements represent the consolidated results, consolidated cash flows and
consolidated financial position of the Group as if any such combination had
occurred from the date when the Bank and the acquiree first came under common
control (i.e. no fair value adjustment on the date of combination is required). The
difference between the consideration and carrying amount at the time of
combination is recognised in equity. The effects of all transactions between the
Group and the acquiree, whether occurring before or after the combination, are
eliminated in preparing the consolidated financial statements of the Group.
Comparative amounts are presented as if the acquiree had been combined at the
end of the previous reporting period. The transaction costs for the combination will
be expensed in the income statement.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

2. Significant accounting policies (continued)

2.2 GEMBRE (8

2.2 Consolidation (continued)

(1) WBAE (8D

(1) Subsidiaries (continued)
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Inter-company transactions, balances and unrealised gains on transactions between
Group companies are eliminated; unrealised losses are also eliminated unless the
transaction provides evidence of impairment of the assets transferred. Where
necessary, accounting policies of subsidiaries have been changed to ensure
consistency with the policies adopted by the Group.

In the Bank’s balance sheet, the investments in subsidiaries are stated at cost less
allowance for impairment losses. The results of subsidiaries are accounted for by the
Bank on the basis of dividends received and receivable. Dividend income from
subsidiaries is recognised in the income statement when the right to receive payment
is established.

(2) Transactions with non-controlling interests

The Group treats transactions with non-controlling interests without change of control
as transactions with equity owners of the Group. For purchases from non-controlling
interests, the difference between any consideration paid and the relevant share
acquired of the carrying value of net assets of the subsidiary is recognised in equity.
Gains or losses on disposals to non-controlling interests are also recognised in
equity.

When the Group ceases to have control or significant influence, any retained interest
in the entity is re-measured to its fair value, with the change in carrying amount
recognised in the income statement. The fair value is the initial carrying amount for
the purposes of subsequent accounting for the retained interest as an associate, joint
venture or financial asset. In addition, any amounts previously recognised in other
comprehensive income in respect of that entity are accounted for as if the Group had
directly disposed of the related assets or liabilities. Amounts previously recognised in
other comprehensive income are reclassified to the income statement or retained
earnings, as appropriate.

58



@ ¥ 8 4 47 (5 ) B mAT

BANK OF CHINA (HONG KONG) LIMITED

MR (48)
2. EEEETBOR (8

Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

2. Significant accounting policies (continued)

22 GEMBERR (8

2.2 Consolidation (continued)

(3) BBATEREREHE

(3) Associates and joint venture

BN FER R A SR
L i 97 1) (L AE 40
ERPERE A
EEEPEAE 20% % 50%
HIZFEIHE -

BEMEREELTN
—HE RS A A
MRFERF A E A S F
PR - SLEHER B 54y
FOATHYSL R
BB ER S
PRI — B R R -

REEEEE N F A
AR R I
AT A A& MR
FfE R TR - A2
B EEE A R EE M
EARE SR RE
IRE R R 2 PR R AT
AR RatdMERE
-

REEEE R E AT
AR PR
HEREIE AL B AR W 2
BRUESIR > S R PR
JE A5 B i A 1% R o
B WAFR A A o
BEEEHE AT NEE
fR3ER HAR R Rt 8
- RIS T Rl
DNF A AR ARE R
BRE/HEANES &
SUTA 2 [ 1 i 0 A T
BAFENRGERERE
FRETRIR - i AR BT AR T
HEEHR -

AEFBRE A ESE
BMFEM LG R EH
Wi AR EAE B E
A ERENALL
BUIEITIES PRI 12
LT R A E T AR
ERVEE SRR EHR
FARE TS -

Associates are all entities over which the Group has significant influence but not
control, generally accompanying a shareholding of between 20% and 50% of the
voting rights.

A joint venture is a type of joint arrangement whereby the parties that have joint
control of the arrangement have rights to the net assets of the joint venture. Joint
control is the contractually agreed sharing of control of an arrangement, which exists
only when decisions about the relevant activities require unanimous consent of the
parties sharing control.

Investments in associates and joint venture are accounted for using the equity
method of accounting and are initially recognised at cost. The Group’s investment in
associates and joint venture includes goodwill, net of accumulated impairment loss
and any related accumulated foreign currency translation difference.

The Group’s share of the post-acquisition profits or losses of associates or joint
venture is recognised in the income statement, and its share of post-acquisition
movements in reserves is recognised in reserves. The accumulated post-acquisition
movements are adjusted against the cost of the investment. When the Group’s share
of losses in an associate or a joint venture equals or exceeds its interest in the
associate or joint venture, the Group does not recognise further losses unless the
Group has incurred obligations or made payments on behalf of the associates or joint
venture.

Unrealised gains on transactions between the Group and its associates or joint venture
are eliminated to the extent of the Group’s interest in the associates or joint venture.
Unrealised losses are also eliminated unless the transaction provides evidence of
impairment of the asset transferred.
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(3) Associates and joint venture (continued)

If the ownership interest in an associate or a joint venture is reduced but significant
influence is retained, only a proportionate share of the amounts previously recognised
in other comprehensive income are reclassified to the income statement where
appropriate.

2.3 Segmental reporting

The operating result of segments are reported in a manner consistent with the internal
reporting provided to the Management Committee, which is the chief operating decision
maker of the Group, that allocates resources and assesses the performance of operating
segments. Income and expenses directly associated with each segment are included in
determining operating segment performance.

2.4 Foreign currency translation

Iltems included in the financial statements of each of the Group’s entities are measured
using the currency of the primary economic environment in which the entity operates (the
“functional currency”). The consolidated financial statements are presented in Hong
Kong dollars, which is the Bank’s functional and presentation currency.

Foreign currency transactions are translated into the functional currency using the
exchange rates prevailing at the dates of the transactions or exchange rates at the end of
the reporting period for items that are re-measured. Foreign exchange gains and losses
resulting from the settlement of foreign currency transactions using the exchange rates
prevailing at the dates of the transactions and monetary assets and liabilities
denominated in foreign currencies translated at the exchange rate at the end of the
reporting period are recognised directly in the income statement, except when deferred in
other comprehensive income as qualifying cash flow hedges or qualifying net investment
hedges.
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BANK OF CHINA (HONG KONG) LIMITED

Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

2. Significant accounting policies (continued)

2.4 Foreign currency translation (continued)

Translation differences on monetary securities held at fair value through profit or loss are
reported as part of the fair value gain or loss. Changes in the fair value of monetary
securities denominated in foreign currency classified as available-for-sale are analysed
between translation differences resulting from changes in the amortised cost of the
securities and other changes in the carrying amount of the securities. Translation
differences related to changes in the amortised cost are recognised in the income
statement, and other changes in the carrying amount are recognised in other
comprehensive income.

Translation differences on non-monetary items, such as equities held at fair value through
profit or loss, are reported as part of the fair value gain or loss. Translation differences on
non-monetary financial assets such as equities classified as available-for-sale are included
in other comprehensive income.

The results and financial position of all the Group entities that have a functional currency
different from Hong Kong dollars are translated into Hong Kong dollars as follows:

. assets and liabilities are translated at the closing rate at the end of the reporting period;

« income and expenses are translated at average exchange rates; and

« all resulting exchange differences are recognised in the currency translation reserve in
equity through other comprehensive income.

On consolidation, exchange differences arising from the translation of the net investment
in foreign entities, borrowings and other currency instruments designated as hedges of
such investments are taken to other comprehensive income. When a foreign entity is sold,
such exchange differences are recognised in the income statement, as part of the gain or
loss on sale.
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BANK OF CHINA (HONG KONG) LIMITED

Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

2. Significant accounting policies (continued)

2.5 Derivative financial instruments and hedge accounting

Derivatives are initially recognised at fair value on the date the derivative contract is
entered into and are subsequently re-measured at fair value. Fair values are obtained
from quoted market prices in active markets, including recent market transactions, and
through the use of valuation techniques, including discounted cash flow models and
option pricing models, as appropriate. All derivatives are carried as assets when fair
value is positive and as liabilities when fair value is negative.

Certain derivatives embedded in other financial instruments are treated as separate
derivatives when their economic characteristics and risks are not closely related to those
of the host contract and the host contract is not carried at fair value through profit or loss.
These embedded derivatives are measured at fair value with changes in fair value
recognised in the income statement.

Derivatives are categorised as held for trading and changes in their fair value are
recognised immediately in the income statement unless they are designated as hedges
and are effective hedging instruments, then they are subject to measurement under the
hedge accounting requirements.
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For derivative instruments designated as hedging instrument and are effectively hedged,
the method of recognising the resulting fair value gain or loss depends on the nature of the
item being hedged. The Group designates certain derivatives as either:

(a) hedges of the fair value of recognised assets or liabilities or firm commitments (fair
value hedge); or

(b) hedges of a particular risk associated with a highly probable future cash flow
attributable to a recognised asset or liability, or a highly probable forecasted
transaction (cash flow hedge).

Hedge accounting is used for derivatives designated in this way.

The Group documents at inception the relationship between hedging instruments and
hedged items, as well as its risk management objective and strategy for undertaking
various hedge transactions. The Group also documents its assessment, both at the
hedge inception and on an ongoing basis, of whether the derivatives that are used in
hedging transactions are highly effective in offsetting changes in fair values or cash flows
of hedged items. These criteria should be met before a hedge can be qualified to be
accounted for under hedge accounting.
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Changes in the fair value of derivatives that are designated and qualified as effective
fair value hedges are recorded in the income statement, together with any changes in
the fair value of the hedged asset or liability that are attributable to the hedged risk.

When fair value hedge accounting is applied to fixed rate financial liabilities, the
carrying values of the financial liabilities are adjusted for changes in fair value that are
attributable to the interest rate risk being hedged with the derivative instruments
rather than carried at amortised cost, such carrying value adjustment is recognised in
the income statement together with the changes in fair value of the hedging
derivatives.

If the hedge relationship no longer meets the criteria for hedge accounting or is
terminated for reasons other than derecognition, e.g. due to repayment of the hedged
item, the unamortised carrying value adjustment (the difference between the carrying
value of the hedged item at the time of termination and the value at which it would
have been carried had the hedge never existed) to the hedged item is amortised to
the income statement over the remaining life of the hedged item by the effective
interest method. If the hedged item is derecognised, the unamortised carrying value
adjustment is recognised immediately in the income statement.
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The effective portion of changes in the fair value of derivatives that are designated
and qualified as cash flow hedges are recognised in other comprehensive income
and accumulated in equity. The gain or loss relating to the ineffective portion is
recognised immediately in the income statement. Amounts accumulated in equity are
reclassified to the income statement in the periods when the hedged item affects
profit or loss.

When a hedging instrument expires or is sold, or when a hedge no longer meets the
criteria for hedge accounting, any accumulated gain or loss existing in equity at that
time remains in equity and is recognised in the income statement when the forecast
transaction is ultimately recognised in the income statement. When a forecast
transaction is no longer expected to occur, the accumulated gain or loss that was
reported in equity is immediately reclassified to the income statement.

(c) Net investment hedge

Hedges of net investments in foreign operations are accounted for in a similar way to
cash flow hedges. A gain or loss on the effective portion of the hedging instrument is
recognised in other comprehensive income and accumulated in equity; a gain or loss
on the ineffective portion is recognised immediately in the income statement.
Accumulated gains and losses previously recognised in other comprehensive
income are reclassified to the income statement upon disposal of the foreign
operation as part of the gain or loss on disposal.
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Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net amount reported in the balance
sheet when there is a legally enforceable right to offset the recognised amounts and
there is an intention to settle on a net basis, or realise the asset and settle the liability
simultaneously.

2.7 Interest income and expense and fee and commission income and expense

Interest income and expense are recognised in the income statement for all financial
assets and financial liabilities using the effective interest method.

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the amortised cost of a financial
asset or a financial liability and of allocating the interest income or interest expense over
the relevant period. The effective interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated
future cash payments or receipts through the expected life of the financial instrument or,
when appropriate, a shorter period to the net carrying amount of the financial asset or
financial liability. When calculating the effective interest rate, the Group estimates future
cash flows considering all contractual terms of the financial instrument (e.g. prepayment
options or incentives relating to residential mortgage loans) but does not consider future
credit losses. The calculation includes fees, premiums or discounts and basis points paid
or received between parties to the contract, and directly attributable origination fees and
costs which represent an integral part of the effective yield.

For all hedge transactions where interest rate is the hedged risk, interest income or
interest expense from hedged instruments such as fixed rate debt securities or fixed rate
subordinated notes are disclosed on a net basis together with net interest
income/expense arising from the hedging instrument such as interest rate swap.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

2. Significant accounting policies (continued)

2.7 Interest income and expense and fee and commission income and expense

(continued)

Once a financial asset or a group of similar financial assets has been written down as a
result of an impairment loss, interest income is recognised on the written down value
using the rate of interest used to discount the future cash flows for the purpose of
measuring the impairment loss. Subsequent unwinding of the discount allowance is
recognised as interest income.

Fee and commission income and expenses that are not an integral part of the effective
yield are recognised on an accrual basis ratably over the period when the related service
is provided, such as administrative fee, asset management fee and custody services
fee. Loan syndication fees are recognised as revenue when the related syndication
arrangement has been completed and the Group has retained no part of the loan
package for itself or has retained a part at the same effective interest rate as applicable
to the other participants.

2.8 Financial assets

The Group classifies its financial assets into the following four categories: financial
assets at fair value through profit or loss, loans and receivables, held-to-maturity
securities and available-for-sale financial assets. The Management determines the
classification of investments at initial recognition. The classification depends on the
purpose for which the financial assets are held. All financial assets are recognised
initially at fair value. Except for financial assets carried at fair value through profit or loss,
all transaction costs of financial assets are included in their initial carrying amounts.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

2. Significant accounting policies (continued)

2.8 Financial assets (continued)

(1) Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss (continued)

A financial asset, other than one held for trading, will be designated as a financial asset
at fair value through profit or loss, if it meets one of the criteria set out below, and is so
designated by the Management:

« eliminates or significantly reduces a measurement or recognition inconsistency
(sometimes referred to as “an accounting mismatch”) that would otherwise arise
from measuring the financial assets or recognising the gains and losses on them on
different bases; or

« applies to a group of financial assets, financial liabilities or both that is managed and
its performance is evaluated on a fair value basis, in accordance with a documented
risk management or investment strategy, and information about the group is
provided internally on that basis to the key management; or

« relates to financial assets containing one or more embedded derivative that
significantly modifies the cash flow resulting from those financial assets.

These assets are recognised initially at fair value, with transaction costs taken directly
to the income statement, and are subsequently re-measured at fair value.
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Gains and losses from changes in the fair value of such assets (excluding the interest
component) are reported in net trading gain/loss or net gain/loss on financial
instruments designated at fair value through profit or loss. The interest component is
reported as part of interest income. Dividends on equity instruments of this category
are also recognised in net trading gain/loss or net gain/loss on financial instruments
designated at fair value through profit or loss when the Group’s right to receive
payment is established.

(2) Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable
payments that are not quoted in an active market, including placements with and
advances to banks and other financial institutions, investment debt securities without
an active market and loans and advances to customers. They arise when the Group
provides money, goods or services directly to a debtor with no intention of trading the
receivable. They are initially recorded at fair value plus any directly attributable
transaction costs and are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the
effective interest method less allowances for impairment losses.
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2. FESHBER (8) 2. Significant accounting policies (continued)
2.8 &piEE (&) 2.8 Financial assets (continued)
(3) FFEETHHKE (3) Held-to-maturity

SRR B E EFHH % Financial assets classified as held-to-maturity are those traded in active markets, with
BRI EIEER ERET fixed or determinable payments and fixed maturities that the Group’s Management
L EE o WA EE has both the positive intention and the ability to hold to maturity. Where the Group
o R W E 2 B e R sold held-to-maturity assets (i) other than due to an isolated event beyond the
SREA DR AREEEH Group’s control, non-recurring and could not have been reasonably anticipated by the
[EH B KA FA 2 Group, such as a significant deterioration in the issuer’s creditworthiness, significant
FIEAH ~ SR&ERE - W change in statutory or regulatory requirement; or (ii) other than an insignificant
KEEMPENFER amount of held-to-maturity assets, the entire category would be tainted and
FIEHHEE ()W IR reclassified as available-for-sale. They are initially recorded at fair value plus any
AR - JEHE directly attributable transaction costs, and are subsequently measured at amortised
M R A E R RE & P TH cost using the effective interest method less allowances for impairment losses.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

2. Significant accounting policies (continued)

2.8 &REE (8)

2.8 Financial assets (continued)

(4) N EERMEE

(4) Available-for-sale
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Financial assets classified as available-for-sale are those that are either designated
as such or are not classified in any of the other categories. They are intended to be
held for an indefinite period of time but may be sold in response to needs for liquidity
or changes in interest rates, exchange rates or equity prices.

Available-for-sale financial assets are initially recorded at fair value plus any directly
attributable transaction costs, and are subsequently measured at fair value.
Unrealised gains and losses arising from changes in the fair value of investments are
recognised directly in other comprehensive income, until the financial asset is
derecognised or impaired at which time the accumulated gain or loss previously
recognised in equity should be transferred to the income statement. However,
interest income which includes the amortisation of premium and discount is
calculated using the effective interest method and is recognised in the income
statement. Dividends on equity instruments classified as available-for-sale are
recognised in other operating income when the Group’s right to receive payment is
established.

For a financial asset reclassified from the available-for-sale category, the fair value
carrying amount at the date of reclassification becomes its new amortised cost and
any previous gain or loss on that asset that has been recognised in other
comprehensive income is amortised to profit or loss over the remaining life of the
investment using the effective interest method. Any difference between the new
amortised cost and the maturity amount is also amortised over the remaining life of
the financial asset using the effective interest method. If the financial asset is
subsequently determined to be impaired, the amount recorded in other
comprehensive income is reclassified to profit or loss immediately.
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2. FESHBER (8) 2. Significant accounting policies (continued)
2.8 &piEE (&) 2.8 Financial assets (continued)
(4) T ESREE (&) (4) Available-for-sale (continued)
At B R R The treatment of translation differences on available-for-sale securities is dealt with in
AR JT AT Note 2.4.
sz 2.4 -
29 &FhEaG 2.9 Financial liabilities
AEE R U B R The Group classifies its financial liabilities under the following categories: trading
BiE  XHWAE - RER liabilities, financial liabilities designated at fair value through profit or loss, deposits, debt
DI ESE BT AB R & securities and certificates of deposit in issue, subordinated liabilities, and other liabilities.
RIEfE - 70 E8TEE Al financial liabilities are classified at inception and recognised initially at fair value.

SR B e ~ IR AER
HAtr&(H - FrA R e
AL Gy 8 LR SR H oy AT A
I PEEETIAHERD. -

(1) Z5HERE (1) Trading liabilities
S ENEE > 4/l A financial liability is classified as held for trading if it is incurred principally for the
BEWNTEBRFERS purpose of repurchasing in the short term. Derivatives are also classified as held for
iR &fE - BRARE trading unless they are designated as effective hedges. It is measured at fair value
REREHR T AL - fir and any gains and losses from changes in fair value are recognised in the income
BETA SR T B9 sy statement.

B RHHER 5 AR R
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[T - A TAE 2 28
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2. FESHBER (8) 2. Significant accounting policies (continued)
29 &RiEFE (8) 2.9 Financial liabilities (continued)
(2) RAEBDAFESE LT (2) Financial liabilities designated at fair value through profit or loss

A7 SREE

ERIE BN SEHE R A financial liability can be designated at fair value through profit or loss if it is so
TE B LA AEE BT A designated at inception. Financial liabilities so designated include certain certificates
B2 SEE - gt of deposit in issue and certain deposits received from customers that are embedded
EAILER SRaE with derivatives. A financial liability is so designated if it meets one of the following
BAFESETEET 2K criteria:

R TR T 2 <
TRAZEFER - &
DT Hodr 2 — TR 2
ERTA IR HE

Ry LA

o A DLM B e HE 2R D « eliminates or significantly reduces a measurement or recognition inconsistency
iR EIEAETE S (sometimes referred to as “an accounting mismatch”) that would otherwise arise
Rl E (H{E - 2 from measuring the financial liabilities or recognising the gains and losses on them
PR E U EREESTE o 1 on different bases; or

A — B 2R
HERRIEI (— et
B TEETSENC L )

4

s EFHN—HERME « applies to a group of financial assets, financial liabilities or both that is managed and
E >~ SRAE - W its performance is evaluated on a fair value basis, in accordance with a documented
HIRANEE B risk management or investment strategy, and information about the group is
R RS E I provided internally on that basis to the key management; or

LAY b E R
SRESACHEF » HARH
TR TE R
e AT AR
Z AR T RAYER
5] £ R LA
HiR =k

o HlfE—(H e 2 « relates to financial liabilities containing one or more embedded derivative that
T B RN T B significantly modifies the cash flow resulting from those financial liabilities.
eHAFEHERE - BHE
B 0T A ST
B EeRA Ry
WEeERELEKREY
2 .

B E B LA FEEE(L Financial liabilities designated at fair value through profit or loss are measured at fair
AT A SR EED value and any gains and losses from changes in fair value are recognised in the
INEFIEE - RAEE income statement.
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BANK OF CHINA (HONG KONG) LIMITED

Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

2. Significant accounting policies (continued)

2.9 Financial liabilities (continued)

(3) Deposits, debt securities and certificates of deposit in issue, subordinated
liabilities and other liabilities

Deposits and debt securities and certificates of deposit in issue, together with
subordinated liabilities and other liabilities, other than those classified as trading
liabilities or designated at fair value through profit or loss are carried at amortised
cost. Any difference (if available) between proceeds net of transaction costs and the
redemption value is recognised in the income statement over the period using the
effective interest method.

2.10 Financial guarantee contracts

Financial guarantee contracts are contracts that require the issuer to make specified
payments to reimburse the holder for a loss it incurs because a specified debtor fails to
make payments when due, in accordance with the terms of a contract between the
holder and the debtor.

Financial guarantee contracts are initially recognised as financial liabilities and reported
under “Other accounts and provisions” in the financial statements at fair value on the
date the guarantee was given. Subsequent to initial recognition, the Group’s liabilities
under such guarantees are measured at the higher of (i) the amount determined in
accordance with HKAS 37 “Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets”
and (i) the amount initially recognised less, where appropriate, accumulated
amortisation recognised over the life of the guarantee on a straight-line basis. Any
changes in the liability relating to financial guarantee contracts are taken to the income
statement.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

2. Significant accounting policies (continued)

2.11 Recognition and derecognition of financial instruments

Purchases and sales of financial assets at fair value through profit or loss,
available-for-sale and held-to-maturity securities are recognised on the trade date, the
date on which the Group purchases or sells the assets. Loans and receivables (except
investment securities without an active market) are recognised when cash is advanced
to the borrowers. Financial assets are derecognised when the rights to receive cash
flows from the financial assets have expired or where the Group has transferred
substantially all risks and rewards of ownership. When the Group neither transfers nor
retains substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of the financial asset, the
Group either continues to recognise the transferred financial asset to the extent of its
continuing involvement if control remains or derecognise it if there is no retained control.

Trading liabilities, financial liabilities designated at fair value through profit or loss and
debt securities and certificates of deposit in issue are recognised on the trade date.
Deposits that are not trading liabilities are recognised when money is received from
customers, other liabilities are recognised when such obligations arise. Financial
liabilities are derecognised from the balance sheet when and only when the obligation
specified in the contract is discharged, cancelled or expires. If the Group purchases its
own debt, it is removed from the balance sheet, and the difference between the carrying
amount of a liability and the consideration paid is included in net trading gain/loss.

Securities and bills sold to a counterparty with an obligation to repurchase at a
pre-determined price on a specified future date under a repurchase agreement are
referred to as repos. Securities and bills purchased from a counterparty with an
obligation to re-sell to the counterparty at a pre-determined price on a specified future
date under a resale agreement are referred to as reverse repos.

76



@

¥ &) 4L £5 (5 %) HmA T

BANK OF CHINA (HONG KONG) LIMITED

MR (48)
2. EEEETBOR (8

211

212

SR T R RS RIAL EFE
= (8

" [ ) B R A
B E A 5% 3 T RTHUS
ZHIEREE > FIIRNER
SRAT AT SR AT S HeAth
RS R R A (4178
BEDRNIER(E s Ul air
A%EFIQWWEﬁ

2 WATYS R 58 %&u
/\iFﬂé Lt AR
R o " KR (el ZEﬁ%
A8 75 AU 904615 12 AT
TRGHTZHER &
B NEEATTRNYI R
T3 R B ERAT #RIH 2
FESRAT B H A & Rl AR A Y
SR Kotk (WD) - 72
J52 1 [ i g T U
ﬁﬁﬁZ%@éF%*ﬁ
W EEAEE - I
%E@E%EZE@WH
HIEFE AR W A
3 R R F) A BR)
IS

AT

AREEPEE G SR

DA PEET B E N E
LUE NS A i
Heo NHEBREGEEDE
WS M AT R £
5 B A ) 2 i 5iR0
T HGSHEETAFEL
SN EREREB A/
{EfE -

SPREENA AV EE
FIRYIRGER R TH 5 2 L E A
i o SO ) & A L
T TR AIA S E A

& -

FFEMEE LN PEE
%%?$%/A%@%&
BT AL A i R
KOPF Az > ST 55—
%2 B % 2 B ]
At B RO % -

Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

2. Significant accounting policies (continued)

2.11 Recognition and derecognition of financial instruments (continued)

Repos or securities lending are initially recorded as due to banks, placements from
banks and other financial institutions, as appropriate, at the actual amount of cash
received from the counterparty. Financial assets given as collateral for repurchase
agreements are not derecognised and are recorded as investment in securities or
financial assets at fair value through profit or loss. Reverse repos or securities
borrowing are initially recorded in the balance sheet as cash and due from banks or
placements with banks and other financial institutions, as appropriate, at the actual
amount of cash paid to the counterparty. Financial assets received as collateral under
reverse repurchase agreements are not recognised on the balance sheet. The
difference between sale and repurchase price is recognised as interest income or
interest expense over the life of the agreements using the effective interest method.

2.12 Fair value measurement

The Group measures its premises and investment properties, precious metals and
certain financial instruments at fair value at the end of each reporting period. Fair value
is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an
orderly transaction between market participants in its principal market or the most
advantageous market accessible by the Group at the measurement date.

The fair value of an asset or a liability is measured using the assumptions that market
participants would use when pricing the asset or liability, assuming that market
participants act in their economic best interest.

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into account a market
participant’s ability to generate economic benefits by using the asset in its highest and
best use or by selling it to another market participant that would use the asset in its
highest and best use.
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2. FESHBER (8) 2. Significant accounting policies (continued)
212 NEERE (%) 2.12 Fair value measurement (continued)
GHRENBEMEZ TS If the market for assets or liabilities is not active, the Group uses valuation techniques,
WRERE  ANEESESE including the use of recent arm’s length transactions, discounted cash flow analysis,
N R AEIRATE LT B option pricing models and other valuation techniques commonly used by market
F (5 E 7 A e ' participants, that are appropriate in the circumstances and for which sufficient data are
B> GFEERER AT available to measure fair value, maximising the use of relevant observable inputs and
SBRG MEREERE minimising the use of unobservable inputs.

Mt~ UM E (RS i EL At
B2 EEMNZEET
e WEFRARMEATS L
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213 E&F 2.13 Precious metals
BEBEAUEES R EAM Precious metals comprise gold, silver and other precious metals. Precious metals are
BEeE - BB AE initially recognised and subsequently re-measured at fair value. Mark-to-market gains or
TEVIARESIFI HAR B A - 5B losses on precious metals are included in net trading gain/loss.
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2, FESHECR (&) 2. Significant accounting policies (continued)
214 &RIEERKE 2.14 Impairment of financial assets

AEENFEEGEEEH The Group assesses as at the end of each reporting period whether there is objective

S 1 2% —4H 4 Rl E 2 evidence that a financial asset or group of financial assets is impaired. A financial asset

SEERENZE S5 ® or a group of financial assets is impaired and impairment losses are incurred if, and only

T8l - BB R B ERS S if, there is objective evidence of impairment as a result of one or more events that

FHA B Rl A E AT V) aa R occurred after the initial recognition of the asset (a “loss event”) and that loss event (or

%R &4 —TEe S THE A events) has an impact on the reliably estimated future cash flows of the financial asset
(T{Ek=HESE, ) - HEIE or group of financial assets. Objective evidence that a financial asset or group of

REGE S IES financial assets may be impaired includes observable data that comes to the attention

Rl E B A e R Y of the Group about the following probable loss events:

THET AR AR IR B0 7 A e
B - RIRZIHEGL A R
W UE B B 3% AR A G
fﬁﬁﬁi‘%é’% o BRI 12—

4H <2 il E T A L BB
Zﬁ%ﬂ”‘%’@%ﬂi%lﬁ
AT LU AT AR B
R B ER

(i) /T AHKEANET (i) significant financial difficulty of the issuer or obligor;
Jes ER S BRI

(i) &y BlanmAsEE R (i) a breach of contract, such as a default or delinquency in interest or principal
FIEEASER payment;

(iii) PR B 3k A 2 B L (iii) the Group granting to the borrower, for economic or legal reasons relating to the
IR] 8 AH Bl > 48075 5k borrower’s financial difficulty, a concession that the lender would not otherwise
BER - AEEG T consider;

NTE—REE 0T I
AKARTHEZEE
TRfeE

(iv) &= BT BEBY EE 5K, (iv) it becoming probable that the borrower will enter into bankruptcy or other financial
HEFTHAMRA TS EE A reorganisation;

(V) DRIB I A 8 B (5 3% <& (v) the disappearance of an active market or downgrading below investment grade
RG22 R 5N level for that financial asset because of financial difficulties; or

B H AL B R AR b
ERBEFHIELT 5K
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2. Significant accounting policies (continued)

214 SREERE (&)

2.14 Impairment of financial assets (continued)

(vi) FZEE BRI — (vi) observable data indicating that there is a measurable decrease in the estimated

ERETEEAGITEL L
AT T R
VAT A AT
T SEIRARE TR
REEUIE Bz BN 2
{851 E:R A E - ERHE
&

o HHEZHERAZE
HOR A A Fllgg

%

o HZHEHEZ B
AR 2 2Bk
AHELFHIRIL -
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future cash flows from a group of financial assets since the initial recognition of
those assets, although the decrease cannot yet be identified with the individual
financial assets in the group, including:

« adverse changes in the payment status of borrowers in the group; or

« national or local economic conditions that correlate with defaults on the assets in
the group.

(1) Assets carried at amortised cost

The Group first assesses whether objective evidence of impairment exists
individually for financial assets that are individually significant. If the Group
determines that no objective evidence of impairment exists for an individually
assessed financial asset, it includes the asset in a group of financial assets with
similar credit risk characteristics and collectively assesses them for impairment
together with all other financial assets that are not individually significant or for which
impairment has not yet been identified. Assets that are individually assessed for
impairment and for which an impairment loss is or continues to be recognised are
not included in a collective assessment of impairment.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

2. Significant accounting policies (continued)

214 SREERE (&)

2.14 Impairment of financial assets (continued)

(1) DERRAR BAVEE

(1) Assets carried at amortised cost (continued)
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If there is objective evidence that an impairment loss on loans and receivables or
held-to-maturity securities has been incurred, the amount of the loss is measured as
the difference between the asset's carrying amount and the present value of
estimated future cash flows (excluding future credit losses that have not been
incurred), discounted at the financial asset’s original effective interest rate. The
carrying amount of the asset is reduced through the use of an allowance account
and the amount of the loss is recognised in the income statement. If a loan or
held-to-maturity security has a variable interest rate, the discount rate for measuring
any impairment loss is the current effective interest rate determined under the
contract. As a practical expedient, the Group may measure impairment on the basis
of an instrument’s fair value using an observable market price.

The calculation of the present value of the estimated future cash flows of a
collateralised financial asset reflects the cash flows that may result from foreclosure
less costs for obtaining and selling the collateral.

For the purposes of a collective assessment of impairment, financial assets are
grouped on the basis of similar and relevant credit risk characteristics. Those
characteristics are relevant to the estimation of future cash flows for groups of such
assets by being indicative of the debtors’ ability to pay all amounts due according to
the contractual terms of the assets being evaluated.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

2. Significant accounting policies (continued)

214 SREERE (&)

2.14 Impairment of financial assets (continued)

(1) DERRAR BAVEE

(1) Assets carried at amortised cost (continued)
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Future cash flows in a group of financial assets that are collectively evaluated for
impairment are estimated on the basis of the contractual cash flows of the assets in
the group and historical loss experience for assets with credit risk characteristics
similar to those in the group. Historical loss experience is adjusted on the basis of
current observable data to reflect the effects of current conditions that did not affect
the period on which the historical loss experience is based and to remove the effects
of conditions in the historical period that do not exist currently.

When a loan is uncollectible, it is written off against the related allowance for
impairment losses. Such loans are written off after all the necessary procedures
have been completed and the amount of the loss has been determined. Subsequent
recoveries of amounts previously written off decrease the amount of impairment
losses in the income statement.

If, in a subsequent period, the amount of allowance for impairment losses decreases
and the decrease can be related objectively to an event occurring after the
impairment loss was recognised (such as an improvement in the debtor’s credit
rating), the previously recognised impairment loss to the extent of its decrease is
reversed by adjusting the allowance account. The amount of the reversal is
recognised in the income statement.

Loans whose terms have been renegotiated with substantial difference in the terms
are no longer considered to be past due but are treated as new loans.
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2.14 Impairment of financial assets (continued)
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(2) Assets classified as available-for-sale

BE

PURRR =
FEREREIER - HER
SIS 18 — BILE A K
A B e A B B
VR R TR
ERMAEZAICEA
Wi RN REtEE
Bk - TR R
BEEWERRA - IR
WEFE By T i Y B Y
R AEREHR
EHIRAERE - FEE
HAFEESBRE
B B MR ek
A o WA Ry
Bt SR E
B LA Z NV HEE
- S A g R R
HERBEEZREHAR
BRA: - ABE 2 BE R
KA LA % Z A
B Z B U 5
RO - ER A
f THIGH - 21N
SE AL H A
S TAT U3 2 T 28 I T g3
HEFEFA TP HEHED
it > JR(EIRAT i
YRR -

If evidence of impairment exists for available-for-sale financial assets, the
accumulated losses, measured as the difference between the acquisition cost or
amortised cost and the current fair value, less any impairment loss on that financial
asset previously recognised in the income statement, is removed from equity and
recognised in the income statement. In the case of equity investments classified as
available-for-sale, a significant or prolonged decline in the fair value of the security
below its cost is considered in determining whether the assets are impaired. If, in a
subsequent period, the fair value of a debt instrument classified as available-for-sale
increases and the increase can be objectively related to an event occurring after the
impairment loss was recognised in the income statement, the impairment loss to the
extent of its decrease is reversed through the income statement. With respect to
equity instruments, further fair value changes are recognised in the reserve for fair
value change of available-for-sale securities through other comprehensive income,
impairment losses are not reversed through the income statement.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

2. Significant accounting policies (continued)

215

Impairment of investment

non-financial assets

in subsidiaries, associates, joint venture and

Assets are reviewed for impairment whenever events or changes in circumstances
indicate that the carrying amount may not be recoverable. Potential indications of
impairment may include significant adverse changes in the technological, market,
economic or legal environment in which the assets operate or whether there has been
a significant or prolonged decline in value below their cost. “Significant” is evaluated
against the original cost of the investment and “prolonged” against the period in which
the fair value has been below its original cost.

An impairment loss is recognised for the amount by which the asset’s carrying amount
exceeds its recoverable amount. The recoverable amount is the higher of an asset’s
fair value less costs to sell and value in use. For the purposes of assessing
impairment, assets are grouped at the lowest levels for which there are separately
identifiable cash flows (cash generating units). Assets that suffered impairment are
reviewed for possible reversal of the impairment at each reporting date.

In the Bank’s balance sheet, impairment testing of the investment in a subsidiary,
associate or joint venture is also required upon receiving dividend from that entity if the
dividend exceeds the total comprehensive income of that entity concerned in the
period the dividend is declared or if the carrying amount of that entity in the Bank’s
balance sheet exceeds the carrying amount of that entity’s net assets including
goodwill in its consolidated balance sheet.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

2. Significant accounting policies (continued)

2.16 Investment properties

Properties that are held for long-term rental yields or for capital appreciation or both,
and that are not occupied by the companies in the Group, are classified as investment
properties. Properties leased out within Group companies are classified as investment
properties in individual companies’ financial statements and as premises in
consolidated financial statements. Land held under operating lease is classified and
accounted for as investment property when the rest of the definition of investment
property is met. The operating lease is accounted for as if it is a finance lease.

Investment properties are recognised initially at cost, including related transaction
costs. After initial recognition, investment properties are measured at fair value.

Subsequent expenditure is charged to the asset’s carrying amount only when it is
probable that future economic benefits associated with the item will flow to the Group
and the cost of the item can be measured reliably. The item is stated at cost less
impairment and is included in the carrying amount of investment properties. Once the
item begins to generate economic benefits, it is then measured at fair value. All other
repairs and maintenance costs are expensed in the income statement during the
financial period in which they are incurred.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

2. Significant accounting policies (continued)

2.16 Investment properties (continued)

Any changes in fair value are recognised directly in the income statement.

If an investment property becomes owner-occupied, it is reclassified as premises, and
its fair value at the date of reclassification becomes its cost for accounting purposes. If
an item of premises becomes an investment property because its use has changed,
any difference resulting between the carrying amount and the fair value of this item at
the date of transfer is recognised in other comprehensive income as a revaluation of
premises under HKAS 16 “Property, Plant and Equipment”. However, if a fair value gain
reverses a previous revaluation loss or impairment loss, the gain is recognised in the
income statement up to the amount previously debited.

2.17 Properties, plant and equipment

Properties are mainly branches and office premises. Premises are shown at fair value
based on periodic, at least annual, valuations by external independent valuers less
subsequent accumulated depreciation and subsequent accumulated impairment
losses. Any accumulated depreciation at the date of revaluation is eliminated against
the gross carrying amount of the asset and the net amount is restated to the revalued
amount of the asset. In the intervening periods, the directors review the carrying
amount of premises, by reference to the open market value of similar properties, and
adjustments are made when there has been a material change.

All plant and equipment are stated at historical cost less accumulated depreciation and
impairment. Historical cost includes expenditures that are directly attributable to the
acquisition and installation of the items.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

2. Significant accounting policies (continued)

2.17 Properties, plant and equipment (continued)

Subsequent costs are included in an asset’s carrying amount or are recognised as a
separate asset, as appropriate, only when it is probable that future economic benefits
associated with the item will flow to the Group and the cost of the item can be measured
reliably. The item is stated at cost less impairment until it begins to generate economic
benefits, then the item is subsequently measured according to the measurement basis
of its respective assets class. All other repairs and maintenance costs are charged to
the income statement during the financial period in which they are incurred.

Increases in the carrying amount arising on revaluation of premises are credited to the
premises revaluation reserve through other comprehensive income. Decreases that
offset previous increases of the same individual asset are charged against premises
revaluation reserve through other comprehensive income; all other decreases are
expensed in the income statement. Any subsequent increases are credited to the
income statement up to the amount previously debited, and then to the premises
revaluation reserve. Upon disposal of premises, the relevant portion of the premises
revaluation reserve realised in respect of previous valuations is released and
transferred from the premises revaluation reserve to retained earnings.

Depreciation is calculated on the straight-line method to write down the cost or revalued
amount of such assets over their estimated useful lives as follows:

. Properties

Over the life of government land leases

. Plant and equipment
3 to 15 years

The useful lives of assets are reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, as at the end of
each reporting period.
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TEEEstEEH JFERN At the end of each reporting period, both internal and external sources of information
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SIFEF  RIEEEE 2 AU asset to its recoverable amount. Such an impairment loss is recognised in the income
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(1) &2HEE (1) Operating leases
LEFHEZE EJ:EE Leases in which a significant portion of the risks and rewards of ownership are
HHAREHEE retained by the lessor are classified as operating leases. The total payments made
é”j:ﬁﬁ/\ﬂﬁgg&@iﬁz under operating leases (net of any incentives received from the lessor) are charged
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2. Significant accounting policies (continued)

218 fHE (#)

2.18 Leases (continued)

(2) REfAE (2) Finance leases
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Leases of assets where lessee have obtained substantially all the risks and rewards
of ownership are classified as finance leases. Government land leases in Hong
Kong are classified as finance leases as the present value of the minimum lease
payments (i.e. transaction price) of the land amounted to substantially all of the fair
value of the land as if it were freehold.

Finance leases are capitalised at the lease’s commencement at the lower of the fair
value of the leased asset and the present value of the minimum lease payments.
Each lease payment is allocated between the liability and finance charges so as to
achieve a constant rate on the finance balance outstanding. The corresponding
rental obligations, net of finance charges, are included in other liabilities. Investment
properties acquired under finance leases are carried at their fair value.

When assets are leased out under a finance lease, the present value of the lease
payments is recognised as a receivable. Lease income is recognised over the term
of the lease using net investment method, which reflects a constant periodic rate of
return.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

2. Significant accounting policies (continued)

2.19 Cash and cash equivalents

For the purposes of the consolidated cash flow statement, cash and cash equivalents
comprise balances with original maturity less than three months from the date of
acquisition, including cash, balances with banks and other financial institutions,
short-term bills and notes classified as investment securities and certificates of deposit.

2.20 Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present legal or constructive
obligation as a result of past events, it is probable that an outflow of resources
embodying economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation, and a reliable
estimate of the amount of the obligation can be made.

2.21 Employee benefits
(1) Retirement benefit costs

The Group contributes to defined contribution retirement schemes under either
recognised ORSO schemes or MPF schemes that are available to the Group’s
employees. Contributions to the schemes by the Group and employees are
calculated as a percentage of employees’ basic salaries for the ORSO schemes
and in accordance with the MPF rules for MPF schemes. The retirement benefit
scheme costs are charged to the income statement as incurred and represent
contributions payable by the Group to the schemes. Contributions made by the
Group that are forfeited by those employees who leave the ORSO scheme prior to
the full vesting of their entitlement to the contributions are used by the Group to
reduce the existing level of contributions or to meet its expenses under the trust
deed of the ORSO schemes.

The assets of the schemes are held in independently-administered funds separate
from those of the Group.
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2. Significant accounting policies (continued)

2.21 gREF (8D

2.21 Employee benefits (continued)
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(2) Leave entitlements
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Employee entitlements to annual leave and sick leave are recognised when they
accrue to employees. A provision is made for the estimated liability for unused
annual leave and the amount of sick leave expected to be paid as a result of
services rendered by employees up to the end of the reporting period.

Compensated absences other than sick leave and special approved annual leaves
are non-accumulating; they lapse if the current period’s entitlement is not used in
full. Except for unexpired annual leaves, they do not entitle employees to a cash
payment for unused entitiement on leaving the Group.

(3) Bonus plans

The expected cost of bonus payments are recognised as a liability when the Group
has a present legal or constructive obligation as a result of services rendered by
employees and a reliable estimate of the obligation can be made. Liabilities for
bonus plans that are expected to be settled longer than twelve months will be
discounted if the amounts are significant.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

2. Significant accounting policies (continued)

2.22 Current and deferred income taxes

Tax expenses for the period comprises current and deferred tax. Tax is recognised in
the income statement, except to the extent that it relates to items recognised directly in
other comprehensive income. In this case, the tax is also recognised in other
comprehensive income.

Income tax payable on profits, based on the applicable tax law enacted or substantially
enacted at the end of the reporting period in each jurisdiction where the Bank and the
subsidiaries, associates and joint venture operate and generate taxable income, is
recognised as a current income tax expense in the period in which profits arise.

Deferred income tax is provided in full, using the balance sheet liability method, on
temporary differences arising between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their
carrying amounts in the consolidated financial statements. Deferred income tax is
determined using tax rates and laws that have been enacted or substantially enacted
by the end of the reporting period and are expected to apply when the related deferred
income tax asset is realised or the deferred income tax liability is settled.

The principal temporary differences arise from asset impairment provisions,
depreciation of premises and equipment, and revaluation of certain assets including
available-for-sale securities and premises. However, the deferred income tax is not
recognised if it arises from initial recognition of an asset or liability in a transaction other
than a business combination that at the time of the transaction affects neither
accounting nor taxable profit or loss.

Deferred income tax liabilities are provided in full on all taxable temporary differences.
Deferred income tax assets are recognised on all deductible temporary differences, the
carry forward of any unused tax credits and unused tax losses to the extent that it is
probable that future taxable profit will be available against which the deductible
temporary differences, the carry forward of unused tax credits and unused tax losses
can be utilised.
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2. Significant accounting policies (continued)

2.22 APHRIRFEFTIRE (8D

2.22 Current and deferred income taxes (continued)
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Deferred income tax is charged or credited in the income statement except for deferred
income tax relating to fair value re-measurement of available-for-sale securities and
revaluation of premises which are charged or credited to other comprehensive income,
in which case the deferred income tax is also credited or charged to other
comprehensive income and is subsequently recognised in the income statement
together with the realisation of the deferred gain and loss.

Deferred tax liability or deferred tax asset arising from investment property is
determined based on the presumption that the revaluation amount of such investment
property will be recovered through sale with the relevant tax rate applied.

2.23 Repossessed assets

Repossessed assets are initially recognised at the lower of their fair value less costs to

SEAE SO BR tH B pA % 2 0F sell and the amortised cost of the related outstanding loans on the date of
B R B B &3 R A repossession, and the related loans and advances together with the related impairment
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allowances are derecognised from the balance sheet. Subsequently, repossessed
assets are measured at the lower of their cost and fair values less costs to sell and are
reported as “non-current assets held for sale” included in “Other assets”.

2.24 Fiduciary activities

The Group commonly acts as a trustee, or in other fiduciary capacities, that result in its
holding or managing assets on behalf of individuals, trusts and other institutions. These
assets and any gains or losses arising thereon are excluded from these financial
statements, as they are not assets of the Group.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

2. Significant accounting policies (continued)

2.25 Contingent liabilities and contingent assets

A contingent liability is a possible obligation that arises from past events and whose
existence will only be confirmed by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more
uncertain future events not wholly within the control of the Group. It can also be a
present obligation arising from past events that is not recognised because it is not
probable that an outflow of economic resources will be required or the amount of
obligation cannot be measured reliably.

A contingent liability is not recognised as a provision but is disclosed in the notes to the
financial statements. When a change in the probability of an outflow occurs so that
outflow is probable, it will then be recognised as a provision.

A contingent asset is a possible asset that arises from past events and whose
existence will only be confirmed by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more
uncertain future events not wholly within the control of the Group.

Contingent assets are not recognised but are disclosed in the notes to the financial
statements when an inflow of economic benefits is probable. When the inflow is virtually
certain, it will be recognised as an asset.

2.26 Related parties

For the purposes of these financial statements, a party is considered to be related to
the Group if that party (i) controls, jointly controls or has significant influence over the
Group; (ii) is a member of the same financial reporting group, such as parents,
subsidiaries and fellow subsidiaries; (iii) is an associate or a joint venture of the Group
or parent reporting group; (iv) is a key management personnel of the Group or parents;
(v) is subject to common control with the Group; (vi) is an entity in which a person
identified in (iv) controls; and (vii) provides key management personnel services to the
Group or its parent. Related parties may be individuals or entities.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

3. Critical accounting estimates and judgements in applying
accounting policies

The Group makes estimates and assumptions that affect the carrying amounts of assets and
liabilities within the next financial year. Estimates and judgements are continually evaluated
and are based on historical experience and other factors, including expectations of future
events that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances. Areas susceptible to
changes in essential estimates and judgements, which affect the carrying amount of assets
and liabilities, are set out below. The effect of changes to either the key assumptions or other
estimation uncertainties will be presented below if it is practicable to determine. It is possible
that actual results may require material adjustments to the estimates referred to below.

3.1 Impairment allowances on loans and advances

The Group reviews its loan portfolios to assess impairment at least on a quarterly basis.
In determining whether an impairment loss should be recorded in the income statement,
the Group makes judgements as to whether there is any observable data indicating that
there is a measurable decrease in the estimated future cash flows from a portfolio of
loans and advances before the decrease can be identified with an individual loan in that
portfolio. This evidence may include observable data indicating that there has been an
adverse change in the payment status of borrowers in a group (e.g. payment delinquency
or default), or economic conditions that correlate with defaults on assets in the group.
The Management uses estimates based on historical loss experience for assets with
credit risk characteristics and objective evidence of impairment similar to those in the
portfolio when estimating expected future cash flows. The methodology and assumptions
used for estimating both the amount and timing of future cash flows are reviewed
regularly.

Carrying amounts of loans and advances as at 31 December 2015 are shown in Note 22.

95



@

MR (48)

3. EREETBURRZEX
GEHibEt g (&)

3.2 AR HLE

BRE

FEEEVGRHARAE
B AN SR EES
HYREARAR LT — T
fili - RAEZ FERERGH
BURMERF - EaP(hH R
BRI > BrashE(E HsT
SR AISEE - FEEGS
RZEEEGHTISEN - %
T N HAETIED - B
BRI - SIS EELY
ERHRRVEORIEN - T
BT AN ELNERTRE
B PR HAEET - B ERT
PR R T AR E
TEHRET -

HWE20154E12 531 A%
FIEIRAEECY IR EE
24 ¢

3.3 ITAEESR T EAATE

B ERTSREZ TS
R LA > HOAPEEHRE
EJTVARIE - IR Z (G 1E
DARER R R o )
1> DU ARRSNEREA - il
ENEZ R Z BT
[ E B A B AL
W E A - TE R
TERITRIREILT » E(EA
PR R - ik E
BARAEEHLERE > A
EEERE - fH{EHEEE ]
REBLERA - BAEETIHE
S EERAIBI R TR 2
EHER TG - BAE
EERIE i

HE 20155128 31 HHIET
AR TERmEDIIRT
ffEt21 -

¥ &) 4L £5 (5 %) HmA T

BANK OF CHINA (HONG KONG) LIMITED

Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

3. Critical accounting estimates and judgements in applying
accounting policies (continued)

3.2 Impairment of held-to-maturity and available-for-sale securities

The Group reviews its held-to-maturity and available-for-sale investment portfolios to
assess impairment at least on a quarterly basis. In determining whether any of these
investments is impaired, risk characteristics and performance such as external credit
rating and market price, will be assessed. The Group makes estimates on the default
rate and loss severity of each investment with reference to market performance of the
portfolios, current payment status of the issuers or performance of the underlying assets,
or economic conditions that correlate with defaults on the collateralised assets. The
methodology and assumptions used for impairment assessments are reviewed regularly.

Carrying amounts of investment in securities as at 31 December 2015 are shown in Note
24,

3.3 Fair values of derivative financial instruments

The fair values of derivative financial instruments that are not quoted in active markets
are determined by using valuation techniques. Valuation techniques used include
discounted cash flows analysis and models with built-in functions available in externally
acquired financial analysis or risk management systems widely used by the industry
such as option pricing models. To the extent practical, the models use observable data.
In addition, valuation adjustments may be adopted if factors such as credit risk are not
considered in the valuation models. Management judgement and estimates are required
for the selection of appropriate valuation parameters, assumptions and modeling
techniques. Further details will be discussed in Note 5.

Carrying amounts of derivative financial instruments as at 31 December 2015 are shown
in Note 21.
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BANK OF CHINA (HONG KONG) LIMITED

Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

3. Critical accounting estimates and judgements in applying
accounting policies (continued)

3.4 Held-to-maturity securities

The Group follows the guidance of HKAS 39 in classifying certain non-derivative financial
assets with fixed or determinable payments and fixed maturity as held-to-maturity
securities. This classification requires significant management judgement to evaluate the
Group’s intention and ability to hold such investments to maturity. If the Group fails to
hold these investments to maturity other than for specific circumstances defined in HKAS
39, such as selling an insignificant amount, selling close to maturity or due to significant
credit deterioration of such investments, it will be required to reclassify the entire portfolio
of financial assets as available-for-sale securities. The investments would then be
measured at fair value and not amortised cost.

Carrying amounts of held-to-maturity securities as at 31 December 2015 are shown in
Note 24.

3.5 Deferred tax assets

Deferred tax assets on unused tax losses are recognised to the extent that it is probable
that taxable profit will be available against which the losses can be utilised. Significant
management judgement is required to determine the amount of deferred tax assets that
can be recognised, based upon the likely timing and level of future taxable profits.

Deferred tax assets on unused tax credits are recognised. Significant management
judgement is required to determine the amount of deferred tax assets that can be
recognised, based upon the estimation of available tax credits and the possibility to
recover such deferred tax assets recognised.
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BANK OF CHINA (HONG KONG) LIMITED

Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

4. Financial risk management

The Group is exposed to financial risks as a result of engaging in a variety of business
activities. The principal financial risks are credit risk, market risk (including currency risk and
interest rate risk) and liquidity risk. This note summarises the Group’s exposures to these
risks, as well as its objectives, risk management governance structure, policies and
processes for managing and the methods used to measure these risks.

Financial risk management framework

The Group’s risk management governance structure is designed to cover all business
processes and ensures various risks are properly managed and controlled in the course of
conducting business. The Group has a robust risk management organisational structure with
a comprehensive set of policies and procedures to identify, measure, monitor and control
various risks that may arise. These risk management policies and procedures are regularly
reviewed and updated to reflect changes in markets and business strategies. Various groups
of risk takers assume their respective responsibilities for risk management.

The Board of Directors, representing the interests of shareholders, is the highest
decision-making authority of the Group and has the ultimate responsibility for risk
management. The Board, with the assistance of its committees, has the primary
responsibility for the formulation of risk management strategies and ensuring that the Group
has an effective risk management system to implement these strategies.

The Risk Committee (“RC”), a standing committee established by the Board of Directors, is
responsible for overseeing the Group’s various types of risks, approving Level | risk
management policies and monitoring their implementation, reviewing significant or high risk
exposures or transactions and exercising its power of veto if it considers that any transaction
should not proceed. The Audit Committee assists the Board in fulfilling its role in overseeing
the internal control system.
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BANK OF CHINA (HONG KONG) LIMITED

Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

4. Financial risk management (continued)

Financial risk management framework (continued)

The Chief Executive (“CE”) is responsible for managing the Group’s various types of risks,
approving Level Il risk management procedures, and material risk exposures or transactions
within his authority delegated by the Board of Directors. The Chief Risk Officer (“*CRO”)
assists the CE in fulfilling his responsibilities for the day-to-day management of risks. The
CRO is responsible for initiating new risk management strategies, projects and measures
that will enable the Group to better monitor and manage new risk issues or areas that may
arise from time to time from new businesses, products and changes in the operating
environment. The CRO will also take appropriate initiatives in response to regulatory
changes. The CRO is also responsible for reviewing material risk exposures or transactions
within his delegated authority and exercising his power of veto if he believes that any
transaction should not proceed.

Various units of the Group have their respective risk management responsibilities. Business
units act as the first line of defence while risk management units, which are independent
from the business units, are responsible for the day-to-day management of different kinds of
risks. Risk management units have the primary responsibilities for drafting, reviewing and
updating various risk management policies and procedures.

The Group’s principal banking subsidiaries, NCB, NCB (China) and Chiyu, are subject to risk
management policies that are consistent with those of the Group. Risk management units of
BOCHK monitor the risk management status of these subsidiaries.

The Group has put in place appropriate internal control systems, including establishment of
an organisation structure that sets clear lines of authority and responsibility for monitoring
compliance with policies, procedures and limits. Proper reporting lines also provide sufficient
independence of the control functions from the business areas, as well as adequate
segregation of duties throughout the organisation which helps to promote an appropriate
internal control environment.
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BANK OF CHINA (HONG KONG) LIMITED

Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

4. Financial risk management (continued)

Product development and risk monitoring

To ensure the effectiveness of risk assessment and monitoring, the Group has a
comprehensive product development and risk monitoring system where roles and
responsibilities of all related units are clearly defined and proper due diligence processes on

product development are in place.

In accordance with the strategic objectives set by the Board and the Management,
respective product management units are responsible for formulating business and product
development plans, and proceeding to specific product development activities. The
department of strategic development shall ensure the plans are aligned with the Group’s
overall strategies. Departments that are responsible for risk management, legal, compliance
and finance, etc. are accountable for risk assessment and review.

Apart from product development, respective product management units shall work closely
with relevant risk evaluating departments to identify and assess the risks of new products.
Risk evaluating departments shall conduct independent review on the risk assessment
results and the corresponding risk management measures. Products can only be launched
upon completion of the product due diligence process to the satisfaction of all risk evaluating
departments.

A prudent approach is adopted in offering treasury products to our clients. All new treasury
products require approval from a special committee before launching.

4.1 Credit risk

Credit risk is the risk of loss that a customer or counterparty is unable to or unwilling to
meet its contractual obligations. Credit risk exists in the trading book and banking book,
as well as from on- and off-balance sheet transactions of the Group. It arises principally
from lending, trade finance and treasury businesses. The Group’s exposures set out in
Note 4.1 below exclude assets held for sale.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

4. Financial risk management (continued)

41 EHEE (8) 4.1 Credit risk (continued)
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Credit risk management framework

The Group has formulated a comprehensive set of credit risk management policies and
procedures, and appropriate credit risk limits to manage and control credit risk that may
arise. These policies, procedures and credit risk limits are regularly reviewed and updated
to cope with changes in market conditions and business strategies.

The Group’s organisation structure establishes a clear set of authority and responsibility for
monitoring compliance with policies, procedures and limits.

The Chief Credit Officer, who reports directly to the CRO, takes charge of credit risk
management and is also responsible for the control of credit risk exposures of subsidiaries
in line with the credit risk management principles and requirements set by the Group.
Various units of the Group have their respective credit risk management responsibilities.
Business units act as the first line of defence. The Risk Management Department (“RMD”),
which is independent from the business units, is responsible for the day-to-day
management of credit risks and has the primary responsibility for providing an independent
due diligence through identifying, measuring, monitoring and controlling credit risk to
ensure an effective checks and balances, as well as drafting, reviewing and updating credit
risk management policies and procedures. It is also responsible for the design,
development and maintenance of the Group’s internal rating system and ensures the
system complies with the relevant regulatory requirements.

In accordance with Group’s operating principle, the Group’s principal banking
subsidiaries, NCB, NCB (China) and Chiyu, have also formulated their own credit risk
policies that are consistent with those of the Group. These subsidiaries execute their risk
management strategies independently and report to the Group’s Management on a
regular basis.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

4. Financial risk management (continued)

41 EHEE (8) 4.1 Credit risk (continued)
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Credit risk management framework (continued)

The Board of Directors delegates credit approval authority to the CE. The CE can further
delegate to the subordinates within his limit authorised by the Board of Directors. The
Group sets the limits of credit approval authority according to the credit business nature,
rating, the level of transaction risk, and the extent of the credit exposure.

Credit risk measurement and control

In view of the rapidly changing market conditions, the Group has been continuously
revisiting its credit strategies and conducting rigorous reviews on the concerned portfolios.

Advances

Different credit approval and control procedures are adopted according to the level of risk
associated with the customer, counterparty or transaction. The Credit Risk Assessment
Committee, comprising experts from credit and other functions, is responsible for making
an independent assessment of material credit applications which require the approval of
Deputy Chief Executives (“DCE”) or above. Credit applications for non-retail exposures are
independently reviewed and objectively assessed by risk management units. Obligor
ratings (in terms of probability of default) and facility ratings (in terms of loss given default)
are assigned to these portfolios to support credit approval. Retail internal rating systems
are deployed in the risk assessment of retail credit transactions, including small business
retail exposures, residential mortgage loans, personal loans and credit cards. Loan grades,
obligor and facility ratings as well as loss estimates (if applicable) are used to support credit
approval.
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4. Financial risk management (continued)

41 EHEE (8) 4.1 Credit risk (continued)
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Credit risk measurement and control (continued)

Advances (continued)

The Group also uses loan grades, obligor ratings and loss estimates (if applicable) to
support credit monitoring, reporting and analysis of credit risk information. For non-retail
exposures, more frequent rating review and closer monitoring are required for higher-risk
customers. For retail exposures, monthly updated internal ratings and loss estimates are
used for credit monitoring on a portfolio basis. More comprehensive review is required for
obligors being identified under high-risk pools.

The Group employs an internal master rating scale that can be mapped to Standard &
Poor’s external credit ratings. The structure of internal master rating scale is in compliance
with the requirement of the Banking (Capital) Rules under the Hong Kong Banking
Ordinance.

RMD provides regular credit management information reports and ad hoc reports to the
MC, RC and Board of Directors to facilitate their continuous monitoring of credit risk.
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4. Financial risk management (continued)

41 EEE (8) 4.1 Credit risk (continued)
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Credit risk measurement and control (continued)

Advances (continued)

In addition, the Group identifies credit concentration risk by industry, geography, customer
and counterparty. The Group monitors changes to counterparty credit risk, quality of the
credit portfolio and credit risk concentrations, and reports regularly to the Group’s
Management.

The Group adopts loan grading criteria which divides credit assets into five categories
with reference to the HKMA's guidelines, as below:

“Pass” represents loans where the borrower is current in meeting its repayment
obligations and full repayment of interest and principal is not in doubt.

“Special Mention” represents loans where the borrower is experiencing difficulties which
may threaten the Group’s position. Ultimate loss is not expected at this stage but could
occur if adverse conditions persist.

“Substandard” represents loans where the borrower displays a definable weakness that is
likely to jeopardise repayment.

“Doubtful” represents loans where collection in full is improbable and the Group expects
to sustain a loss of principal and/or interest, taking into account the net realisable value of
the collateral.

“Loss” represents loans which are considered uncollectible after all collection options
(such as the realisation of collateral or the institution of legal proceedings) have been
exhausted.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

4. Financial risk management (continued)

41 EEE (8) 4.1 Credit risk (continued)
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Credit risk measurement and control (continued)

Debt securities and derivatives

For investments in debt securities and securitisation assets, the obligor ratings or external
credit ratings, assessment of the underlying assets and credit limits setting on
customer/security issuer basis are used for managing credit risk associated with the
investment. For derivatives, the Group sets customer limits to manage the credit risk
involved and follows the same approval and control processes as applied for advances.
On-going monitoring and stop-loss procedures are established.

The methodology and assumptions used for impairment assessments are reviewed
regularly. In evaluating impairment of asset backed securities (“ABS”) and mortgage
backed securities (“MBS”), the Group continued to use a significant decline in market
price and credit deterioration of the underlying assets to be the key indicators of
impairment. The Group also considered other objective evidence of impairment, taking
into account the impact of liquidity on market prices and the movement in loss coverage
ratios of individual ABS and MBS held by the Group.

Settlement risk arises mainly from foreign exchange transactions with counterparties and
also from derivatives transactions in any situation where a payment in cash, securities or
equities is made in the expectation of a corresponding receipt in cash, securities or
equities. Daily settlement limits are established for each counterparty or customer to
cover all settlement risk arising from the Group’s market transactions on any single day.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

4. Financial risk management (continued)

41 FERE (&) 4.1 Credit risk (continued)
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Collateral held as security and other credit enhancements

The valuation and management of collateral have been documented in the credit risk
management policies and procedures which cover acceptance criteria, validity of
collateral, loan-to-value ratio, haircut ratio, valuation and insurance, etc. The collateral is
revalued on a regular basis, though the frequency and the method used varies with the
type of collateral involved and the nature and the risk of the underlying credit. The Group
has established a mechanism to update the value of its main type of collateral, real estate
properties, with the use of public indices on a portfolio basis. Collateral is insured with the
Group as the beneficiary. In the personal sector, the main types of collateral are real
estate properties, cash deposits and securities. In the commercial and industrial sector,
the main types of collateral are real estate properties, securities, receivables, cash
deposits and machinery.

For loans guaranteed by a third party, the Group will assess the guarantor’s financial
condition, credit history and ability to meet obligations.

As at 31 December 2015, the fair value of collateral held by the Group that was permitted
to sell or re-pledge in the absence of default by the borrower amounted to HK$1,018
million (2014: Nil). The Group had not sold or re-pledged such collateral (2014: Nil).
These transactions are conducted under terms that are usual and customary to reverse
repurchase agreements.
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4. Financial risk management (continued)

4.1 8RR (8
(A) EEREERARE

4.1 Credit risk (continued)

(A) Credit exposures

FREEZ e EER
bR B RN A
A e M= S
SRR B R
1 - HINAEARE
WEE - &= E 8
bR AR S I H AR
B - B FE I R
B e (S B ERR
ERPIERAZRA
FEEA R EM EHBA
A o BRERK
HYE B FAME AR
A mEEEER
HRYE Rt (SRR 2
# o

LR RoFre i an e
HAseEE Bk
MR HE AL %
BerAENEER
R

FESRAT e A 5 gl
TR R 5 HIE I

BREEIL S TR
B — R R R
bR - RAt—ff
LIS A = ORI
il -

RS (L AT
2 SRS R

24
=

AR BB
FRAEIL -

The maximum credit exposure is the worst case scenario of exposure to the Group
without taking into account any collateral held or other credit enhancements. For
on-balance sheet assets, the maximum exposure to credit risk equals their carrying
amount. For letters of guarantee issued, the maximum exposure to credit risk is the
maximum amount that the Group could be required to pay if the guarantees are
called upon. For loan commitment and other credit related liabilities, the maximum
exposure to credit risk is the full amount of the committed facilities.

The nature of the collateral held and other credit enhancements and their financial
effect to the different classes of the Group’s financial assets are as follows.

Balances and placements with banks and other financial institutions

These exposures are generally considered to be low risk due to the nature of the
counterparties. Collateral is generally not sought on these assets.

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss and investment in securities

Collateral is generally not sought on debt securities.

107



@ ¥ 8 4 47 (5 ) B mAT

BANK OF CHINA (HONG KONG) LIMITED

MR (&)
4. SREREE (8)
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4. Financial risk management (continued)

4.1 8RR (8
(A) EEREEEE (8)

4.1 Credit risk (continued)

(A) Credit exposures (continued)
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Derivative financial instruments

The Master Agreement published by the International Swaps and Derivatives
Association, Inc. (“ISDA Master Agreement”) is the preferred agreement for
documenting derivatives activities of the Group. It provides the contractual
framework under which dealing activities of over-the-counter (“OTC”) transactions
are conducted, and sets out close-out netting provisions upon termination following
the occurrence of an event of default or a termination event. In addition, if deemed
necessary, Credit Support Annex (“CSA”) will be included to form part of the
Schedule to the ISDA Master Agreement. Under a CSA, collateral is passed from
one counterparty to another, as appropriate, to mitigate the exposures.

Advances and other accounts, contingent liabilities and commitments

The general types of collateral are disclosed on page 106. Advances and other
accounts, contingent liabilities and commitments are collateralised to the extent
considered appropriate by the Group taking account of the risk assessment of
individual exposures. The collateral coverage of advances to customers is analysed
on pages 120 to 121. The components and nature of contingent liabilities and
commitments are disclosed in Note 39. Regarding the commitments that are
unconditionally cancellable without prior notice, the Group would assess the
necessity to withdraw the credit line in case where the credit quality of a borrower
deteriorates. For contingent liabilities and commitments, 10.26% (2014: 9.4%) was
covered by collateral as at 31 December 2015.
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4. oREIREEE (8]) 4. Financial risk management (continued)

41 E8RE (8) 4.1 Credit risk (continued)
(B) ISR EAERTR (B) Gross advances and other accounts
FEHURE i1 > 48 Gross advances and other accounts before impairment allowances are summarised
SR HoA R by product type as follows:
mE R AN T
2015 2014
BEEHET BEEET
HK$’'m HK$'m
wPER Advances to customers
EA Personal
- fig - Mortgages 218,350 223,527
- EHFR - Credit cards 13,833 14,059
- At - Others 41,122 46,333
S| Corporate
- PHEEK - Commercial loans 537,725 590,666
- BERE - Trade finance 79,108 86,316
890,138 960,901
=gkt Trade bills 32,011 57,756
SRIT P HoAh G Rilidns Advances to banks and other financial
=074 institutions 969 -
923,118 1,018,657
HHEFIHE > & Advances with a specific repayment date are classified as overdue when the
o ARG R principal or interest is past due and remains unpaid. Advances repayable by regular
B AR AE instalments are classified as overdue when an instalment payment is past due and
= QIY{EFaEE remains unpaid. Advances repayable on demand are classified as overdue either
o JAFERATHAE 2 when a demand for repayment has been served on the borrower but repayment has
ZERO BHHEHP—R not been made in accordance with the instruction or when the advances have
oy B A e A B R remained continuously exceeded the approved limit that was advised to the
AR - AlFI{FiE borrower.
PR R - ZHENEAEE
Z ERCE B A E R
NIFEBFCGm - 2
ERA R TE
o B ER—HET
EE/ONEL 3L
SRR IRYIE
AR -
B RS Advances are impaired and impairment losses are incurred if, and only if, there is
EHHRHR—TEHE % objective evidence of impairment as a result of one or more events that occurred and
IEHE e > KT that loss event(s) has an impact on the estimated future cash flows of the advances

HERBELEEFE that can be reliably estimated.
FEHTHA TSR
RS A&
R HFR(EIRSE -
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MK (&) Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
4. oREIREEE (8]) 4. Financial risk management (continued)

41 E8RE (8) 4.1 Credit risk (continued)
(B) ISR EAERTR (B) Gross advances and other accounts (continued)
(&)
Y175 % W 56 15 K If there is objective evidence that an impairment loss on advances has been
EHHREHEEKEE incurred, the amount of loss is measured as the difference between the carrying
X% HEBESZE amount and the present value of estimated future cash flows generated by the
X T {E B R A B advances. Objective evidence that advances are impaired includes observable data
SR T IR E W that comes to the attention of the Group about the loss events.
ZFEHER ) BRE
R E R AN
BB aER LD
FHBEHESAE
BIRIZRHHRAE S -
KERBREBEUTE The criteria that the Group uses to determine that there is objective evidence of an
BB RAERS impairment loss include:
BB ERRSL
fERANHIRE K - Significant financial difficulty incurred by the borrower;
IR TR 5
IR ELEH - A breach of contract, such as a default or delinquency in principal or interest
BIANR & T payment;
HME A S
B
& IR - For economic or legal reasons related to the borrower’s financial difficulty, the
IR » KEH Group has granted to the borrower a concession that it would not otherwise
RN EOAE consider;
R Z 5 E R A
BT ERNERK
e A ERE
B BB ER - Probable that the borrower will become bankrupt or undergo other financial
NJE e b e B reorganisation; or

T B EE © 5

HABHERER - Other observable data indicating that there is a measurable decrease in the
e Sl A= SN estimated future cash flows from such advances.

IR H

TREBHBE T -
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MK (&) Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
4. oREIREEE (8]) 4. Financial risk management (continued)

41 E8RE (8) 4.1 Credit risk (continued)
(B) REZ K EAEREE (B) Gross advances and other accounts (continued)
(&)
(a) FEBRMEARSHT (a) Advances neither overdue nor impaired
K
JERE A A HA S Advances that were neither overdue nor impaired are analysed by internal credit
A EME &4k grade as follows:
AT -
2015
WEWE — REEUT
& Special Substandard wa=t
Pass mention or below Total
AREET A¥EET BRREHET B¥EET
HK$’'m HK$’'m HK$’'m HK$’'m
BFEK Advances to customers
EA Personal
- 1548 - Mortgages 216,248 162 31 216,441
- EHF - Credit cards 13,346 - - 13,346
- HAh - Others 40,569 54 7 40,630
NS Corporate
- PEEEEK - Commercial loans 535,008 597 657 536,262
- BEOREE - Trade finance 78,716 131 - 78,847
883,887 944 695 885,526
B s Trade bills 32,011 - - 32,011
RAT B HoAth & F Advances to banks and
MRS K other financial
institutions 969 - - 969
916,867 944 695 918,506
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4. Financial risk management (continued)

4.1 Credit risk (continued)

(B) Gross advances and other accounts (continued)

(a) Advances neither overdue nor impaired (continued)

Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

2014
TR RERELLT
Gtk Special ~ Substandard gzt
Pass mention or below Total
AEEETT  BEEHET EREETT BEEET
HK$'m HK$'m HK$'m HK$'m
Advances to customers
Personal
- Mortgages 220,848 172 41 221,061
- Credit cards 13,456 - - 13,456
- Others 45,773 60 21 45,854
Corporate
- Commercial loans 584,069 2,987 747 587,803
- Trade finance 85,659 212 2 85,873
949,805 3,431 811 954,047
Trade bills 57,756 - - 57,756
1,007,561 3,431 811 1,011,803

The occurrence of loss event(s) may not necessarily result in impairment loss
where the advances are fully collateralised. While such advances are of
“substandard” or lower grades, they are regarded as not being impaired and

have been included in the above tables.
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(B) SEERR HALARE
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HEE Advances to customers
EA Personal
- g - Mortgages
- EAF - Credit cards
- A - Others
NE] Corporate
- PHEERC - Commercial loans
- BoRE - Trade finance

4.1 Credit risk (continued)

4. Financial risk management (continued)

(B) Gross advances and other accounts (continued)

(b) Advances overdue but not impaired

Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

The gross amount of advances overdue but not impaired is analysed as follows:

2015
piif T
3{EH
(RN Eh A
6fEH 6 @A
A3 EH Overdue {EREB
EAYEN for 14
Overdue six months Overdue EHH
for or less for one g1 4
three but over year or less Overdue for
months three but over over one e
or less months six months year Total
AEEET AREET AEEHET AEEET AEEHET
HK$’'m HK$’'m HK$’'m HK$’'m HK$’'m
1,874 15 19 - 1,908
448 - - - 448
459 - 1 1 461
387 2 - 28 417
41 32 2 4 79
3,209 49 22 33 3,313
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4.1 Credit risk (continued)

Advances to customers
Personal
- Mortgages
- Credit cards
- Others
Corporate
- Commercial loans
- Trade finance

4. Financial risk management (continued)

(B) Gross advances and other accounts (continued)

(b) Advances overdue but not impaired (continued)

Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

2014
piind Iy e b
3{EH
ERN EEYc Lotk cegic)
6 {EH 6 {HH
i 3 {8 H Overdue B
E4YE for 14
Overdue six months Overdue A
for or less for one i1
three but over year or less Overdue for
months three but over over one 4
or less months six months year Total
AR EETT AR EETT R EHETT BEEET B EETT
HK$'m HK$'m HK$'m HK$'m HK$'m
2,389 23 21 12 2,445
529 - - - 529
423 6 - 7 436
1,276 19 9 20 1,324
96 - - - 96
4,713 48 30 39 4,830
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4.1 Credit risk (continued)

4. Financial risk management (continued)

Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

(B) Gross advances and other accounts (continued)

(c) Impaired advances

Advances individually identified to be impaired are analysed by product type as

follows:

Advances to customers
Personal
- Mortgages
- Credit cards
- Others
Corporate
- Commercial loans
- Trade finance

Impairment allowances
made in respect of
such advances

Current market value of collateral held
against the covered portion of such

advances to customers

Covered portion of such advances to

customers

Uncovered portion of such advances to

customers

115

2015 2014
FEHR R
mifE Qe
HEER Market JEEER Market
Gross value of Gross value of
advances collateral advances collateral
BEEHETT BEEERT AYEEr  BEEEC
HK$’'m HK$’'m HK$'m HK$'m
1 4 21 15
39 - 74 -
31 20 43 10
1,046 906 1,539 1,356
182 57 347 173
1,299 987 2,024 1,554
610 1,145
2015 2014
BEEET AEEET
HK$’'m HK$'m
987 1,554
848 1,204
451 820
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MK (&) Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
4. SRREEE (8]) 4. Financial risk management (continued)

41 E8RE (8) 4.1 Credit risk (continued)
(B) BERK R HAFRIH (B) Gross advances and other accounts (continued)
(&
(c) BREESEXK (8) (c) Impaired advances (continued)
TREAEHE R The impairment allowances were made after taking into account the value of
A ESER S fE A collateral in respect of such advances.
mfE{E -
2015412 A As at 31 December 2015, there were no impaired trade bills and advances to
31 H A RIHE banks and other financial institutions (2014: Nil).
ZE 5B AR
1T B A ml i
HE K (2014
Fof) -
R 8 A EORE Classified or impaired advances to customers are analysed as follows:
ZEPER
W
2015 2014
AEEET AEEETT
HK$’'m HK$'m
FEE T FHEORE Gross classified or impaired advances to
P SRR customers 2,096 3,008
FETE S e A Gross classified or impaired advances to
A e ) customers as a percentage of gross
Ega = v advances to customers
= 0.24% 0.31%
b b SR AE(E Individually assessed impairment
a7 R A allowances made in respect of such
advances 564 1,096
¥ 4y HE BORUVE Classified or impaired advances to customers represent advances which are either
CERPEPEREE classified as “substandard”, “doubtful” or “loss” under the Group’s classification of
AR EEERE loan quality, or individually assessed to be impaired.

2oBEN "X
ey~ TR K
iEstR  BREE
Bl RE A5 By AR HY
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

4. Financial risk management (continued)

4.1 Credit risk (continued)

(B) Gross advances and other accounts (continued)

(d) Advances overdue for more than three months

The gross amount of advances overdue for more than three months is analysed as
follows:

2015 2014
A% R AR 13 SRR
Btk Btk
% of gross % of gross
Bt advances to $%A advances to
Amount customers Amount customers
AEEEET BEEET
HK$’m HK$'m
Gross advances to
customers which
have been
overdue for:
- six months or
less but over
three months 128 0.02% 512 0.05%
- one year or less
but over six
months 169 0.02% 555 0.06%
- over one year 21 0.02% 240 0.03%
Advances overdue
for over three
months 508 0.06% 1,307 0.14%
Individually
assessed
impairment
allowances
made in respect
of such
advances 161 768
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MK (&) Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
4. SRREEE (8]) 4. Financial risk management (continued)

41 FERE (&) 4.1 Credit risk (continued)
(B) BERK R HAFRIH (B) Gross advances and other accounts (continued)
(%)
(d) ®EAEE 3EB (d) Advances overdue for more than three months (continued)
ZEK (88)
2015 2014
BEEETT BEEETT
HK$’'m HK$'m
b A R Current market value of collateral held
ENEPERZ against the covered portion of such
HEHR S TE advances to customers 676 1,230
LatERE L EE Covered portion of such advances to
ZRPEK customers 339 749
AR Uncovered portion of such advances to
BZRPERK customers 169 558
18 B B R SORE Collateral held against overdue or impaired loans is principally represented by
AR S T charges over business assets such as commercial and residential premises for
EHENE RS corporate loans and mortgages over residential properties for personal loans.
FHETHEAHAEA
EUEERFEER
BF - HARER
BT {ETHEE
VI -
A 2015 &£ 12 H As at 31 December 2015, there were no trade bills and advances to banks and
31 H ¢ FHbE other financial institutions overdue for more than three months (2014: Nil).
#w3EHA B 5
BRI SR 1T R E A

& Al R B
(2014 4F : f) -
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MK (&) Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
4. SRREEE (8]) 4. Financial risk management (continued)

41 E8RE (8) 4.1 Credit risk (continued)
(B) BERK R HAFRIH (B) Gross advances and other accounts (continued)
(%)
(e) KEHIEEK (e) Rescheduled advances
2015 2014
Lr-a=y= g ne kL & PR R
Btk H\orth
% of gross % of gross
458 advances to | advances to
Amount customers Amount customers
BEEET AT E T
HK$’'m HK$'m
HEHE P EFCFH Rescheduled
(B A E R advances to
Ui 3 (@ H customers net
ZERR W) of amounts
included in
“Advances
overdue for
more than
three months” - - 25 -
LEHER S Rescheduled advances are those advances that have been restructured or
AN R B B renegotiated because of deterioration in the financial position of the borrower or
PR & 25 4t A 0 4 of the inability of the borrower to meet the original repayment schedule.
HA % 0 45 Rescheduled advances, which have been overdue for more than three months
EEEKERE under the revised repayment terms, are included in “Advances overdue for more
?Kﬁ‘ilzgf” & than three months”.
HE-E 6 kP4
?“ B 4H B A
EmAEE 3 EA -
REFELE "l
i 3 EH 2 &5
i o
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4. Financial risk management (continued)

4.1 Credit risk (continued)

(B) Gross advances and other accounts (continued)

(f) Concentration of advances to customers

(i) Sectoral analysis of gross advances to customers

Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

PR AR
UTENERE The following analysis of the gross advances to customers by industry sector is
EHREE AT based on the categories with reference to the completion instructions for the
S PES T E HKMA return of loans and advances.
TEFETIS
A B & RO
BREER
HRAVERE
INIE R
2015
AR
%ﬂ!ﬁ&ﬁ% {E{“J'J%SF@Z HEHEZ
BEZE HENE BARRE BB A
BEE B % covered BORE Individually ~ Collectively
Gross by collateral Classified d d
advances to or other or WEA impairment impairment
customers security impaired Overdue allowances allowances
BEEET BEEET BNEET BEEET BEEET
HK$’'m HK$’'m HK$’'m HK$’'m HK$’'m
TEE A 850 Loans for use in Hong Kong
TREeRRE Industrial, commercial and
financial
- YRR - Property development 65,148 26.15% 1 1 - 224
- VEERE - Property investment 57,101 88.21% 4 93 - 205
- R - Financial concerns 11,507 3.56% - 1 - 64
- SR - Stockbrokers 1,743 81.56% - - - 6
- A R e - Wholesale and retail trade 28,633 53.04% 62 268 24 109
- Bl - Manufacturing 21,798 26.70% 24 32 7 83
- A R - Transport and transport
equipment 45,616 33.07% 1,478 4 360 159
- RS - Recreational activities 393 18.84% - - . 1
- EERE - Information technology 13,064 0.72% - 1 - 42
- Hith - Others 55,817 42.91% 16 123 7 186
{EA Individuals
- EEEAHEST - Loans for the purchase of
B~ FLA RS flats in Home Ownership
R Scheme, Private Sector
| o Participation Scheme
HE ST
;Eﬂtﬁ? 8 and Tenants Purchase
™ Scheme 8,523 99.94% 16 180 - 5
- BEEHAM R - Loans for purchase of
S other residential
properties 209,777 99.92% 67 1,728 1 99
- [ERRERK - Credit card advances 13,834 - 39 487 - 101
- Hith - Others 38,428 72.65% 36 440 7 67
AEA S Sk asn Total loans for use in Hong
Kong 571,382 65.72% 1,743 3,358 406 1,351
R Trade finance 79,108 12.93% 195 255 103 280
TEEBLIYMERZ &K Loans for use outside Hong
Kong 239,648 15.71% 158 161 55 814
EAS= v Gross advances to customers 890,138 47.56% 2,096 3,774 564 2,445
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4.1 Credit risk (continued)

Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

4. Financial risk management (continued)

(B) Gross advances and other accounts (continued)

(f) Concentration of advances to customers (continued)

(i) Sectoral analysis of gross advances to customers (continued)

2014
FEAT L
HA R BRI HHEFHEZ
EZHELE FEE I TG TRAEE RS
e e % covered BORUE Individually ~ Collectively
Gross by collateral Classified d d
advances to or other or HIHA impairment impairment
customers security impaired Overdue allowances allowances
BEEET AEETT  BEEET BEET BEET
HK$'m HK$'m HK$'m HK$'m HK$'m
TEE B &R Loans for use in Hong Kong
TRESRRE Industrial, commercial and
financial
- VBt - Property development 48,044 31.88% 1 3 - 158
- WEEEE - Property investment 74,110 87.92% 26 413 2 372
- GRE - Financial concerns 4,758 22.51% - 1 31
- PR - Stockbrokers 2,051 64.01% - - - 9
- MEE R EEE - Wholesale and retail trade 38,014 47.71% 149 592 54 187
- Bt - Manufacturing 24,097 26.69% 57 145 31 100
- 3 Ry A - Transport and transport
equipment 40,999 33.37% 735 15 13 192
- RHDEE) - Recreational activities 454 11.49% - - - 1
- FEREY - Information technology 13,334 1.02% 2 5 1 41
- Hfthr - Others 62,280 40.54% 26 98 16 252
fEA Individuals
- EEESEHEST - Loans for the purchase of
=~ LA MRS flats in Home Ownership
R B lEcrrmfer.ne,‘(.PrivgtT1 Sector
s . articipation Scheme
E%I%Mﬁzg and Te?]ants Purchase
™ Scheme 9,363 99.92% 25 229 - 6
- SR - Loans for purchase of
5 other residential
properties 203,744 99.92% 7 2,036 1 104
- [SHFRER - Credit card advances 13,021 - 37 534 - 93
- HAth - Others 41,044 66.71% 43 405 7 66
TEE B S Total loans for use in Hong
Kong 575,313 67.24% 1,172 4,486 125 1,612
= Trade finance 86,316 13.88% 353 376 181 334
ALY NI Z 85K Loans for use outside Hong
Kong 299,272 24.96% 1,483 1,623 790 1,574
e | Gross advances to customers 960,901 49.28% 3,008 6,485 1,096 3,520
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4.1 Credit risk (continued)

4. Financial risk management (continued)

(B) Gross advances and other accounts (continued)

Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

(f) Concentration of advances to customers (continued)

(i) Sectoral analysis of gross advances to customers (continued)

The amounts of new impairment allowances charged to the income statement,
and classified or impaired loans written off during the year are shown below:

2015 2014
SR E S E
g RS Wi BEERK
FRE#EH Classified or TE HE Classified or
New impaired New impaired
impairment loans impairment loans
allowances written off allowances written off
BWEET EREEET BWEETT AEEETT
HK$’'m HK$’'m HK$'m HK$'m
Loans for use in Hong Kong
Industrial, commercial and financial
- Property development 45 - - -
- Property investment - 1 5 6
- Financial concerns 21 - - -
- Stockbrokers 1 - - -
- Wholesale and retail trade 24 3 55 21
- Manufacturing 13 1 17 10
- Transport and transport equipment 361 - 2 -
- Recreational activities - - - -
- Information technology 3 - 6 -
- Others 15 3 77 5
Individuals
- Loans for the purchase of flats in
Home Ownership Scheme,
Private Sector Participation
Scheme and Tenants Purchase
Scheme - - - -
- Loans for purchase of other
residential properties - - 1 -
- Credit card advances 222 214 207 199
- Others 173 166 160 145
Total loans for use in Hong Kong 878 388 530 386
Trade finance 169 159 111 57
Loans for use outside Hong Kong 185 203 1,003 371
Gross advances to customers 1,232 750 1,644 814
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MK (&) Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
4. SRREEE (8]) 4. Financial risk management (continued)

41 FERRE (8 4.1 Credit risk (continued)
(B) 4BE KR HANIETR (B) Gross advances and other accounts (continued)
(&)
) ZEEEXRETE (f) Concentration of advances to customers (continued)
€:-))
(i) 2 Hf 74 1 4k o5 (i) Geographical analysis of gross advances to customers
BZEFPEK
THIRE & P The following geographical analysis of advances to customers is based on the
R locations of the counterparties, after taking into account the transfer of risk. For
15 43 A7 = AR 98 an advance to customer guaranteed by a party situated in a country different
5 F 2P from the customer, the risk will be transferred to the country of the guarantor.
TR LR R
JE B RS R 2 -
HEREPERZ
¥ Or A FTAE
B 2 = B AT 3
AIE - BB
R E R A
ZPEM, -
EEERGEE Gross advances to customers
2015 2014
BEEET BEEET
HK$’'m HK$'m
& Hong Kong 727,308 711,707
o g7 AT HE Mainland of China 118,546 200,208
HAit, Others 44,284 48,986
890,138 960,901
REEERE Collectively assessed impairment
EVF4H SR allowances in respect of the gross
i Z B £ advances to customers
%
& Hong Kong 1,911 2,151
oA B Y HE Mainland of China 373 1,142
HAh Others 161 227
2,445 3,520
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MK (&) Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
4. SRREEE (8]) 4. Financial risk management (continued)

41 FERE (&) 4.1 Credit risk (continued)
(B) BERK R HAFRIH (B) Gross advances and other accounts (continued)
(&
) EEERETE (f) Concentration of advances to customers (continued)
(&)
(i) Fih I oy (ii) Geographical analysis of gross advances to customers (continued)
T2 %

HeE (D)

HHAEE Overdue advances
2015 2014
BEEET BEEETT
HK$’'m HK$'m
T Hong Kong 3,289 4,459
o [e7] AT Mainland of China 400 1,945
HAthr Others 85 81
3,774 6,485
oA R S SR E Individually assessed impairment
E Rt E 2 allowances in respect of the overdue
BB advances
T Hong Kong 126 227
o g A Mainland of China 78 642
HAr Others - 1
204 870
oA R S SR E Collectively assessed impairment
HETMEZ allowances in respect of the overdue
BB advances
Tk Hong Kong 84 108
o B AT 1P, Mainland of China 5 12
HAM Others 1 1
90 121
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MK (&) Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
4. SRREEE (8]) 4. Financial risk management (continued)

41 FERE (&) 4.1 Credit risk (continued)
(B) BERK R HAFRIH (B) Gross advances and other accounts (continued)
(&
) EEERETE (f) Concentration of advances to customers (continued)
(&)
(i) 2 b 2 & 35 45 (i) Geographical analysis of gross advances to customers (continued)
Bz®EPEK

HgEe (g

= EEER Classified or impaired advances
EEK
2015 2014
BEEET BEEEIT
HK$’'m HK$'m
Tk Hong Kong 1,699 1,523
R Y HE Mainland of China 393 1,328
HAthr Others 4 157
2,096 3,008
55 B 2 Individually assessed impairment
A E R AE allowances in respect of the
B RIEP A Z classified or impaired advances
BAEREE
i Hong Kong 407 260
o [B7] AT Mainland of China 157 771
HAth Others - 65
564 1,096
A E S K Collectively assessed impairment
BAEERE allowances in respect of the
HETEZ classified or impaired advances
PR
Ffk Hong Kong 45 48
o B AT+, Mainland of China 3 5
438 53

125



@ ¥ ) 4L £5 (5 m) A B AT

BANK OF CHINA (HONG KONG) LIMITED

MK (&) Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
4. SRREEE (8]) 4. Financial risk management (continued)

41 FERE (&) 4.1 Credit risk (continued)
(C) WEEE (C) Repossessed assets
R AR During the year, the Group obtained assets by taking possession of collateral held as
S S AT (e U [ security. The nature and carrying value of these assets held as at 31 December are
B 7E FE T AR A6 7 summarised as follows:

12 4 31 HEANA
7E » HIEE R R {E

AT -
2015 2014
AEEET BWEHET
HK$’'m HK$'m
T Y Industrial properties - 3
FEYE Residential properties 44 1
44 14
KEH 2015 F 12 The estimated market value of repossessed assets held by the Group as at 31
H 31 HEAIE December 2015 amounted to HK$55 million (2014: HK$28 million). The repossessed
BE 2 HE BB assets comprise properties in respect of which the Group has acquired access or
0.55 {EJc (2014 control (e.g. through court proceedings or voluntary actions by the proprietors
oo 0.28 1 concerned) for release in full or in part of the obligations of the borrowers.
JL) o B EIEAEE
1 368 AT AT I
EE RS EUE S
(anim s AR T
B B AR
g7 HUE) T
B RN Y {5 75
T ¥EREr R -
CRVSEN- 30k 527 When the repossessed assets are not readily convertible into cash, the Group may
BE SRR R consider the following alternatives:
EBRRKEBENT
FIITREE
- AR EERR - adjusting the selling prices
- HEEHEE—OF - selling the loans together with the assets
HESK
- ZHHMEREA - arranging loan restructuring
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MK (&) Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
4. SRREEE (8]) 4. Financial risk management (continued)

41 R (&) 4.1 Credit risk (continued)
(D) TESRTT B E At b (D) Balances and placements with banks and other financial institutions
B R
TR BIEIRTT R HAM The following tables present an analysis of balances and placements with banks and
< R AR Y IR A B other financial institutions that are neither overdue nor impaired as at 31 December by
BB 2 &5 8 S 7RO rating agency designation.
12 7 31 HuaTehtite
Z BRI
2015
A3 LLF
Aaa Z A3 Lower TR st
Aaa to A3 than A3 Unrated Total
BEEET BEEHETT  BEEET A¥EET
HK$’'m HK$’'m HK$’m HK$’'m
PR T Central banks 110,225 - - 110,225
HRAT R HAtr Rl i Banks and other
financial
institutions 155,858 17,490 3,364 176,712
266,083 17,490 3,364 286,937
2014
A3 DI
Aaa & A3 Lower AR 4
Aaa to A3 than A3 Unrated Total
BEHET BEHET BEEHET AWEET
HK$'m HK$'m HK$'m HK$'m
th LR T Central banks 104,317 - - 104,317
HRAT R HoAth < Rl Banks and other
financial
institutions 213,958 73,982 33,682 321,622
318,275 73,982 33,682 425,939
#2015 45 12 H 31 As at 31 December 2015, there were no overdue or impaired balances and
H » 85 EHA e E > placements with banks and other financial institutions (2014: Nil).
PRAT Fe FoAth <5 Rl 1%
GEBR AR (2014 4
) -

127



@

¥ &) 4L £5 (5 %) HmA T

BANK OF CHINA (HONG KONG) LIMITED

MR (&)
4. SREREE (8)

4.1 8RR (8

(E) EHES REKE

TERE TR
W Z (%58
SHHRIAIE - (RIS TAT

75 S F K

4.1 Credit risk (continued)

SHEIEILT > Al iz sk

YN:EREYE =
n it e S Available-for-sale
securities
FrA R HZ S Held-to-maturity
securities
B EER Loans and receivables
AN FEE Financial assets at fair
2 eRiEE value through profit
or loss
n it e S Available-for-sale
securities
FrAZFWHZ S Held-to-maturity
securities
B EER Loans and receivables
INEESE(LE AJEZE  Financial assets at fair
2 eRiEE value through profit

or loss

Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

4. Financial risk management (continued)

(E) Debt securities and certificates of deposit

The following tables present an analysis of the carrying value of debt securities and
certificates of deposit by issue rating. In the absence of such issue ratings, the ratings
designated for the issuers are reported.

2015

A3 BT
Aa1l £ Aa3 A1 & A3 Lower §ESPLR, =t
Aaa Aa1l to Aa3 A1 to A3 than A3 Unrated Total
ERaET BYoEL BFEER EYasEr BFEET  B¥EER
HK$’'m HK$’'m HK$’'m HK$’'m HK$’'m HK$’'m
84,623 87,042 202,122 23,245 19,463 416,495
29,958 26,117 7,602 906 - 64,583
; - 3,166 - - 3,166
8,270 15,122 4,180 1,111 1,897 30,580
122,851 128,281 217,070 25,262 21,360 514,824

2014

A3 DA
Aal % Aa3 A1 & A3 Lower TR 45t
Aaa Aa1 to Aa3 A1 to A3 than A3 Unrated Total
AHEETT AlEET AEET  AREET BYEET B¥EET
HK$'m HK$'m HK$'m HK$'m HK$'m HK$'m
64,186 114,709 118,872 17,492 22,077 337,336
27,263 26,730 6,221 274 - 60,488
- - 2,856 - 2,012 4,868
13,588 13,544 5,591 1,214 1,166 35,103
105,037 154,983 133,540 18,980 25,255 437,795
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4.1 Credit risk (continued)

4. Financial risk management (continued)

Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

(E) EHES RFKE
(8

(E) Debt securities and certificates of deposit (continued)

TR IR A R The following tables present an analysis of debt securities and certificates of deposit
8 2 B 5 KA neither overdue nor impaired as at 31 December by issue rating. In the absence of
FEER 12 H 31 H such issue ratings, the ratings designated for the issuers are reported.
TR 2

Mt o FEESETTEPER
HIEILT - Al

AT AN BV S SR H
o
2015
A3 T
Aal £ Aa3 A1 F A3 Lower TSR &mst
Aaa Aa1 to Aa3 A1 to A3 than A3 Unrated Total
ERaErT BYoEL BFaERx EYasEr BFeET  B¥EER
HK$’m HK$’'m HK$’m HK$’'m HK$’m HK$’m
At E RS Available-for-sale
securities 84,623 87,042 202,122 23,245 19,463 416,495
FEEIHHE S Held-to-maturity
securities 29,955 26,117 7,602 906 - 64,580
R FEGER Loans and receivables - - 3,166 - - 3,166
NI Eit AfBzs  Financial assets at fair
A E value through profit
or loss 8,270 15,122 4,180 1,111 1,897 30,580
122,848 128,281 217,070 25,262 21,360 514,821
2014
A3 IR
Aal £ Aa3 A1l £ A3 Lower fESPAR 4Est
Aaa Aa1 to Aa3 A1to A3 than A3 Unrated Total
AEETT AlEET AFEET B¥aERx B¥asET BEEET
HK$'m HK$'m HK$'m HK$'m HK$'m HK$'m
it E RS Available-for-sale
securities 64,186 114,709 118,872 17,492 22,077 337,336
HEEFHHES Held-to-maturity
securities 27,237 26,730 6,220 274 - 60,461
R FEGR Loans and receivables - - 2,856 - 2,012 4,868
N ES(EET ASEZE  Financial assets at fair
2 RiEE value through profit
or loss 13,588 13,544 5,591 1,214 1,166 35,103
105,011 154,983 133,539 18,980 25,255 437,768
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4. SRREEE (8]) 4. Financial risk management (continued)

4.1 8RR (8
(E) EBE S RAAKE

(8

TR Ry A SR %
TRV - FE
i S 1T RV ARV 15 L
T o AUEHEE T ARY

4.1 Credit risk (continued)

(E) Debt securities and certificates of deposit (continued)

The following tables present an analysis of impaired debt securities by issue rating. In
the absence of such issue ratings, the ratings designated for the issuers are reported.

BPR L -
2015
FRIEME L o
Carrying values REHRUE 2
Of which
A3 LIF accumulated
Aal & Aa3 A1 & A3 Lower HERPAR st impairment
Aaa Aa1 to Aa3 A1to A3 than A3 Unrated Total allowances
il il B il il il il
HET HET HET HET HET HET HET
HK$’'m HK$’'m HK$’'m HK$’'m HK$’'m HK$’'m HK$’'m
FAZEFIWH®%%  Held-to-maturity
securities 3 - - - - 3 -
Hop: gEpE Of which
St ffs accumulated
impairment
allowances - - - - - -
2014
IRTE Hr
Carrying values FET B ER
\ Of which
A3 DR N . accumulated
Aal & Aa3 A1 % A3 Lower TR HaET impairment
Aaa Aa1 to Aa3 A1to A3 than A3 Unrated Total allowances
il s s il s s s
HETT HETT HETT HETT HETT HETT HETT
HK$'m HK$'m HK$'m HK$'m HK$'m HK$'m HK$'m
FAEZERIWH®ES  Held-to-maturity
securities 26 - 1 - - 27 1
Horr: BETR(E Of which
St fth accumulated
impairment
allowances 1 - - - - 1
7 20154E12 H 31 As at 31 December 2015, there were no impaired certificates of deposit and no overdue
H - HEBEZF debt securities and certificates of deposit (2014: Nil).
eSS H @MY
B 77 R ATk
(2014 4 : %) -
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

4. Financial risk management (continued)

4.2 TEE 4.2 Market risk

T 35 L 2 2 15 IR < il 45
EE (PR~ FIR - BSH
&~ PEL MRS ) B
HRAISINE ~ IR - BESERIRS
anfF B B R LT T AR
AR - K8
(B o HI 2 o Y T 45 L B O
4 0 BB b SR Y P
fiy - MG R EEAEE -
AR A R R e R
TIE R R - (K5
¢ A L B ] T A
RAEELT-BL - ARUE R A
B2 T AT RE A AR AT T
Job: - RAE T SR IS IR
B o

A SR N P
EalRAIEH TSR %
FENEBZRY SEE
HABMBERM H
fir - & FH > FEHE -
JEUbe B EL R & T SR
b E A £ WS
[EEH A RETHEERH
TP JIT B S AR e
PR A T 5 L IR A
B E L BURNIFR BT
I MO BB AT (E AT
55 b P A T 32K

AR T 5 i P R
[ > EE PR A B AIE TJ
TR - ASEEIHIET — 2y
S b i PSR > AR PR
A T A AT T 5
JE\p B - [l > SR E SR
Joe\ iz (L 52 JBE 1 A PR A > 2
PREE & I JES A SR 5 7 oK
TR ZRET) B E
TOETE A - FERF S SR EIEL
SHUERTATIE T - ST
EEHE  EHEATE T IRE
AEFRET > W LAHIET BARAYEL
SRR WARIEE L
A B E TS B R AY 3
F - B E s A IR
P 2 I - e H HY
T 5 o b K R R AT 5
DL SR TR E AL
EREEMRE -

Market risk refers to the risk of loss arising from movements in the value of foreign
exchange, interest rate, equity and commodity positions held by the Group due to the
volatility of financial market price (foreign exchange rate, interest rate, equity price,
commodity price). The Group adopts a moderate market risk appetite to achieve a balance
between risk and return. The Group’s objective in managing market risk is to secure
healthy growth of the treasury business, by effective management of potential market risk
in the Group’s business, according to the Group’s overall risk appetite and strategy of
treasury business on the basis of a well-established risk management regime and related
management measures.

In accordance with the Group’s corporate governance principles in respect of risk
management, the Board and RC, senior management and functional departments/units
perform their duties and responsibilities to manage the Group’s market risk. The RMD is
mainly responsible for managing market risk, assisting senior management to perform their
day-to-day duties, independently monitoring the market risk profile and compliance of
management policies and limits of the Group and BOCHK, and ensuring that the
aggregate and individual market risks are within acceptable levels.

The Group’s market risk management covers BOCHK and its subsidiaries. The Group
establishes consistent market risk management policies to regulate BOCHK’s and
subsidiaries’ market risk management; meanwhile, the Group sets up the Group VAR and
stress test limits, which are allocated and monitored across the Group, according to the
subsidiaries’ business requirements and risk tolerance levels. In line with the requirements
set in the Group policy, the management of subsidiaries may, subject to prior consent by
BOCHK, formulate the detailed policies and procedures and are responsible for managing
their daily market risk. The subsidiaries set up independent risk monitoring teams to
monitor daily market risk and limit compliance, and submit management information and
reports to BOCHK on a regular basis.

131



@ ¥ ) 4L £5 (5 m) A B AT

BANK OF CHINA (HONG KONG) LIMITED

MK (&) Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
4. SRREEE (8]) 4. Financial risk management (continued)

4.2 mEEE (&) 4.2 Market risk (continued)

REBE A T RS The Group sets up market risk indicators and limits to identify, measure, monitor and
18R FREE » A ERAT ~ 51 control market risk. Major risk indicators and limits include but are not limited to VAR,
B~ BEHI AT 22 ) T 35 L Stop Loss, Open Position, Stress Testing and Sensitivity Analysis (Basis Point Value,
[ - F SRR SIS IR EE Greeks), etc. To meet management requirements, major risk indicators and limits are
BLEERPE RS E ~ 1k classified into four levels, and are approved by the RC, MC, CRO and the DCE in charge
FE%E ~ Wr%E ~ BRI of the treasury business or the head of the respective business unit respectively. Treasury
DR SRR S (L EE(E business units of BOCHK and subsidiaries (as for Group Limit) are required to conduct
B~ HitE RS ) & - F their business within approved market risk indicators and limits.

SR e AR R IR A

HF oy K U

o oHlHREZERE
EHZ S R
FEAEEEBIRIHEE
BT EA TEALA
REBEEFRB RN
BBt (LR B IR A
IME ) DHERIZEITS
JeE i 5 A5 T PR 5 s ]
FAESER -

(A) B (A) VAR
752 B B B The Group uses the VAR to measure and report general market risks to the RC and
FE— AT s o senior management on a periodic basis. The Group adopts a uniformed VAR
EHE R T &SR calculation model, using a historical simulation approach and two years of historical
EEEE A\ i . market data, to calculate the VAR of the Group and subsidiaries over a one-day
7S5 B B FE 45— 1Y holding period with a 99% confidence level, and sets up the VAR limit of the Group
b Est A EA and subsidiaries.

JE SEAELE A DU 252
G Y
1 5THE99% E (K
P RARFFAEBIAN
AP e e R 5 I g
HEE R E - WEE
A EREI I T
o e {EL PR =
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MK (&) Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
4. SRREEE (8]) 4. Financial risk management (continued)

4.2 RS (&) 4.2 Market risk (continued)
(A) Ef&E (8) (A) VAR (continued)
T F AN B — The following table sets out the VAR for all general market risk exposure' of the
A% T 55 B FE A Y Group.
Jag e " -
24 24 24
4y |M12H31H HEBE EEHE  EEEE
At Minimum for Maximum for Average for
Year |31 December the year the year the year
BEEET  OB¥EET  B¥EERT BNEET
HK$'m HK$'m HK$'m HK$'m
EHimGER 2 ElE{E VAR for all market risk 2015 17.8 17.8 38.4 25.4
2014 18.0 16.2 35.1 23.9
bR\ > (B VAR for foreign exchange risk 2015 12.9 8.8 20.3 13.2
2014 11.2 9.6 19.5 13.5
Fl R e (L VAR for interest rate risk 2015 14.7 12.8 37.6 20.7
2014 18.1 16.4 39.5 24.2
10 21 Je [ J g (L VAR for equity risk 2015 0.0 0.0 0.4 0.2
2014 0.1 0.1 0.7 0.3
P o e 2 VAR for commodity risk 2015 0.0 0.0 0.2 0.0
2014 0.1 0.0 1.3 0.2
ik Note:
1A B A/ DR 4 8 1 i 1. Structural FX positions have been excluded.
HYER{E -

133



@ ¥ ) 4L £5 (5 m) A B AT

BANK OF CHINA (HONG KONG) LIMITED

MK (&) Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
4. SRREEE (8]) 4. Financial risk management (continued)

4.2 HIEEE (&) 4.2 Market risk (continued)
(A) ExE (&) (A) VAR (continued)

ARG EEEE Although a valuable guide to market risk, VAR should always be viewed in the context

i35 R b 0y — T & of its limitations. For example:

T HUEER

FRME - Bl -

- BB RS - the use of historical market data as a proxy for estimating future events may not
B (et R AR E e encompass all potential events, particularly those which are extreme in nature;
FAEE KA |l

RELHERAYIEN >
F IR — L Ui 55

DT

- T REAEHETE - the use of a one-day holding period assumes that all positions can be liquidated or
AR T A B hedged in one day. This may not fully reflect the market risk arising at times of
g E DAE—H severe illiquidity, when a one-day holding period may be insufficient to liquidate or
NEBEE S - 18 hedge all positions fully;

TH {5 R 0 RE 52
E Aty
b LEAETTSRR
HEFEHR (KT - FRE
REAEVRFF A
PN 3R B A
R

- IRBEEE > %A - the use of a 99% confidence level, by definition, does not take into account
99% & = /K F losses that might occur beyond this level of confidence; and
- HIRAFREAE
B (E K BLSH
wE BN
s Dk

- E B E = DL s - VAR is calculated on the basis of exposures outstanding at the close of business
H ] &5 o B 1y B and therefore does not necessarily reflect intra-day exposures.
ARRT R
[ AR — 8 2
3 5 I B Y B JEL

b -
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MR (&)
4. SREREE (8)

Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

4. Financial risk management (continued)

4.2 R (8) 4.2 Market risk (continued)

(A) EEzfE (8D

(A)

VAR (continued)

KEETT ST EE The Group recognises these limitations by formulating stress test indicators and limits
b EEENER to assess and manage the market risk uncovered by VAR. The stress testing

14 o AL o fHilE TR
T30 R i A R PR
DA 7 2 B
BHREERBN TS
JE\Bg: o T R T
AL 1 2 R [E R
B R 25 4 2 1 R i
2 FE T 7 09 SR M
R DA
BRI - A
1987 HE & ~ 1994 (%
FHi i - 1997
T L5 - 2001
FEEHIM B
20084 Rl -

HRYE OR R AE T 32
K> AR AT
W PR (BIA0ERER R
JEE R ER) 15 Ry
ETR - I A&
BRI —
HWHEERER
$AIC - A E S
MEELY (BIAISh
) B NI S E
B4 {E P E AR HY S B
ez

programme of the market risk includes sensitivity testing on changes in risk factors
with various degrees of severity, as well as scenario analysis on historical events
including the 1987 Equity Market Crash, 1994 Bond Market Crash, 1997 Asian
Financial Crisis, 2001 9-11 event and 2008 Financial Tsunami, etc.

(B) SRR (B) Currency risk
REENEERA The Group’s assets and liabilities are denominated in major currencies, particularly
BEEPEET BT the HK dollar, the US dollar and Renminbi. To ensure the currency risk exposure of
MARBETIEE the Group is kept to an acceptable level, risk limits (e.g. Position and VAR limit) are
W o Rt O N PEE JEL used to serve as a monitoring tool. Moreover, the Group seeks to minimise the gap

between assets and liabilities in the same currency. Foreign exchange contracts (e.g.
FX swaps) are usually used to manage FX risk associated with foreign
currency-denominated assets and liabilities.
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4.2 Market risk (continued)

(B) Currency risk (continued)

Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

4. Financial risk management (continued)

The following is a summary of the Group’s major foreign currency exposures arising

from trading, non-trading and structural positions and is prepared with reference to the

completion instructions for the HKMA return of foreign currency position. The net

options position is calculated based on the basis of delta-weighted positions of all
foreign exchange options contracts.

E )
2015
ANEETEE
Equivalent in million of HK$
Hisheg  shsaEER
EyIn HE BT g Other Total
US Japanese B8 Australian Pound AR% foreign foreign
Dollars Yen Euro Dollars Sterling Renminbi currencies currencies
HEEE Spot assets 626,227 94,178 25,737 22,882 7,819 443,462 10,131 1,230,436
HISE Spot liabilities (503,481)  (13,853) (23,822) (21,357) (14,534) (428,292)  (16,722) (1,022,061)
HHEIE A Forward purchases 1,238,920 53,057 90,200 30,789 43,772 805,959 41,144 2,303,841
EHIE Forward sales (1,349,897) (133,356) (92,281) (32,412) (36,962) (820,831)  (34,042) (2,499,781)
PR SR Net options position 1,518 (1) 2 26 (13)  (1,425) 1 108
£/ (5) %$% Netlong/(short)
position 13,287 25  (164) (72) 82  (1,127) 512 12,543
SEREME B FEE Net structural position 293 - - - - 9,355 - 9,648
2014
AEEETEE
Equivalent in million of HK$
HAthoMgE  SMESAEEH
ESW HIE Wt U Other Total
US Japanese EXZE Australian  Pound ANR#E foreign foreign
Dollars Yen Euro Dollars Sterling Renminbi currencies currencies
RE&EE Spot assets 507,965 1,466 18,063 22,392 9,688 604,486 16,360 1,180,420
HEE Spot liabilities (422,806)  (5,518) (15,050) (22,256) (11,715) (508,972)  (16,883) (1,003,200)
BEHAE A Forward purchases 728,458 67,974 57,895 41,806 32,445 329,654 38,306 1,296,538
EHE Forward sales (805,959)  (63,934) (60,757) (41,870) (30,334) (422,231)  (37,897) (1,462,982)
SISy e o e Net options position 2,613 (1) (4,463) 12 (4)  (2,625) (31)  (4,499)
=/ (%) #5958  Net long/(short)
position 10,271 (13) (4,312) 84 80 312 (145) 6,277
sEREM B A Net structural position 277 - - - - 9,308 - 9,585
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Mg MEE (&) Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
4. SRERBER (&)

4.2 TEERE (8)
(C) Fi=REf

4. Financial risk management (continued)

4.2 Market risk (continued)

(C) Interest rate risk

2 b 2 5 R A
FIR HEA R
FE‘”T%”%%?*E

SR ] AE H R

TTREBR IR T KE
Eﬁ%%ﬁ‘ﬁ% BN S
T g ) 3 o B K 9
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B ASEREE
SRR B Ry ¢

- FIZREETER: &
FE B 21 Y 215
H e E BT {E A& 5
PR AT RESERC - #E
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- FREAERE R A
5158 Y i (£
BEAE SHE
H WS g A B R
BN A T E AR
5] — ST fE A8 4
] LA [B] B9 8 1
(b

W g Rl &R JE
B - HrpUzs R ih
GIEPIT AR E
if 5 A S U A
jzﬁﬁé/"éﬂaﬁﬁi
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SN E (iR &=l
> B IR TRy

GUCE AR A E
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Interest rate risk means the risks to a bank’s earnings and economic value arising from
movements in interest rate and term structures of the bank’s asset and liability positions.
The Group’s interest rate risk exposures are mainly structural. The major types of
interest rate risk from structural positions are:

- Repricing risk: mismatches in the maturity or repricing periods of assets and liabilities
that may affect net interest income;

- Basis risk: different pricing basis for different transactions resulting that the yield on
assets and cost of liabilities may change by different amounts within the same
repricing period;

- Yield curve risk: non-parallel shifts in the yield curve that may have an adverse impact
on net interest income or economic value; and

- Option risk: exercise of the options embedded in assets, liabilities or off-balance sheet
items that can cause a change in the cash flows of assets and liabilities.
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MR (&) Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
4. &RIEEEE (&) 4. Financial risk management (continued)

4.2 HEEE (&) 4.2 Market risk (continued)
(C) FIxEEME (&) (C) Interest rate risk (continued)

7R [ i A 4 The Group’s risk management framework applies also to interest rate risk management.
AR ES AT IES The ALCO exercises its oversight of interest rate risk in accordance with the “BOCHK
Jl g i o R 9B JE Group Banking Book Interest Rate Risk Management Policy” approved by RC. RMD
ZE g AN (Interest Rate and Liquidity Risk Management) is responsible for interest rate risk
(PR EEEE R management. With the cooperation of the Asset and Liability Management Division of
17 B 1) 28 Je e B Financial Management Department and Investment Management, RMD assists the
BER)  BEAEE ALCO to perform day-to-day interest rate risk management. Its roles include, but are not
HEZEEOHBEBT limited to, the formulation of management policies, selection of methodologies, setting of
A T A [ o S o risk indicators and limits, assessment of target balance sheet, monitoring of the
E - EfaEE compliance with policies and limits, and submission of interest rate risk management
o O(FRFORENE reports to the senior management and RC, etc.

EREEH) £H
MEEREH - £
M E A 2 E
EEEHENRE
EHEST 0 W
BhEEAAEHE
REB R HE AR
AR Ja\ b B AR
BFEEARPER
EHBOR > BEE
BITE > s
FEEEAIIREE > P fh
HiREE &P
o B FIRERE
T BUOR PR E
B AEREE
B DU b 2
B RSN AR
EHEES
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Mg MEE (&) Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
4. SRERBER (&)

4. Financial risk management (continued)

42 HBEE (&) 4.2 Market risk (continued)
(C) FIREME (&) (C) Interest rate risk (continued)
R EE[EH 5% E F R S, The Group sets out interest rate risk indicators and limits to identify, measure, monitor

b P K PRAE -
FER - BT E - B
I #%2 dl  R JE
b o T p R A
AR ZE 5 E AR
REETEERC - F
TR EREE - A
o HE B E
(PVBP) - HARE(ES
K F))(Greeks) 7 F41
BEUREILLER (NI
LR EE T B R
(EV)EF - T2 i
FEAE A PRAEE 53 A
BG4 - #%F E g
&5y i B B S wA
R R\ A - B
AEEHZEAE -
JE 7S = R
AR 2 R i Yy £
155 B M EAEF]
2 o8 iy 5 A PR A
N B 8 AH B
o REEHE LR
ﬁﬂF%’rEEﬁ'ﬂZ%ﬁ%
A - MHEEALA
SERT R B ET AL 72
Fr o BfEEEAL
ERFIRRER - A6
B IRITH R R A
i i e R 5 2
4y - AN LAY
JEE S BT SE T R
1T IR R\ by 22 i BB
KELE > EH R
ZEEHE -

and control interest rate risk. The indicators and limits include, but are not limited to,
repricing gap limits, basis risk, duration, price value of a basis point (“PVBP”), Greeks,
net interest income sensitivity ratio (“NII”), economic value sensitivity ratio (‘EV”), etc.
The indicators and limits are classified into different levels, which are approved by the
CFO and CRO, ALCO, RC accordingly. Risk-taking business units are required to
conduct their business within the boundary of the interest rate risk limits. Before
launching a new product or business in the banking book, the relevant departments are
required to go through a risk assessment process, which includes the assessment of
underlying interest rate risk and consideration of the adequacy of current risk monitoring
mechanism. Any material impact on interest rate risk noted during the risk assessment
process will be submitted to RC for approval.
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Mg MEE (&) Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
4. SRERBER (&)

4. Financial risk management (continued)

4.2 THEEER (8)
(C) FiZER (&)

4.2 Market risk (continued)

(C) Interest rate risk (continued)
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NIl and EV assess the impact of interest rate movement on the Group’s net interest
income and capital base. They are the Group’s key interest rate risk indicators. The
former assesses the impact of interest rate movement on net interest income as a
percentage to the projected net interest income for the year. The latter assesses the
impact of interest rate movement on economic value (i.e. the net present value of cash
flows of assets, liabilities and off-balance sheet items discounted using market interest
rate) as a percentage to the latest capital base. Limits are set by the RC on these two
indicators to monitor and control the Group’s banking book interest rate risk.

The Group uses scenario analyses and stress tests to assess the banking book interest
rate risk that the Group would face under adverse circumstances. Scenario analyses
and stress tests are also used to assess the impact on net interest income and
economic value arising from the optionality of savings deposits, the prepayment of
mortgage loans and the prepayment of debt securities with embedded options.
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MR (&) Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
4. &RIEEEE (&) 4. Financial risk management (continued)

4.2 WiEERE (&) 4.2 Market risk (continued)
(C) FIEERE (&) (C) Interest rate risk (continued)

AEE T E A The Group is principally exposed to HK Dollar, US Dollar and Renminbi in terms of
TG FETT R A RIER] interest rate risk. As at 31 December 2015, if HK Dollar, US Dollar and Renminbi market
g - = 2015 interest rates had a 100 basis point parallel upward shift of the yield curve in relevant
EJQ H_31 e % currency with other variables held constant, the sensitivities on net interest income over
AT ‘\%E&)\Evﬁf a twelve-month period and on reserves for the Group would have been as follows:

U 25 2 4 P AT

% 100 {EELES

HoAh PRI 2R A B S L

T HERERAR 12
EDEREREZRIISTI@N

e St B 0 UK R
W
12 B 31 KRR 12{EA
e IS NG} 2
Impact on net interest income 12 B 31 B EIRE
over the next twelve months Impact on reserves
at 31 December at 31 December
2015 2014 2015 2014
AEEET B EETT AEEET BEEET
HK$’'m HK$'m HK$’'m HK$'m
T HK Dollar 976 864 (325) (301)
FETT US Dollar (347) (211) (4,786) (4,154)
NG Renminbi (748) (820) (994) (1,253)
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4. SRERBER (&)

4. Financial risk management (continued)

4.2 THEEE (#)
(C) FiZmEkR (&)

4.2 Market risk (continued)

(C) Interest rate risk (continued)
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The overall negative impact on net interest income of the above currencies has
decreased when compared with 2014 and is mainly because of the narrowed short term
negative gaps in relevant currencies. Reserves would have been reduced because of
the expected reduction in valuation of available-for-sale securities due to a parallel shift
up of 100 basis points in the yield curve. The reduction of reserves is increased
compared with 2014 because the size of available-for-sale securities in capital market is
increased.

The sensitivities above are for illustration only and are based on several assumptions,
including, but not limited to, the change in the correlation between interest rates of
relevant currencies, parallel movement of interest rates, the absence of actions that
would be taken to mitigate the impact of interest rate risk, the effectiveness of hedge
accounting, all positions being assumed to run to maturity, behavioural assumptions of
products in which actual repricing date differs from contractual repricing date or
products without contractual maturity. The above exposures form only a part of the
Group’s overall interest rate risk exposures.
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4. Financial risk management (continued)

4.2 Market risk (continued)

(C) Interest rate risk (continued)
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The tables below summarise the Group’s on-balance sheet exposure to interest rate risk
as at 31 December. Included in the tables are the assets and liabilities at carrying
amounts, categorised by the earlier of contractual repricing date and maturity date.

2015
—F = FEtR
—EAN  =@F +-MF —EE& "ML Non-
Up to 1to 3 3 to 12 1to 5 Over interest st
1 month months months years 5 years bearing Total
EEEET BBEET BYWEHET BYOET BYOET B¥EERT BEEERT
HK$’m HK$’'m HK$’'m HK$’'m HK$’'m HK$’'m HK$’'m
Assets
Cash and balances with banks
and other financial institutions 195,733 - - - - 34,919 230,652
Placements with banks and
other financial institutions
maturing between one and
twelve months - 37,920 26,288 - - - 64,208
Financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss 1,371 6,979 8,618 10,543 3,249 - 30,760
Derivative financial instruments - - - - - 43,102 43,102
Hong Kong SAR Government
certificates of indebtedness - - - - - 101,950 101,950
Advances and other accounts 710,936 107,513 61,028 32,770 943 6,919 920,109
Investment in securities
- Available-for-sale securities 39,481 124,945 86,707 115,176 50,186 287 416,782
- Held-to-maturity securities 440 3,299 12,612 39,790 8,442 - 64,583
- Loans and receivables - 1,005 2,161 - - - 3,166
Interests in associates and a
joint venture - - - - - 376 376
Investment properties - - - - - 15,400 15,400
Properties, plant and equipment - - - - - 50,249 50,249
Other assets (including deferred
tax assets) 3,024 - - - - 24,222 27,246
Assets held for sale 168,400 44,587 49,217 25,704 528 12,037 300,473
Total assets 1,119,385 326,248 246,631 223,983 63,348 289,461 2,269,056
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4. Financial risk management (continued)

4.2 Market risk (continued)

(C) Interest rate risk (continued)

2015
—F =7 FEtR
—@AN  =EF +-EA  —EHEF HEENME  Non
Up to 1t0 3 3 to 12 1to 5 Over interest ast
1 month months months years 5 years bearing Total
EEEET BBEET BYWOHET BYOET BYOET BREErT BEEERT
HK$’m HK$’m HK$’'m HK$’'m HK$’'m HK$’m HK$’'m
Liabilities
Hong Kong SAR currency notes
in circulation - - - - - 101,950 101,950
Deposits and balances from
banks and other financial
institutions 160,049 27,936 2,343 - - 17,278 207,606
Financial liabilities at fair value
through profit or loss 2,583 4,446 1,968 1,479 466 - 10,942
Derivative financial instruments - - - - - 40,142 40,142
Deposits from customers 1,055,336 183,028 79,013 611 - 88,486 1,406,474
Debt securities and certificates
of deposit in issue 59 - 5,728 1,189 - - 6,976
Other accounts and provisions
(including current and
deferred tax liabilities) 12,397 - - - - 25,704 38,101
Subordinated liabilities - - - 19,422 - - 19,422
Liabilities associated with assets
held for sale 149,642 40,917 40,634 5,967 19 15,223 252,402
Total liabilities 1,380,066 256,327 129,686 28,668 485 288,783 2,084,015
Interest sensitivity gap (260,681) 69,921 116,945 195,315 62,863 678 185,041
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4. Financial risk management (continued)

4.2 Market risk (continued)

(C) Interest rate risk (continued)

Assets
Cash and balances with banks
and other financial institutions
Placements with banks and
other financial institutions
maturing between one and
twelve months
Financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss
Derivative financial instruments
Hong Kong SAR Government
certificates of indebtedness
Advances and other accounts
Investment in securities
- Available-for-sale securities
- Held-to-maturity securities
- Loans and receivables
Interests in associates and a
joint venture
Investment properties
Properties, plant and equipment
Other assets (including deferred
tax assets)

Total assets

2014

—& =% Tt

—fERN =MEA +=E@H —EHFE AFbE Non-
Up to 1t03 3 to 12 1to 5 Over interest 4t
1 month months months years 5 years bearing Total
AREETT BNEETT EWEEDT BEEEDT ENEEDT BNEET BWEET
HK$'m HK$'m HK$'m HK$'m HK$'m HK$'m HK$'m
376,142 - - - - 22,110 398,252
- 17,730 19,706 - - - 37,436
2,721 7,587 11,209 11,532 2,054 3 35,106
- - - - - 33,359 33,359
- - - - - 90,770 90,770
768,661 154,044 66,747 16,279 1,438 6,872 1,014,041
40,227 52,091 80,387 117,344 47,287 986 338,322
637 2,169 3,702 41,249 12,731 - 60,488
2,499 915 1,454 - - - 4,868
- - - - - 324 324
- - - - - 14,690 14,690
- - - - - 55,041 55,041
1,604 - - - - 17,632 19,236
1,192,491 234,536 183,205 186,404 63,510 241,787 2,101,933
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4. Financial risk management (continued)

4.2 Market risk (continued)

(C) Interest rate risk (continued)

Liabilities

Hong Kong SAR currency notes
in circulation

Deposits and balances from
banks and other financial
institutions

Financial liabilities at fair value
through profit or loss

Derivative financial instruments

Deposits from customers

Debt securities and certificates
of deposit in issue

Other accounts and provisions
(including current and
deferred tax liabilities)

Subordinated liabilities

Total liabilities

Interest sensitivity gap

2014

—& =% Tt

—fERN =MEA +=E@H —EHFE AFbE Non-
Up to 1t03 3 to 12 1to 5 Over interest 4as
1 month months months years 5 years bearing Total
AREETT BMEETT EWEEDT BEEEDT ENEEDT BN EET BEEET
HK$'m HK$'m HK$'m HK$'m HK$'m HK$'m HK$'m
- - - - - 90,770 90,770
201,704 6,277 2,705 - - 25,094 235,780
3,428 4,643 3,190 483 516 - 12,260
- - - - - 20,772 20,772
1,064,865 210,280 120,810 14,698 - 72,745 1,483,398
2,316 2,811 1,074 5,700 - - 11,901
19,757 2,685 4,055 194 - 30,640 57,331
- - - - 19,676 - 19,676
1,292,070 226,696 131,834 21,075 20,192 240,021 1,931,888
(99,579) 7,840 51,371 165,329 43,318 1,766 170,045
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M ERNE: (&) Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
4. &RIEEEE (&) 4. Financial risk management (continued)

4.3 REEsERE 4.3 Liquidity risk
RENE ek T Liquidity risk is the risk that banks fail to provide sufficient funds to grow assets or pay due
ERE R R Ay AN obligations, and need to bear an unacceptable loss. The Group maintains sound liquidity
JEETE E R e E (T2 risk appetite to provide stable, reliable and adequate sources of cash to meet liquidity
HHZTS » MR RERZ needs under normal circumstances or stressed scenarios; and to survive with net positive
RN € Ofi= E N cumulative cash flow in extreme scenarios, without requesting the HKMA to act as the
EEEER R EE lender of last resort.
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M ERNE: (&) Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
4. &RIEEEE (&) 4. Financial risk management (continued)

4.3 REESRERE (&) 4.3 Liquidity risk (continued)
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The Group’s liquidity risk management objective is to effectively manage the liquidity of
on- and off-balance sheet items with reasonable cost based on the liquidity risk appetite
to achieve sound operation and sustainable profitability. Deposits from customers are the
Group’s primary source of funds. To ensure stable and sufficient source of funds are in
place, the Group actively attracts new deposits, keeps the core deposit and obtains
supplementary funding from the interbank market or by issuing bills in the capital market.
According to different term maturities and the results of funding needs estimated from
stressed scenarios, the Group adjusts its asset structure (including loans, bonds
investment, interbank placement, etc.) to maintain sufficient liquid assets which provides
adequate funds in support of normal business needs and ensure its ability to raise funds
at a reasonable cost to serve external claims in case of emergency. The Group is
committed to diversify the source of funds and the use of funds to avoid excessive
concentration of assets and liabilities and prevent triggering liquidity risk due to the break
of funding strand when problem occurred in one concentrated funding source. The Group
has established intra-group liquidity risk management guideline to manage the liquidity
funding among different entities within the Group, and to restrict their reliance of funding
on each other. The Group also pays attention to manage liquidity risk created by
off-balance sheet activities, such as loan commitments, derivatives, options and other
complex structured products. The Group has an overall liquidity risk management
strategy to cover the liquidity management of foreign currency assets and liabilities,
collateral, intra-day liquidity, intra-group liquidity, the liquidity risk arising from other risks,
etc., and has formulated corresponding contingency plan.
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Mg MEE (&) Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
4. SRERBER (&)

4. Financial risk management (continued)

4.3 REELRE (&) 4.3 Liquidity risk (continued)
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The RC is the decision-making authority of liquidity risk management, and assumes the
ultimate responsibility of liquidity risk management. As authorised by RC, ALCO exercises
its oversight of liquidity risk and ensures the daily operations of the Group are in
accordance with risk appetite and policies as set by RC. RMD (Interest Rate and Liquidity
Risk Management) is responsible for overseeing the Group’s liquidity risk. It cooperates
with the Asset and Liability Management Division of Financial Management Department,
Investment Management, etc. to assist the ALCO to perform liquidity management
functions according to their specific responsibilities.

The Group established liquidity risk management indicators and limits to identify, measure,
monitor and control liquidity risk on daily basis. These indicators and limits include, but are
not limited to liquidity coverage ratio (“LCR”), loan-to-deposit ratio, Maximum Cumulative
Cash Outflow (“MCOQO”) and liquidity buffer asset portfolio. The Group applies cash flow
analysis to assess the Group’s liquidity condition under normal conditions and also
performs a liquidity stress test (including institution specific, general market crisis and
combined crisis) and other methods at least on monthly basis to assess the Group’s
capability to withstand various severe liquidity crises. Also, the Assets and Liabilities
Management System is developed to provide data and the preparation for regular
management reports to facilitate liquidity risk management duties.
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Mg MEE (&) Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
4. SRERBER (&)

4. Financial risk management (continued)

4.3 REELRE (&) 4.3 Liquidity risk (continued)
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In accordance with the requirements of Supervisory Policy Manual LM-2 “Sound Systems
and controls for Liquidity Risk Management” issued by the HKMA in 2011, the Group has
implemented behaviour model and assumptions of cash flow analysis and stress test to
enhance the Group’s cash flow analysis under both normal and stressed conditions. In
cash flow analysis under normal circumstances, assumptions have been made relating to
on-balance sheet items (such as deposits from customers) and off-balance sheet items
(such as loan commitments). According to various characteristics of the assets, liabilities
and off-balance sheet items, the Group forecasts the future cash flow based on contractual
maturity date and the assumptions of customer behaviour and balance sheet changes.
The Group establishes MCO indicator which predicts the future 30 days maximum
cumulative net cash outflow in normal situations based on the above assumptions, to
assess if the Group has sufficient financing capacity to meet the cash flow gap in order to
achieve the objective of continuing operation. As at 31 December 2015, before taking the
cash inflow through the sale of outstanding marketable securities into consideration,
BOCHK'’s 30 day cumulative cash flow was a net cash inflow, amounting to HK$74,742
million (2014: HK$50,775 million) and was in compliance with the internal limit
requirements.
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Mg MEE (&) Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
4. SRERBER (&)

4. Financial risk management (continued)

4.3 REELRE (&) 4.3 Liquidity risk (continued)
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In the liquidity stress test, institution specific, general market crisis and combined crisis
scenario has been set up, combined crisis scenario is a combination of institution specific
and general market crisis to assess the Group’s capability to withstand a more severe
liquidity crisis, with a more stringent set of assumptions being adopted. Stress test
assumptions include the run-off rate of retail, wholesale and interbank deposits; drawdown
rate of loan commitments and trade-related contingent liabilities; delinquency ratio and
rollover rate of customer loans; and haircut of interbank placement and marketable
securities. As at 31 December 2015, the Group was able to maintain a positive cash flow
under the three stressed scenarios, indicating the Group has the ability to meet financing
needs under stressed conditions. In addition, the Group has a policy in place to maintain a
liquidity cushion which includes high quality or comparable quality marketable securities
issued or guaranteed by sovereigns, central banks, public sector entities or multilateral
development banks with 0% or 20% risk weight or marketable securities issued by
non-financial corporate with a corresponding external credit rating of A- or above to ensure
funding needs even under stressed scenarios. As at 31 December 2015, the liquidity
cushion (before haircut) of BOCHK was HK$309,969 million (2014: HK$197,488 million). A
contingency plan is being established which details the conditions to trigger the plan based
on stress test results and early warning indicators, the action plans and relevant
procedures and responsibility of various departments.
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Mg MEE (&) Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
4. SRERBER (&)

4. Financial risk management (continued)

4.3 REELRE (&) 4.3 Liquidity risk (continued)
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The LCR is calculated in accordance with the Banking (Liquidity) Rules effective from 1
January 2015, the Group, being classified as category 1 authorised institution by the
HKMA, is required to calculate LCR on consolidated basis. During the year of 2015, the
Group is required to maintain a LCR not less than 60%.

In certain derivative contracts, the counterparties have right to request from the Group
additional collateral if they have concerns about the Group’s creditworthiness.

The Group’s liquidity risk management also covers new products or business
developments. Before launching a new product or business, the relevant departments are
required to go through a risk assessment process, which includes the assessment of
underlying liquidity risk and consideration of the adequacy of the current risk management
mechanism. Any material impact on liquidity risk noted during the risk assessment process
will be reported to RC for approval.

The Group has established a set of uniform liquidity risk management policies which serve
as standards and guidance to all the Group’s members for liquidity risk management. On
the basis of the Group’s uniform policy, each of the subsidiaries develops its own liquidity
management policies according to its own characteristics, and assumes its own liquidity
risk management responsibility. Subsidiaries are required to report their respective liquidity
positions on a regular basis to RMD (Interest Rate and Liquidity Risk Management) of
BOCHK, which consolidates this information and evaluates group-wide liquidity risk.
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MR (&) Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
4. &RLEEEE (&) 4. Financial risk management (continued)

4.3 ReE&EkE (&) 4.3 Liquidity risk (continued)
(A) FREMEESEER (A) Liquidity coverage ratio/liquidity ratio
FE SR
2015 FEFREGEHE
2015 quarter ended
12F531H 9H30H 6 H30H 3H31H
31 December 30 September 30 June 31 March
RENEE E LRI Average value of
M liquidity
coverage ratio 106.52% 104.00% 109.89% 101.90%
mEIEE E LR The average value of liquidity coverage ratio is calculated based on the arithmetic mean
SEHEEEERZE of the liquidity coverage ratio as at the end of each working day in the quarter and the
F& Y A8 A H 4% calculation methodology and instructions set out in the HKMA return of liquidity position.
ERREEES
bL 22 (9 B9l 1 19 B
A R O B MR O
ZE&ERHEYH
HYEFE T E KRR
ATE -
MM EELRE The liquidity coverage ratio is computed on the consolidated basis which comprises the
PAgGEEEmstE - I positions of BOCHK and certain subsidiaries specified by the HKMA in accordance with
g (RT3 ORE) the Banking (Liquidity) Rules.
PR #AD) HhsRE
BRHEESEEE
5 7€ Z I J& 2N =1 4H
B o
HR R EELL The additional information of liquidity coverage ratio disclosures is available under
R EAIH AR E R section “Regulatory Disclosures” on the Bank’s website at www.bochk.com.

AR IR EBEE
www.bochk.com 1

MEEDEE  — TR

B
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MR (&) Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
4. &RLEEEE (&) 4. Financial risk management (continued)

4.3 REELRE (&) 4.3 Liquidity risk (continued)

(A) REMEEELER (A) Liquidity coverage ratio/liquidity ratio (continued)
mEESLR (&)

2014
SR ENE S e Average liquidity ratio 42.17%
SR ENE SRR The average liquidity ratio is calculated as the arithmetical mean of each calendar
EUARSRITHENE month’s average liquidity ratio of the Bank for the year.
A¥ERgh&Esth
RAVE i E!
.
BN S ELR R The liquidity ratio is computed on the solo basis (the Hong Kong offices only) and is in
B RITEEGG]) accordance with the predecessor Fourth Schedule to the Banking Ordinance.
A B HIHT R Y R DA

FmaE (AAA
EEAERER) &t
o
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4. Financial risk management (continued)

4.3 Liquidity risk (continued)
(B) Maturity analysis
The tables below analyse the Group’s assets and liabilities as at 31 December into

relevant maturity groupings based on the remaining period at balance sheet date to
the contractual maturity date.

PHEZIEHA H AR
BRIIIR 5T -
2015
-z =z
mg —@AN  =@H @ —SAfF ASME  FRE
On Up to 1t03 3to12 1to 5 Over HH#A st
demand 1 month months months years 5 years Indefinite Total
bild s piid bitd biicd biiicd piid piid
HExT HEx BEX BHET BHET HET HET 0 HET
HK$’'m HK$’'m HK$’'m HK$’'m HK$’'m HK$’'m HK$’'m HK$’'m
BE Assets
RS RFRGRIT R HM 4/t Cash and balances with banks and
SIS ER other financial institutions 182,241 48,108 - - - - 303 230,652
FESRTT R EHA S Rbi&iE—Z%+ = Placements with banks and other
{8 5 N EIHAZ EHIFIL financial institutions maturing
between one and twelve months - - 37,920 26,288 - - - 64,208
ANHEE(ERTAIERS 2 &FEE  Financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss
- 5 —Held for trading
- [EEEA — Debt securities - 1,020 5,760 6,790 10,576 3,225 - 27,371
- T - Certificates of deposit - 190 80 1,810 137 6 - 2,223
— FEERLASHEE S S — Designated at fair value through
profit or loss
- [EEEA — Debt securities - 9 263 75 639 - - 986
— Hit —Others - 180 - - - - - 180
TTESMTE Derivative financial instruments 12,489 2,723 2,711 18,976 5,422 781 - 43,102
FREH TR EETAESHE  Hong Kong SAR Government
certificates of indebtedness 101,950 - - - - - - 101,950
B HAETE Advances and other accounts
- BEEH —Advances to customers 104,655 25,975 44,093 135,015 360,990 214,384 2,017 887,129
- E5EEE —Trade bills 1 7,970 8,330 15,710 - - - 32,011
- fF(ﬁ R R AR R —Advances to banks and other
financial institutions - - 1 - 968 - - 969
BAIEE Investment in securities
- ke —Available-for-sale
- [EEEA — Debt securities - 19,874 83,074 59,172 133,772 51,365 - 347,257
- ey - Certificates of deposit - 2,305 23,450 35,563 7,920 - - 69,238
- PPEZ%WH - Held-to-maturity
- ([BGEs — Debt securities - 476 3,312 12,828 39,539 8,425 3 64,583
- ﬁrw LKZTJ\ — Loans and receivables
- EE - Debt securities - - 1,005 2,161 - - - 3,166
- s — Equity securities - - - - - - 287 287
EAT RAEREER Interests in associates and a joint
venture - - - - - - 376 376
BB Investment properties - - - - - - 15,400 15,400
e ~ B3N Rt Properties, plant and equipment - - - - - - 50,249 50,249
HirgrE (aEgEiiEgE)  Other assets (including deferred
tax assets) 15,453 10,850 172 624 94 - 53 27,246
R ERRE Assets held for sale 18,598 52,792 31,823 65,034 85,341 29,495 17,390 300,473
RERE Total assets 435,387 172,472 241,994 380,046 645,398 307,681 86,078 2,269,056
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4.3 Liquidity risk (continued)

(B) Maturity analysis (continued)

4. Financial risk management (continued)

2015
-z =
B —ERA =ZEA @R —ZHE AFNME  FEE
On Up to 1t0 3 3to12 1to 5 Over H#A =t
demand 1 month months months years 5 years Indefinite Total
B N A B s e b biicd
EHEL EEx THET OHt HEGT Ot H8cT EER
HK$’'m HK$’m HK$’'m HK$’'m HK$m  HK$m HK$’'m HK$’m
Liabilities
Hong Kong SAR currency notes in
circulation 101,950 - - - - - - 101,950
Deposits and balances from banks
and other financial institutions 166,711 10,616 27,936 2,343 - - - 207,606
Financial liabilities at fair value
through profit or loss - 2,583 4,447 1,970 1,477 465 - 10,942
Derivative financial instruments 8,813 3,358 2,743 18,876 4,570 1,782 - 40,142
Deposits from customers 853,855 289,967 183,028 79,013 611 - - 1,406,474
Debt securities and certificates of
deposit in issue
— Debt securities - 59 - 5,739 1,178 - - 6,976
Other accounts and provisions
(including current and deferred
tax liabilities) 15,046 11,751 1,472 2,537 7,295 - - 38,101
Subordinated liabilities - - 418 - 19,004 - - 19,422
Liabilities associated with assets
held for sale 93,397 68,882 40,563 42,451 7,083 26 - 252,402
Total liabilities 1,239,772 387,216 260,607 152,929 41,218 2,273 - 2,084,015
Net liquidity gap (804,385) (214,744) (18,613) 227,117 604,180 305,408 86,078 185,041
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4.3 RERESER (8
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4.3 Liquidity risk (continued)

(B) Maturity analysis (continued)

2014
—F =5
B —EAR @A +=EH —EA% AEFENME R
On Up to 1t03 3to12 1to5 Over HHA 4t
demand 1 month months _months years  5years Indefinite Total
A I A A I g Al A
HET 0 HERT  HERXT HET  HEST  HET HETT HETT
HK$'m HK$'m HK$'m HK$'m HK$'m HK$'m HK$'m HK$'m
BE Assets
EEEHR S R T R B4/ Cash and balances with banks and
i other financial institutions 326,535 60,040 - - - - 11,677 398,252
ERTT R EAfth &Rt —% 1+ Placements with banks and other
{18 H NI e financial institutions maturing
between one and twelve months - - 17,730 19,706 - - - 37,436
INFES(LETABRZ &/EE  Financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss
- 5 —Held for trading
- [EEEA — Debt securities - 2,627 6,539 10,595 10,518 2,039 - 32,318
- s — Certificates of deposit - 142 642 393 251 - - 1,428
— FEERBLAHEE L AdE — Designated at fair value through
profit or loss
— (EEs — Debt securities - 9 10 86 1,252 - - 1,357
- BelnaEsy — Equity securities - - - - - - 3 3
TTESHMTE Derivative financial instruments 10,880 3,503 2,812 11,619 1,858 2,687 - 33,359
THRRITEEBUFA#YE  Hong Kong SAR Government
certificates of indebtedness 90,770 - - - - - - 90,770
B H MRS Advances and other accounts
- BEEH —Advances to customers 113,547 28,987 60,630 171,511 347,232 231,875 2,503 956,285
- E5EEE —Trade bills 32 12,779 20,973 23,972 - - - 57,756
A Investment in securities
- ke —Available-for-sale
- [ - Debt securities - 8,589 27,053 65,390 130,173 48,401 - 279,606
- 1B - Certificates of deposit - 13,284 6,072 24,590 13,784 - - 57,730
- FrEEEIHIH — Held-to-maturity
- {EES — Debt securities - 85 2,107 4,462 40,979 12,751 27 60,411
- EE - Certificates of deposit - - 77 - - - - 77
- ERJEIER — Loans and receivables
- EE — Debt securities - 2,499 915 1,454 - - - 4,868
- s — Equity securities - - - - - - 986 986
e A E A A BERE S Interests in associates and a joint
venture - - - - - - 324 324
fila=vuE S Investment properties - - - - - - 14,690 14,690
e ~ BN RS Properties, plant and equipment - - - - - - 55,041 55,041
HitrgmE (BEEEfRIEEE)  Other assets (including deferred
tax assets) 6,558 12,039 141 271 199 - 28 19,236
B Total assets 548,322 144,583 145,701 334,049 546,246 297,753 85,279 2,101,933
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Liabilities

Hong Kong SAR currency notes in
circulation

Deposits and balances from banks
and other financial institutions

Financial liabilities at fair value
through profit or loss

Derivative financial instruments

Deposits from customers

Debt securities and certificates of
deposit in issue
— Debt securities

Other accounts and provisions
(including current and deferred
tax liabilities)

Subordinated liabilities

Total liabilities

Net liquidity gap

4.3 Liquidity risk (continued)

(B) Maturity analysis (continued)

4. Financial risk management (continued)

2014
—F =%
B —@EAN =WA +F2ER —E0F EEMLE FEE
On Up to 1t03 3to 12 1t05 Over HHA 4t
demand 1 month months months years  5years Indefinite Total
HEJT  HERT  HET  HERXT O HET HET O HET HETT
HK$'m HK$'m HK$'m HK$'m HK$'m HK$'m HK$'m HK$'m
90,770 - - - - - - 90,770
203,379 23,419 6,277 2,705 - - - 235,780
- 3,428 4,643 3,190 483 516 - 12,260
6,976 3,034 2,455 4,494 2,523 1,290 - 20,772
794,464 340,972 209,587 122,979 15,396 - - 1,483,398
- 2,316 2,811 1,106 5,668 - - 11,901
23,762 14,173 4,281 6,992 8,123 - - 57,331
- - 418 - - 19,258 - 19,676
1,119,351 387,342 230,472 141,466 32,193 21,064 - 1,931,888
(571,029) (242,759) (84,771) 192,583 514,053 276,689 85,279 170,045
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MR (&) Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
4. &RIEEEE (&) 4. Financial risk management (continued)

4.3 REELRE (&) 4.3 Liquidity risk (continued)

(B) #HIH M (&) (B) Maturity analysis (continued)

At BHEA H 435875 The above maturity classifications have been prepared in accordance with relevant
TR CPRATSE (88 provisions under the Banking (Disclosure) Rules. The Group has reported assets such
BRI BRI as advances and debt securities which have been overdue for not more than one month
4r Bl o REERAHA as “On demand”. In the case of an asset that is repayable by different payments or
Nig#m 1 [HEZE instalments, only that portion of the asset that is actually overdue is reported as
o B ERRAE S overdue. Any part of the asset that is not due is reported according to the residual
B4k TR & maturity unless the repayment of the asset is in doubt in which case the amount is
B o BN [EIEEE reported as “Indefinite”. The above assets are stated after deduction of provisions, if
WO HEZEZE any.

7 DA AERE

A% Fa ) 2 T 03 A

TR - HAtARE 5]

Z AT e AR AR

FIERHARR 7308 - 1HIR

HHmEE ZER

AR - AL

FOEY R T AEE H

By o FHYIIRZ &

728 T AT B3 AF: o] A B

B (H) -

2 E BR B HE H B & The analysis of debt securities by remaining period to maturity is disclosed in order to
B EZamE R comply with relevant provisions under the Banking (Disclosure) Rules. The disclosure
G GRTTE (BB does not imply that the securities will be held to maturity.

FLAN) Z AERARSZIT

WERHY - PR

(e B SR

HZEIFHH -
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4. SRERBER (&)

4.3 REEERE (8)

(C) HELEHE AT
RIS

(a)

BRIER

FECTETH B
B

ES IR
SEER 12 A 31
H 2 IRUT AR
RELIRERELY
FHIHSIRZ B

Ao
SEa ©

BRI T R

ST R SR P
e

PB4

A
EEEK

EE TS R

RIEAM
Fifth e

FrH A 2 AR

BRI RAEER

SRR

R TR U

ST e AR R

R

TR G AR

(T
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ES T RkaE

RIS
Fiftr e

SRR

4. Financial risk management (continued)

4.3 Liquidity risk (continued)

(C) Analysis of undiscounted cash flows by contractual maturities

(a) Non-derivative cash flows
The tables below summarise the cash flows of the Group as at 31 December for
non-derivative financial liabilities by remaining contractual maturity.
2015
—& =&
—EAR =@ER +ZEA —Z2HEE AFNUL
Up to 1t03 3to12 1to5 Over =t
1 month months months years 5 years Total
bl bl b bt b b
HExX HEx BHET HEx HET HET
HK$’'m HK$’'m HK$’'m HK$’'m HK$’'m HK$’'m
Financial liabilities
Hong Kong SAR currency notes in
circulation 101,950 - - - - 101,950
Deposits and balances from banks and
other financial institutions 177,341 27,990 2,366 - - 207,697
Financial liabilities at fair value through
profit or loss 2,586 4,458 1,991 1,519 483 11,037
Deposits from customers 1,143,959 183,507 79,830 642 - 1,407,938
Debt securities and certificates of
deposit in issue 59 - 6,072 1,262 - 7,393
Subordinated liabilities - 538 538 23,138 - 24,214
Other financial liabilities 22,826 218 715 4 - 23,763
Financial liabilities associated with
assets held for sale 161,974 40,421 42,794 6,564 26 251,779
Total financial liabilities 1,610,695 257,132 134,306 33,129 509 2,035,771
2014
—F =F )
—{EAA =EH +ZEA —ZAF AFMUEL
Up to 1t03 3to 12 1to5 Over 4t
1 month months  months years 5 years Total
e bt i bt i i
HEIT HET  HET HETT  HET HEIT
HK$'m HK$'m HK$'m HK$'m HK$'m HK$'m
Financial liabilities
Hong Kong SAR currency notes in
circulation 90,770 - - - - 90,770
Deposits and balances from banks and
other financial institutions 226,826 6,304 2,774 - - 235,904
Financial liabilities at fair value through
profit or loss 3,432 4,655 3,201 524 541 12,353
Deposits from customers 1,135,657 210,324 124,467 16,528 - 1,486,976
Debt securities and certificates of
deposit in issue 2,317 2,816 1,297 6,098 - 12,528
Subordinated liabilities - 538 538 4,305 19,926 25,307
Other financial liabilities 34,367 2,958 4,284 196 - 41,805
Total financial liabilities 1,493,369 227,595 136,561 27,651 20,467 1,905,643
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MR (&) Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
4. &RLEEEE (&) 4. Financial risk management (continued)

4.3 RErELRE (&) 4.3 Liquidity risk (continued)

(C) & BEIH T HT (C) Analysis of undiscounted cash flows by contractual maturities (continued)
ZRIAHEBRER
€-))

(b) $TATEH IS (b) Derivative cash flows

ey
JiL

R T AR The tables below summarise the cash flows (including assets held for sale and
E» 12 H 31 H liabilities associated with assets held for sale) of the Group by remaining

DL &R & 49 2 H#A contractual maturity as at 31 December for derivative financial liabilities that will
HA R Z & 7R be settled on a net basis, together with all derivative financial instruments that
(BEFHESR will be settled on a gross basis regardless of whether the contract is in an asset

ERFEHEEE or liability position. The amounts disclosed in the tables are the contractual

ZHHEE) -/ undiscounted cash flows, except for certain derivatives which are disclosed at

FE P AR A A A fair value.

HZUTEERE

B KA

AR ZOTE

e TR A

8 & 4988 & 2 B

B o BRERIT

AETHPAYHE

FIRA MR R

Ay E A S 33T By

RGP B EE

PGB -

KEEE 7 FEEE The Group’s derivative financial instruments that will be settled on a net basis
BEHZTESE mainly include interest rate swaps whereas derivative financial instruments that
Rl T E AR will be settled on a gross basis mainly include currency forwards and currency
FIZ R 248 swaps.

ARG E 1T

LR THERE

55 B W HH R

BRI
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MR (&) Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
4. &RLEEEE (&) 4. Financial risk management (continued)

4.3 RErELRE (&) 4.3 Liquidity risk (continued)
(C) & BEIH T HT (C) Analysis of undiscounted cash flows by contractual maturities (continued)
ZRIFBEBRESR
(&)
(b) $TETE S (b) Derivative cash flows (continued)
s (&)
2015
—F =z
—@AN  =EA +-EA —EEFAFUL
Up to 1to 3 3to12 1to 5 Over faxt
1 month months months years 5 years Total
bl bt bl B B bt
H&ET HET BHET H&Ext HER HETT
HK$m HK$m HK$’'m HK$m HK$m HK$’'m
R AR Derivative financial liabilities
= e A settled on a net basis
A (E (9,198) (543) (860) (2,072) (117) (12,790)
Yo MR B R A A Derivative financial instruments
B2 4EE settled on a gross basis
BT H
DTN Total inflow 547,372 344,851 1,320,449 206,902 2,138 2,421,712
4B HY Total outflow (547,992) (344,897) (1,320,510) (206,704) (2,119)(2,422,222)
2014
—& =F
—@EAN  =Z@EA oA —EAFE AFLE
Up to 1t03 3to 12 1to 5 Over 2Bt
1 month  months months years 5 years Total
et ety A A A g
HE7T  HAETT HET  H&ET HETT HETT
HK$'m HK$'m HK$'m HK$'m HK$'m HK$'m
127 75 BH AL B 4 Derivative financial liabilities
W44 settled on a net basis
e & (7,132) (407) (1,145)  (1,445) (45) (10,174)
o 4 E B R gt Derivative financial instruments
B2t w settled on a gross basis
FTE
FEDTIN Total inflow 501,619 276,119 500,023 85,168 1,778 1,364,707
WRSFTH Total outflow (501,323) (275,792) (497,938) (85,159) (1,769)(1,361,981)
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MR (&) Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
4. &RLEEEE (&) 4. Financial risk management (continued)

4.3 HReE&EkE (&) 4.3 Liquidity risk (continued)
(C) #HEWNFIHH O (C) Analysis of undiscounted cash flows by contractual maturities (continued)
ZRFRBAESR
(&)
(c) & E & & & b (c) Off-balance sheet items
HH
BRUKIE Loan commitments
H R OA £ EH p The contractual amounts of the Group’s off-balance sheet financial instruments as
2015 £ 12 A 31 at 31 December 2015 that the Group commits to extend credit to customers and
H 17 & P K 5 ik other facilities amounted to HK$597,238 million (2014: HK$488,784 million).
w58 K H At @k Those loan commitments can be drawn within one year.
BRI R L

o HEO8ER
HEWE 5,972.38 {3
IC (2014 £
W 4,887.84 (&
T HEEERUK
ETR—FE MR
il

EUF 5 % OR e oAt Financial guarantees and other financial facilities

MR

AREEF 2015 £ Financial guarantees and other financial facilities of the Group as at 31 December
12 A 31 HZ W73 2015 amounting to HK$69,092 million (2014: HK$72,603 million) are maturing no
¥ O B oAt B4 75 later than one year.

Bl E B Ry A
690.92 (&
(2014 4 : e
726.03 f&5¢) » H
FHIH DA —F -
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4. SRERBER (&)

4. Financial risk management (continued)

4.4 TAEHE

4.4 Capital management

ZIS’EE HE AT

FE AT B [ R A
ms;gﬁf:maw@ SAT
JeIK» [RIH Ry SR 2K
Al - HEAMEH
Z A g g AL
BEAGERS AT B
FTEREE LAORF R ~ [l

B A TE S MR B P
iy -

REECKET—EF
S8 AN EH SRR
PERS > A B ST RYF -
BEE A ] 6 S B A 52
FREBERAER e
EEBEARAT R R E
K-HEAREHZRY

AEEEEENEAT

Je M - AR R B
WELSRIT SR BT & & IH
EERNEEERR
JE > FEHLAT -

AR R R A D
SRR AR FUART R
85 3825 A L ) L B
HRHER (S B A
3K (5 I P B AR R
(FEF bRt RA S
ZR ALl b AR HE AT (S
SRR EAZDR /NSy
15 & b R HE Al A e
ik (FERE) sHEE
BT AR ER RS
Bt EHE R S RA
AHEEfE R bR
LT EATR -

The major objective of the Group’s capital management is to maximise total shareholders’
return while maintaining a capital adequacy position in relation to the Group’s overall risk
profile. The ALCO periodically reviews the Group’s capital structure and adjusts the capital
mix where appropriate to maintain an optimal balance among risk, return and capital
adequacy.

The Group has developed and maintained a sound framework of policies and controls on
capital management to support the development of the Group’s business and to meet the
statutory capital adequacy ratio. The ALCO monitors the Group’s capital adequacy. The
Group has complied with all the statutory capital requirements of the HKMA for the reported
periods in respect of banking operation as further elaborated below.

The Group has adopted the foundation internal ratings-based (“FIRB”) approach to calculate
the credit risk capital charge for the majority of its non-securitisation exposures and the
internal ratings-based (securitisation) approach to calculate the credit risk capital charge for
its securitisation exposures. A small residual credit exposures are remained under the
standardised (credit risk) (“STC”) approach. The Group has adopted the standardised credit
valuation adjustment (“CVA”) method to calculate the capital charge for the CVA risk of the
counterparty.
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4. SRERBER (&)

4. Financial risk management (continued)

44 BHREE (8

4.4 Capital management (continued)

AR [E e SRR N A
HETB AT B AN KR
RN — RS E R E A
BOR - WESE F R
TEt B HERE R ELS]
QY SE RS ME S 1 b i 1 2
LRI R e E A
K o AR BRI A
(G Eb EtREH
HepmsEmEARZK -

AR I (3
Bt R Bk
AR E AT -

AR 2015 4G
MM EE AT e 5l 1L
P& 28 RSB
M TEEEERET
WY - 28 R
ZEERIES D NETEAR
7E R Sl AR P A 2L
SHEES ST RA
5u§32?ﬁ%5{£¥ﬂ’]§7<
HBERF)T*E’TE% a4

G Eﬂiﬁw{&%}_
Hx E—REALER - &K
— A AR R AR R4
BALER - [ - AL
TRER R A B A P R st
TE TR LX?Z%%
BB R e ER
HYARCER - K%@Euw
WEE AT R sF
B—ERFENERER
B W HNIEE SHE
E@ﬂfﬁﬁﬁiﬂﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁ
Bt R R L AL
1 -

The Group continues to adopt the internal models (“IMM”) approach to calculate the general
market risk capital charge for foreign exchange and interest rate exposures and, with the
approval from the HKMA, exclude its structural FX positions arising from NCB and Chiyu in
the calculation of the market risk capital charge. The Group continues to adopt the
standardised (market risk) (“STM”) approach to calculate the market risk capital charge for
the remaining exposures.

The Group continues to adopt standardised (operational risk) (“STO”) approach to calculate
the operational risk capital charge.

The Group has continued to adopt an internal capital adequacy assessment process
(“ICAAP”) to comply with the HKMA's requirements in the Supervisory Policy Manual
“Supervisory Review Process” in 2015. Based on the HKMA's guidelines on Pillar I, ICAAP
has been initiated to assess the extra capital needed to cover the material risks not captured
or not adequately captured under Pillar |, and therefore minimum Common Equity Tier 1
capital ratio, minimum Tier 1 capital ratio and minimum Total capital ratio are determined.
Meanwhile, operating ranges for the aforementioned capital ratios have also been
established which enable the flexibility for future business growth and efficiency of capital
utilisation. The Group considers this ICAAP as an on-going process for capital management
and periodically reviews and adjusts its capital structure where appropriate in relation to the
overall risk profile.
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4. &RIEEEE (&) 4. Financial risk management (continued)

44 EXREHE (8 4.4 Capital management (continued)

AN AR EEGESHEE In addition, the capital plan of the Group is drawn up annually and then submitted to the
EEAHE hEEEE Board for approval after endorsement of the ALCO. The plan is built up by assessing the
EHLZEORLGGBEE implications of various factors upon capital adequacy such as the business strategies, return
b - BB on equity, risk appetite, credit rating, as well as regulatory requirements. Hence, the future
T ORME ~ B s [a] s ~ s capital requirement is determined and capital sources are identified also. The plan is to
TRYET ~ 5 TR ~ B ensure the Group maintains adequate capital and appropriate capital structure which align
KREL W ESTEEE AR with its business development needs, thereby achieving an optimal balance among risk,
TR R (e TR return and capital adequacy.

RERERT RKRERK

T5 IR EIRE R B

HFNEAREMERER

HEEHE  foaiss
Je& > PR ~ [HI R ELE

RIE R M e (o

(A) BeEGOERE (A) Basis of regulatory consolidation
EEHENSGE A The consolidation basis for regulatory purposes comprises the positions of BOCHK
TR (SR1T and certain subsidiaries specified by the HKMA in accordance with the Banking

BEA) FRATY Hep (Capital) Rules. For accounting purposes, subsidiaries are consolidated in accordance

IREE R HI & with HKFRSs and the list of subsidiaries is set out in “Appendix — Subsidiaries of the
ElEEEZ B L Bank”.
H4HR - EEE R
T3 > AIHZ B A
S RS T

BT HA R
"t 4% — AT 2
BT -
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4. SRERBER (&)

4. Financial risk management (continued)

4.4 BXEE (8

4.4 Capital management (continued)

(A) BEBGAERRE (8

(A) Basis of regulatory consolidation (continued)

BLEAE & 51 4 A 4w
EHE - M EEE
BB HLUE &7 A #IE

The particulars of subsidiaries which are included within the accounting scope of

consolidation but not included within the regulatory scope of consolidation are as

follows:
RN T S N E] 22 5
HUT
2015 2014
BEWEE j-ZNA HREAEEH NG
oA Name Total assets Total equity Total assets Total equity
AEEET BEEET AREETT BEEETT
HK$’'m HK$’'m HK$'m HK$'m
hERSRTT (T REA Bank of China (Hong Kong)
AIRAHE Nominees Limited - . _ _
HHEERTT (FHE) (S35 Bank of China (Hong Kong)
AHIRAE] Trustees Limited 9 9 9 9
FEREEISEEAARA BOC Group Trustee Company
El Limited 200 200 200 200
HrER(E R CEIID BOCHK Information Technology
HIRAHE (Shenzhen) Co., Ltd. 220 199 214 186
TR (E Bl ARTS OF BOCHK Information Technology
P BIRAH Services (Shenzhen) Ltd. 314 270 303 260
P SRR B Rk (S 5 BOCI-Prudential Trustee Limited
HIRAHE 462 432 458 430
L (REEA) BRRAE Che Hsing (Nominees) Limited 1 1 1 1
ERIRT (REA) BIR Chiyu Banking Corporation
NG| (Nominees) Limited 134 134 115 115
EATRAE Grace Charter Limited - (1) - (1)
EAEREEHARA Kwong Li Nam Investment
=] Agency Limited 4 4 4 4
FECERGSESRTT (fREAD) Nanyang Commercial Bank
HIRAHE (Nominees) Limited 1 1 1 1
FEERREIRITERAR Nanyang Commercial Bank
INH] Trustee Limited 16 16 16 16
AR ERGER Po Sang Financial Investment
NH] Services Company Limited 363 345 121 105
BHEMERRAH Po Sang Futures Limited 496 454 597 188
S EEARAHE Seng Sun Development
Company, Limited 41 41 40 40
HriEEEARAHE Sin Chiao Enterprises
Corporation, Limited 7 7 7 7
HrE(ETEAIRAE] Sin Hua Trustee Limited 5 5 5 5
IR AR A E] Sino Information Services
Company Limited 8 8 20 20
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4.4 BXEE (8

(A) BEBGAERRE (8

(B

~

DI 25 5 9
FEETS M, T8 —
7 98 17 2 Wt 4
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R 2015412 B 31
SRR
F A R E R
SESTEEIE . TR
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R 2015412 B 31
H » N b
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HE QI BE 8 HE 4%
& i [E T E A R
&k & J5 ik (2014
) -

HEAREER

WS
bk
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4. Financial risk management (continued)

4.4 Capital management (continued)

(A) Basis of regulatory consolidation (continued)

The principal activities of the above subsidiaries are set out in “Appendix — Subsidiaries
of the Bank”.

There were no subsidiaries which are included within the regulatory scope of
consolidation but not included within the accounting scope of consolidation as at 31
December 2015 (2014: Nil).

There were also no subsidiaries which are included within both the accounting scope of
consolidation and the regulatory scope of consolidation where the methods of
consolidation differ as at 31 December 2015 (2014: Nil).

(B) Capital ratio

2015 2014

CET1 capital ratio
12.83% 12.30%
Tier 1 capital ratio 12.89% 12.38%
Total capital ratio 17.86% 17.51%
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4. Financial risk management (continued)

4.4 Capital management (continued)

(B) Capital ratio (continued)

The consolidated capital base after deductions used in the calculation of the above

capital ratios is analysed as follows:

CET1 capital: instruments and reserves

Directly issued qualifying CET1 capital

instruments
Retained earnings
Disclosed reserves

Minority interests arising from CET1 capital
instruments issued by consolidated bank
subsidiaries and held by third parties (amount
allowed in CET1 capital of the consolidation

group)

CET1 capital before regulatory deductions

CET1 capital: regulatory deductions

Valuation adjustments

Deferred tax assets net of deferred tax liabilities

Gains and losses due to changes in own credit

risk on fair valued liabilities

Cumulative fair value gains arising from the
revaluation of land and buildings (own-use

and investment properties)

Regulatory reserve for general banking risks

Total regulatory deductions to CET1 capital

CET1 capital

169

2015 2014
BEEHET BEEEIT
HK$'m HK$'m
43,043 43,043
89,915 76,649
49,438 47,803
733 614
183,129 168,109
(20) (19)
(69) (167)
(198) (160)
(50,874) (47,312)
(10,879) (10,011)
(62,040) (57,669)
121,089 110,440
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Mg MEE (&) Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
4. SRERBER (&)

4. Financial risk management (continued)

44 BHREE (8

4.4 Capital management (continued)

(B) BALLR (4D

(B) Capital ratio (continued)

2015 2014
BEEET BEEET
HK$’'m HK$'m
FRIN—IEAR B AT1 capital: instruments
&R E T B A T3 AT1 capital instruments issued by consolidated
TIHE=07FAN bank subsidiaries and held by third parties
BHAN — & & R E (amount allowed in AT1 capital of the
(At AGFEEEDN consolidation group)
I — B A BT
) 561 733
ZEIN—4RE AR AT1 capital 561 733
— B Tier 1 capital 121,650 111,173
ZHREAR R CEHS Tier 2 capital: instruments and provisions
TN —E AR, Capital instruments subject to phase out
HEAREE arrangements from Tier 2 capital 18,230 19,294
H&FERITH B AT Tier 2 capital instruments issued by
T EE = RA N consolidated bank subsidiaries and held by
THREARZERE (afEt third parties (amount allowed in Tier 2 capital
AGRE RN Z4E of the consolidation group)
ZIKE’J%Z%?E) 226 256
BERget A ZAREARHY Collective impairment allowances and
%%‘“’ﬁiﬁfﬁi‘ﬁﬁ& ik regulatory reserve for general banking risks
SRTT R\ s A e eligible for inclusion in Tier 2 capital 5,537 5,195
BB Z I /&R Tier 2 capital before regulatory deductions 23,993 24,745
TIREAR BB Tier 2 capital: regulatory deductions
E&#ERE A& Add back of cumulative fair value gains arising
R HY PRI 4 3 R R from the revaluation of land and buildings
Y (B MCER®R) (own-use and investment properties) eligible
T EEEMSTELE for inclusion in Tier 2 capital
HY B A EE 22,893 21,290
BB A EE IR Total regulatory deductions to Tier 2 capital
éﬁﬂ%ﬁ 22,893 21,290
THRER Tier 2 capital 46,886 46,035
YER Total capital 168,536 157,208
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MR (&) Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
4. &RIEEEE (&) 4. Financial risk management (continued)

4.4 EREHE (8) 4.4 Capital management (continued)
(B) BEALER (&) (B) Capital ratio (continued)
R (ER1TE (& The capital conservation buffer ratio, higher loss absorbency ratio, countercyclical
A AL > BrEsR capital buffer ratio (‘CCyB ratio”) and the applicable JCCyB ratios for Hong Kong and
EEALLE - non-Hong Kong jurisdictions for 2015 are 0% in accordance with the Banking (Capital)
e U 5 $E BE LR Rules.

R AR
AEE#E (TCCyB th
R ) RAEEERIF
T E R ERY
i JCCyBEEZRY
2015 F15 55 0% -

AHEARBE BN The additional information of capital disclosures is available under section “Regulatory
o &R R Disclosures” on the Bank’s website at www.bochk.com.
iR B M HE

www.bochk.com 7

PECEPERE

B -
(C) THIRLLE (C) Leverage ratio
2015
BEEHET
HK$’'m
— B Tier 1 capital 121,650
FEAREER g K 3 Leverage ratio exposure 2,268,203
FERREER Leverage ratio 5.36%
HRIERLL R The additional information of leverage ratio disclosures is available under section
T ER AT A “Regulatory Disclosures” on the Bank’s website at www.bochk.com.
HEH B HE H

www.bochk.com
o CERENEE ) —
HEIEE -
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I mENsE (&) Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
5. EENABIAY{E 5. Fair values of assets and liabilities

A AR ESTEEMT Al assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the financial

BN ENEE ;AR statements are categorised within the fair value hierarchy as defined in HKFRS 13, “Fair value
VR AR B e A 4B HI S5 13 measurement”. The categorisation are determined with reference to the observability and
g8 TN EETE ) NES » significance of the inputs used in the valuation methods and based on the lowest level input

NN B EER RN » % that is significant to the fair value measurement as a whole:
SRS IRAE A T AR
FIRZZ vTE M RER
R IRk AN
BHEBRPE REBREAE

ZRFEIE -

- FE—E4k  tHEEEEE - Level 1: based on quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or
B EREmS P HE liabilities. This category includes equity securities listed on exchange, debt instruments
(RESTHEL ) o L4 FE issued by certain governments, certain exchange-traded derivative contracts and precious

R AP S i metals.
FEF W BUR S THIE

BLHE - B TSNS

TS NEEE -

- BT AR EERL - Level 2: based on valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to

[ EEdEEE R PN EES GRS the fair value measurement is observable, either directly or indirectly. This category includes

( [EIRF 35 B B B8 I\ EET majority of the OTC derivative contracts, debt securities and certificates of deposit with quote

EHEAEE) Ay EPE from pricing services vendors and issued structured deposits. It also includes precious
SR 22 - AR metals and properties with insignificant adjustments made to observable market inputs.

TERE BN BHITE
EH -~ R ERTS BER
FERUAAS R RS 3655 R A7
e o USRI THISS R
Tk o [EIIRFJR BRG] AT i
HRITTGNZRET T A E
RAEEH 8 ) -
- BZREY EREER

Level 3: based on valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to

firFr R A R B R R R the fair value measurement is unobservable. This category includes equity investment and
([EIHF R i e O\ S {E 5T debt instruments with significant unobservable components. It also includes properties with
BEHEAFE) BAH significant adjustments made to observable market inputs.

Bz - ItEREREER
A E N R R A
R T A - AR ERE
BTSRRI TSN R ET
TEKHEHIIE -
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I mENsE (&) Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
5. EEMABNAE 5. Fair values of assets and liabilities (continued)
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For assets and liabilities that are recognised in the financial statements on a recurring basis,
the Group determines whether transfers have occurred between levels in the hierarchy by
reassessing categorisation (based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value
measurement as a whole) at the end of each reporting period.

5.1 Financial instruments measured at fair value

The Group has an established governance structure and controls framework to ensure that
fair values are either determined or validated by control units independent of the front
offices. Control units have overall responsibility for independent verification of valuation
results from front line businesses and all other significant fair value measurements. Specific
controls include verification of observable pricing inputs; review and approval for new
models and changes to models; calibration and back-testing of models against observed
market transactions; analysis and investigation of significant daily valuation movements;
review of significant unobservable inputs and valuation adjustments. Significant valuation
issues are reported to senior management, Risk Committee and Audit Committee.
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I mENsE (&) Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

5. EEMABNAE 5. Fair values of assets and liabilities (continued)
(&)

5.1 Financial instruments measured at fair value (continued)
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REAE IR S R SR R A
E2H (AT
AT DL S 1T B (A48 R e 4
BT R R PR A~ 2
KRBl ~ R R TR LS

) fHH -

The Group uses valuation techniques or broker/dealer quotations to determine the fair
value of financial instruments when unable to obtain the open market quotation in active
markets.

The main parameters used in valuation techniques for financial instruments held by the
Group include bond prices, interest rates, foreign exchange rates, equity and stock prices,
volatilities, counterparty credit spreads and others, which are mostly observable and
obtainable from open market.

The technique used to calculate the fair value of the following financial instruments is as
below:

Debt securities and certificates of deposit

The fair value of these instruments is determined by obtaining quoted market prices from
exchange, dealer or independent pricing service vendors or using discounted cash flow
technique. Discounted cash flow model is a valuation technique that measures present
value using estimated expected future cash flows from the instruments and then discounts
these flows using a discount rate or discount margin that reflects the credit spreads
required by the market for instruments with similar risk. These inputs are observable or
can be corroborated by observable or unobservable market data.

Asset backed securities

For this class of instruments, external prices are obtained from independent third parties.
The valuation of these securities, depending on the nature of transaction, is estimated
from market standard cash flow models with input parameter which include spreads to
discount rates, default and recovery rates and prepayment rates that may be observable
or compiled through matrix pricing for similar issues.

174



@ ¥ 8 4 47 (5 ) B mAT

BANK OF CHINA (HONG KONG) LIMITED

I mENsE (&) Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

5. EEMABNAE 5. Fair values of assets and liabilities (continued)
(&)

5.1 Financial instruments measured at fair value (continued)
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Derivatives

OTC derivative contracts include forward, swap and option contracts on foreign exchange,
interest rate, equity, commodity or credit. The fair values of these contracts are mainly
measured using valuation techniques such as discounted cash flow models and option
pricing models. The inputs can be observable or unobservable market data. Observable
inputs include interest rate, foreign exchange rates, equity and stock prices, commodity
prices, credit default swap spreads and volatilities. Unobservable inputs such as volatility
surface may be used for less commonly traded option products which are embedded in
structured deposits. For certain complex derivative contracts, the fair values are
determined based on broker/dealer price quotations.

Credit valuation adjustments (“CVA”) and debit valuation adjustments (“DVA”) are applied
to the Group’s OTC derivatives. These adjustments reflect market factors movement,
expectations of counterparty creditworthiness and the Group’s own credit spread
respectively. They are mainly determined for each counterparty and are dependent on
expected future values of exposures, default probabilities and recovery rates.

Financial liabilities designated at fair value through profit or loss

AfEEE 2 SRl A
BT BB T iR
AT EAEFER - JE
GEREME A QAR E A
S G {55 %5 2 2 A (B
ENRAT - SEREMEAARRA A
S R ER AR AR A7 R iR
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5 T A TRAA
SPEEFT AL RT A TR HY
(BT AT -

This class of instruments includes certain deposits received from customers that are
embedded with derivatives. The plain vanilla contracts are valued in the similar way
described in previous debt securities section. The fair value of structured deposits is
derived from the fair value of the underlying deposit by using discounted cash flow
analysis taking the Group’s own credit risk into account, and the fair value of the
embedded derivatives determined as described in the paragraph above on derivatives.
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I mENsE (&) Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
5. EEMABNAE 5. Fair values of assets and liabilities (continued)
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(A) Fair value hierarchy

Financial assets
Financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss
(Note 20)
- Trading assets
- Debt securities and
certificates of deposit
- Others
- Financial assets
designated at fair value
through profit or loss
- Debt securities and
certificates of deposit
Derivative financial
instruments (Note 21)
Available-for-sale securities
(Note 24)
- Debt securities and
certificates of deposit
- Equity securities

Financial liabilities
Financial liabilities at fair value
through profit or loss
(Note 30)
- Trading liabilities
- Financial liabilities
designated at fair value
through profit or loss
Derivative financial
instruments (Note 21)
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5.1 Financial instruments measured at fair value (continued)

2015
E—fEH Bk B=RE% LGE
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
BETETT ABYEERL BEEET AYEET
HK$’'m HK$’'m HK$’'m HK$’'m
1 29,593 - 29,594
- 180 - 180
- 986 - 986
12,493 30,609 - 43,102
95,944 320,551 - 416,495
- - 287 287
- 8,371 - 8,371
- 2,571 - 2,571
8,936 31,206 - 40,142
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I mENsE (&) Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

5. EEMABNAE 5. Fair values of assets and liabilities (continued)

(&)
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Financial assets
Financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss
(Note 20)
- Trading assets
- Debt securities and
certificates of deposit
- Equity securities
- Financial assets
designated at fair value
through profit or loss
- Debt securities and
certificates of deposit
Derivative financial
instruments (Note 21)
Available-for-sale securities
(Note 24)
- Debt securities and
certificates of deposit
- Equity securities

Financial liabilities
Financial liabilities at fair value
through profit or loss
(Note 30)
- Trading liabilities
- Financial liabilities
designated at fair value
through profit or loss
Derivative financial
instruments (Note 21)

(A) Fair value hierarchy (continued)

5.1 Financial instruments measured at fair value (continued)

2014
E—TEk o 1 E=EH HEET
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
WEEHETT  AWEHETT ANEET AYNEET
HK$'m HK$'m HK$'m HK$'m
189 33,557 - 33,746
3 - - 3
- 1,357 - 1,357
10,885 22,474 - 33,359
8,374 328,731 231 337,336
- 719 267 986
- 9,145 - 9,145
- 3,115 - 3,115
6,979 13,793 - 20,772

There were no financial asset and liability transfers between level 1 and level 2 for the
Group during the year (2014: Nil).
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5. EEMABNAE 5. Fair values of assets and liabilities (continued)
(&)

5.1 DIAHEETEHIER T
8 (8

(B) E=ERATAEE

L]

H2015E1H1H

- ik
- Hft AT
- AT S
ITAERE
BA
P =
SRR

#20154£12 H 31 H

2015412 4311
FrAMNEREEN T
e E== <IN
U AR

(B) Reconciliation of level 3 items

At 1 January 2015

Gains
- Income statement

- Other comprehensive income
- Change in fair value of available-for-sale

securities
Purchases
Transfer out of level 3

Classified as assets held for sale

At 31 December 2015

Total unrealised gains for the year included in
income statement for financial assets held as

at 31 December 2015
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5.1 Financial instruments measured at fair value (continued)

2015
SRUEE
Financial assets
A HEES
Available-for-sale
securities
ERsE
RERE
Debt securities ety
and certificates Equity
of deposit securities
EREET EREET
HK$’'m HK$’'m
231 267
1 17
- 8
(232) -
- (5)
- 287
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I mENsE (&) Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

5. EEMABNAE 5. Fair values of assets and liabilities (continued)
(&)

5.1 PIATEEBASET 5.1 Financial instruments measured at fair value (continued)

A2 (8
(B) EE=E4RHTHE & (B) Reconciliation of level 3 items (continued)
B (&)
2014
ERERE
Financial assets
LB
Available-for-sale
securities
(Evices
FATREE
Debt securities REra8 25
and certificates Equity
of deposit securities
AR ETT BEEHET
HK$'m HK$'m
A 2014FE1H1H At 1 January 2014 5,450 250
W Gains
- Wik - Income statement - -
- Htr2mEs - Other comprehensive income
- AR ER ST - Change in fair value of available-for-sale
AEEEE securities 11 17
HH Sales (3,410) -
B =g Transfer out of level 3 (1,820) -
72014 F12 H 31 H At 31 December 2014 231 267
20144412 H 31 H Total unrealised gains for the year included in
ARG RMEENTE income statement for financial assets held as
REPNE =R N at 31 December 2014
AU e 48R - -
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5. EEMABNAE 5. Fair values of assets and liabilities (continued)
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5.1 Financial instruments measured at fair value (continued)

(B) Reconciliation of level 3 items (continued)

As at 31 December 2015 and 2014, financial instruments categorised as level 3 are
mainly comprised of debt securities, certificates of deposit and unlisted equity shares.

Debt securities and certificates of deposit were transferred out of level 3 in the years of
2015 and 2014 due to improvement of valuation observability. For certain illiquid debt
securities and certificates of deposit, the Group obtains valuation quotations from
counterparties which may be based on unobservable inputs with significant impact on
the valuation. Therefore, these instruments have been classified by the Group as level
3. The Group has established internal control procedures to control the Group’s
exposure to such financial instruments.

The fair values of unlisted available-for-sale equity shares are determined with
reference to multiples of comparable listed companies, such as average of the
price/earning ratios of comparables, or net asset value, if appropriate comparables are
not available. The fair value is positively correlated to the price/earning ratios of
appropriate comparables or net asset values. Had the net asset value of the underlying
equity investments increased/decreased by 5%, the Group’s other comprehensive
income would have increased/decreased by HK$14 million (2014: HK$13 million).
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5. EEMABNAE 5. Fair values of assets and liabilities (continued)
(&)

5.2 Financial instruments not measured at fair value

5.2 JEDAANFEET BHIE R

IR

YA R DUE— 2
B A 7 3 R B
7 4 TR R AT
fi5 - LUF 2 R R B
8 2 0400 P 1 31
EERMTAZATH -

I 18 R SRAT R LA

Fair value estimates are made at a specific point in time based on relevant market
information and information about various financial instruments. The following methods
and assumptions have been used to estimate the fair value of each class of financial
instrument as far as practicable.

Balances with/from banks and other financial institutions and trade bills

A 2 GEER e B
Ei
Ko 2 Rl A 7E S
R4S R H IR — N
F > AR EEB AP
(EREESH

5SRO SRAT R ELA

Substantially all the financial assets and liabilities mature within one year from the balance
sheet date and their carrying value approximates fair value.

Advances to customers and banks and other financial institutions

SRR ERK
KRy 2% F &R R
T B Hofth < R A 0K
EFEIRER IS ER
STEAE - HAREEE
SPAEARE -

FrEERHH %
HAZFHHERZA
PEREE BT 5.1 L
A EETRIVERS S
R AR A AR
SFRRFZJTEME -
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7 DB U2 o
TSR 0 R 2
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EHEEFK
RERTT 2 3 P AR
SRARENENE H
MR IR L PEAR

BT E a7 MAFRK

Substantially all the advances to customers and banks and other financial institutions are
on floating rate terms, bear interest at prevailing market interest rates and their carrying
value approximates fair value.

Held-to-maturity securities

The fair value of held-to-maturity securities is determined by using the same approach as
those debt securities and certificates of deposit and asset backed securities measured at
fair value as described in Note 5.1.

Loans and receivables
A discounted cash flow model is used based on a current yield curve appropriate for the
remaining term to maturity.

Deposits from customers
Substantially all the deposits from customers mature within one year from the balance sheet
date and their carrying value approximates fair value.

Debt securities and certificates of deposit in issue

g
[EL5 A

TR 2 A P EEE
BRI 5.1 PILLA-PERT
BHIEE 8 I MK
& ER R 2
JiEMR -

YT
PSS 2 AP R 1
T S A 52 5
P AT

The fair value of these instruments is determined by using the same approach as those debt
securities and certificates of deposit and asset backed securities measured at fair value as
described in Note 5.1.

Subordinated liabilities
Fair value for subordinated notes is based on market prices or broker/dealer price
quotations.
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Mg MEE (&) Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

5. EEMABINAE 5. Fair values of assets and liabilities (continued)

()
5.2 JENEH B RE 5.2 Financial instruments not measured at fair value (continued)
IHE (&)
Rk DA b ECRE [F {8 L0 S The following tables set out the carrying values and fair values of the financial instruments
EAER R TES T not measured at fair value, except for the above with their carrying values being
TRIELLA FEHET R approximation of fair values.
Rl CHEZIRAEMEMNL
S -
2015 2014
AREE RIAIE
Carrying AFE Carrying APE
value Fair value value Fair value
BEEETT BEEER  AYEErT BYEET
HK$’'m HK$’m HK$'m HK$'m
SRR E Financial assets
FEZAHEES Held-to-maturity securities
(BfsE 24) (Note 24) 64,583 65,822 60,488 61,668
EEREYGR (FfsE 24) Loans and receivables
(Note 24) 3,166 3,171 4,868 4,867
=Lt Financial liabilities
LB T8 5 M2 Debt securities and certificates
(Hf5E 32) of deposit in issue (Note 32) 6,976 7,222 11,901 12,315
&AM (FiFE35) Subordinated liabilities
(Note 35) 19,422 21,507 19,676 21,624
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I mENsE (&) Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
5. EEMABNAE 5. Fair values of assets and liabilities (continued)

(&)
5.2 JEDIN AR IERE 5.2 Financial instruments not measured at fair value (continued)
IHE (&)
TR EWBEEH N FE The following tables show the fair value hierarchy for financial instruments with fair values
B e THE 2 AFE disclosed.
2015
F—E%k E @R E=IEk 4Ezt
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
BEEETT B¥EET A¥EERT  BEEET
HK$’'m HK$’'m HK$’'m HK$’'m
SRERE Financial assets
HAZFHHES Held-to-maturity securities 411 65,411 - 65,822
B R FELRGER Loans and receivables - 3,171 - 3,171
SREE Financial liabilities
ESTESE 5 Debt securities and certificates
be2 G of deposit in issue - 7,222 - 7,222
®BEAE Subordinated liabilities - 21,507 - 21,507
2014
BBl EER E=TEk daEtT
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
AEEET BEBEHET BYEET AR E T
HK$'m HK$'m HK$'m HK$'m
SREE Financial assets
HEEFIHEIHZE S Held-to-maturity securities 412 61,256 - 61,668
B FEGER Loans and receivables - 4,867 - 4,867
e =L Financial liabilities
B TEESESRK Debt securities and certificates
e2 Gt of deposit in issue - 12,315 - 12,315
®“IEERE Subordinated liabilities - 21,624 - 21,624
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MEHwEHEE (&) Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

5. EEMABNAE 5. Fair values of assets and liabilities (continued)
(&)

5.3 DA EEHEIES R 5.3 Non-financial instruments measured at fair value

IR
R A — SR The Group uses valuation techniques or quoted market prices in active market to
i Bk B AT 1 R A R determine the fair value of non-financial instruments.

TEFE R TEAYAFE -

BEMERERE Investment properties and premises

KEE YA 5 B The Group’s properties can be divided into investment properties and premises. All of the
EVUE G IR Group’s investment properties and premises were revalued as at year end. The valuations
EZEMERFED were carried out by an independent firm of chartered surveyors, Savills Valuation and
AR ETE A © (5 EH Professional Services Limited, who have among their staff Fellow and Members of The
IR SRS — K Hong Kong Institute of Surveyors with recent experience in the locations and categories of
SR HE TG (E e R properties being valued. The Group’s Management had discussions with the surveyors on
MAERAEHET » HiER the valuation methods, valuation assumptions and valuation results when the valuation is
BEHEEHNEMEgE performed at each interim and annual reporting date. There has been no change in
FHEEGERHEETE valuation methods during the year.

‘gz NB - MAEEEY)
SE T R b i R A
HEEs - BHENEFE
RBAEARHE TR > A5EH
B R e o RN R Bl B
fETTE ~ A E R A
EEER - (HEIERERN
AT -

) @\ FEE = (i) Valuation methods and inputs used in Level 2 fair value measurements
R WAL A 7704 R R
ES
W RS gk The fair value of properties classified as Level 2 is determined using either the market
WIZENE TS5 comparison approach by reference to recent sales price of comparable properties or the
A ERE Y 2 T H Y income capitalisation approach by reference to market rent and capitalisation rate, with
B E (HELLER appropriate adjustments to reflect the differences between the comparable properties
) S E IS4 K and the subject properties. These adjustments are considered as insignificant to the
BEARER (WAER entire measurement.
%) TR
Fe s Y 2E 2 MY

R E S - It
EF LS Rk

FFEA AR E R

@,

KEBEZWEHETR The Group’s properties are located in Hong Kong and major cities in the PRC where
TR A F the property markets are considered active and transparent. Sales price, market rent
o W B E R F and capitalisation rate of comparable properties are generally observable either directly
BHEISE T - Al EhER or indirectly in these markets.

Ytz HEE - hisiE
& RAR R
AR E TS L HE
PR 2R -

184



@ ¥ 8 4 47 (5 ) B mAT

BANK OF CHINA (HONG KONG) LIMITED

MEHwEHEE (&) Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

5. EEMABNAE 5. Fair values of assets and liabilities (continued)
(&)

5.3 DIATEEHBAVIESR 5.3 Non-financial instruments measured at fair value (continued)

IHE (&)

BEMERFE (&) Investment properties and premises (continued)

(i) A RBEEE =B e A FE (ii) Information about Level 3 fair value measurements
srENER
FRERT T AN > #7558 The fair value of all of the Group’s properties classified as Level 3, except for the bank
B R = JE R AR R E vault, is determined using either the market comparison approach or the income
W 2 INEE SR E capitalisation approach, adjusted for a premium or a discount specific to the features of
TS EROASUT A A the Group’s properties compared to the comparable properties.
A% T AREEYHE
MEP TR E
B PR i (E AR AR
EE -
FH A SRAT 42 JEE 2 J8 The fair value of the bank vault is determined using the depreciated replacement cost
B I HETISR SE approach as no direct comparable is available given the specialised nature of the
BIRTE LR » AT property. The major inputs are the market value of the existing land, the current cost of
Ty FITE EERA replacing the property and the depreciation rate. Appropriate adjustments are made to
EEE TENRZE R reflect the specialised nature of the property.
ARG TR - B

B33 3UERETESI0®N
MR WARHEER
i B DS WL 26 6 B
FiEE -

185



@ ¥ 8 4 47 (5 ) B mAT

BANK OF CHINA (HONG KONG) LIMITED

I mENsE (&) Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

5. EEMABNAE 5. Fair values of assets and liabilities (continued)
(&)
5.3 DA EEEH R IESRE 5.3 Non-financial instruments measured at fair value (continued)
IR (8

Investment properties and premises (continued)

BBV EE (8

(i) BRI =@ 4 A
sTERAVER (8)

(i) Information about Level 3 fair value measurements (continued)

PUT B A HEE = The valuation methods and significant unobservable inputs used in the fair value
RS E A E =g measurement of the Group’s properties classified as Level 3 are as follows:
oz REEEYERTER
FEISETT AR ER
FATERZR IR
FAHRRRRE A ETRE S
BT HARUERERNE iG-S Relationship of
Valuation Significant Weighted unobservable inputs
method unobservable inputs average to fair value
AT ITEEEERAE ress FF2% Pressls - A PEE -
Bank vault Depreciated Depreciation rate (20144F : 2%) The higher the depreciation rate,
replacement cost 2% (2014: 2%) the lower the fair value.
approach per year
VISR IR EEERRNA+20% e ERE  APERE -
Premium on specialised| (20144 : +20% ) The higher the premium,
nature of the property | +20% (2014: +20%) the higher the fair value.
to building cost
HoAtr MGt E | YIsEMH S AT M -9% (B o A PERE
Other W ANE AL B EZaE (3FE) (2014: -13%) The higher the premium,
properties Market Premium/(discount) the higher the fair value.
comparison on features of the
approach or property compared to Pk - AEEBEK -
income comparable properties The higher the discount,
capitalisation the lower the fair value.
approach

UESEE DRIy E
MWH EZEE S GrED
TS5 B LLB R
FRKEZE bR - f)
WIRRAS TR 2 i) -
'~ N - i
AR~ MRS~ TR
[ E -

Premium/(discount) on features of a property is determined after taken into account various
factors, such as time for market movement, location, accessibility, building age/condition,
floor level, size, layout, etc., with reference to the differences in features with comparable

properties.
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BANK OF CHINA (HONG KONG) LIMITED

Precious metals

I mENsE (&) Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
5. EEMABNAE 5. Fair values of assets and liabilities (continued)

5.3 Non-financial instruments measured at fair value (continued)

The fair values of precious metals are determined by obtaining quoted market prices in
active market or market quote with certain adjustments.

(A) Fair value hierarchy

Non-financial assets

Investment properties (Note 26)
Properties, plant and equipment

(Note 27)
- Premises

Other assets (Note 28)
- Precious metals

Non-financial assets

Investment properties (Note 26)
Properties, plant and equipment

(Note 27)
- Premises

Other assets (Note 28)
- Precious metals

2015
F—E% BE Bk #ET
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
BESET RBYEE T BYEERT  BYEERT
HK$’'m HK$’'m HK$’'m HK$’'m
- 637 14,763 15,400
- 2,328 45,721 48,049
2,105 1,568 - 3,673
2014
B EIBEK = HaEt
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
AEEHET AFOET BYOET AEEETT
HK$'m HK$'m HK$'m HK$'m
- 358 14,332 14,690
- 2,855 49,653 52,508
3,670 12 - 3,682

There were no non-financial asset transfers between level 1 and level 2 for the Group during

the year (2014: Nil).
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BANK OF CHINA (HONG KONG) LIMITED

I mENsE (&) Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
5. EEMABNAE 5. Fair values of assets and liabilities (continued)

(&)

5.3 DAAHEETEHIFEER
IR (8

(B) SE=B4kAIHEH ) (8)

HR20154FE1H1H

Wegs (58D

- Yk
- HER A
2P
- EIEHELHER
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- B
i
ne
15

B =&k
I ==

bE S0 A2
IR EERE

2015412 H31H

7% 2015 4% 12 A 31 HEFE
HIFEERE NP A
Wi 26 22 119 oK BT B USRS
(518 4o
- A TR

Pk
- EEEE G

Reconciliation of level 3 items

At 1 January 2015

Gains/(losses)
- Income statement
- Net gain from fair value adjustments
on investment properties
- Net loss from revaluation of premises
- Other comprehensive income
- Revaluation of premises
Depreciation
Additions
Disposals
Transfer into level 3
Transfer out of level 3
Reclassification
Exchange difference
Classified as assets held for sale

At 31 December 2015

Total unrealised gains/(losses) for the year
included in income statement for
non-financial assets held as at 31
December 2015
- Net gain from fair value adjustments on

investment properties
- Net loss from revaluation of premises
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5.3 Non-financial instruments measured at fair value (continued)

2015

TR E

Non-financial assets

YIsk ~ 230 RERE

Properties, plant

K&y and equipment
Investment BE
properties Premises
BEEEET AEEET
HK$’'m HK$’'m
14,332 49,653
796 -

- (136)

- 3,428

- (1,014)

43 409

- (363)

199 1,698

(394) (1,118)

202 (202)

(1) (27

(414) (6,607)
14,763 45,721
760 -

- (137)

760 (137)
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BANK OF CHINA (HONG KONG) LIMITED

I mENsE (&) Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
5. EEMABNAE 5. Fair values of assets and liabilities (continued)
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- B EEZ

(B) Reconciliation of level 3 items (continued)

At 1 January 2014

Gains
- Income statement
- Net gain from fair value adjustments
on investment properties
- Net gain from revaluation of premises
- Other comprehensive income
- Revaluation of premises
Depreciation
Additions
Transfer into level 3
Transfer out of level 3
Reclassification
Exchange difference

At 31 December 2014

Total unrealised gains for the year included
in income statement for non-financial
assets held as at 31 December 2014
- Net gain from fair value adjustments on

investment properties
- Net gain from revaluation of premises
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5.3 Non-financial instruments measured at fair value (continued)

2014

JERiE E
Non-financial assets

WISk ~ 251 Rkt

Properties, plant

&Y and equipment
Investment R
properties Premises
A ETT A ETT
HK$'m HK$'m
13,132 41,698

330 -

- 2

- 2,675

- (876)

- 187

1,254 7,139

- (1,544)

(384) 384

- (12)

14,332 49,653
330 -

- 2

330 2
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BANK OF CHINA

HONG KONG) LIMITED

I mENsE (&) Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
5. EEMABNAE 5. Fair values of assets and liabilities (continued)
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5.3 Non-financial instruments measured at fair value (continued)

(B) Reconciliation of level 3 items (continued)

The transfer of properties into and out of level 3 is due to change in the
premium/(discount) on features applied between the subject and comparable properties
during the year. Premium/(discount) on features is determined with reference to
differences in features between the subject properties and the comparable properties
recently transacted in the market. As comparable properties that come from recent
market transactions may be different in each year, the premium/(discount) on features
applied between the subject and comparable properties would change from year to year
accordingly. As a result, the significance of adjustments made to observable market
inputs may vary and lead to the transfer of properties into and out of level 3.
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BANK OF CHINA (HONG KONG) LIMITED

6. Net interest income

CONTINUING OPERATIONS

Interest income

Due from banks and other financial institutions

Advances to customers

Investment in securities and financial assets at
fair value through profit or loss

Others

Interest expense

Due to banks and other financial institutions

Deposits from customers

Debt securities and certificates of deposit in

issue
Subordinated liabilities
Others

Net interest income

Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

(EF)
(Restated)
2015 2014
EEEET AEEETT
HK$’'m HK$'m
8,171 11,587

18,868 16,771
8,577 7,998
214 183
35,830 36,539
(1,799) (1,395)
(9,412) (9,984)
(308) (223)
(441) (271)
(368) (101)
(12,328) (11,974)
23,502 24,565

Included within interest income is HK$14 million (2014: HK$8 million) of interest with respect
to income accrued on advances classified as impaired for the year ended 31 December 2015.
Interest income accrued on impaired investment in securities amounted to HK$3 million

(2014: HK$3 million).

Included within interest income and interest expense are HK$36,552 million (2014:
HK$37,523 million) and HK$12,883 million (2014: HK$12,630 million), before hedging effect,
for financial assets and financial liabilities that are not recognised at fair value through profit

or loss respectively.
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7. Net fee and commission income

CONTINUING OPERATIONS

Fee and commission income
Credit card business
Securities brokerage

Loan commissions
Insurance

Funds distribution
Payment services

Bills commissions

Trust and custody services
Currency exchange

Safe deposit box

Others

Fee and commission expense
Credit card business

Securities brokerage

Insurance

Others

Net fee and commission income

Of which arise from

- financial assets or financial liabilities not at fair value

through profit or loss

Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

- Fee and commission income
- Fee and commission expense

- trust and other fiduciary activities

- Fee and commission income
- Fee and commission expense

192

(&)

(Restated)

2015 2014
AREET BEEET
HK$’'m HK$'m
3,751 3,635
3,397 2,471
3,287 1,891
1,629 1,379
877 824
563 534
543 574
478 446
302 231
264 241
759 659
15,850 12,885
(2,802) (2,689)
(392) (279)
(188) (174)
(822) (650)
(4,204) (3,792)
11,646 9,093
3,453 2,014
(20) (13)
3,433 2,001
666 629
(28) (25)
638 604
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8. Net trading gain

CONTINUING OPERATIONS

Net gain from
- foreign exchange and foreign exchange
products
- interest rate instruments and items under
fair value hedge
- commodities
- equity and credit derivative instruments

9. HihEREEFIWZS 9. Net gain on other financial assets

FrEBER

A SR IR U
SRS E R es e e
HAtr

10. EMME&BEUA

IR UA

- JR LR
REVEEZ S
R ARIREE S S
At

FHBIREYEEZ S
BREFENAR IS
ZHBCES A 4 T
HT (2014 42 8 T

g —

BIT) °

CONTINUING OPERATIONS

Net gain on available-for-sale securities
Net gain on held-to-maturity securities
Others

10. Other operating income

CONTINUING OPERATIONS

Dividend income from investment in securities

- Unlisted investments
Gross rental income from investment properties
Less: Outgoings in respect of investment properties
Others

Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

(&%)
(Restated)
2015 2014
AEEET B EETT
HK$’'m HK$'m
2,015 1,472
330 580
57 62
202 88
2,604 2,202
(&%)
(Restated)
2015 2014
EHEET A EETT
HK$’'m HK$'m
1,139 554
7 -
4 1
1,150 555
(1))
(Restated)
2015 2014
B EET BEET
HK$’'m HK$'m
34 37
458 442
(61) (69)
271 92
702 502

Included in the “Outgoings in respect of investment properties” is HK$4 million (2014: HK$8
million) of direct operating expenses related to investment properties that were not let during

the year.
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BANK OF CHINA (HONG KONG) LIMITED

M HENE (&) Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

1. REZEGF R 1.

BERE
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HAtr

RERERRRE

Net charge of impairment allowances

CONTINUING OPERATIONS

Advances to customers
Individually assessed

- New allowances
- Releases
- Recoveries

Net (charge)/reversal of individually assessed loan
impairment allowances

Collectively assessed
- New allowances
- Releases
- Recoveries

Net charge of collectively assessed loan
impairment allowances

Net charge of loan impairment allowances

Others

Net charge of impairment allowances
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(EF)

(Restated)

2015 2014
AEEETT A EETT
HK$’'m HK$'m
(683) (229)
93 306

11 155
(479) 232
(549) (402)

1 3

45 40
(503) (359)
(982) (127)
51 (19)
(931) (146)
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BANK OF CHINA (HONG KONG) LIMITED

MsEENis: ()  Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

12. BT H 12. Operating expenses
(EF])
(Restated)
2015 2014
BEEHETT A ETT
HK$’'m HK$'m
RESBREs CONTINUING OPERATIONS
NEER (EHEEEMe) Staff costs (including directors’ emoluments)
- SHE e Ho - Salaries and other costs 5,977 5,462
- IBIREEA - Pension cost 402 386
6,379 5,848
BEMEHETH CRafE Premises and equipment expenses (excluding
HTEE) depreciation)
- FEHS - Rental of premises 596 581
- FElRHY - Information technology 408 390
- HAh - Others 390 369
1,394 1,340
s Depreciation 1,718 1,592
T BT < Auditor’s remuneration
- TR - Audit services 21 20
- IR RIS - Non-audit services 10 10
FA &0 Other operating expenses 1,989 1,644
11,511 10,454

FEEMS | AEENE R Contingent rent included in the “Rental of premises” amounted to HK$16 million during the

4oie 016 (557 (2014 45 :  year (2014: HK$15 million).
ABH 015 fFT) -
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BANK OF CHINA (HONG KONG) LIMITED

IBEHRENEE (&) Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
13. TEEYELE N\ 13. Net gain from disposal of/fair value adjustments on investment

(EELE-Paealie

B ERE
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14. HE EEYE - 284 14.
Ktz 34518

FREERE
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CEVEERR A ~ ] R S
R

B flifrE 2 TR

properties

(EF)
(Restated)
2015 2014
AEEHET AR EHETT
HK$’'m HK$'m
CONTINUING OPERATIONS
Net gain from fair value adjustments on investment
properties 798 360
Net loss from disposal/revaluation of properties, plant and
equipment
(EF0)
(Restated)
2015 2014
BEMEHET BIEEETT
HK$’'m HK$'m
CONTINUING OPERATIONS
Net gain from disposal of premises 95 1
Net loss from disposal of equipment, fixtures and
fittings (21) (25)
Net loss from revaluation of premises (137) -
(63) (24)
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15. Taxation

Taxation in the income statement represents:

CONTINUING OPERATIONS

Current tax
Hong Kong profits tax
- Current year taxation
- Over-provision in prior years

Overseas taxation
- Current year taxation
- Over-provision in prior years

Deferred tax

Origination and reversal of temporary differences

and unused tax credits

Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

(Q=:¢UIp)
(Restated)
2015 2014
BEEETT B EE T
HK$’'m HK$'m
4,310 3,845
(49) (57)
4,261 3,788
684 923
4) 4)
4,941 4,707
(760) 71
4,181 4,778

Hong Kong profits tax has been provided at the rate of 16.5% (2014: 16.5%) on the
estimated assessable profits arising in Hong Kong during the year. Taxation on overseas
profits has been calculated on the estimated assessable profits for the year at the rates of
taxation prevailing in the countries in which the Group operates.

The taxation on the Group’s profit before taxation that differs from the theoretical amount
that would arise using the taxation rate of Hong Kong is as follows:

CONTINUING OPERATIONS

Profit before taxation

Calculated at a taxation rate of 16.5% (2014: 16.5%)

Effect of different taxation rates in other countries

Income not subject to taxation

Expenses not deductible for taxation purposes

Over-provision in prior years

Foreign withholding tax
Taxation charge
Effective tax rate
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(Q=:¢UIp)
(Restated)

2015 2014
BEEET A EETT
HK$’'m HK$'m
27,929 26,673
4,608 4,401
(21) 12
(304) 3
118 60
(53) (61)
(167) 363
4,181 4,778
15.0% 17.9%
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BANK OF CHINA (HONG KONG) LIMITED

Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

16. Dividends
2015 2014
£t ) 534 Hazg
B BAREET Pt B EETT
Per share Total Per share Total
HK$ HK$’'m HK$ HK$'m
Dividends 0.304 13,085 0.206 8,867

On 16 June 2015, the Board declared an interim dividend of HK$0.057 per ordinary share
amounting to approximately HK$2,454 million, which was paid on 30 June 2015.

On 28 August 2015, the Board declared an interim dividend of HK$0.077 per ordinary
share amounting to approximately HK$3,314 million, which was paid on 24 September
2015.

On 27 October 2015, the Board declared a special dividend of HK$0.006 per ordinary
share amounting to approximately HK$258 million, which was paid on 30 November 2015.

On 31 December 2015, the Board declared an interim dividend of HK$0.084 per ordinary
share amounting to approximately HK$3,616 million, which was paid on 31 December
2015.

On 30 March 2016, the Board declared an interim dividend of HK$0.080 per ordinary share
amounting to approximately HK$3,443 million. This declared interim dividend is not
reflected as a dividend payable in these financial statements, but will be reflected as an
appropriation of retained earnings for the year ending 31 December 2016.
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MBI (&)
17. BREFIA

Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

17. Retirement benefit costs
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Defined contribution schemes for the Group’s employees are ORSO schemes exempted
under the MPF Schemes Ordinance and the BOC-Prudential Easy Choice MPF Scheme.
Under the ORSO schemes, employees make monthly contributions to the ORSO schemes
equal to 5% of their basic salaries, while the employer makes monthly contributions equal
to 5% to 15% of the employees’ monthly basic salaries, depending on years of service. The
employees are entitled to receive 100% of the employer’s contributions upon retirement,
early retirement or termination of employment after completing 10 years of service.
Employees with 3 to 9 years of service are entitled to receive the employer’s contributions
at a scale ranging from 30% to 90% upon termination of employment for other reasons
other than summary dismissal. All employer’s contributions received by employee are
subject to MPF Schemes Ordinance.

With the implementation of the MPF Schemes Ordinance on 1 December 2000, the Group
also participates in the BOC-Prudential Easy Choice MPF Scheme, of which the trustee is
BOCI-Prudential Trustee and the investment manager is BOCI-Prudential Manager, which
are related parties of the Bank.

The Group’s total contributions made to the ORSO schemes for the year ended 31
December 2015 amounted to approximately HK$367 million (2014: approximately HK$359
million), after a deduction of forfeited contributions of approximately HK$9 million (2014:
approximately HK$7 million). For the MPF Scheme, the Group contributed approximately
HK$74 million (2014: approximately HK$64 million) for the year ended 31 December 2015.
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IERFENEE (&) Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

18. X - 5@EH A B K 18. Directors’, senior management’s and key personnel’s emoluments
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(a) Directors’ and senior management’s emoluments

(i) Directors’ emoluments

Details of the emoluments paid to or receivable by the directors of the Bank in
respect of their services rendered for the Bank and managing the subsidiaries within
the Group during the year are as follows:

2015

EAHE - B0
KEYHEF
Basic salaries,

HEHES allowances

Directors’ and benefits PIsAN gast
fee in kind Bonus Total
AT AT BT ARt
HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
Executive Directors
YUE Yi (Chief Executive) " - 5,246 3,107 8,353
HE Guangbei
(Chief Executive) " 91 1,893 1,123 3,107
GAO Yingxin " 67 1,163 656 1,886
LI Jiuzhong M’ - 3,284 2,222 5,506
158 11,586 7,108 18,852
Non-executive Directors
TIAN Guoli - - - -
CHEN Siqing - - - -
YUE Yi N - - . .
REN Degi "' - - . .
GAO Yingxin " - - - -
XU Luode N - - . .
LI Zaohang "% - - - .
ZHU Shumin "% - - - -
CHENG Eva* 300 - - 300
KOH Beng Seng* 450 - - 450
SHAN Weijian* 400 - - 400
TUNG Savio Wai-Hok* 500 - - 500
1,650 - - 1,650
1,808 11,586 7,108 20,502

Note 1: Appointed during the year.
Note 2: Resigned/retired during the year.

Note 3: Re-designated as Executive Director effective from 6 March 2015.

Note 4: Re-designated as Non-executive Director effective from 11 March 2015.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

18. X - 5@EH A B K 18. Directors’, senior management’s and key personnel’s emoluments
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(continued)

(a) Directors’ and senior management’s emoluments (continued)

(i) Directors’ emoluments (continued)

2014
SN
FEYIER
Basic salaries,
HHE allowances
Directors’ and benefits TE4T 4t
fee in kind Bonus Total
AT AT AT BHETIT
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
Executive Directors
HE Guangbei (Chief Executive) 100 8,754 4,492 13,346
GAO Yingxin 100 5,906 2,622 8,628
200 14,660 7,114 21,974
Non-executive Directors
TIAN Guoli - - - -
CHEN Siging - - - -
YUE Yi - - - -
LI Lihui - - - -
LI Zaohang - - - -
ZHU Shumin - - - -
CHENG Eva* 52 - - 52
KOH Beng Seng* 409 - - 409
SHAN Weijian* 359 - - 359
TUNG Savio Wai-Hok* 459 - - 459
ZHOU Zaiqun 1,047 - - 1,047
FUNG Victor Kwok King* 133 - - 133
NING Gaoning* 125 - - 125
2,584 - - 2,584
2,784 14,660 7,114 24,558

* Independent Non-executive Directors

There were no directors waived emoluments for the year ended 31 December 2015
(2014: HK$2 million).
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MERENE (&) Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

18. X - 5@EH A B K 18. Directors’, senior management’s and key personnel’s emoluments

FEAEME (8) (continued)

(a) EBE RS EEHEAR (a) Directors’ and senior management’s emoluments (continued)

B (8

(ii) AL EHFAL (i) Five highest paid individuals
A EE I N T B The five individuals whose emoluments were the highest in the Group for the year
S aE 2 include two (2014: two) directors whose emoluments are reflected in the analysis
£ (2014 F:24) presented above. The emoluments payable to the remaining three (2014: three)
#FE > HeT#E individuals during the year are as follows:
A ESCo T Hogk 3

£ (2014 :34)
A e L

BT -
2015 2014
B EHET BIEHETT
HK$’'m HK$'m
FARHT & ROERG Basic salaries and allowances 1 12
TE&L Bonus 7 6
BIREETEIEER Contributions to pension schemes 1 1
19 19
FERN I FET R A Emoluments paid to or receivable by individuals during the year with reference to
BT R HE UL R UL their tenure are within the following bands:
ZHiesERIaT
PN
Number of individuals
2015 2014
A& 5,500,001 JT £ #% 6,000,000 JT HK$5,500,001 to HK$6,000,000 - 1
&% 6,000,001 JT £ ##e 6,500,000 JT HK$6,000,001 to HK$6,500,000 3 2
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MsEENTEE () Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

18. X - 5@EH A B K 18. Directors’, senior management’s and key personnel’s emoluments

FEAEME (8) (continued)

(a) EBE RS EEHEAR (a) Directors’ and senior management’s emoluments (continued)

B (&)
(iii) EEEEASHE (iii) Senior management’s emoluments

EEEHAEBEN Emoluments paid to or receivable by individuals during the year with reference to

MM EFHANEAT their tenure as senior management are within the following bands:

e H R M Bl

SR -

PN
Number of individuals
2015 2014

A% 500,001 JT &2 A% 1,000,000 JT HK$500,001 to HK$1,000,000 1 -
A& 1,000,001 JT £ #%e 1,500,000 JT HK$1,000,001 to HK$1,500,000 2 -
A& 1,500,001 JT £ ##e 2,000,000 JT HK$1,500,001 to HK$2,000,000 3 1
A&l 2,000,001 JT £ H##E 2,500,000 JT HK$2,000,001 to HK$2,500,000 1 -
A& 3,000,001 JT £ ##e 3,500,000 JT HK$3,000,001 to HK$3,500,000 2 -
A& 3,500,001 JT £ ##e 4,000,000 JT HK$3,500,001 to HK$4,000,000 - 1
A& 4,500,001 JT £ H### 5,000,000 JT HK$4,500,001 to HK$5,000,000 - 1
A& 5,000,001 JT £ ##e 5,500,000 JT HK$5,000,001 to HK$5,500,000 2 1
A& 5,500,001 JT £ #H# 6,000,000 7T HK$5,500,001 to HK$6,000,000 - 1
A& 6,000,001 JT £ #H# 6,500,000 JT HK$6,000,001 to HK$6,500,000 1 2
#EE 8,000,001 T & A 8,500,000 jT HK$8,000,001 to HK$8,500,000 1 -
i 8,500,001 T & A 9,000,000 jT HK$8,500,001 to HK$9,000,000 - 1
i 13,000,001 JT £ ##E 13,500,000 T HK$13,000,001 to HK$13,500,000 -
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

18. X  5@EH A B K 18. Directors’, senior management’s and key personnel’s emoluments

EEAEME (&)

(b) CG-5 TEREEHEARAR
YN

HeEE%Z CG-5
C TR e 9 57 TN 1 2 45
50) > REEAREHZ
EREH AR R ER
ABRIFBEEEOT

(i) PEEPIHZTHIETE

(continued)

(b) Remuneration for Senior Management and Key Personnel under CG-5

Pursuant to CG-5 Guideline on a Sound Remuneration System issued by the HKMA,
details of the remuneration for Senior Management and Key Personnel of the Group

during the year are as follows:

(i) Remuneration awarded during the year

2015
BHREEAE FEAE
Senior Management Key Personnel
JRIBAE ‘ s ‘
Non- WA gt Non- MRIE dEt
deferred Deferred Total deferred Deferred Total
AEEET B¥EET ABEEET BEaErT AYEET BYEET
HK$’'m HK$’'m HK$’'m HK$’'m HK$’'m HK$’'m
(&1 2 Fixed remuneration
s Cash 34 34 51 . 51
BTN Variable remuneration
R4 Cash 14 17 27 10 37
48 51 78 10 88
2014
EHREHAR TEAE
Senior Management Key Personnel
FEIRAE FEIRAE
Non- IEAE 45T Non- IEHE HEET
deferred Deferred Total deferred Deferred Total
BEEHET BEEET BEEET  BYEEEsET BEOET ABWEHET
HK$'m HK$'m HK$'m HK$'m HK$'m HK$'m
& E T Fixed remuneration
W Cash 46 46 51 - 51
T EETN Variable remuneration
4 Cash 14 19 24 7 31
60 65 75 7 82

L EFrEf G AE 15
(2014 112 %) &
WEMANRR 22 4
(2014 £ : 18 %) E
EIN-R

The remuneration above includes 15 (2014: 12) members of Senior Management
and 22 (2014: 18) members of Key Personnel.
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(b) CG-5 TEREEHEARAR
EEANBNFH (&)

(i) BEIERTHH

AT
ERE
REFE

BA1A1TH

BT

B3

B ET AL
[IE{RYz4E1%%)

12731 H

FRIEE R - AE e
R EFEHAB R E
HANBTIRBEER
AR B B o I ) 1€ 5
31) EF -

- ERUET AR
15 T 19 5 4R B A
B AR S
TS > IR B
R N
G BT -
B LR RS
E

EEAR EAERE
A R BN B oK
% HElEREAER
% AEAEUN G ¢ )
WETAERE B
B B FIAHEREY
& OPNI=S QR SPe
FIR SRR B A
B REEEEIES
AE-HEARSE
B DU Rl S A
IERES A2 0L Hiid
FHEAN

Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

18. Directors’, senior management’s and key personnel’s emoluments
(continued)

(b) Remuneration for Senior Management and Key Personnel under CG-5 (continued)

(ii) Deferred remuneration

2015 2014
BHREEAS EEEA R
Senior FEAR Senior FEAE
Management Key Personnel Management Key Personnel
AEEET AYEEET B EET B EET
HK$’'m HK$’'m HK$'m HK$'m
Deferred remuneration
Vested 5 7 6 6
Unvested 8 17 10 14
13 24 16 20
At 1 January 10 14 11 13
Awarded 3 10 5 7
Paid out (5) (7 (6) (6)
Reduced through
performance
adjustments - - - -
At 31 December 8 17 10 14

For the purpose of disclosure, Senior Management and Key Personnel mentioned in this
section are defined according to the HKMA's Guideline on a Sound Remuneration
System.

- Senior Management: The senior executives designated by the Board who are
responsible for oversight of the firm-wide strategy or material business lines, including
Chief Executive, Deputy Chief Executives, Chief Financial Officer, Chief Risk Officer,
Chief Operating Officer, Board Secretary and Head of Group Audit.

- Key Personnel: The employees whose individual business activities involve the
assumption of material risk which may have significant impact on risk exposure, or
whose individual responsibilities are directly and materially linked to the risk
management, or those who have direct influence to the profit, including heads of
material business lines, heads of major subsidiaries, head of trading, as well as
heads of risk control functions.
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19. EFEBEESREFERIREFT 19. Cash and balances with banks and other financial institutions

B oAt RS HvES
&R
2015 2014
BEEHET B EETT
HK$’'m HK$'m
JEEAFER 2 Cash 7,923 9,749
FEIBCP ISR TS ER Balances with central banks 110,225 104,317
TFRURTT e Ho Al 4 Rl A A Balances with banks and other financial institutions
M4 RR 64,396 224,146
15 SR1T B HoAth S Rl i — (i Placements with banks and other financial institutions
HNEIHE > EEA{ERL maturing within one month 48,108 60,040
230,652 398,252
20. N PESEETAIEZ  20. Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
ZERMEE
FE R LA ERE(L
FrAERZ SMEE
Financial assets
REHEE designated at fair value st
Trading assets through profit or loss Total
2015 2014 2015 2014 2015 2014
BEEHET BEEHETT  B¥ESET  AYEE T B¥EET AR ETT
HK$’'m HK$'m HK$’'m HK$'m HK$’'m HK$'m
BN EESIEE At fair value
[E=E23 Treasury bills 9,504 11,990 - - 9,504 11,990
HhfE#:5%  Other debt
securities 17,867 20,328 986 1,357 18,853 21,685
27,371 32,318 986 1,357 28,357 33,675
Ie2 G Certificates of
deposit 2,223 1,428 - - 2,223 1,428
{EB5E5 K17 Total debt
PGt securities and
certificates of
deposit 29,594 33,746 986 1,357 30,580 35,103
R a8 25 Equity securities - 3 - R . 3
S5 4EEE Total securities 29,594 33,749 986 1,357 30,580 35,106
HAthr Others 180 - - - 180 -
29,774 33,749 986 1,357 30,760 35,106

206



@

¥ &) 4L £5 (5 %) HmA T

BANK OF CHINA (HONG KONG) LIMITED

MR (8

20. APEB(EET AR
ZEMEE (8)

S L E R SV
I

R B F s

- NEELER
- NEELS B

- JELETH

Rl
- RE LA

Fogzdit

SRR TIRE
e

73

%
(=}

Ha
fir*
SRAT R A R

i W

/

D> mh

1
el

T

gise S

st

* BT (BRITSE (A AR
o338 Ryt ] A B BB AL Y AL
I B AR 4.5585T(2014
£ 3.09 (D) -

Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

20. Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss (continued)

Total securities are analysed by place of listing as follows:

Debt securities and
certificates of deposit
- Listed in Hong Kong
- Listed outside Hong Kong

- Unlisted

Equity securities
- Listed in Hong Kong

Total securities

FER A FHEEE
STAERZ SRIEE

Financial assets

Total securities are analysed by type of issuer as follows:

Sovereigns

Public sector entities®

Banks and other financial
institutions

Corporate entities

Total securities

RHEEE designated at fair value
Trading assets through profit or loss
2015 2014 2015 2014
AREET  EEEET  BYEERT AEOET
HK$’'m HK$'m HK$’'m HK$'m
10,715 9,424 469 742
2,495 3,595 517 615
13,210 13,019 986 1,357
16,384 20,727 - -
29,594 33,746 986 1,357
- 3 - -
29,594 33,749 986 1,357
FERUATEEL
T AR SRIEE
Financial assets
B MEE designated at fair value
Trading assets through profit or loss

2015 2014 2015 2014
AWEET  AYaErT  B¥EERT BBaET
HK$’'m HK$'m HK$’'m HK$'m
18,802 19,102 - -
455 309 - -
6,914 11,581 - 86
3,423 2,757 986 1,271
29,594 33,749 986 1,357

* Included trading assets of HK$455 million (2014: HK$309 million) which are eligible to be classified as

public sector entities under the Banking (Capital) Rules.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

1. FTEESFI T B %M 21. Derivative financial instruments and hedge accounting
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The Group enters into the following exchange rate, interest rate, commodity and equity
related derivative financial instrument contracts for trading and risk management purposes:

Currency forwards represent commitments to purchase and sell foreign currency on a
future date. Interest rate futures are contractual obligations to receive or pay a net amount
based on changes in interest rates or buy or sell interest rate financial instruments on a
future date at an agreed price in the financial market under the administration of the stock
exchange. Forward rate agreements are individually negotiated interest rate futures that
call for a cash settlement at a future date for the difference between a contract rate of
interest and the current market rate, based on a notional principal amount.

Currency, interest rate and precious metal swaps are commitments to exchange one set of
cash flows or commodity for another. Swaps result in an exchange of currencies, interest
rates (for example, fixed rate for floating rate), or precious metals (for example, silver
swaps) or a combination of all these (for example, cross-currency interest rate swaps).
Except for certain currency swap contracts, no exchange of principal takes place.

Foreign currency, interest rate, precious metal and equity options are contractual
agreements under which the seller (writer) grants the purchaser (holder) the right, but not
the obligation, either to buy (a call option) or sell (a put option) at or by a set date or during a
set period, a specific amount of the financial instrument at a predetermined price. In
consideration for the assumption of foreign exchange and interest rate risk, the seller
receives a premium from the purchaser. Options are negotiated over-the-counter between
the Group and its counterparty or traded through the stock exchange (for example,
exchange-traded stock option).
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

21. Derivative financial instruments and hedge accounting (continued)

The contract/notional amounts and fair values of derivative financial instruments held by
the Group are set out in the following tables. The contract/notional amounts of these
instruments indicate the volume of transactions outstanding at the balance sheet dates and
certain of them provide a basis for comparison with fair value instruments recognised on
the balance sheet. However, they do not necessarily indicate the amounts of future cash
flows involved or the current fair values of the instruments and, therefore, do not indicate
the Group’s exposure to credit or market risks. The derivative financial instruments become
favourable (assets) or unfavourable (liabilities) as a result of fluctuations in foreign
exchange rates, market interest rates, metal prices or equity prices relative to their terms.
The aggregate fair values of derivative financial instruments can fluctuate significantly from
time to time.

(a) Derivative financial instruments

The Group trades derivative products (both exchange-traded or OTC) mainly for
customer business. The Group strictly follows risk management policies and
requirement in providing derivative products to our customers and in trading of
derivative products in the interbank market.

Derivatives are also used to manage the interest rate risk of the banking book. A
derivative instrument must be included in the approved product list before any
transactions for that instrument can be made. There are limits to control the notional
amount of exposure arising from derivative transactions, and the maximum tenor of the
deal is set. Every derivative transaction must be input into the relevant system for
settlement, mark-to-market revaluation, reporting and control.
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21. TSR T H ¥ 21. Derivative financial instruments and hedge accounting (continued)
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(a) Derivative financial instruments (continued)

The following tables summarise the contract/notional amounts of each class of
derivative financial instrument (excluding assets held for sale and liabilities associated
with assets held for sale) as at 31 December:

2015
FrR&ERA
EhEEhA
N Not qualified "
H BRI for hedge et
Trading Hedging accounting Total
AWEET BEEET BEEET  BEEER
HK$’'m HK$’m HK$’m HK$’m
Exchange rate contracts
Spot, forwards and futures 323,614 - - 323,614
Swaps 2,071,510 - - 2,071,510
Foreign currency options
- Options purchased 31,947 - - 31,947
- Options written 32,821 - - 32,821
2,459,892 - - 2,459,892
Interest rate contracts
Futures 2,700 - - 2,700
Swaps 397,099 77,144 2,416 476,659
399,799 77,144 2,416 479,359
Commodity contracts 6,905 - - 6,905
Equity contracts 3,348 - - 3,348
2,869,944 77,144 2,416 2,949,504
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Exchange rate contracts
Spot, forwards and futures
Swaps
Foreign currency options

- Options purchased
- Options written

Interest rate contracts
Futures
Swaps

Commodity contracts

Equity contracts

Credit derivative contracts

Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

(a) Derivative financial instruments (continued)

2014
FFEHRA
HidstiA
[ N Not qualified N

HE E\ﬁ?ﬁ?ﬁ/* for hedge é%u+
Trading Hedging accounting Total
AEET ANaET ARosET  ERaET
HK$'m HK$'m HK$'m HK$'m
345,522 - - 345,522
1,122,849 - - 1,122,849
35,101 - - 35,101
33,654 - - 33,654
1,537,126 - - 1,537,126
4,156 - - 4,156
334,572 74,405 3,848 412,825
338,728 74,405 3,848 416,981
6,547 - - 6,547
4,253 - - 4,253

78 - - 78
1,886,732 74,405 3,848 1,964,985

Not qualified for hedge accounting: derivative contracts which do not qualify as hedges for

accounting purposes but are managed in conjunction with the financial instruments

designated at fair value through profit or loss are separately disclosed in compliance with
the requirements set out in the Banking (Disclosure) Rules.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

21. TSR T H ¥ 21. Derivative financial instruments and hedge accounting (continued)
st (&)
(a) TSR TE (&) (a) Derivative financial instruments (continued)
TR & ET A S The following tables summarise the fair values of each class of derivative financial
BT E (FEEGLE instrument (excluding assets held for sale and liabilities associated with assets held for
BERFGHEEED sale) as at 31 December:
TERHEE ) 7 12 A 31
HZAFAE -
2015
AR AFEAR
Fair value assets Fair value liabilities
REEHRA THERA
Fapas B stk
Not Not
HE Ekapp  qualified faat HE  Egapp  Qualified ot
for hedge for hedge
Trading Hedging accounting Total Trading Hedging accounting Total
BEEEL ANEEDT BEEEST BRWEET BWHEEDT BNEEDT BEEET BNEET
HK$’m HK$’m HK$’m HK$’m HK$’m HK$’'m HK$’'m HK$’m
[EREL Exchange rate contracts
BIEA ~ B RS Spot, forwards and futures 15,777 - - 15,777 (9,708) - - (9,708)
i Swaps 22,819 - - 22819 (25919) - (25,919)
ANPEERZ 5 HAFE Foreign currency options
- B AHARE - Options purchased 513 - - 513 - - - -
- B AR - Options written - - - - (487) - - (487)
39,109 - - 39,109  (36,114) - - (36,114)
FIREL] Interest rate contracts
Ly Futures 3 - - 3 (1) - - (1)
i Swaps 1,640 1,877 - 3,517 _ (2,108)  (1,516) (27)  (3,651)
1,643 1,877 - 3,520  (2,109) (1,516) (27)  (3,652)
[(EETEED) Commodity contracts 392 - - 392 (294) - . (294)
feiE R &4 Equity contracts 81 - - 81 (82) - - (82)
41,225 1,877 - 43,102  (38,599) (1,516) (27)  (40,142)
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21. TSR T H ¥ 21. Derivative financial instruments and hedge accounting (continued)

it (8

(@) FTESHTE (&)

EREL
RIS ~ R
et
HNEST ZSIHE

B A

- EHE

FREE
e
el

EERT=

M fr i ss E4Y

Exchange rate contracts
Spot, forwards and futures
Swaps
Foreign currency options
- Options purchased

- Options written

Interest rate contracts
Futures

Swaps

Commodity contracts

Equity contracts

(a) Derivative financial instruments (continued)

2014
NEEE A EEE
Fair value assets Fair value liabilities

AR REFEHRA

Fapit Ap gk

Not Not
HE R qualified st HE Rk qualified st

for hedge for hedge
Trading Hedging accounting Total Trading Hedging accounting Total
BT BEEETT BIEEEIT  BWEEE T BEEEDT O BEEET BRI BT AT
HK$'m HK$'m HK$'m HK$'m HK$'m HK$'m HK$'m HK$'m
12,208 - - 12,208 (7,392) - - (7,392)
12,480 - - 12,480 (9,828) - - (9,828)
4,676 - - 4,676 - - - -
- - - - (207) - - (207)
29,364 - - 29,364  (17,427) - - (17,427)
2 - - 2 (3) - - (3)
1,311 2,270 2 3,583 (1,881) (1,128) (50) (3,059)
1,313 2,270 2 3,585 (1,884) (1,128) (50) (3,062)
328 - - 328 (202) - - (202)
82 - - 82 (81) - - (81)
31,087 2,270 2 33,359  (19,594) (1,128) (50)  (20,772)
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TSR T B R¥MH 21, Derivative financial instruments and hedge accounting (continued)
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TELEE AR 113.33 &
¢ (2014 £F © 3% 109.46
fB0) - AR REE
bR IR Ry W 96.83
BT (2014 £ @ #si 71.66
BT -

(a) Derivative financial instruments (continued)

The table below gives the credit risk-weighted amounts of the derivative financial

instruments (including assets held for sale) and is prepared with reference to the

completion instructions for the HKMA return of capital adequacy ratio.

Exchange rate contracts
Forwards and futures
Swaps
Foreign currency options

- Options purchased

Interest rate contracts
Futures
Swaps

Commodity contracts

Equity contracts

2015 2014
BEEET AHEETT
HK$’'m HK$'m
2,110 1,611
10,149 4,628
361 1,569
12,620 7,808
1 1

656 728
657 729

2 -

181 208
13,460 8,745

The credit risk-weighted amounts are calculated in accordance with the Banking

(Capital) Rules. The amounts are dependent upon the status of the counterparty and the

maturity characteristics of each type of contract.

The total fair values of derivatives subject to valid bilateral netting agreements for the
Group amounted to HK$11,333 million (2014: HK$10,946 million) and the effect of valid
bilateral netting agreements amounted to HK$9,683 million (2014: HK$7,166 million).
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21. TSR T H ¥ 21. Derivative financial instruments and hedge accounting (continued)

it (8

(b) BhrEat

S BB TR T4
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(i) APEE

SR AR
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(b) Hedge accounting

The fair values of derivative financial instruments designated as hedging instruments as

at 31 December are as follows:

2015 2014
BE =i HiE =i
Assets Liabilities Assets Liabilities
BEEHET  B¥EET AYEE T BAEEET
HK$’'m HK$’m HK$'m HK$'m
Fair value hedges 1,877 (1,516) 2,270 (1,128)

(i) Fair value hedges

The Group uses interest rate swaps to hedge against change in fair value of financi
assets and liabilities arising from movements in market interest rates.

Gains or losses on fair value hedges reflected in net trading gain for the year are as

ial

follows:
2015 2014

wEREE HERAER wEPEE pEhAask
Hedged Hedged Hedged Hedged
assets liabilities assets liabilities
BEEETL B¥EERT AEgsET BEEET
HK$’'m HK$’'m HK$'m HK$'m

Net (loss)/gain
- Hedging instruments (356) (278) (1,708) 86
- Hedged items 622 284 1,841 141
266 6 133 227

(ii) Hedges of net investments in foreign operations

As at 31 December 2015, there were no RMB-denominated deposits from customers

designated as a hedging instrument to hedge against the net investments in forei
operations (2014: HK$1,766 million).

gn

There were no gains or losses on ineffective portion recognised in the income

statement during the year (2014: Nil).
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22. B R EAERIE 22. Advances and other accounts
2015 2014
AREEET BEEHET
HK$’'m HK$'m
PN/ Personal loans and advances 273,305 283,919
INEIEER Corporate loans and advances 616,833 676,982
% S Advances to customers 890,138 960,901
BEORE R (M 23) Loan impairment allowances (Note 23)
- F{E RS - Individually assessed (564) (1,096)
- FRAH AR - Collectively assessed (2,445) (3,520)
887,129 956,285
e Trade bills 32,011 57,756
SRAT R Hofth 4 Rl ks S 2k Advances to banks and other financial
institutions 969 -
920,109 1,014,041
W2015F 12 H31 H & As at 31 December 2015, advances to customers included accrued interest of HK$1,409
FE R IE IERT R E A million (2014: HK$1,570 million).
14.09 {Z7T (2014 4 @ Hig
15.70 f87r) -
2015412 5 31 H:% As at 31 December 2015, no impairment allowance was made in respect of trade bills and

B E 5= RTT advances to banks and other financial institutions (2014: Nil).
i <52 R P A1 LR A
TRAEZERS (2014 4 2 48D -
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

23. Loan impairment allowances

2015
PR FAd
Individually assessed
N AH Hest
Personal Corporate Total
AEEHET AEEHET AEEET
HK$’'m HK$’'m HK$’m
201541 5 1H At 1 January 2015 26 1,070 1,096
AU Charged to income statement 11 1,243 1,254
FE PRI < AU B EERK Loans written off during the year
as uncollectible (16) (1,384) (1,400)
Wi Bl E A T Recoveries 7 123 130
P BRIk (B 2 e [0l Unwind of discount on impairment
allowances - (15) (15)
PE SR Exchange difference 2 (66) (68)
TR EERE Classified as assets held for sale (18) (415) (433)
2015412 H 31 H At 31 December 2015 8 556 564
2015
TR A S
Collectively assessed
fEA AT Hst
Personal Corporate Total
AW EET AW EHET AEEET
HK$’'m HK$’'m HK$’'m
B20154F1H1H At 1 January 2015 360 3,160 3,520
Uz (F8E) Charged/(credited) to income
statement 436 (75) 361
TS 2 AU B Loans written off during the year
as uncollectible (495) 3) (498)
W B E s R Recoveries 45 - 45
P 2 740 Exchange difference (8) (23) (31)
ERGLEERE Classified as assets held for sale (64) (888) (952)
2015412 H 31 H At 31 December 2015 274 2171 2,445
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

23. Loan impairment allowances (continued)

2014
P EEAL
Individually assessed
fEA 25T e
Personal Corporate Total
AR EETT AR EETT AT E T
HK$'m HK$'m HK$'m
2014415 1H At 1 January 2014 30 810 840
Nz (§E) (Credited)/charged to income
statement (6) 593 587
TP < AU B BERK Loans written off during the year
as uncollectible (8) (464) (472)
YT AR T Recoveries 12 149 161
PrEURAE A o] Unwind of discount on impairment
allowances 1) (7) (8)
P75 Exchange difference (1) (11) (12)
»20144F12 H 31 H At 31 December 2014 26 1,070 1,096
2014
AR GEL
Collectively assessed
LA 4 e
Personal Corporate Total
B EETT M E T B EHETT
HK$'m HK$'m HK$'m
A 20144E£1 5 1H At 1 January 2014 315 3,080 3,395
N R T e Charged to income statement 343 101 444
TS 2 RUT B S Loans written off during the year
as uncollectible (339) (3) (342)
Y Bl A SRR Recoveries 41 - 41
PEE 52 7245 Exchange difference - (18) (18)
n2014F12 H31H At 31 December 2014 360 3,160 3,520
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24. ZBHEEE 24. Investment in securities
2015
BAEETER BRI AT IR
At fair value At amortised cost
BEE
gt ERs FIfIHES  ERRIEKEK
Available- Held-to- Loans
for-sale maturity and gE=t
securities securities receivables Total
AETHET  B¥EET BEEET AEEHET
HK$’'m HK$’'m HK$’'m HK$’'m
[E273 Treasury bills 124,306 - - 124,306
HAMrERE 7 Other debt securities 222,951 64,583 3,166 290,700
347,257 64,583 3,166 415,006
s Certificates of deposit 69,238 - - 69,238
%538 77 AT GG Total debt securities and
certificates of deposit 416,495 64,583 3,166 484,244
o7 55 55 Equity securities 287 - - 287
416,782 64,583 3,166 484,531
2014
YA EEY IR TR AT TR
At fair value At amortised cost
ez
it e FAHESG  SRRERGK
Available- Held-to- Loans
for-sale maturity and 4=t
securities securities receivables Total
WEEHET  BEEHET BEEETT BIEEHETT
HK$'m HK$'m HK$'m HK$'m
[E£=3 Treasury bills 48,079 2,375 - 50,454
HAth(EKE 5 Other debt securities 231,527 58,036 4,868 294,431
279,606 60,411 4,868 344,885
(276 Certificates of deposit 57,730 77 - 57,807
B8 75 AT A Total debt securities and
certificates of deposit 337,336 60,488 4,868 402,692
Wefreess Equity securities 986 - - 986
338,322 60,488 4,868 403,678
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24. Investment in securities (continued)

Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

Investment in securities is analysed by place of listing as follows:

Debt securities and certificates of deposit
- Listed in Hong Kong
- Listed outside Hong Kong

- Unlisted

Equity securities
- Unlisted

Market value of listed held-to-maturity
securities

Debt securities and certificates of deposit
- Listed in Hong Kong
- Listed outside Hong Kong

- Unlisted

Equity securities
- Unlisted

Market value of listed held-to-maturity
securities

220

2015

HE=E
THREESS  FHIEES  SRRIERGK
Available- Held-to- Loans
for-sale maturity and
securities securities receivables
BEEET AEEERT BEEET
HK$’'m HK$’'m HK$’'m
33,788 1,391 -
108,506 29,049 -
142,294 30,440 -
274,201 34,143 3,166
416,495 64,583 3,166
287 - -
416,782 64,583 3,166

30,432

2014

FEx
It ERSs FHHESG  SRUREUGK
Available- Held-to- Loans
for-sale maturity and
securities securities receivables
B ETT BEHET A ETT
HK$'m HK$'m HK$'m
24,948 428 -
95,764 17,688 -
120,712 18,116 -
216,624 42,372 4,868
337,336 60,488 4,868
986 - -
338,322 60,488 4,868

18,206
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24. Investment in securities (continued)

Investment in securities is analysed by type of issuer as follows:

B E S TREZ D

B
2015
HEE
THHESG FHIHES  SRRIEUGK
Available- Held-to- Loans
for-sale maturity and
securities securities receivables
BEEETT AEEET BEEET
HK$’'m HK$’'m HK$’'m
BhHEE Sovereigns 155,178 840 -
N B Public sector entities* 18,498 19,011 -
SRIT N Eofh 4 Bl Banks and other financial institutions 170,167 27,505 3,166
NEE Corporate entities 72,939 17,227 -
416,782 64,583 3,166
2014
FEE
bR FHHESG  SERURERGK
Available- Held-to- Loans
for-sale maturity and
securities securities receivables
BEET  BN¥EHET AREHETT
HK$'m HK$'m HK$'m
BB Sovereigns 66,939 2,618 -
INEREALT Public sector entities* 20,227 22,710 -
$RAT R Hofth 4 it Banks and other financial institutions 183,874 25,540 2,793
NEE Corporate entities 67,282 9,620 2,075
338,322 60,488 4,868

* Included available-for-sale securities of HK$17,491 million (2014: HK$18,567 million) and
held-to-maturity securities of HK$4,614 million (2014: HK$2,762 million) which are eligible to be

©OBAELE (BRTTE (A KRR

P93 Ry ] 2 B B i R T {3
5 25 B B 174.91 BT
(2014 4 : H#g 185.67 [57T)
KA ERHHEREE
46.14 5T (2014 4 @ g
27.62 {#55) °

classified as public sector entities under the Banking (Capital) Rules.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

24. Investment in securities (continued)

The movements in investment in securities are summarised as follows:

2015

FEE
eSS  FEIHEE SRR
Available- Held-to- Loans
for-sale maturity and
securities securities receivables
A¥EET AYEERT  EYNEET
HK$’'m HK$’'m HK$’'m
At 1 January 2015 338,322 60,488 4,868
Additions 696,104 13,815 9,557
Disposals, redemptions and maturity (551,829) (13,470) (9,839)
Amortisation (530) 230 (15)
Change in fair value (56) - -
Net reversal of impairment allowances - 1 -
Reclassification (7,519) 7,519 -
Exchange difference (5,655) (1,534) (819)
Classified as assets held for sale (52,055) (2,466) (586)
At 31 December 2015 416,782 64,583 3,166

2014

Az
ARt e FIIHE S SROERGK
Available- Held-to- Loans
for-sale maturity and
securities securities receivables
AEEET  EEEET AEE T
HK$'m HK$'m HK$'m
At 1 January 2014 395,009 4,879 7,945
Additions 333,533 10,611 8,482
Disposals, redemptions and maturity (338,621) (3,549) (11,631)
Amortisation (606) 900 82
Change in fair value 4,047 - -
Net reversal of impairment allowances - 2 -
Reclassification (48,396) 48,396 -
Exchange difference (6,644) (751) (10)
At 31 December 2014 338,322 60,488 4,868

The Group reclassified certain debt securities with fair value of HK$7,519 million (2014:
HK$48,396 million) out of available-for-sale category into held-to-maturity category during
the year. The Group had the intention and ability to hold these reclassified debt securities
until maturity at the date of reclassification.
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24. Investment in securities (continued)

Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

The movements in impairment allowances on held-to-maturity securities are summarised as

follows:

At 1 January

Credited to income statement

At 31 December

Interests in associates and a joint venture

At 1 January
Share of results
Share of tax

Dividend received

At 31 December

223

2015 2014
BEEET BEEEEIT
HK$’m HK$'m

1 3

(1) 2)

- 1
2015 2014
BEEET BEEEEIT
HK$’'m HK$'m
324 292
72 49
(18) (15)
(2) (2)
376 324
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25. BB AT REaE M 25. Interests in associates and a joint venture (continued)

HEzs (&)
REHEZHENG REED The particulars of the Group’s associates and joint venture, all of which are unlisted, are as
HEHRIELHAE B follows:
T
BRS¢ ik
Place of ERBTRE FEE
Z&fE incorporation Issued share capital/ BFERES FEER
Name and operation registered capital Interest held Principal activities
/NI
Associates:
HrER RS IR o FEEA 45% ER-FEERG R
/NG| PRC 50,000,000 A i Credit card back-end
BOC Services Registered capital service support
Company RMB50,000,000
Limited
Hr SR S N R H FEEA 25.33% FAR SRR
PR E] PRC 450,000,000 A & Prepay debit card services
BOC Expresspay Registered capital
Company Limited RMB450,000,000
GBEMEFE
Joint Venture:
A AR AE & Segiiilitds 19.96% Ry EEiE EAR R AL
Joint Electronic Hong Kong 10,024,600 3T TR GHUE AL 4%
Teller Services Ordinary shares Operation of a private
Limited HK$10,024,600 inter-bank message
switching network in
respect of ATM services
BEAE aHEMFE
Associates Joint venture
2015 2014 2015 2014
BEEHETL A ETT BEEHETL BaET
HK$’'m HK$'m HK$’'m HK$'m
e nE/ aEdeEER Interests in
associates/joint venture 315 265 61 59
JE(LTE AT EERE Share of profit/total
TR RS comprehensive income
HaER for the year of
associates/joint
venture 51 33 3 1
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

26. Investment properties

R1ATH

WME

O PEWE

HfoEEE S (HE)
Vg ~ Sh Reasctis (I
#t27)

bE A%

DR EEE

w12 531 H

B 2 IRA{E LY
FIERIR DT -

TERERA
RIMHLT Gla4a 50 4F)
LY (10 4223 50 )

EEHBLINTH
LY (10 4223 50 4)
RHATELY (DB 10 48)

#2015 412 H 31 H » ¥
hEEABENZLEY
¥ JH IR AT
BB KPR T A (E R
EFRARAT 2015 4F
12 A 31 H DA PE AR
Fri( T2 BEEMEE - A FE
HENEEHEERARF
R AE B AR T [ T 5 2 8
HHETG-THLEYEE
HUFSHEAS -

2015 2014

AEEET B EHETT

HK$’'m HK$'m

At 1 January 14,690 14,727

Additions a7 -

Fair value gains 833 394
Reclassification from/(to) properties,

plant and equipment (Note 27)

245 (431)

Exchange difference (1) -

Classified as assets held for sale (414) -

At 31 December 15,400 14,690

The carrying value of investment properties is analysed based on the remaining terms of the

leases as follows:

2015 2014
BEEET BEEE T
HK$’'m HK$'m
Held in Hong Kong

On long-term lease (over 50 years) 3,734 3,631
On medium-term lease (10 to 50 years) 11,440 10,808

Held outside Hong Kong
On medium-term lease (10 to 50 years) 207 231
On short-term lease (less than 10 years) 19 20
15,400 14,690

As at 31 December 2015, investment properties were included in the balance sheet at
valuation carried out at 31 December 2015 on the basis of their fair value by an independent
firm of chartered surveyors, Savills Valuation and Professional Services Limited. The fair

value represents the price that would be received to sell each investment property in an

orderly transaction with market participants at the measurement date.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

27. Properties, plant and equipment

Wl - BRI
&
Equipment,
BE fixtures and qazt
Premises fittings Total
BEEET BEEETT BEEET
HK$’'m HK$’'m HK$’'m
W20154FE1 H1HZ Net book value at
HEESHE 1 January 2015 52,508 2,533 55,041
o Additions 423 743 1,166
HieE Disposals (371) (21) (392)
HfE Revaluation 3,506 - 3,506
FEEHTE Depreciation for the year (1,067) (762) (1,829)
E O HEE A Reclassification to
(ffzE 26) investment properties
(Note 26) (245) - (245)
B 2 25%E Exchange difference (27) (11) (38)
SYHE B S Classified as assets held
for sale (6,678) (282) (6,960)
20154412 H 31 H> Net book value at
HRHEFHE 31 December 2015 48,049 2,200 50,249
2015412 H 31 H At 31 December 2015
AE B {E Cost or valuation 48,049 7,516 55,565
FETHTES RORE Accumulated depreciation
and impairment - (5,316) (5,316)
2015412 H 31 H> Net book value at
NEHEDSE 31 December 2015 48,049 2,200 50,249
alE 2 A E B E The analysis of cost or valuation of the above assets is as follows:
Pag)is: AN
20154412 H 31 H At 31 December 2015
A At cost - 7,516 7,516
Ffl{E At valuation 48,049 - 48,049
48,049 7,516 55,565
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27. Y~ B[ R 27. Properties, plant and equipment (continued)

(&)
B~ [EE R
Bt
Equipment,
R fixtures and 4=t
Premises fittings Total
BEEETT AR ETT BEEETT
HK$'m HK$'m HK$'m
W 20141 A1 HZ Net book value at
HEHEDSE 1 January 2014 49,661 2,531 52,192
HE Additions 211 805 1,016
e Disposals (43) (27) (70)
HiE Revaluation 3,308 - 3,308
FEREHTEE Depreciation for the year (1,048) (769) (1,817)
B EEE A Reclassification from
(% 26) investment properties
(Note 26) 431 - 431
B 0 7254 Exchange difference (12) (7) (19)
#2014 4F12 H 31 H>Z Net book value at
WRHEDSE 31 December 2014 52,508 2,533 55,041
#2014 4F12 H 31 H At 31 December 2014
R AAE B A (B Cost or valuation 52,508 8,229 60,737
BETHTEE RORE Accumulated depreciation
and impairment - (5,696) (5,696)
#2014 FE12 H 31 H> Net book value at
HEmESHE 31 December 2014 52,508 2,533 55,041
U A B The analysis of cost or valuation of the above assets is as follows:
pag i1
72014 4F12 H 31 H At 31 December 2014
A At cost - 8,229 8,229
Foefh{E At valuation 52,508 - 52,508
52,508 8,229 60,737
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

27. Properties, plant and equipment (continued)

(&)
B E 2 R EEAZTHAI T 6k The carrying value of premises is analysed based on the remaining terms of the leases as
AR AR follows:
2015 2014
BEEHETT BEEET
HK$’'m HK$'m
HEEBFE Held in Hong Kong
FHATHEY (B 50 ) On long-term lease (over 50 years) 15,924 19,416
iHAFHZY (10 £2 50 F) On medium-term lease (10 to 50 years) 31,835 32,308
EFEEDINTE Held outside Hong Kong
EHAFHZY (#83#8 50 ) On long-term lease (over 50 years) 94 81
i HAFHZY (10 424 50 4F) On medium-term lease (10 to 50 years) 196 685
SEHAFEZY (VDA 10 4F) On short-term lease (less than 10 years) - 18
48,049 52,508

2015412 A 31 H %
WEEABRENZEE )
WIS IR T RS —
AP BT (e B R
FIAIRATER 2015 4 12
A 31 HELA B R R AEFT
HEFT 2 A {E - A PEE
TEst B8 HEEATRFK
SCHITE DL T [ T 2
I e A E AU
{Ei#% -

As at 31 December 2015, premises were included in the balance sheet at valuation carried
out at 31 December 2015 on the basis of their fair value by an independent firm of chartered
surveyors, Savills Valuation and Professional Services Limited. The fair value represents
the price that would be received to sell each premises in an orderly transaction with market
participants at the measurement date.

R bl 2 ELAE R FE As a result of the above-mentioned revaluations, changes in value of the premises were
HEBEDTHI FESEMGE

1~ Woa e e IR e

recognised in the premises revaluation reserve, the income statement and non-controlling
interests as follows:

POAT
2015 2014
BEEET BEEETT
HK$’'m HK$'m
BB R E Increase in valuation credited to premises
H{E revaluation reserve 3,611 3,281
(ffe),/ @ EZ B (Decreased)/increase in valuation
& CEE) /HE{E (charged)/credited to income statement (136) 2
HEC IR s 2 B Increase in valuation credited to non-controlling
I {E interests 31 25
3,506 3,308

#2015 412 A 31 1 > &
B E TR OB R T
B FOREIRRTIAR - AR
M BEARRNZ BE
HRTHIFELIE Fy 15 78.80 (&
7T (2014 4% @ #EHE 82.39
&) -

As at 31 December 2015, the net book value of premises that would have been included in
the Group’s balance sheet had the premises been carried at cost less accumulated
depreciation and impairment losses was HK$7,880 million (2014: HK$8,239 million).
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
28. Other assets

2015 2014

AMEET AEEET

HK$’m HK$'m

Repossessed assets 44 18
Precious metals 3,673 3,682
Accounts receivable and prepayments 23,471 15,369
27,188 19,069

29. Hong Kong SAR currency notes in circulation

The Hong Kong SAR currency notes in circulation are secured by deposit of funds in respect
of which the Hong Kong SAR Government certificates of indebtedness are held.

30. Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss

2015 2014
BEEETT B EETT
HK$’'m HK$'m
Trading liabilities
- Short positions in Exchange Fund Bills and
Notes 8,371 9,145
Financial liabilities designated at fair value
through profit or loss
- Structured deposits (Note 31) 2,571 3,115
10,942 12,260

The carrying amount of financial liabilities designated at fair value through profit or loss as at
31 December 2015 was less than the amount that the Group would be contractually
required to pay at maturity to the holders by HK$5 million (2014: HK$4 million). The amount
of change in the fair values of financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss, during
the year and cumulatively, attributable to changes in own credit risk was insignificant.
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3. EE{ER 31. Deposits from customers

TEAR ~ REE R HAAR (1
BEABR)

P Ry PEE LA AiRRR
Z R VA
X (F$5E 30)
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EETEK
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32. ERTEBEFAEF 32

G

BRI R AS IR
- PHIEESHEIE T
BesE
- HAh s

33. HAMRIAR 2 33.

HAETRRIA
e ff

2015 2014
AHEEIT AEEETT
HK$’'m HK$'m
Current, savings and other deposit accounts
(per balance sheet) 1,406,474 1,483,398
Structured deposits reported as financial
liabilities at fair value through profit or loss
(Note 30) 2,571 3,115
1,409,045 1,486,513
Analysed by:
Demand deposits and current accounts
- Corporate 100,774 88,269
- Personal 34,118 28,776
134,892 117,045
Savings deposits
- Corporate 304,802 252,870
- Personal 413,154 420,311
717,956 673,181
Time, call and notice deposits
- Corporate 344,658 424,786
- Personal 211,539 271,501
556,197 696,287
1,409,045 1,486,513
Debt securities and certificates of deposit in issue
2015 2014
AEETT AEEET
HK$’'m HK$'m
Debt securities, at amortised cost
- Senior notes under the Medium Term Note
Programme 5,728 5,636
- Other debt securities 1,248 6,265
6,976 11,901
Other accounts and provisions
2015 2014
B EET AEEETT
HK$’'m HK$'m
Other accounts payable 28,744 46,203
Provisions 268 354
29,012 46,557
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

34. Deferred taxation

RIERAEIRIEE &GS
HEAIEHEA25% TS 5T
B EA R LR EE
SELECAE W 5 e P R T B
A < R B RO (o
FIREIEIR SR (PR -

Deferred tax is recognised in respect of the temporary differences arising between the tax
bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts in the financial statements and
unused tax credits in accordance with HKAS 12 “Income Taxes”.

EEABERNZIELERIE The major components of deferred tax (assets)/liabilities recorded in the balance sheet,

EiE) SEETEES and the movements during the year are as follows:
DUR HAR RN 2 S Hh
T
2015
DoERTE
pery k]
Accelerated YiEEEM IRE R
tax Property Esi8 Impairment HAh fat
depreciation revaluation Losses allowances Others Total
EREET BEoET  EREERx  EYaEr  BE¥oErT  B¥EET
HK$’'m HK$’'m HK$’'m HK$’'m HK$’'m HK$’'m
12015 & At 1 January
1H1H 2015 603 7,838 - (645) 34 7,830
gt/ (E50) Charged/(credited)
a2z to income
statement 8 (111) (35) 40 (675) (773)
s,/ (H5d) H Charged/(credited)
isTlliea to other
comprehensive
income - 481 - - (385) 96
[EE f¢ Z=%H Exchange difference - 3) 2 9 - 8
SR G EE Classified as assets
E held for sale (18) (1,034) 33 137 94 (788)
2015 At 31 December
12H31H 2015 593 7,171 - (459) (932) 6,373
2014
hoEseE
el
Accelerated YEE g B
tax Property i Impairment HAh st
depreciation revaluation Losses allowances Others Total
AlEHET AN EET A EHETT AlEET  EREET AYEET
HK$'m HK$'m HK$'m HK$'m HK$'m HK$'m
A 2014 At 1 January
1A1H 2014 577 7,329 (1) (594) (551) 6,760
fEsg / (&EE) Charged/(credited)
ey to income
statement 26 61 1 (55) (11) 22
Ef =Kl Charged to other
Wegs comprehensive
income - 449 - - 594 1,043
PR 2 72 5E Exchange difference - (1) - 4 2 5
2014 At 31 December
12H31H 2014 603 7,838 - (645) 34 7,830
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

34. Deferred taxation (continued)

35.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset on an individual entity basis when there is a
legal right to set off current tax assets against current tax liabilities and when the deferred
taxation relates to the same authority. The following amounts, determined after appropriate
offsetting, are shown in the balance sheet:

2015 2014
AW EET BIEETT
HK$’'m HK$'m
Deferred tax assets (58) (167)
Deferred tax liabilities 6,431 7,997
6,373 7,830
2015 2014
BEET B EHETT
HK$’'m HK$'m

Deferred tax assets to be recovered after more than
twelve months (58) (129)

Deferred tax liabilities to be settled after more than

twelve months 7,260 7,904
7,202 7,775

As at 31 December 2015, the Group has not recognised deferred tax assets in respect of tax
losses amounting to HK$8 million (2014: HK$10 million). These tax losses do not expire
under the current tax legislation.

Subordinated liabilities
2015 2014
BEEET BEET
HK$’'m HK$'m
Subordinated notes, at amortised cost with
fair value hedge adjustment
uUsD2,500m* 19,422 19,676

In 2010, BOCHK issued listed subordinated notes with an aggregate amount of USD2,500
million.

Amounts qualified as Tier 2 capital instruments for regulatory purposes are shown in Note
4.4(B).

* Interest rate at 5.55% per annum payable semi-annually, due February 2020.
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36. BRI EEK {F 36. Discontinued operations and assets held for sale

Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

HEEE

RIE 2015 42 7 H 14 H#
HHIAS PR TEERS
i EE N B LA B T BT
(T BED ) sttt - TR AT
BE R R R
BlA & E R E E IR
(B4 5 54 9%) 19H
BARUE > 1° 2015 42 7 H
15 HEILREREEL S
FIT 2 B R S P 4 R P
100%R&AE -

2015412 H18 H
SRR (ERE D7) BlfEE
BRERRATRAT (TF2E
% ) (ERETT) RHE
55 () ERARAE
(E R BT IR A Dt EL
B TR S
HRE Ly (TR S ) #ET
Hec e B Ttk - SRk L 5 Y
SH LA E B s ]
B BRI S 1 Je By Sk
Rl - ZCEItR » (SRS
FEEmalc BTk
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GalmERsERETE
TEES REAR L ECE 2R
i 2014 SR A% R 4E

XK

= °

According to the announcement made on 14 July 2015, BOC has obtained the in-principle
approval from the Ministry of Finance of the People’s Republic of China (the “Ministry of
Finance”) for the undertaking of the disposal of 100% interest in NCB held by BOCHK in
accordance with the relevant regulations of the Administrative Measures for the Transfer of
State-owned Assets of Financial Enterprises (No. 54 Decree of the Ministry of Finance), by
way of public bidding via the Beijing Financial Assets Exchange on 15 July 2015.

On 18 December 2015, BOCHK (as seller) entered into a sale and purchase agreement
(the “Sale and Purchase Agreement”) with Cinda Financial Holdings Co., Limited (“Cinda
Financial”) (as buyer) and China Cinda (HK) Holdings Company Limited (as buyer’s
guarantor) in relation to the proposed sale and purchase of all the issued shares of NCB
(“the Proposed Disposal”). The completion of the Proposed Disposal is conditional upon the
satisfaction of the conditions precedent set out in the Sale and Purchase Agreement. Upon
Completion, Cinda Financial will own all the issued shares of NCB and NCB will cease to be
a subsidiary of BOCHK.

The comparative amounts of consolidated income statement have been restated as if the
discontinued operations had been discontinued at the beginning of year 2014.
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36. BB EK kfF 36. Discontinued operations and assets held for sale (continued)

HEEE (&)

BRSNS S35 Pl I -
Gar -

The results of discontinued operations for the year are as follows:

2015 2014
BEEHET AEET
HK$’'m HK$'m
FIEWA Interest income 8,375 9,267
FIESZH Interest expense (3,655) (4,076)
e ISUTON Net interest income 4,720 5,191
Mk Es KA A Fee and commission income 1,158 1,061
R R A <2 H Fee and commission expense (42) (30)
HRE K ESBA Net fee and commission income 1,116 1,031
FA G Net trading gain 49 5
T R LA B ST A Net loss on financial instruments designated at fair
BT SR T HISEEE value through profit or loss (7) (8)
HAr & E 2 P Net gain on other financial assets 264 122
FAha B A Other operating income 15 38
AU E R T 2 IR EE Net operating income before impairment
A allowances 6,157 6,379
JRAE HE PR Net charge of impairment allowances (633) (904)
BBUWA Net operating income 5,524 5,475
= Operating expenses (2,251) (2,244)
BT Operating profit 3,273 3,231
HEELE N EEHA Net gain from disposal of/fair value adjustments on
B SR S investment properties 35 34
HE BG83 K% Net gain from disposal/revaluation of properties, plant
[-paciiven and equipment 2 -
EREETARF] Profit before taxation 3,310 3,265
e Taxation (483) (615)
[@redin =g =il Profit from discontinued operations 2,827 2,650
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36. BB EK kfF 36. Discontinued operations and assets held for sale (continued)
HEEE (8)

Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

FrEEE R EEE

The major classes of assets held for sale and liabilities associated with assets held for sale

ZAEBE R 2 X EIE R are as follows:
T
2015 2014
BEHET BEEET
HK$’'m HK$'m
RUERE ASSETS HELD FOR SALE
[EFRE RFRER T R Cash and balances with banks and other financial
< R RE R4S ER institutions 53,124 -
TESRTT R HAth S b it — Placements with banks and other financial institutions
2+ _{EAXNEEIZ E maturing between one and twelve months
HIEIR 7,057 -
NEEE( T AER S Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
R 7,263 -
PR TR Derivative financial instruments 653 -
SR EA IR Advances and other accounts 168,924 -
BAE Investment in securities 55,107 -
&Y Investment properties 414 -
Y~ BEM R B Properties, plant and equipment 6,960 -
JEWHRIEE 7 Current tax assets 47 .
IEAERRIR S Deferred tax assets 11 -
HoAtrE e Other assets 913 -
R EEEEE Total assets held for sale 300,473 -
FHEEEHRAE LIABILITIES ASSOCIATED WITH ASSETS HELD
FOR SALE
AT R EA SRS 17 Deposits and balances from banks and other financial
TR AR institutions 18,040 -
NEEE(ET ABR % Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss
=i 4,576 -
TTEeR TR Derivative financial instruments 284 -
B EFR Deposits from customers 215,908 -
BAMRIA R B Other accounts and provisions 12,607 -
JERTFR T & i Current tax liabilities 188 -
IRIEFRIEE(E Deferred tax liabilities 799 -
HHESEEHBEEE Total liabilities associated with assets held for sale
HHEH 252,402 -
48,071 -
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36. BB EK kfF 36. Discontinued operations and assets held for sale (continued)
HEEE (8)

HHM 2GS A R The cumulative income recognised in other comprehensive income relating to assets held for
R EBEEE Y Beldisan sale is as follows:
T
2015 2014
BEEET AR ETT
HK$’'m HK$'m
A A U A TR 2 R Cumulative income recognised in other
SRS comprehensive income 5,963 -
CA IR B E LI The net cash flows incurred by discontinued operations are as follows:

SEREFEAT

2015 2014
BEEET B EET
HK$’'m HK$'m
KT Operating activities 2,419 15,027
PEEER Investing activities (71) (85)
RE T Financing activities (543) (700)
W AR Net cash inflow 1,805 14,242
37. I 37. Share capital

2015 2014
BEEHET AR ETT
HK$’'m HK$'m

ERITREVE Issued and fully paid:
43,042,840,858 i 43,042,840,858 ordinary shares 43,043 43,043
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38. S HRERNEE 38. Notes to consolidated cash flow statement

Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

(a) EBEFIHBRITAIAE

(a) Reconciliation of operating profit to operating cash (outflow)/inflow before

237

REz (RED /HRA taxation
#HiR
2015 2014
BEEET AT & T
HK$’'m HK$'m
Aol Operating profit
- REFHESE N - from continuing operations 27,140 26,303
- RETE RS - from discontinued operations
ST 3,273 3,231
30,413 29,534
Pree Depreciation 1,829 1,817
VERIER PR Ll Net charge of impairment allowances 1,564 1,050
PR A e el Unwind of discount on impairment allowances (15) (8)
T B (FER Advances written off net of recoveries
lEE€ED) (1,723) (612)
®BIEEE S Change in subordinated liabilities 155 237
JEFIHA H 4 3 {E H Change in balances with banks and other
ZAFHUERTT R At financial institutions with original maturity
SRR IESER over three months
E)| 1,618 9,991
JEEHEH B 3 {E H Change in placements with banks and other
ZAESRTT R HA < financial institutions with original maturity
RS ~ TEHRTEI over three months
Z ) (21,248) (2,290)
NEE(EET AR Change in financial assets at fair value through
2 RS R 2 ) profit or loss (1,999) (10,909)
B &R T B 2> 83) Change in derivative financial instruments 9,258 (6,092)
SRR HA AR TE > 82 ) Change in advances and other accounts (74,770) (89,547)
HHIOE ) Change in investment in securities (133,332) 3,061
Hith & - 8EF) Change in other assets (9,048) 1,996
SRAT B E Al < Rlihg Change in deposits and balances from banks
TR 4seR > S8 and other financial institutions (10,134) (42,493)
NP EE( BT AR Change in financial liabilities at fair value
ZeRiE T ) through profit or loss 3,258 (1,320)
BT SH) Change in deposits from customers 138,984 154,022
B TEREE 5 AT Change in debt securities and certificates of
HKE 2 ) deposit in issue (4,925) 6,217
HAHRTE B 2 ) Change in other accounts and provisions (4,938) (1,115)
PSR SEEE)  2 Effect of changes in exchange rates 10,450 8,468
BRI e Operating cash (outflow)/inflow before taxation
(Rt /RA (64,603) 62,007
Ay S S T =N Cash flows from operating activities included:
R
- BEWFIE - interest received 47,139 43,481
- TFIE - interest paid 16,497 14,595
- TR - dividend received 36 40
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38. e MERME: 38. Notes to consolidated cash flow statement (continued)

Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

(&)
(b) HE&ERERFELSAEE (b) Analysis of the balances of cash and cash equivalents
@EEh
2015 2014
BEEHET BEEET
HK$’m HK$'m
JEAF B R IR H Cash and balances with banks and other
1F 3 BN 1E financial institutions with original maturity
SRTT e Ho At < mliA within three months
TR 272,052 384,910
JEEHEIE A 3 {EH A Placements with banks and other financial
ZIESRAT R HAM institutions with original maturity within three
Rl >~ EHAEIL months 23,077 10,496
[FEIHIHE 3EH A Treasury bills with original maturity within three
LR months 12,359 6,940
FREIEAEAE 3 @A N Certificates of deposit with original maturity within
TS three months 890 1,061
308,378 403,407

39. ARRERKIE

RO BRI TS
BB A TR &R
SRR R 2
FHE TR & KT
R4 B
AT

39. Contingent liabilities and commitments

The following is a summary of the contractual amounts of each significant class of
contingent liability and commitment and the aggregate credit risk-weighted amount and is
prepared with reference to the completion instructions for the HKMA return of capital

adequacy ratio.

2015 2014

AEEHET B EETT

HK$’'m HK$'m

HEEEEAREH Direct credit substitutes 24,360 22,621

B DA R 2 SRR A (E Transaction-related contingencies 7,600 9,225

B SR > SRR A& Trade-related contingencies 31,713 36,016

HIEZEENEENE Asset sales with recourse 5,419 4,741
FEESm AR Commitments that are unconditionally cancellable without

BH AR prior notice 472,343 407,686

HA&ESE - HEEIH & Other commitments with an original maturity of

-1 EHLLT - up to one year 10,519 9,974

-1ED R - over one year 114,376 71,124

666,330 561,387

EE s e sEE Credit risk-weighted amount 74,880 49,699

(B b e BEE R R

(8R1738 (A HATD
TR - LBEEUAN RS
HPZENREBEYZ
HAPRAFE -

The credit risk-weighted amount is calculated in accordance with the Banking (Capital)
Rules. The amount is dependent upon the status of the counterparty and the maturity

characteristics of each type of contract.
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40. BEAREE 40. Capital commitments
REFARNBHRE TR The Group has the following outstanding capital commitments not provided for in the financial
iz BEARRIESTHOT ¢ statements:
2015 2014
BEEET  BEEET
HK$’'m HK$'m
ELAAE B B SE R Authorised and contracted for but not provided for 223 448
ERUEERELY Authorised but not contracted for 16 4
239 452
DA EEAARIE R 57 Fors The above capital commitments mainly relate to commitments to purchase computer
W A 2 BB R {4 Rk equipment and software, and to renovate the Group’s premises.
R AEEZ EFHEELT
T2 R -
41, ZXEHERE 41. Operating lease commitments
(a) fERRFA (a) As lessee
REBAR T EH &= The Group has commitments to make the following future minimum lease payments under
HESY T RALE non-cancellable operating leases:
R 2K A A A B R I
Fr SN 2 B4
2015 2014
BEEHET BN HET
HK$’'m HK$'m
Tt RS Land and buildings
- A 1A - Not later than one year 764 733
-1 EESER - Later than one year but not later than five years 1,295 1,208
-5 Fik - Later than five years 110 238
2,169 2,179
EFE AR RS Certain non-cancellable operating leases included in the table above were subject to
S FHAI N R renegotiation and rent adjustment with reference to market rates prevailing at specified
ZBHmHH o HE agreed dates or according to the special conditions as stipulated in the leases.

B HH AT Y R B 0
AT R 52 -
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(b) fERHMEA

TRIZA AN 2 4B
BHEY > T RAEE
HHE HR] SRR
A B 2 R A

&

R AT
- i1 &
-1 FELEESFER

REELKEHER R
THH R E P - A
WEHE 1 FE 34
TR — R ORI
FER Prag i P H AT 3
> NIEE BTS2
IRDLTT R B A 8 -

42. R

A5 [ I [ 3 28 TH 80T
ANEHRHRE KR
18 - PR R S SR A
EEVIEE B EE AR -

Y HE TR R AN S [
R A A bk s
ST R AT R B8
PR BALARBBEFRE R
SR G R HEE AR -

Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
41. Operating lease commitments (continued)
(b) As lessor

The Group has contracted with tenants for the following future minimum lease receivables
under non-cancellable operating leases:

2015 2014
AEEET EROET
HK$’'m HK$'m

Land and buildings
- Not later than one year 425 409
- Later than one year but not later than five years 331 426
756 835

The Group leases its investment properties under operating lease arrangements, with
leases typically for a period from one to three years. The terms of the leases generally
require the tenants to pay security deposits and provide for rent adjustments according to
the prevailing market conditions at the expiration of the lease.

42. Litigation

The Group has been served a number of claims and counterclaims by various independent
parties. These claims and counterclaims are in relation to the normal commercial activities of
the Group.

No material provision was made against these claims and counterclaims because the
directors believe that the Group has meritorious defences against the claimants or the
amounts involved in these claims are not expected to be material.
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43. WS

Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
43. Segmental reporting

R F I ER
TRHELTEH > TAREIMULA
TRRTFIERIEZE - HiE 90%
REEH - BRI
R=EEB S EfailE
SR 76T ~ SR T2 0%
FOIA BT - EH R R
ENAFEZEFPE N EmSTE
$ IR B T RPC (%
PG ERRRE) EHEA
BE—EUN -

{18 A SRAT A b SESRTT R 4R
et e EIRTIRY > &
RS B B 18
FI-R ~ B S AERRAY A bt B
S E R - & R RRE
i SMESERS KT AR A A -
NSRAT SR 4 - TR e s fl
ASUNEZ P T RSERTTE
BRIEFEERBAFEEZEF £
A ESEER - BR T HEEH
Hh AR E AR A

<~ FIFFOSNERL I - T Hofth
B TR AEEREA
FRHIEE ~ IREYISE - BT R
SolE N wI AR S A

SETBARAVEE ~ &fF - WA~
SO~ BB RR B A
%ﬁéﬂ’@l@‘ﬁﬁl%iﬁﬂ
£ EEREEEEER
%f%i%ﬂ%axﬁw&Tué@
e ER RISV - 53
BREBAVER > I ERNE
BRI (AR E - £
LTSGR R » W8
R E AR 1

A B E Y £ B AT R Al
BWA - LHERBEHAR
BRI B U A BT
1 > RIELFTA S A
BULARSZH OSSR -

The Group manages the business mainly from a business segment perspective and over
90% of the Group’s revenues, profits before tax and assets are derived from Hong Kong.
Currently, three operating segments are identified: Personal Banking, Corporate Banking
and Treasury. The classification of the Group’s operating segments is based on customer
segment and product type, which is aligned with the RPC (relationship, product and channel)
management model of the Group.

Both Personal Banking and Corporate Banking provide general banking services including
various deposit products, overdrafts, loans, credit cards, trade related products and other
credit facilities, investment and insurance products, and foreign currency and derivative
products. Personal Banking mainly serves retail customers and small enterprises, while
Corporate Banking mainly deals with corporate customers. Treasury manages the funding
and liquidity, and the interest rate and foreign exchange positions of the Group in addition to
proprietary trades. “Others” mainly represents the Group’s holdings of premises, investment
properties, equity investments and interests in associates and a joint venture.

Measurement of segment assets, liabilities, income, expenses, results and capital
expenditure is based on the Group’s accounting policies. The segment information includes
items directly attributable to a segment as well as those that can be allocated on a
reasonable basis. Inter-segment funding is charged according to the internal funds transfer
pricing mechanism of the Group, which is primarily based on market rates with the
consideration of specific features of the product.

As the Group derives a majority of revenue from interest and the senior management relies
primarily on net interest income in managing the business, interest income and expense for
all reportable segments are presented on a net basis.
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43. Segmental reporting (continued)

Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

{ELAST IESRT
Personal Corporate e 54 Hith, et EHHE &
Banking Banking Treasury Others Subtotal Eliminations Consolidated
B¥OET  EWEET  BBEET  BSOET  ABEER AREET AREET
HK$’'m HK$’'m HK$’'m HK$’'m HK$’'m HK$’'m HK$’'m
Year ended 31 December
2015
CONTINUING OPERATIONS
Net interest income/(expense)
- External 2,645 8,055 12,796 6 23,502 - 23,502
- Inter-segment 5,519 1,354 (6,283) (590) - - -
8,164 9,409 6,513 (584) 23,502 - 23,502
Net fee and commission
income 6,764 4,551 77 454 11,846 (200) 11,646
Net trading gain 660 222 1,712 11 2,605 1) 2,604
Net loss on financial
instruments designated at
fair value through profit or
loss - - (22) - (22) - (22)
Net gain on other financial
assets 642 4 504 - 1,150 - 1,150
Other operating income 46 7 13 1,672 1,738 (1,036) 702
Net operating income
before impairment
allowances 16,276 14,193 8,797 1,553 40,819 (1,237) 39,582
Net (charge)/reversal of
impairment allowances (297) (696) 61 1 (931) - (931)
Net operating income 15,979 13,497 8,858 1,554 39,888 (1,237) 38,651
Operating expenses (6,679) (2,520) (1,056) (2,493) (12,748) 1,237 (11,511)
Operating profit/(loss) 9,300 10,977 7,802 (939) 27,140 - 27,140
Net gain from disposal
offfair value adjustments
on investment properties - - - 798 798 - 798
Net loss from disposal/
revaluation of properties,
plant and equipment (15) (2) 1) (45) (63) - (63)
Share of profits less losses
after tax of associates
and a joint venture - - - 54 54 - 54
Profit/(loss) before taxation 9,285 10,975 7,801 (132) 27,929 - 27,929
At 31 December 2015
ASSETS
Segment assets 301,551 638,386 985,051 65,743 1,990,731 (22,524) 1,968,207
Interests in associates and
a joint venture - - - 376 376 - 376
Assets held for sale 39,480 134,506 123,419 7,541 304,946 (4,473) 300,473
341,031 772,892 1,108,470 73,660 2,296,053 (26,997) 2,269,056
LIABILITIES
Segment liabilities 752,284 675,095 400,515 15,212 1,843,106 (11,493) 1,831,613
Liabilities associated with
assets held for sale 91,705 138,603 35,993 1,605 267,906 (15,504) 252,402
843,989 813,698 436,508 16,817 2,111,012 (26,997) 2,084,015
Year ended 31 December
2015
CONTINUING OPERATIONS
Other information
Capital expenditure 34 5 - 1,098 1,137 - 1,137
Depreciation 368 149 68 1,133 1,718 - 1,718
Amortisation of securities - - (195) - (195) - (195)
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MgEMitsE () Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

43. pERE (') 43. Segmental reporting (continued)
[N RESYT
Personal Corporate WAESERS Hthr Nt Eijieit e
Banking Banking Treasury Others Subtotal Eliminations ~ Consolidated
AEHETT  BROET  BEOET  EYoET BESET Al EETT A EETT
HK$'m HK$'m HK$'m HK$'m HK$'m HK$'m HK$'m
#HZE20144£12H31H  Year ended 31 December
(&%) 2014 (Restated)
FHERSE CONTINUING OPERATIONS
IR (21D Net interest income/(expense)
- Sk - External 1,900 6,214 16,447 4 24,565 - 24,565
- PSS - Inter-segment 5,327 3,250 (7,850) (727) - - -
7,227 9,464 8,597 (723) 24,565 - 24,565
RIS AR Net fee and commission
income 5,507 3,209 146 423 9,285 (192) 9,093
PGS (B#E)  Nettrading gain/(loss) 452 198 1,565 (12) 2,203 M 2,202
FUE BN HES BT Net loss on financial
NEfmr ST T instruments designated at
i fair value through profit or
loss - - (14) - (14) - (14)
Hpthre Rl 7 2 Net gain on other financial
assets 505 1 49 - 555 - 555
HAta A Other operating income 41 17 9 1,444 1,511 (1,009) 502
TREUREXRHRT PR Net operating income
BULA before impairment
allowances 13,732 12,889 10,352 1,132 38,105 (1,202) 36,903
JRELEHD T (BS#) % Net(charge)/reversal of
impairment allowances (335) 198 9) - (146) - (146)
PPN Net operating income 13,397 13,087 10,343 1,132 37,959 (1,202) 36,757
Qo Operating expenses (6,028) (2,429) (932) (2,267)  (11,656) 1,202 (10,454)
RERSH (D Operating profit/(loss) 7,369 10,658 9,411 (1,135) 26,303 - 26,303
HEEYREEE A Net gain from disposal
SRR s offfair value adjustments
on investment properties - - - 360 360 - 360
HeE EEEVEE ~ 256K Net loss from disposal/
B Pt 5| revaluation of properties,
plant and equipment 17) 3) - 4) (24) - (24)
FE( SR A E REE Share of profits less losses
SR RS after tax of associates
Ei=l and a joint venture - - - 34 34 - 34
BEETSH (ER) Profit/(loss) before taxation 7,352 10,655 9,411 (745) 26,673 - 26,673
H20144FE12H31H At 31 December 2014
HE ASSETS
AR Segment assets 319,722 718,063 1,002,485 70,060 2,110,330 (8,721) 2,101,609
Tp N & MEELT  Interests in associates and
a joint venture - - - 324 324 - 324
319,722 718,063 1,002,485 70,384 2,110,654 (8,721) 2,101,933
=Tt LIABILITIES
an 5= Segment liabilities 808,673 716,585 398,264 17,087 1,940,609 (8,721) 1,931,888
#Z2014£12H31H  Year ended 31 December
(&5 2014 (Restated)
FHEREES CONTINUING OPERATIONS
p=liiy=p Other information
BARMEL Capital expenditure 29 4 - 897 930 - 930
TEE Depreciation 337 140 65 1,050 1,592 - 1,592
BN Amortisation of securities - - 285 - 285 - 285
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M HRENEE (&) Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

44. EIEHEE 44. Assets pledged as security

2015 12 A 31 H » As at 31 December 2015, the liabilities of the Group amounting to HK$11,650 million (2014:
KREE &AFEHEN 116.50 HK$16,309 million) were secured by assets deposited with central depositories to facilitate
Bt (2014 4 : #ws settlement operations. In addition, the liabilities of the Group amounting to HK$9,111 million
163.09 {&7T) ELFRI (2014: HK$5,860 million) were secured by debt securities and bills related to sale and
R RE RS MEFGEE repurchase arrangements. The amount of assets pledged by the Group to secure these
ZBEFI - A - A liabilities was HK$22,594 million (2014: HK$22,423 million) mainly included in “Trading
EE[E A 8 B 1% O] B T RR Y assets”, “Investment in securities” and “Trade bills”.

B MR 2 &
fF Rl 91.11(87T( 2014
1 B 58.60 fRT) - A
EE RBIERIESEATE
Mz BESERBER
225.94 {577 (2014 F :
W 224.23 {gT) > MER
B TR TR
", Rk THBREE N
HI -
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BRI (&)
45. SRTHEIEH

TERITRALBECHH 2
BTT M5 B s AR s

OV RSP 3 N

B -

BE
PTEERTE

[Z 15 [ st

HoAERE

=
[ s

[ ot

Hitt& A

Assets

Derivative financial
instruments

Reverse repurchase
agreements

Other assets

Liabilities
Derivative financial
instruments
Repurchase
agreements
Other liabilities

45, Offsetting financial instruments

Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

The following tables present details of the Group’s financial instruments subject to offsetting,
enforceable master netting arrangements and similar agreements.

2015
NEEER KENBEERERF
THESH RS AR
[ REEARE Related amounts
B EfEME  KTFIRHY  not set off in the balance
EREEER Gross GRIKESFH sheet
BREREE amounts of Net amounts
Gross recognised of financial BUELZ
amounts of financial assets HEH
recognised liabilities set presented in SRTH Cash
financial off in the  the balance Financial collateral b
assets balance sheet sheet instruments received Net amount
BEET AEET AEET  BROET B¥OErT  BNEET
HK$’m HK$’m HK$’'m HK$’m HK$’m HK$’m
30,118 - 30,118 (14,916) (945) 14,257
1,016 - 1,016 (1,016) -
11,110 (8,277) 2,833 - 2,833
42,244 (8,277) 33,967 (15,932) (945) 17,090
2015
RREER FERAERRET
KO TR FR
B ER NEEER Related amounts
_ HEME  FPYORAY  not set off in the balance
ERER R Gross SRIGEFHE sheet
AfR4aE amounts of Net amounts
Gross recognised of financial [Stii%iivd
amounts of financial liabilities HEH T
recognised assets set off presented in SRTH Cash
financial in the balance the balance Financial collateral p
liabilities sheet sheet instruments pledged Net amount
BEEET HEEET BEEHERT  AYEER  BMEET  BYEER
HK$’m HK$’m HK$’'m HK$’m HK$’'m HK$’'m
31,243 - 31,243 (14,916) (8,972) 7,355
5,557 - 5,557 (5,557) -
9,179 (8,277) 902 - 902
45,979 (8,277) 37,702 (20,473) (8,972) 8,257
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IseERF=NEE (&) Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
45. &R T H 2 K8H () 45. Offsetting financial instruments (continued)

BE Assets

TS T AR Derivative financial
instruments

Hit&mE Other assets

=t Liabilities

PSR T A Derivative financial
instruments

[EliE At Repurchase
agreements

HAr & Other liabilities

AR ST AREIMIETA
TR B AE 5 Y 5 AR AE RAE R
0 R A A B A SRR
TERVERM - HIFE—2 58 T2
I8l < T PR PR B

2014
NEEAR KAENEEABER
FHIEHEZ RS 2 AE R A
EERY WEEAE Related amounts
A fEAEE FHF5RAY  not set off in the balance
CHE R Gross  <RlE T4 sheet
BN amounts of  Net amounts
Gross recognised of financial BEUgEL
amounts of financial assets PR
recognised liabilities set  presented in SR T A Cash
financial off in the the balance Financial collateral JREE
assets  balance sheet sheet instruments received  Net amount
AREEET FELETEE: ST AHSEETT AEETT  EBEET BEEET
HK$'m HK$'m HK$'m HK$'m HK$'m HK$'m
21,775 - 21,775 (8,768) (2,057) 10,950
14,794 (11,586) 3,208 - - 3,208
36,569 (11,586) 24,983 (8,768) (2,057) 14,158
2014
NEEAR KAENEEAMER
FPREE 55 2 AERA %
ErE SR NEEEE Related amounts
BN F5;RY  not set off in the balance
Gross &FhE(EF4E sheet
amounts of  Net amounts
recognised of financial [t ii%iiibd
amounts of financial liabilities IS4
recognised assets set off presented in £REETE Cash
financial  in the balance the balance Financial collateral JHEE
liabilities sheet sheet instruments pledged  Net amount
BESTT  OBWEEDT  OBNEST  OBNEST OBREET OBYEET
HK$'m HK$'m HK$'m HK$'m HK$'m HK$'m
13,653 - 13,653 (8,768) (1,128) 3,757
3,751 - 3,751 (3,751) - -
11,867 (11,586) 281 - - 281
29,271 (11,586) 17,685 (12,519) (1,128) 4,038

For master netting agreements of OTC derivative and sale and repurchase transactions
entered into by the Group, related amounts with the same counterparty can be offset if an
event of default or other predetermined events occur.
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MsEENTEE () Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

46. £ REIEEEG 46. Transfers of financial assets
DIT BAEE T a4k The transferred financial assets of the Group below that do not qualify for derecognition are
R ZEES eRE debt securities held by counterparties as collateral under sale and repurchase agreements.

7 BESETRAER
B 1% 0] i 7 st X A S0 AV 5

e85 o
2015 2014
B EERTE THRREREE CHEBEERERE FHRA & AR (E
Carrying Carrying Carrying Carrying
amount of amount of amount of amount of
transferred associated transferred associated
assets liabilities assets liabilities
BEEET BEEET AREEETT AHEETT
HK$’'m HK$’'m HK$'m HK$'m
Bl Repurchase
agreements 5,841 5,557 3,840 3,751
47. EEERX 47. Loans to directors
RBEE (AEERE) 2 Particulars of loans made to directors of the Bank pursuant to section 383 of the Hong Kong
383 &K (AN\E] (JEEE Companies Ordinance and Part 3 of the Companies (Disclosure of Information about Benefits
Flas kL) #B) E=3 of Directors) Regulation are as follows:
HIRLE » AT E FE
B EEREERHWT -
2015 2014
BEEET B EETT
HK$’'m HK$'m
IWERMEAREEZ HR Aggregate amount of relevant transactions outstanding
LR at year end 2,206 2,783
RNEANREBEERRR S Maximum aggregate amount of relevant transactions
T = 4 AE outstanding during the year 2,857 7,030
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AsERFENEE (&) Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
48. FE FRE AT 5 48. Significant related party transactions

e A\ RILAI B RS am i The Group is subject to the control of the State Council of the PRC Government through
FEEEAREFAT( 4 China Investment Corporation (“CIC”), its wholly-owned subsidiary Central Huijin
)~ H2&ENEAE R Investment Ltd. (“Central Huijin”), and BOC in which Central Huijin has controlling equity
EeREAREEATC E interests.

& DRSS
TEISRTT > EAEE T

il o

(a) ERN\ T RT3 (a) Transactions with the parent companies and the other companies controlled by the
ZEHAMATETHRR S parent companies
INEIRIREAER General information of the parent companies:

A G ] 57 o [ SR AT
il o b BRI T
PEREANE] > IR RAY
EEMEAE - i
SEREBINEE I EE
HEBNEAEED
H] o

b B R L A B AR Y
A TETIRE -

G AR IR S T
BEHE AR TIR TSRS
Koo AREERK -

REREWETHELS)

KI5 B SR T HEA T
A2 5 B &S
B - 4 2015 £ 12 B
31 H > AEEHRAEUL
R JEAT R SR TREAE
HESY R Ry s 1,023.04
®or (2014 4F @ B
1,574.23 (E7T0) R
554.48 (&7 (2014 4 :
M 618.44 (27T) - B
HE 2015412 H 31 H
IR B ERT TR
MU g R AR
HIU A R Sz 48 5y 71
By vk e 33.03 & T
(2014 4 : 3% 55.63
BT Kol 4.74 25T
(2014 £ : ## 4.00
fRIT ) B B SR T
Z HAM A E AR EASS
51 3

The Group is controlled by BOC. Central Huijin is the controlling entity of BOC, and it is
a wholly-owned subsidiary of CIC which is a wholly state-owned company engaging in
foreign currency investment management.

Central Huijin has controlling equity interests in certain other entities in the PRC.

The Group enters into banking transactions with these entities in the normal course of
business which include loans, investment securities and money market transactions.

The majority of transactions with BOC arise from money market activities. As at 31
December 2015, the related aggregate amounts due from and to BOC of the Group
were HK$102,304 million (2014: HK$157,423 million) and HK$55,448 million (2014:
HK$61,844 million) respectively. The aggregate amounts of income and expenses of
the Group arising from these transactions with BOC for the year ended 31 December
2015 were HK$3,303 million (2014: HK$5,563 million) and HK$474 million (2014:
HK$400 million) respectively. Transactions with other companies controlled by BOC are
not considered material.

248



@ ¥ ) 4L £5 (5 m) A B AT

BANK OF CHINA (HONG KONG) LIMITED

MERENE: (&) Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

48. TE > HRHE A+ 5 48. Significant related party transactions (continued)
(&)

(b) EEBUR %S ~ (RS - (b) Transactions with government authorities, agencies, affiliates and other state
i B8 e o o L itk R A5 controlled entities
HIERNR S
R A B L B B 5 Bt The Group is subject to the control of the State Council of the PRC Government
78 3 T Ry Ky PR 4 S AN B2 through CIC and Central Huijin, which also directly or indirectly controls a significant
BEIEHEiEd] > Mo EE A number of entities through its government authorities, agencies, affiliates and other
R T I I 5 e 7 2 state controlled entities. The Group enters into banking transactions with government
BURFIAS ~ (CREREES - authorities, agencies, affiliates and other state controlled entities in the normal course
e o A A o LA B 22 of business at commercial terms.

1 B e ] A
REHMERE - FHEE
5 — R PSR PR AR L T
R - (RELRERS - [T
B R FLAth B A P 2
BRHE T AR SR TSR =T

5 -

B S EEEARER These transactions include, but are not limited to, the following:

AR -

- BE - RS RE - lending, provision of credits and guarantees, and deposit taking;
IRFIREZ 2K

- SRITHEIZEZ fFIR R 45 - inter-bank balance taking and placing;
B

- HE S BEE - G5k - sales, purchases, underwriting and redemption of bonds issued by other state
g [ PR LA R 7 2 1) controlled entities;
HHTRITZES

- FRHLAME - PERORAE R - rendering of foreign exchange, remittance and investment related services;
B

- REMERCEE S & - provision of fiduciary activities; and

- WEENILESE W - purchase of utilities, transport, telecommunication and postage services.
TH - EEREBK
% e
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

48. FE > FRE A1 5 48. Significant related party transactions (continued)

(&)

(c) BEBENT - ARAFE
BHEMAEREALEE
HRBEEANETZX
SR

SRR BN E]
EE MR HAMARHE
AR Z BRHEA L
RGPS Z BBA
S R ERIBRAICAN T

- HAraEs
EBERFE
Weza R H
- HAr&E ST

e A E#RE e
- B

HAA R AL
Weza e H
- Bl BRI T
e

(c) Summary of transactions entered into during the ordinary course of business
with associates, a joint venture and other related parties

The aggregate income/expenses and balances arising from related party transactions
with associates, a joint venture and other related parties of the Group are summarised
as follows:

2015 2014
AMEET AEEET
HK$’m HK$'m
Associates
Income statement item
- Other operating expenses 65 57
Joint venture
Income statement item
- Other operating expenses 1 2
Balance sheet item
- Deposits from customers - 1
Other related parties
Income statement item
- Administrative services fees
received/receivable 9 9
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MERENE: (&) Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

48. FEFRE AL S 48. Significant related party transactions (continued)
(&)

(d) TETBAE (d) Key management personnel

FTEEBAEEERL Key management personnel are those persons having authority and responsibility for
LR HFEN N EEA planning, directing and controlling the activities of the Group, directly or indirectly,
T B RETE -~ H5 including directors, senior management and company secretary. The Group accepts
B HEEEEER deposits from and grants loans and credit facilities to key management personnel in
ANt BIFEEE - S5 E the ordinary course of business. During both the current and prior years, no material
EH A B KN T transaction was conducted with key management personnel of the Bank and its
& REETEIER G holding companies, as well as parties related to them.

PEEZTIESEA

B ) At e

B AEEREE < NASE

BB REEERGH
SR SRAT e He A oy

CiPAEX = PN =
HAR SN LETE
N
THEESREAEEZE 12 The compensation of key management personnel for the year ended 31 December is
H 31 HIEFEE 2 5 detailed as follows:
W :
2015 2014
BEHET AEET
HK$’m HK$'m
FE I R Ho At A HH B T Salaries and other short-term employee
FEF] benefits a7 61
BIRIEF] Post-employment benefits 1 1
48 62
(e) EAMIBATIHVGEER (e) Balances with subsidiaries
#2015 &£ 12 H 31 As at 31 December 2015, the aggregate sums of amounts due from subsidiaries and
H » REITEHEER amounts due to subsidiaries of the Bank arising from transactions entered into during
AR o — R R the normal course of business at commercial terms are HK$21,805 million (2014:
FET 3 5 E A Y JE HK$27,311 million) and HK$5,776 million (2014: HK$5,834 million) respectively.
WS B JE AT Jo 2 ) 3K
Y 48R 5 A Ry s W

218.05 {& st (2014
o B 273.11 BT
Fe By 57.76 BT
(2014 £ ## 58.34
BT °
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49. B

Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

49. International claims

LI o3t /52 B A BRI
TGt 2 B ERHE
FBEEE R I 4R - BUFE
R IR S B T AT
AR ERS R DA %
FZ S B R PR 5
oy HEERERERTA R
W 2 PS BT KAt 2 Sh
W (ARE - EEEZIEmRA

The below analysis is prepared with reference to the completion instructions for the HKMA
return of international banking statistics. International claims are exposures to
counterparties on which the ultimate risk lies based on the locations of the counterparties
after taking into account the transfer of risk, and represent the sum of cross-border claims
in all currencies and local claims in foreign currencies. For a claim guaranteed by a party
situated in a country different from the counterparty, the risk will be transferred to the
country of the guarantor. For a claim on an overseas branch of a bank whose head office
is located in another country, the risk will be transferred to the country where its head
office is located.

PRI LA 2 3 T AT
AE - AR RS = i
PRAZ A - 5 (i
IRIT 2o T - HEk
SRS BT < SET
FRTAEH -

G2 8 1 B 2R B0
HEsT R g & Ak
PR{ERE4REE 10%E 0L 1

Claims on individual countries or areas, after risk transfer, amounting to 10% or more of
the aggregate international claims of the Group are shown as follows:

BT
2015
FERITRANAEEE
Non-bank private sector
JEERAT B
SRS JERL
BTt Non-bank AR
5147 Official financial Non-financial yE=t
Banks sector institutions private sector Total
EREET EREET AREETT AREET AREET
HK$’'m HK$’m HK$’'m HK$’'m HK$’'m
B Y HE Mainland of China 325,043 109,940 2,611 147,461 585,055
T Hong Kong 7,425 25 7,124 276,461 291,035
(EF1)
(Restated)
2014
FEERITRAARE
Non-bank private sector
JRIRTT B
R Bl
BT Non-bank TR
T Official financial Non-financial 4zt
Banks sector institutions _ private sector Total
BHEEET M E T AHEET AHEEETT AHEEETT
HK$'m HK$'m HK$'m HK$'m HK$'m
o [5] A H, Mainland of China 427,683 95,872 3,453 166,738 693,746
&k Hong Kong 3,564 2,318 3,603 212,015 221,500

ELBEFEEHIIR - LA
EAFEZIRIEA -

The comparative amounts have been restated to conform with the current year’s presentation.
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IBEHRENEE (&) Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
50. FEERITRINMESEZ  50. Non-bank Mainland exposures

&

BIESRTTAR ¥ F 0y Nk The analysis of non-bank Mainland exposures is based on the categories of non-bank
AH B8 B KA > i TS counterparties and the types of direct exposures with reference to the completion
HEMANER > &EE instructions for the HKMA return of Mainland activities, which includes the Mainland
R AVE AR RS > 1 exposures extended by BOCHK only.

AU B L 13 Bz 251 7
3 BLEER(ERT S IRE

7 PR RS -
2015
EERR EEAR
SER R F=IM
WRIEH R AR R R
Items in On-balance Off-balance  4EE &K
the HKMA sheet sheet Total
return exposure exposure exposure
AWEHETT EB¥EER AYEET
HK$’'m HK$’m HK$’m

RO E R ~ tPRERFRARY Central government, central
g HIfE AT REE government-owned entities and their

1P subsidiaries and joint ventures 1 242,975 23,497 266,472
HOFEUR ~ #OTEUR AT Local governments, local

i - KB AT NEE government-owned entities and their

1 subsidiaries and joint ventures 2 67,540 12,275 79,815
R EEEAERKEM R PRC nationals residing in Mainland

NEFE MRS - EiEA or other entities incorporated in

HREEMNE Mainland and their subsidiaries and
joint ventures 3 33,743 8,259 42,002
Rt b —Igd0ugr  Other entities of central government
JFPN Y LA Ak not reported in item 1 above 4 13,816 157 13,973
RefEfe _Baltss —IERN AL Other entities of local governments not
TP B Lt pe reported in item 2 above 5 68 - 68

hEEEENERETESNTE  PRC nationals residing outside
IR > HFARESNEY  Mainland or entities incorporated
& outside Mainland where the credit is
granted for use in Mainland 6 50,198 13,976 64,174
Hi<s 5 FimEEEEE  Other counterparties where the
W B ESRTT A A St exposures are considered to be

HEIE non-bank Mainland exposures 7 1,613 - 1,613
4E =t Total 8 409,953 58,164 468,117
HRAE M 1R Y AR Total assets after provision 9 1,914,805

BEABEENGEKEZYE On-balance sheet exposures as
(B FEEEEE 7 E percentage of total assets 10 21.41%
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BRI (8D

50. JESRYTHYPIHEBE AR
# (&

FPORBUR ~ OREUFREA
i - HIfB AT REE
(2

BT ~ #HITBUNRA T
i - HfEA S REGE
13

HPEEE R N E R E A A 5
AEEHIIARS ~ EFTRE A
"HhEGERE

TEFELE B — TR
JF PRI LAt A

S ELFEAE A IR T
JiF IR At A

P RS NE RS NE
IR - AR EINHY
fBE

Hfth = 8t T R A A

BRI ESRA T P b g
HRIE

Hast

ik

AL 1% Y T 4

HE A RN R R E
EEEEEE ot

Central government, central
government-owned entities and their
subsidiaries and joint ventures

Local governments, local
government-owned entities and their
subsidiaries and joint ventures

PRC nationals residing in Mainland
or other entities incorporated in
Mainland and their subsidiaries and
joint ventures

Other entities of central government
not reported in item 1 above

Other entities of local governments not
reported in item 2 above

PRC nationals residing outside
Mainland or entities incorporated
outside Mainland where the credit is
granted for use in Mainland

Other counterparties where the
exposures are considered to be
non-bank Mainland exposures

Total

Total assets after provision

On-balance sheet exposures as
percentage of total assets
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

50. Non-bank Mainland exposures (continued)

2014
HEAMR HEAMR
SER LA FIMNY
HHEIEE RREE RS
ltems in On-balance  Off-balance  4&J&E\[G&IE
the HKMA sheet sheet Total
return exposure exposure exposure
B ETT AEEHET  BEEHET
HK$'m HK$'m HK$'m
1 236,711 31,179 267,890
2 55,275 9,503 64,778
3 32,199 5,537 37,736
4 2,845 1,894 4,739
5 39 - 39
6 47,024 8,700 55,724
7 1,242 - 1,242
8 375,335 56,813 432,148
9 1,759,394
10 21.33%
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HEE
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RSB
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SRR
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FLAARIE K B M
JEATIH AR
BRIERITHA M
‘BRI

=k

(a) Balance sheet

As at 31 December

ASSETS

Cash and balances with banks and other
financial institutions

Placements with banks and other financial
institutions maturing between one and
twelve months

Financial assets at fair value through profit or
loss

Derivative financial instruments

Hong Kong SAR Government certificates of
indebtedness

Advances and other accounts

Investment in securities

Interests in subsidiaries

Interests in a subsidiary held for sale

Interests in associates and a joint venture

Investment properties

Properties, plant and equipment

Other assets

Total assets

LIABILITIES

Hong Kong SAR currency notes in circulation

Deposits and balances from banks and other
financial institutions

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or
loss

Derivative financial instruments

Deposits from customers

Debt securities and certificates of deposit in
issue

Other accounts and provisions

Current tax liabilities

Deferred tax liabilities

Subordinated liabilities

Total liabilities
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

51. Balance sheet and statement of changes in equity

2015 2014
AEEET B EETT
HK$’'m HK$'m
230,372 351,414
64,839 16,990
29,242 26,274
43,041 32,820
101,950 90,770
890,685 818,464
474,256 347,134
3,505 14,482
11,302 -

8 8

16,793 14,241
46,560 44,914
28,135 20,383
1,940,688 1,777,894
101,950 90,770
207,598 217,129
10,942 7,289
40,194 20,456
1,362,410 1,233,471
6,918 9,702
29,455 30,024
2,454 2,334
5,746 6,435
19,422 19,676
1,787,089 1,637,286
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51. BEABERKIELZE 51. Balance sheet and statement of changes in equity (continued)
Bk (8)

(a) EEAMER (&) (a) Balance sheet (continued)

w12 H 31 H As at 31 December 2015 2014

AEEET BEEET
HK$’'m HK$'m

o EQUITY

[N Share capital 43,043 43,043

(G2 Reserves 110,556 97,565

LAY Total equity 153,509 140,608

BB BN Total liabilities and equity 1,940,688 1,777,894

K EEH 2016 /3 H Approved by the Board of Directors on 30 March 2016 and signed on behalf of the Board

30 H BBz A HELTT by:

ATARFEEE

H\L %1

FHEEr TIAN Guoli =R YUE Yi

FHH Director EHE Director

256



@ ¥ 8 4 47 (5 ) B mAT

BANK OF CHINA (HONG KONG) LIMITED

MBI (&)
51. BERERKIERSE

gk (&)

(b) HEzBEIE

#2014 E1H1H

HEREEF
ot gt

R
AT

SRR A

et

A AR

2450

#2014 F12 H31H

#2015 1H1H

EREEF
ot gt

R
AT

SRR A

et

PRI S 2 i

R E AR

L
R

=a

2015412 431 H

At 1 January 2014

Profit for the year
Other comprehensive
income:

Premises

Available-for-sale
securities

Currency translation
difference

Total comprehensive
income

Transfer from retained
earnings
Dividends

At 31 December 2014

At 1 January 2015

Profit for the year
Other comprehensive
income:

Premises

Available-for-sale
securities

Currency translation
difference

Total comprehensive
income

Release upon disposal
of premises

Transfer from retained
earnings

Dividends

At 31 December 2015

* BREE AR TS 30 SR FURRHUR
TEERSN R ZOR B Y R PR
FI BB E AR T — i Ebe 2 A
RAHESRSILAA AT T ) -

(b) Statement of changes in equity

Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

51. Balance sheet and statement of changes in equity (continued)

{545
Reserves

AL E

EHAHE

BN

3 Reserve for

Al fair value
[AZN Premises changes of e Et ezl BEALEEH
Share revaluation available-for- Regulatory Retained Total
capital reserve sale securities reserve* earnings equity
AEEETT AR EETT AEEETT BT AW EETT AW EETT
HK$'m HK$'m HK$'m HK$'m HK$'m HK$'m
43,043 27,485 (1,712) 6,895 44,423 120,134
- - - - 22,991 22,991
- 2,216 - - - 2,216
- - 1,257 - - 1,257
- - 36 - - 36
- 2,216 1,293 - 22,991 26,500
- - - 856 (856) -
- - - - (6,026) (6,026)
43,043 29,701 (419) 7,751 60,532 140,608
43,043 29,701 (419) 7,751 60,532 140,608
- - - - 23,568 23,568
- 2,726 - - - 2,726
- - (817) - - (817)
- - (3) - - (3)
- 2,726 (820) - 23,568 25,474
- (361) - - 361 -
- - - 715 (715) -
- - - - (12,483) (12,483)
43,043 32,066 (1,239) 8,466 71,263 153,599

* In accordance with the requirements of the HKMA, the amounts are set aside for general banking risks, including future

losses or other unforeseeable risks, in addition to the loan impairment allowances recognised under HKAS 39.
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53.

54.

ARERTTFTA B B
NEZFEFER TR — A
T AE - 1 2015
12 7 31 QZ £ @D
EFIRAE -

Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

52. Principal subsidiaries

The particulars of all direct and indirect subsidiaries of the Bank are set out in “Appendix —
Subsidiaries of the Bank”. The following is a list of principal subsidiaries as at 31 December

2015:

EEatlipd=¢ ikl
Place of E8TRA SREE
215 incorporation Issued share capital/ BFEERS FEER
Name and operation registered capital Interest held Principal activities
BRI TAIR A E i LA 100% RITHIE
Nanyang Commercial Bank, Hong Kong 3,144,517,396 #T Banking business
Limited Ordinary shares
HK$3,144,517,396
ERIUTAIRAE] EHH A AR {7y 70.49% TS
Chiyu Banking Corporation Hong Kong 300,000,000 #7T Banking business
Limited Ordinary shares
HK$300,000,000
REER R (B AR wE HIER 100% (ElERNiEE
INH] Hong Kong 480,000,000 7T Credit card services
BOC Credit Card Ordinary shares
(International) Limited HK$480,000,000
BAHERRATE EHH A {7y *100% 5807 IR,
Po Sang Futures Limited Hong Kong 335,000,000 7T Securities and
Ordinary shares futures brokerage
HK$335,000,000
PRSI T (P AIRA i FEEA *100% SRATETS
=* PRC 6,500,000,000 A i Banking business

Nanyang Commercial Bank

(China), Limited”

Registered capital
RMB6,500,000,000

* RHUTRIBERA R
" BREREEIRTT (D AIRAE R
TEDEB M M

R A E]

o HE N B LB B s e A
BPEHREAREES
F] ~ H B T e
BREAREELT (T
) KEEEHEA PRI
ZHBIERTT  WAEEET
] -

BRI A

A 2016 4 3 H
30 HetE S EmB Rk
A -

* Shares held indirectly by the Bank

# Nanyang Commercial Bank (China), Limited is registered as a wholly-foreign-owned enterprise under PRC law

53. Ultimate holding company

The Group is subject to the control of the State Council of the PRC Government through
China Investment Corporation, its wholly-owned subsidiary Central Huijin Investment Ltd.
(“Central Huijin”), and BOC in which Central Huijin has controlling equity interests.

54. Approval of financial statements

The financial statements were approved and authorised for issue by the Board of Directors

on 30 March 2016.
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IR B &R

1. 8 - 1% kE/EEMR 1. Regulatory capital for credit, market and operational risks
HEEE &L

EEREbE - TR RIRE The bases of regulatory capital calculation for credit risk, market risk and operational risk are
Elgst B EEANEEDH described in Note 4.4 to the Financial Statements.

ARSI 4.4 drfigal -

AT B ER E1E 95y Sections 1 to 9 of the supplementary financial information have been prepared on a

DIESE R EAF & A aR S - consolidated basis for regulatory purposes. The basis of regulatory consolidation is set out in
B E 4 & AL A A 5 3 Note 4.4(A) to the Financial Statements.
LMFE4.4(A) -

NEMA AR e A FETE The table below summarises the regulatory capital computed on the same consolidation basis
ZEE -~ i REEFE R for credit, market, and operational risks.

- Z N
2015 2014
AREET AT
HK$’'m HK$'m
(& bz Credit risk 69,906 66,708
T E b Market risk 1,683 1,546
1R Operational risk 6,170 5,664
77,759 73,918

BHAEE ERAEHEER For details of capital management and capital ratios of the Group, please refer to Note 4.4 to

PR > A RM B HEENTEE  the Financial Statements.
44 -
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TEERIR CGRITE (BA) #
HI) BES BRI T EREE
JE\P AR YERTE A E -

NERERAR AT EUA T R
REREEA
ibe =
BB BRI ROE T Y
HEEE
- IHHRE
SR S
FHifth s
AT
AT
*S&%
zE
EEIE R E
- A

- R

R
ST
N
3

B A
SfE e

sz b
EEMERRE

NEPEPARE T RUA T R
RIEFMEEASENEH

B (EERER) StEETHY
R RIERFTRES
EEAER N R R

BEER
B

FETHAR I
A~ e Lt R
R AR

EE A ERINEGRE
FrasRE s 5 B AT AT
BHEYINTEEAGER
SRR IE
%m/%‘“ THRLTETE

#b

RE (ERER) HEEATH
BB AR R A A S A

EREBRIEFRBEARE
s

2. Capital requirements for credit risk

Unaudited Supplementary Financial Information (continued)

The tables below show the capital requirements for each class and subclass of credit risk

exposures as specified in the Banking (Capital) Rules.

Capital required for exposures under the IRB approach

Corporate
Specialised lending under supervisory slotting criteria
approach
- Project finance
Small-and-medium sized corporates
Other corporates
Bank
Banks
Securities firms
Retail
Residential mortgages
- Individuals
- Property-holding shell companies
Qualifying revolving retail
Other retail to individuals
Small business retail
Others
Cash items
Other items

Securitisation
Credit valuation adjustment

Total capital requirements for exposures under the IRB
approach

Capital required for exposures under the standardised
(credit risk) approach

On-balance sheet exposures
Sovereigns
Public sector entities
Banks
Corporates
Regulatory retail
Residential mortgage loans
Other exposures which are not past due
Past due exposures

Off-balance sheet exposures
Off-balance sheet exposures other than securities
financing transactions and derivative contracts

Securities financing transactions and derivative
contracts

Securitisation

Total capital requirements for exposures under the
standardised (credit risk) approach

Total capital requirements for credit risk exposures
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2015 2014
BEETETT T E T
HK$’'m HK$'m
62 120
4,355 4,080
35,414 31,703
14,150 17,873
49 37
2,586 1,617
90 59
1,041 974
668 645

73 86
6,640 6,354
3 5

597 407
65,728 63,960
1,302 34
97 63

9 117

934 903
674 607
487 448
322 308

11 10

310 232

32 26
4,178 2,748
69,906 66,708
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i EER (&)

3. NEREPREZEEETE AT 3. Credit risk under the internal ratings-based approach
B E B

3.1 Nk A% EE4HRE 3.1 The internal rating systems and risk components

oy

BEtEEEEARTER R The Group adopts the FIRB approach to calculate the regulatory capital requirements for
EEE R 7 EFSRIT most of the corporate and bank exposures, and adopts the supervisory slotting criteria
PN JeR i A (e P RS 1A 350 approach to project finance exposures under specialised lending. The Group adopts
SPARECEREE - HIEPY retail IRB approach for retail exposures to individuals and small business. The following
S EHYTE H mla 5 A g is the table showing the Group’s different capital calculation approaches to each asset
B EREREE - class and sub-classes of exposures (other than securitisation exposures).

MRS B R
1 P B T
BFEE T AL
BHESTERT LR,
B (s LR
WIS PR
BT -
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3. Ntk EEEFE AT 3. Credit risk under the internal ratings-based approach (continued)
HEEmEkE (&)

3.1 Nk A% kB4R 3.1 The internal rating systems and risk components (continued)

o ()
HESE TOEEBRE EASTEITE
Asset class Exposure sub-class Capital calculation approach
13 R R B SRR VARG EDE PRVEPIEEE CHERME )| BB BEEARTRE
Corporate exposures Specialised lending under supervisory slotting  |Supervisory Slotting Criteria Approach
criteria approach (project finance)
N FRBEN RS AR B A
Small-and-medium sized corporates FIRB Approach
Hoftr b3
Other corporates
BT E R R ETER e (EEER) stEUE
Sovereign exposures Sovereigns Standardised (credit risk) Approach
e E AN B
Sovereign foreign public sector entities
S BEIRIRNT
Multilateral development banks
HRAT R AT FEBE NS FAR AR A
Bank exposures Banks FIRB Approach
RN
Securities firms
NEEM (FNEEBETERIEAAEEA) (e (EEERE) HEZE
Public sector entities (excluding sovereign Standardised (credit risk) Approach
foreign public sector entities)
T R A EEREER LERNE T EE
Retail exposures Residential mortgages to individuals Retail IRB Approach
ZERNEHEEEEERK
Residential mortgages to property-holding shell
companies
EEBIEEREE
Qualifying revolving retail
i A2
Other retail to individuals
N
Small business retail
FRE R e R - rEE (EEERE) sHRE
Equity exposures Standardised (credit risk) Approach
FAth PR HREHE e bR E s RA
Other exposures Cash items Specific Risk-weight Approach
HAtrrHE
Other items
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Unaudited Supplementary Financial Information (continued)

3. Ntk EEEFE AT 3. Credit risk under the internal ratings-based approach (continued)

EEERE (8)

3.1 ERRRAR A4 B R B A R
B (8

(A) AEFRAGERR
BB EPER 25 MER ERAR
HFEw R

A 55 ] {5 F 9 P T S
B F T — (R T
S ESTPa g EE
BN &7 s e
ffi o FR R FERIERTTAL
a o B AR
EYSER R/ ONGRY: S
[ > 2 (ERPARAEE
[ N — EHLELY
IR R BHR R B R
HIRFER FHRZ

AEEE P T it
B ETER RS
RITMIZEEEHE AL
ELARPD) > DLk
EHZE BN EREaRE
EH AT EEER
RIERELQRER
(LGD) 172 &7 Ji b 7K
{&(EAD) -

SR A PO ER AT AR
ZAREHERTA N BT
SRR RUE TERK
ARVEEATRENE - &
SIMER G RAEIA—
SN HTE LR -
EEONEISE SIS
FERETE Y B e F AR AR
HENEIEERE

GERDN-SR =R/ ONES sy
o TR R
RSP (E DLt R
BRI EE -

TEREE (PO A RFARAY
B gHEEE
N EATHI B R
HZEE - EHEE
ESARGE S0l
SEERIHEEAEA
R EBETIE > I
PRILAE R R RN 2R DL
TERAE R [F &7 R i
TETHEHREN
REJTRIEIE -

3.1 The internal rating systems and risk components (continued)

(A) The structure of internal rating systems and the relationship between internal

ratings and external ratings

The Group’s internal rating system is a two dimensional rating system that provides
separate assessment of borrower and transaction characteristics. For corporate and
bank portfolios, the obligor rating dimension reflects exclusively the risk of borrower
default and the facility rating dimension reflects transaction specific factors that affect
the loss severity in the case of borrower default.

The Group developed statistical models to provide own estimated probability of
default (“PD”) for its corporate, bank and retail borrowers, and loss given default
(“LGD”) and exposure at default (“EAD”) for retail exposures under retail IRB
approach.

The Group uses internal rating system to assess the borrower’s likelihood of default
for all IRB portfolios. PD estimates the risk of borrower default over a one-year period.
A borrower credit grade means a grouping of similar credit-worthiness to which
borrowers are assigned on the basis of specified and distinct set of rating criteria, from
which the average PD are derived for risk-weighted assets calculation.

In the process of obligor rating assignment, variables of latest financial performance,
management quality, industry risks, group connection and negative warning signals of
each obligor are assessed as critical factors to predict borrower's ability and
willingness to meet with the contractual obligations under different economic
conditions.
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3. Ntk EEEFE AT 3. Credit risk under the internal ratings-based approach (continued)
HEEmEkE (&)

Unaudited Supplementary Financial Information (continued)

3.1 ERRRAR A4 B R B A R
B (8

3.1 The internal rating systems and risk components (continued)

(A) AEFRAGERR

(A) The structure of internal rating systems and the relationship between internal

BB EPER 25 MER ERAR
HEm G (8

B SEMIBRIT B AR
TEEGBERE R
B Ve NG S SR D)
FETEFEELEBA
G HLAl 7y 2266 (=
BPHIAI 8B LI
Bl - RS &8 e
SIRUE - EREE Y
SRR RUERY TR E
R R AR 07 Fyd
{lEl 2 49 8 R 1 8
ELG - HNEE
WSS T ROR
HEERIDEME - %
EBEAEE - &Z(EH5
B~ HEA R
IR 53 Ry RIS
R~ B RTE
FELHER R -

TYAHAERE RefE A
HHEEFRER A E
EERBEK - 8&
15 B 22 65 B R
¥ ~ HAtE A ZER
BRIERIZ /M b3
L B K HE ) B AU
R BLBEERNE
S AR ST e —
BAE R E T A
B - REEERES]
BUE > ATA RERIR
THIEER S E

TLIERIAR (J2IRE
IRERIEE) - &
LRARELELMR
R TR &
(EL) > FIHEER
W T BALRTAS -

ratings and external ratings (continued)

The obligors for corporate and bank, and retail PD pools are assigned into eight
broad obligor ratings including seven grades for non-defaulted obligors with
sub-divisions into 26 minor credit grades and one for defaulted obligors. In the
supervisory slotting criteria approach for the project finance exposures, there are four
grades for non-defaulted borrowers and one for defaulted borrowers in accordance
with the HKMA guidance. The estimates for retail IRB portfolios are pooled by nature
of obligors, facility types, collateral types and delinquency status into different PD,
EAD and LGD pools. This pooling process provides the basis of accurate and
consistent estimation for PD, LGD and EAD at the pool level for exposures arising
from residential mortgages to both individuals and property-holding shell companies,
qualifying revolving retail exposures and other retail exposures to individuals and
small business retail exposures. All credit transactions for corporates and banks are
assigned facility ratings (in terms of LGD) in accordance with the HKMA guidance.
LGD estimates multiplied by the PD estimates produce the expected loss (“EL”)
estimates, which are used to assess credit risk quantitatively.
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3. Ntk EEEFE AT 3. Credit risk under the internal ratings-based approach (continued)

MEERE (8
3.1 PUESEPAR IR B BB AR P

#o ()

(A) NETRAGERER
PRSP B MR SR

HFEm G (8D

(B N B R B 4

3.1 The internal rating systems and risk components (continued)

(A) The structure of internal rating systems and the relationship between internal
ratings and external ratings (continued)

For each internal rating, the equivalent external rating in terms of default risk is as

JE\Fg AR E FIAM BT BT AR below:
g
PR S8R TR E & SR BT
Standard & Poor’s
Internal Credit Grades Definition of Internal Ratings Equivalent
1 BB ARH 1”7 F1 “27 FofERY#E [The obligors in grades “1” and “2” have AAA
2 G - extremely low default risk. AA+
A BTSSR ks . The obligor’s capacity to meet its financial AA
commitment on the obligation is extremely
strong. AA-
3 BB ARA] “3" Fon{EiELE S - {H4E|The obligors in grade “3” have low default A+
—EEE PR R T eSS | risk but are somewhat susceptible to the
COPEIHE o RTFE ALy | adverse effects of changes in A
Wik o circumstances and economic conditions.
However, the obligor’s capacity to meet its
financial commitment on the obligation is A-
very strong.
4 BB AR “4” ForRrHEHEEAYESY | The obligors in grade “4” have relatively low BBB+
JE\ BFAETYAE B4Rk - [HA]ge2 | default risk and are currently under
TR ERE R (g | adequateprotection. BBB
B e i [ e 2 owever, adverse economic conditions or
HET USR] changing circumstances are likely to lead
to a weakened capacity of the obligor to BBB-
meet its financial commitment on the
obligation.
5 5 ANRR] “5” FocrprEE4E s - /8| The obligors in grade “5” have medium BB+
SRR B (E R A/ b FE R | default risk which are less vulnerable to
. nonpayment than other speculative —=
i R P A2 obligors. _ _
L?}ﬁi; ‘ ?:;{TL ﬁgggTQ% However, they face major ongoing
e ;f‘t AR N R iﬁba‘z uncertainties or exposure to adverse
s \MEBRE AR LABITIAHH | pusiness, financial, or economic BB-
- conditions which could lead to the
obligor’s inadequate capacity to meet its
financial commitment on the obligation.
6 BB AR “6” ForEEE EREEL |The obligors in grade “6” have significant to B+
b 25 5 B H s o very high default risk and are vulnerable to
TRE5A B AT I M A IR TR R Thr;zocr)]glei]gycr)?:rc];trrently and in the near term
B MR\ B R ER AR R
Eg E?*”EE?’;W’J@’? [IT have the capacity to meet its financial B
{iﬁgﬁﬂmﬁjﬁbﬁﬁ#ﬁﬁxﬁaﬁﬁ commitment on the obligation but adverse
RBRIE - business, financial, or economic
conditions will very likely impair the B-
obligor’s capacity or willingness to meet its
financial commitment on the obligation.
7 BB ANRR 7" FTortmmEELESEE | The obligors in grade “7” have very high CccC
it E 55 LR Es: ; &g A | default risk and are currently quite
BESRATHIRIE - R | uinerable to nonpayment. The obligors
TS ~ B s o . _ | ability to meet their financial commitmen
Eéiﬁ#gﬁiﬂgxﬁgﬁéﬂﬁg and obI|gat|on_ are de_pend_ent upon cc
e : favorable business, financial, and
ARITRB LT - economic conditions.
In the event of adverse business, financial, c
or economic conditions, these obligors are
not likely to have the capacity to meet its
financial commitment on the obligation.
8 EB AR “8" FoREFGEL Obligors rated “8” are in payment default. D
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3. Ntk EEEFE AT 3. Credit risk under the internal ratings-based approach (continued)
HEEmEkE (&)

3.1 NEk LS EE4HE 3.1 The internal rating systems and risk components (continued)
o ()

Unaudited Supplementary Financial Information (continued)

(B) ABMERERIAR

(B) Use of internal estimates

A LR R {E #4018
FAGEAE N TR AR
FRTT R yE R B
EEAS > RhnieH
WA EEEBE
B SEEPRA R
3 BRI TR
QYR AR BRI (G RS
R EAREESR
it EEEZE - B8
o\ R e B Sy AT o

C) EERREEIAZ

EHRERERF

HREREEIE TR
AT > AEEE
FEFEA an s A0 E 2
L ERIEHHEATECR
TR - WiFE (R
13 (BA) KA
HHE B bR R A
FEFFERAIRIEEOR -

ET R BTN ST
GEERATEE
AEIEE R AL -
HER AR AL
It ER L 58 &
HYSRTT ~ {3 LLRGE
75 X H] A e gt Y 1
A SRS R
IR > HEE
EEEERIETIAS
HYHEERIR -

Besides using PD estimates for regulatory capital calculation in corporate and bank
exposures, the Group uses the PD together with the LGD and EAD estimates in the
credit approval, credit monitoring, reporting and analysis of credit risk information,
etc., for the purpose of strengthening the daily management on all credit related
matters.

(C) Process of managing and recognising credit risk mitigation

For collateral recognised under capital management, the Group has well-defined
policies and procedures for collateral valuation and management which are compliant
with the operational requirements for recognised collateral of credit risk mitigation as
stated in the Banking (Capital) Rules.

For the credit exposures adopting FIRB approach for capital calculation purpose, the
recognised eligible guarantees include the guarantees provided by banks, corporates
and securities firms with a lower risk weights than the counterparty. The Group takes
into account the credit risk mitigation effect of recognised collateral through its
determination of the net credit exposures and the effective LGD.
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3. Ntk EEEFE AT 3. Credit risk under the internal ratings-based approach (continued)
HEEmEkE (&)

3.1 NEk LS EE4HE 3.1 The internal rating systems and risk components (continued)

o ()

(C) EERABSEIRZ (C) Process of managing and recognising credit risk mitigation (continued)
B R R ()
BN B EN AR L For retail IRB approach, the effect of the credit risk mitigation is incorporated into the
REHEEENEE internal risk parameters of PD or LGD depending on the nature of the guarantees and
BRI (S ERE collateral for calculating the risk exposures.
G REHY(F P HeHE o

RS E A E R
QR EELIRI R

By P9 B 2 B

o

AEEEFT A 5 & R b The credit and market risk concentrations within the credit risk mitigation (recognised
BT E (HEFEXR collateral and guarantees for capital calculation) used by the Group are under a low
SHERYRE AR A level.

WHER) AEER
B 5 o PR 55 R
FEP TR B -

HEmSH  FitE Up to the date of report, for capital calculation, except OTC derivative transactions
BEARE > BTGk cleared by central counterparties and derivatives subject to valid bilateral netting
L5 FERE SN agreements, the Group has not used any other on-balance sheet or off-balance
PIETER G REE sheet recognised netting for credit risk mitigation. The Group also has not used any
SR R RS B R recognised credit derivative contracts for credit risk mitigation.

BRAMLTEZ BN

A S (B I {5 P A

HArEERERAN K
AEABERINGIAE
BRI B EEERE
ERETH - AEEIR
i MR E S
PIETREGOERE
SE\mer T -
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3. Ntk EEEFE AT 3. Credit risk under the internal ratings-based approach (continued)
HEEmEkE (&)

3.1 NEk LS e EE4HE 3.1 The internal rating systems and risk components (continued)

o ()
(D) EBERER &R 52 (D) The control mechanisms used for internal rating systems
4l
AREBCEILT — The Group has established a comprehensive control mechanism to ensure the
5E = Y $% ) % integrity, accuracy and consistency of the rating systems including the processes for
il - DAFECRETAR 251 using the risk components in the day-to-day business to assess credit risk.
(BEEHEES
it A2 (5 P JeEL B 4H R
By LLRE AL (5 & R
fa) HysEEEM: - AENE
PERI—EE -
EEYE TR All of IRB risk models are approved by the RC of the Board on the recommendation of
ZEGRBEEA the Asset and Liability Management Committee (“ALCO”). The Management
EEHZEFHE Committee supervises the use of these internal rating models for risk identification
&2 FHFTENEEE and assessments in the Group’s credit decisions.

SRS BUA VR
Wt EEAl - BHE
EgEERERE
EEARTEAN
0 S i AR A A 1
B 38 ] At £l 69 1
Do
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3. Ntk EEEFE AT 3. Credit risk under the internal ratings-based approach (continued)
HEEmEkE (&)

Unaudited Supplementary Financial Information (continued)

3.1 NEk LS e E&4HE 3.1 The internal rating systems and risk components (continued)

EEIEH - iR
[ - AEEEILT B
T B A0 T 5 HE
5 B fir HY B 4R At
T2FF - HIR I ERRTER
EBEERARNEE
HE - O EE
AT LU OR 57 8 A
SEREME ~ AR —
Mk o BRI S

(RSEFERTT) B8
e - NERFREER
AR AV $ ]
MG R EE
FEHMANBAARF
it - ERI SEGEH
NS B JE B R Y
BT EERFRA
oo 8 & RO T S HE R
BB H S E
FedtAe o A RS
B e HAt 5 B
EHAAEHETE
e -

TEH & O RT
TE A JE e 2 1B 2 R
A - (ERH
A AR
SRSy > BELETER
FiT /e o A\ BB 9
e 14 A 52 22 1 H
ILHY SR Y R T RE
FYERfT &30 -

RBEAEEEER
WRECR - fE AeFak
EVEBEETE
o FERB AR
SEFERLT 1]
BEAEEEERR
BUR - AR TR
ELEt

oy (&
(D) AECEFER 2 & 32 (D) The control mechanisms used for internal rating systems (continued)
HEl (8D
By {58 B B E 4R 45 SR In order to achieve reasonably accurate risk ratings assignment, the Group has

established a rating approval process which is independent from the sales and
marketing units. Since internal rating is one of the key inputs to credit decision
making, a control mechanism is put in place to ensure the integrity, accuracy and
consistency of the rating assignment. For the wholesale (corporate and bank) credit
portfolio, internal ratings are normally approved by credit officers who are functionally
separated from the sales and marketing units. In some cases where the transactions
are in small amount and of low credit risk, the credit ratings can be assigned and
approved by the sales and marketing units, subject to the periodic post-approval
review of ratings by RMD and other credit monitoring units.

The rating assignment and risk quantification process of retail portfolio are highly
automated. As an integral part of the daily credit assessment process, the accuracy
and completeness of data input for automatic rating assignment are verified by units
independent from business development function.

The obligor rating is reviewed at least annually as required by the Group’s credit risk
policy. When credit events occur to the obligor, rating review is triggered promptly in
accordance with the Group’s credit risk policy.
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3. Ntk EEEFE AT 3. Credit risk under the internal ratings-based approach (continued)
HEEmEkE (&)

3.1 ATk LG EE4HE 3.1 The internal rating systems and risk components (continued)
o (&)

Unaudited Supplementary Financial Information (continued)

(D) AEREPER F 4 HE

(D) The control mechanisms used for internal rating systems (continued)

HeE (8D

AERHEUE T R
By > etEED
1 & 75 8 5P 4R 2
o R AE L5 Y A
HEIEEELR - HiE
PR ST e R R R A HY
&% ST HERIAR
53 RER R E NG R
HIBEREAR L MR > {H
38 TR AR A R R
AR > A
28 74l - HETt
BB ARGIES
5 E HY
BZA - FraHERIEY
B E SR
EEFEMTEANE
0 o NEREPARECRER
TE T 45 4t B il S G
Fo wF & (& /Y
10% - GFARHAERIRIE
P A HE BRI A A 0y
M1 0 o i 22 P9 80 5F
G 5 T S B —
A

AT R ETAR
SRR I AT
TEWIEESE - mEEH
ARG EHEEN
EIEE SR 3
RIARBEST - PHREY
TR NEFA
R L B
fir &3 - AL EEE
fir 35 749 B0 5P 4R 2 8
HYaRIRE ST ~ AETEME
Ko K8 GE M 1T SF
il > TS et BT
El RTINS
A - NEE
ENa BB EN Tl
HEHAY = & B g E
PEES Py AR 1R 1T
e > MG R
HEEGNEEE
B BIEH -

Rating override is designed to allow credit analyst to include any other relevant credit
information that has not yet been captured by rating models. For reasons of
conservatism and prudential considerations, overrides are unlimited in terms of
downgrades but more restricted for upgrades. All upgrades will be limited to a
maximum of two sub-grades supported by a very narrowly pre-defined list of
appropriate reasons. All overrides need to be signed off by a higher level of credit
approval authority. The internal rating policy sets a trigger point of 10% overrides on
rating cases. The use of overrides and override reasons are analysed as part of
performance review on IRB rating models.

The performance of internal rating system is put under ongoing periodic monitoring.
The senior management periodically reviews the performance and predictive ability of
the internal rating system. The effectiveness of the internal rating system and
processes are reviewed by independent control functions. The model maintenance
unit conducts assessment on the discriminatory power, accuracy and stability of the
rating systems while the validation unit performs comprehensive review of the internal
rating system. Internal audit reviews the internal rating system and the operations of
the related credit risk control units. The results of the review are reported to the Board
and senior management regularly.
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3. Ntk EEEFE AT 3. Credit risk under the internal ratings-based approach (continued)
HEEmEkE (&)

3.1 NEEEk A% EBR4HRE 3.1 The internal rating systems and risk components (continued)

o ()

(D) N EBEF&R & 2261 (D) The control mechanisms used for internal rating systems (continued)
B (8D
LT B 5 [ P A T I A model validation team which is independent from the model development unit and
55 7 B =% B8 {17 FO5F rating assignment units, conducts periodic model validations using both qualitative
4R ERAY - EHIFIFE and quantitative analysis. Model acceptance standards are established to ensure the
MR E &8 i AT discriminatory power, accuracy and stability of the rating systems meet regulatory and
PHARIERES - B management requirements. Review of a rating model will be triggered if the
TE T IR T B Ui f2E R performance of the model deteriorates materially against pre-determined tolerance
DUHE OR 5F 8] Z 48 1Y limit.

AAIRET] ~ AR
TREMFEEE K
EEREDR - QALY
RIARETTAME N
EREHERE AR
& HI & REhRraR s
AUy -

(E

~

TRERE A (E) Approach for determining provisions

JEAE HE M T VA B EE The approach in determining provisions is in line with the Group’s accounting policies.
Bt —8 0 5 For details, please refer to Note 2.14 “Impairment of financial assets” to the Financial
1B 5 R SRR Statements.

214 T & EhE E R

fEe
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3. Ntk EEEFE AT 3. Credit risk under the internal ratings-based approach (continued)
HEEmEkE (&)

Unaudited Supplementary Financial Information (continued)

3.2 AEEFRERETRIET
MR AR R

3.2 Exposures by IRB calculation approach

TRIRAEE PR
S0 R B R 4 R

The tables below show the Group’s exposures other than securitisation exposures
(including the EAD of on-balance sheet exposures and off-balance sheet exposures) by

P B0 ST 4 A e B

STRAVERRE (BEE
EREENREAERM
FHMVENRBRAE) -

each IRB calculation approach.

2015
BESE ZERNE
EREAER BHARTEVE FReRERRE e B
FHREERE  Supervisory BHRE MEETEE
sHEE Slotting Retail Specific 4 B R E
FIRB Criteria IRB  Risk-weight Total
Approach Approach Approach Approach exposures
EREET AREHET AYaErT  BREET  BYEEx
HK$’'m HK$’'m HK$’'m HK$’m HK$’'m
1M Corporate 891,708 971 - - 892,679
AT Bank 566,726 - - - 566,726
BE Retail
HEPN &L 7N Residential
EETIEE mortgages to
=04 individuals
and property-
holding shell
companies - - 239,873 - 239,873
BERIER Qualifying
EBE revolving retail - - 71,276 - 71,276
HAE AT Other retail to
individuals - - 39,747 - 39,747
FE/NbE Small business
retail - - 8,483 - 8,483
HAh Others - - - 203,613 203,613
1,458,434 971 359,379 203,613 2,022,397
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Unaudited Supplementary Financial Information (continued)

NPk EETEIET 3. Credit risk under the internal ratings-based approach (continued)

EEERE (8)

3.2 AR EETRAT

HUEBEEE (%)

3

IR
[EVN&:5E 7N
EEEE

o
e
A

RS ViNoe S

HAth

Corporate
Bank
Retail
Residential
mortgages to
individuals
and property-
holding shell
companies
Qualifying
revolving retail
Other retail to
individuals
Small business
retail
Others

3.2 Exposures by IRB calculation approach (continued)

2014
BB ZEA

FEREAHES RAFTEA BTN ARAE Ry 72 gz

PP Supervisory AEUE MEERSDA
FEA Slotting Retail Specific L e e i
FIRB Criteria IRB Risk-weight Total
Approach Approach Approach Approach exposures
A ET BEEET  BWEET AEEET A EETT
HK$'m HK$'m HK$'m HK$'m HK$'m
800,429 1,544 - - 801,973
627,768 - - - 627,768
- - 223,642 - 223,642
- - 63,730 - 63,730
- - 34,470 - 34,470
; ; 8,943 - 8,943
- - - 188,596 188,596
1,428,197 1,544 330,785 188,596 1,949,122
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3. Ntk EEEFE AT 3. Credit risk under the internal ratings-based approach (continued)
HEEmEkE (&)

3.3 NERRRR AL ST BIA T EE 3.3 Exposures subject to supervisory estimates under the IRB approach

B E AR AR

NFRF AN B Y The table below shows the total EAD of the Group’s exposures subject to supervisory
SPARFEREETEA N 2 E estimates under the use of IRB approach (including the specialised lending subject to
FE A BV AE K R K the supervisory slotting criteria approach).

¥ (EREEE eI
BATHIEPEEE) -

2015 2014
AEEET B EETT
HK$’'m HK$'m
13 Corporate 892,679 801,973
R1T Bank 566,726 627,768
HAlr Others 203,613 188,596
1,663,018 1,618,337
34 ZEERBREETARE 3.4 Exposures covered by credit risk mitigation used
HY B AR
(A) ZRuliRFHRERE (A) Exposures covered by recognised collateral
BeRiE
THEIIRALEE KA The table below shows the Group’s exposures under the use of FIRB approach
FRTE R R ER T (after the effect of any on-balance sheet or off-balance sheet recognised netting)
BUET o AiziE (5R which are covered by recognised collateral after the application of haircuts required
7% (BA) #HA under the Banking (Capital) Rules. These exposures exclude securities financing
HYFE AR IRk 2 transactions and derivative contracts.
0 TR O B ) L e
EYE (Bt RAEFE
FERARNKEES
EFRINE T F A
ERRZEL) o IR bR
HRYEE AN EAERE 2 Rl
BEXGRITETES
4
2015 2014
HEEET A EET
HK$’'m HK$'m
[ 5 Corporate 118,423 121,573
SRIT Bank 1,465 767
119,888 122,340
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Unaudited Supplementary Financial Information (continued)

3. Ntk EEEFE AT 3. Credit risk under the internal ratings-based approach (continued)

EEERE (8)

34 ZERRREETARE
HUEBEEE (8

(B) ZEEEHERIREATE
BRiE

NRIRALEEIZIR
RT3 (A M
FI) BRI T TR
&2 THE R R IR
R A (BT RIE
& E A HEENEE
FE R HRINE m 5
ETELEANZE) - 15
JE\Bg A YT A ELAE S
SRRRE RS B AT T

HE8 -

e S
AT

3.4 Exposures covered by credit risk mitigation used (continued)

(B) Exposures covered by recognised guarantees

The table below shows the Group’s exposures (after the effect of any on-balance
sheet or off-balance sheet recognised netting) which are covered by recognised
guarantees after the application of haircuts required under the Banking (Capital)
Rules. These exposures exclude securities financing transactions and derivative

contracts.
2015 2014
BEEHETT BEEET
HK$’'m HK$'m
Corporate 235,563 208,630
Bank 32,615 31,102
268,178 239,732
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3. Ntk EEEFE AT 3. Credit risk under the internal ratings-based approach (continued)
HEEmEkE (&)

3.5 AR EREATETR 3.5 Risk assessment for corporate and bank exposures under IRB approach

S8 R SRAT I AR T L B

FHAE

TERYIRAERER 12 H The tables below detail the Group’s total EAD of corporate and bank exposures by
31 HE& B ANERATE exposure-weighted average risk-weight and exposure-weighted average PD for each
i 7 2 1 FEE ST 14 R g AE obligor grade as at 31 December.

B RO B R 9 A S 4
B AR Z 3% R RAT
MR R ARTE -

T ZERRITZEDN The EAD and PD disclosed below in respect of corporate and bank exposures have taken
T B R I R AR SR E into account the effect of recognised collateral, recognised netting and recognised
Gt AT - P TREE guarantees. The Group did not have any recognised credit derivative contracts.

BT 5 R RE T B IR AY %
B A SEERE TR
AEELTAETHAL -

B RS H NERE For definition of each obligor grade, please refer to page 265.
o SEHE 265 -

(A) DERERE (F8 (A) Corporate exposures (other than specialised lending under supervisory slotting
TERAREE SR criteria approach)
FEENEMEE
)
2015
R A

YRR JE\ B AR Hs A
Exposure- THBABER

BEERSE weighted Exposure-
Exposure average weighted
AER S E4R A Internal Credit Grades at default risk-weight average PD
BEEET % %
HK$’'m
4Rl 1 Grade 1 - - -
&Rl 2 Grade 2 28,624 18.25 0.03
A3 Grade 3 220,625 25.68 0.07
4R 4 Grade 4 337,047 43.91 0.23
&Rl 5 Grade 5 249,264 79.84 1.04
&6 Grade 6 53,576 107.35 5.12
& 7 Grade 7 331 200.23 29.65
GRS Grade 8/Default 2,241 81.96 100.00
891,708
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3. Ntk EEEFE AT 3. Credit risk under the internal ratings-based approach (continued)
HEEmEkE (&)

3.5 AR EREATETR 3.5 Risk assessment for corporate and bank exposures under IRB approach (continued)

S8 R SRAT I AR T L B
=l (48D
(A) ERBRE (R (A) Corporate exposures (other than specialised lending under supervisory slotting
RS IR criteria approach) (continued)
FFEANEFIMEE
8) (8
2014
JE\Bg AR HE e
PR b e JRE P AR A T
Exposure- I ELIGER
EA R weighted Exposure-
Exposure average weighted
RENECE) Internal Credit Grades at default risk-weight average PD
BEEET % %
HK$'m
S GIN Grade 1 - - -
&Rl 2 Grade 2 26,578 20.37 0.04
&l 3 Grade 3 219,636 25.95 0.07
&Rl 4 Grade 4 280,591 44.02 0.23
&Rl 5 Grade 5 207,055 78.06 1.07
&Rl 6 Grade 6 60,994 113.16 4.40
& 7 Grade 7 3,443 73.00 22.47
4 8 iELY Grade 8/Default 2,132 132.96 100.00
800,429
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3. Ntk EEEFE AT 3. Credit risk under the internal ratings-based approach (continued)
HEEmEkE (&)

3.5 NEEHaREXRETEETA 3.5 Risk assessment for corporate and bank exposures under IRB approach (continued)

SR SRT B AR b
S ()
(B) tEEFERE (A (B) Corporate exposures (specialised lending under supervisory slotting criteria
BB ERHAIRTREE approach)
HEFHEER)
2015 2014
R R TN AR
Y m R PR B E
Exposure- Exposure-
BYIRRRE weighted B AR weighted
Exposure average Exposure average
Rk ARA]  Supervisory Rating Grades at default risk-weight at default risk-weight
B EHEIT % I EETT %
HK$’'m HK$'m
& Strong 444 60.96 506 60.17
B Good 527 88.30 312 86.96
L) Satisfactory - - 726 115.00
UNES Weak - . } )
34| Default - - - -
971 1,544
HPMEE SRS ST The supervisory rating grades and risk-weights of specialised lending are
A s A Rz b i B T determined in accordance with section 158 of the Banking (Capital) Rules.

RIE CIRTT3E (BA)
FIRI) 55 158 fRAYHE
TEMEEE ©
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3. NEREEREEESTEIET 3. Credit risk under the internal ratings-based approach (continued)
EERE (&)

3.5 NIk EEHEIA TS 3.5 Risk assessment for corporate and bank exposures under IRB approach (continued)

SE R SRAT B AR R R E B
P ()
(C) $RTTEE&RE (C) Bank exposures
2015
JEBR A B
P EfREE Ve il
Exposure- IR LIIER
B EREE weighted Exposure-
Exposure average weighted
RG] Internal Credit Grades at default risk-weight average PD
AEEET % %
HK$’m
S GIN Grade 1 - - -
&Rl 2 Grade 2 106,191 20.77 0.04
B GIK] Grade 3 390,155 27.74 0.05
4R 4 Grade 4 65,903 51.66 0.20
&R 5 Grade 5 4,392 68.50 0.78
&R 6 Grade 6 85 140.91 5.66
Gl Grade 7 - - .
45l 8, LY Grade 8/Default - - .
566,726
2014
JEL B AR e
Rt E JoE g AR S e
Exposure- SR LR
B R YE weighted Exposure-
Exposure average weighted
RESE& Internal Credit Grades at default risk-weight average PD
BREHETT % %
HK$'m
4R Grade 1 - - -
A 2 Grade 2 76,217 21.62 0.04
A3 Grade 3 439,499 29.52 0.06
A 4 Grade 4 105,085 57.12 0.22
KA 5 Grade 5 6,908 70.52 0.74
4K 6 Grade 6 59 133.77 5.84
&Rl 7 Grade 7 - - ;
Al 8, EL Grade 8/Default - - .
627,768
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3. NEREEREEESTEIET 3. Credit risk under the internal ratings-based approach (continued)

HERER (&)

3.6 NESRPREEIFIATE
BRI R

TRIPRIR 12 H 31 B
HHHER T R ARYE
B RAIE -

EBIEHEK

5% %E1%
>1%
By

BEREREE

®EE10%
>10%
Yy

HAEANBE

2%
>2%
EL]

3.6 Risk assessment for retail exposures under IRB approach

The tables below show breakdown of retail exposures on a pool basis by expected loss
percentage (EL%) range as at 31 December.

Residential mortgages

2015 2014
BEEHET AHEEE T
HK$’'m HK$'m
Up to 1% 238,766 222,319
>1% 1,025 1,218
Default 82 105
239,873 223,642

Qualifying revolving retail
2015 2014
AR EET B EHETT
HK$’'m HK$'m
Up to 10% 70,627 63,055
>10% 607 644
Default 42 31
71,276 63,730

Other retail to individuals
2015 2014
BEEET AR ETT
HK$’'m HK$'m
Up to 2% 39,188 34,055
>2% 466 323
Default 93 92
39,747 34,470
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3. NEREEREEESTEIET 3. Credit risk under the internal ratings-based approach (continued)
EERE (&)

3.6 NERFHREESTRIATZE 3.6 Risk assessment for retail exposures under IRB approach (continued)

R R
€ )]
BE/NMEFE Small business retail
2015 2014
BREET BHET
HK$’'m HK$'m
B E1% Up to 1% 8,225 8,591
>1% >1% 191 290
| Default 67 62
8,483 8,943
3.7 BigiEL EALEENST 3.7 Analysis of actual loss and estimates
T FE AR IERE R TR The table below shows the actual losses broken down by class of risk exposure, which
HIEEL - FRELETS represent the net charges (including write-offs and individually assessed impairment
FEN NIRRT EE allowances) made by each class of exposures under the internal ratings-based
T 21 R R A S R approach for the year.
R FESH (BRI R
R AR ZE 5 ) <
2015 2014
BEEET AR ETT
HK$’'m HK$'m
3 Corporate 1,340 723
T Bank - i
B R ZE 7N EHE TS Residential mortgages to individuals and
=% property-holding shell companies - 1
EERIGEEE Qualifying revolving retail 186 177
Hitt@ANZE Other retail to individuals 16 7
FE/ N Small business retail 26 19
1,568 927
1R G FURE R Increase in the loan impairment charge of corporate exposures was mainly due to the
WA FEKR 2015 FH 7% downgrade of few corporate loans in 2015.
A EE ROV T T
-
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3. NEREEREEESTEIET 3. Credit risk under the internal ratings-based approach (continued)
EERE (&)

3.7 ERBEERREEEN ST 3.7 Analysis of actual loss and estimates (continued)

(&)
TN R AATEE R The table below shows the expected loss broken down by class of risk exposure, which
TEHAIES: - TERREA 215 is the estimated loss likely to be incurred arising from the potential default of the obligors
{75 A\ kA B B A S 7 in respect of the exposure over a one-year period.
—FHAN AT RER R L5 2L
HIfdETHRS -
2014127531 H 2013412 H 31 H
L =PS THIER
Expected loss Expected loss
at 31 December at 31 December
2014 2013
AEEET B EHETT
HK$’'m HK$'m
3 Corporate 3,322 4,121
$RAT Bank 256 226
B8 A R 2273 AN EHE S Residential mortgages to individuals and
%14 property-holding shell companies 132 110
BEMIEREE Qualifying revolving retail 376 334
HAEANEE Other retail to individuals 100 96
EeE/N b Small business retail 50 46
4,236 4,933
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3. NEREEREEESTEIET 3. Credit risk under the internal ratings-based approach (continued)

HERER (&)

3.7 ERBRARAERENS

(8

THRESHENEREEY
IR fif TR LY R AT B

tt

e S
AT

{8 N e 22 A B % S

iS4
BEBIEREE
HoAfE A
TR

3
AT

[EPN-&EF ZACILE Setisin)

K
ERBIERTE
HAE A
TE/NBIE

3.7 Analysis of actual loss and estimates (continued)

The tables below set out the actual default rate compared against the estimated PD of

the respective portfolio.

Corporate

Bank

Residential mortgages to individuals and
property-holding shell companies

Qualifying revolving retail

Other retail to individuals

Small business retail

Corporate

Bank

Residential mortgages to individuals and
property-holding shell companies

Qualifying revolving retail

Other retail to individuals

Small business retail
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2015 4ERY  2014412H31H
ERRAR fERRLIBR
Actual default Estimated PD
rate during at 31 December
2015 2014

% %

0.73 1.75

- 0.44

0.05 0.65

0.17 0.55

0.56 1.50

0.64 1.24

2014 ER 2013412 531 H
L SEEES THEELIRR
Actual default Estimated PD
rate during at 31 December
2014 2013

% %

0.56 1.82

- 0.45

0.05 0.60

0.17 0.54

0.51 1.53

0.53 1.23
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Unaudited Supplementary Financial Information (continued)

3.7 BEHRR RARENTIHT

3.7 Analysis of actual loss and estimates (continued)

(&

FAHHER M E B RIRA
A ERY T AT ]G
R DR a R E AR
SERTEEHAERD - AR
AIEEREARELE « BERRE]
ETRE TRk E
FVEAZSR - THHHRL
FEEZER B A ERNE
BB NI BEALRHA
& ME B RE S A ]
B R AT YRR o B
[0l {5 B U R SE A R Y B
PR EERA © T E R
RN ARt
AER e {1 51 5P Al TR
EAE RS R -

BB RAT R
BUNIEBABHE (3%
JE\fR i ) SR PR H (&
BB ) M FREL
R AL —(E O B IR
RUPPHRLRIIMER -
ACFERFAR H TRt — N
HTHIHTZ LI -

A - H R 0 [
B P R KP BT 8
B Ry (TRERRE D)
HIEEGREE G R
HE YRR

o

BRERRINIE R RN
REER BRI -

It should be noted that expected loss and actual loss are measured and calculated using
different methodologies compliant with relevant regulatory and accounting standards,
which therefore may not be directly comparable. The limitation arises mainly from the
fundamental differences in the definition of “loss”. The expected loss under Basel Accord
which estimates the economic loss arising from the potential default of the obligor by
taking into account the time value of money and including the direct and indirect costs
associated with the recoveries on the credit exposures during the workout process, while
actual loss is the net charge of individually assessed impairment allowances and
write-offs made during the year in accordance with the accounting standards.

The actual default rate is measured by using the number of obligors (for wholesale
exposures) or number of accounts (for retail exposures) defaulted whereas the estimated
PD is an estimate of the long run average default rate over an economic cycle and is the
estimated one-year forward-looking PD from the date of rating assignment.

Hence, actual default rate in a particular year (“point-in-time”) will typically differ from the
estimated PD which is the “through-the-cycle” estimates as economies move above or
below the cyclical norms.

The estimated PD is more conservative than the actual default rate for all asset classes.
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4. % ([E5EE) & 4. Credit risk under the standardised (credit risk) approach
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Unaudited Supplementary Financial Information (continued)

4.1 Use of ratings from External Credit Assessment Institutions (“ECAI”)

The Group adopts STC approach based on external credit rating to determine the risk
weight of the small residual credit exposures that was approved by the HKMA to be
exempted from FIRB approach and the following asset classes of exposures:

- Sovereign
- Public sector entity

- Multilateral development bank

The Group performs the ECAI issuer ratings mapping to its exposures in banking book in
accordance with Part 4 of the Banking (Capital) Rules. The ECAIs recognised by the
Group include Standard & Poor’s, Moody’s and Fitch.

4.2 Credit risk mitigation

For credit exposures adopting STC approach, the main types of recognised collateral
include cash deposits, debt securities and equities for non-past due exposures. In
addition, real estate collateral is also recognised for past due exposures. The treatment
of recognised collateral is compliant with the comprehensive approach for credit risk
mitigation as mentioned in the Banking (Capital) Rules. For credit exposures under STC
approach, the recognised guarantees for capital calculation include the guarantees
given by sovereigns, public sector entities, multilateral development banks, or banks and
corporates with ECAI issuer ratings both exempted from FIRB approach for credit
exposures, that have lower risk weights than the counterparty. Besides, the recognised
netting for credit risk mitigation includes derivatives subject to valid bilateral netting
agreements.
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4. % ([EE5EEE) 51E 4. Credit risk under the standardised (credit risk) approach (continued)

ATHEERRE (&)

4.3 R EIE Rk RESN 4.3 Credit risk exposures other than securitisation exposures under the standardised

e (EERR) sH5% (credit risk) approach
THYE SRR
2015
BRIk s il P AiER
HEERSY WEL ST
%‘%ELF& . Total Total
JEBEARIE B RL R AR exposures exposures
R Exposures after CRM* Risk-weighted amount covered by covered by
Total AR IR TEEEAR R4k recognised recognised
exposures Rated Unrated Rated Unrated collateral guarantees
BEEEET BYWHET BYOErT BEEErR EYEEx BYEERT EREHET
HK$’'m HK$’'m HK$’'m HK$’'m HK$’'m HK$’'m HK$’'m
EEAFERNEREENE On-balance sheet exposures
B Sovereigns 301,750 301,991 - 16,274 - - -
NEEAL Public sector entities 25,571 25,662 - 1,212 - - 240
IBEIEIRTT Multilateral development
banks 35,333 35,333 - - - - -
T Banks 553 551 2 11 - - -
3 Corporates 14,167 2,471 9,502 2,176 9,502 2,193 -
EEERE Regulatory retail 11,722 - 11,240 - 8,430 482 -
[EE=tidio)=v /Y Residential mortgage loans 12,500 - 12,169 - 6,085 - 331
A Ja A P E At Other exposures which are
I not past due 5,195 - 2,543 - 4,019 2,652 -
U R\ AR Past due exposures 102 - 102 - 135 34 -
EEAERNEREE Total on-balance sheet
“EEE exposures 406,893 366,008 35,558 19,773 28,171 5,361 571
HiE e sNalg&IE  Off-balance sheet exposures
FReE R & AL 5 AT Off-balance sheet exposures
4 TEHAELYNTE other than securities
B EFRINE G R financing transactions and
b derivative contracts 6,455 3,008 3,447 517 3,361 - 702
FEGRNE AT AT Securities financing
THE&H transactions and derivative
contracts 532 104 428 18 388 1 -
GEEAERIMNEREIE  Total off-balance sheet
) exposures 6,987 3,112 3,875 535 3,749 1 702
JEEFLIE R E A  Total non-securitisation
yanE exposures 413,880 369,120 39,433 20,308 31,920 5,362 1,273

1,250% [E [z HEEJJE,  Exposures that are risk-weighted
b AR AR at 1,250%
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Unaudited Supplementary Financial Information (continued)

1% 4. Credit risk under the standardised (credit risk) approach (continued)

4.3 Credit risk exposures other than securitisation exposures under the standardised
(credit risk) approach (continued)

2014
0 AR FRATHECR
. HE Y Y
& ER Total Total
R (R 2o ot o alrging v exposures exposures
g Exposures after CRM* Risk-weighted amount covered by covered by
Total TEREAR ARYERR TEEEAR NP4, recognised recognised
exposures Rated Unrated Rated Unrated collateral guarantees
BREET BNOET BYOET BYOET BYOERx B¥OET B EETT
HK$'m HK$'m HK$'m HK$'m HK$'m HK$'m HK$'m
ErEaEFNEREIE On-balance sheet exposures
BHER Sovereigns 175,401 175,594 - 427 - - -
VA3 XA Public sector entities 23,255 23,262 - 790 - - 193
BT Multilateral development
banks 19,026 19,026 - - - - -
$RAT Banks 6,732 532 6,200 107 1,352 - -
H2RAE Securities firms 1 - 1 - - - -
¥ Corporates 16,508 317 11,131 159 11,131 5,059 1
e Regulatory retail 10,388 - 10,113 - 7,586 275 -
{EEHHE R Residential mortgage loans 11,404 - 11,205 - 5,602 - 199
A Ja A P E At Other exposures which are
I not past due 8,037 - 3,009 - 3,849 5,028 -
AT R AR Past due exposures 87 - 87 - 123 13 -
EEAERNEREE Total on-balance sheet
“agE exposures 270,839 218,731 41,746 1,483 29,643 10,375 393
GEAERIMNEEIE  Off-balance sheet exposures
FREEHRBNEA S KT Off-balance sheet exposures
4 TEHAELYNTE other than securities
EAMRINEER financing transactions and
b derivative contracts 4,250 1,515 2,735 219 2,679 - 460
FEGRNE AT AT Securities financing
THEE&Y transactions and derivative
contracts 399 26 373 2 324 11 -
BEAMEFIMNEEAIE Total off-balance sheet
“agE exposures 4,649 1,541 3,108 221 3,003 11 460
JEE A BERER&IE  Total non-securitisation
“arm exposures 275,488 220,272 44,854 1,704 32,646 10,386 853
1,250% [E [z HEEJJE,  Exposures that are risk-weighted
b AR AR at 1,250%

* SRR R
& GHTE (E5)
) ATREAER R
et -
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5. X5 FEEEETHE 5. Counterparty credit risk-related exposures

Unaudited Supplementary Financial Information (continued)

R
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T2 FEEHE DIERINTE
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SRR R RIE R SR K
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e i BT B R (A
e
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The Group’s counterparty credit risk arising from derivative contracts and securities financing
transactions both in trading and banking book is subject to the same risk management
framework as mentioned in Note 4 to the Financial Statements. The Group establishes credit
limit through formal credit approval procedures to control the pre-settiement credit risk arising
from derivative transactions and settlement limit to control the settlement risk arising from
foreign exchange-related transactions for counterparties in both the trading book and banking
book. The Group monitors the risk exposure due to fluctuations in the market by using the
current exposure and the potential exposure value of the transactions. Exceptions or
excesses are timely and closely identified and monitored by RMD.

Credit equivalent amount and capital charge for the relevant counterparty credit exposures
are determined following the regulatory capital requirements. Currently, the Group has
adopted the Current Exposure Method to measure the relevant credit equivalent amount,
which comprises current exposures and potential future exposures. The relevant counterparty
default risk capital charge is calculated under the FIRB/STC approach. In addition, the Group
has adopted standardised credit valuation adjustment (“CVA”) method to calculate the
relevant counterparty CVA capital charge.

The Group establishes prudent eligibility criteria and haircut policy of debt securities being
pledged as collateral for securities financing transactions.

The Group formulates policy for classification of credit assets according to the PD of
counterparties and the period of overdue. If there is objective evidence that an impairment
loss has been incurred, impairment allowance will be provided according to HKFRS and
regulatory requirements.

In controlling and monitoring of wrong-way risk (risk of existence of positive correlation
between the PD of a counterparty and credit exposures driven by mark-to-market value of the
underlying transactions), specific wrong-way risk transactions are generally not allowed and
monitoring measures have been formulated for those counterparties identified by stress
testing that would be exposed to potential general wrong-way risk.
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5. XY F=EHE R 5. Counterparty credit risk-related exposures (continued)

E (&)

5.1 NEEHRERERTEIA TH

REHTEERRRE

TR AA G R IR AT
e\ I U7 AT R A T
HEFTERSFRE LT KA
TAALRFTEEARERR
¥ M HIAAESE
IR R -

5.1 Counterparty credit risk exposures under the internal ratings-based approach

The following table summarises the Group’s exposures to counterparty credit risk arising
from securities financing transactions and derivative contracts calculated using the
Current Exposure Method. There is no effect of valid cross-product netting agreements on
these exposures.

RN PE

[BUSESRVE 3ok T
A Bt RAEN
Z B e K
&

N v Uil

-
- Hd

ERA S i ARG
iR Bt RAEN
ZBL AR
AT R B B R A

PIAe B3 TR
kil gl e
e S

DI B TR
JeE\ P I S
e S
AT

RAEERERIEEA(E
BITATHEHH
I

2015 2014
BHRIER S HHRE S
Securities FHETEEY Securities FiETEEY
financing Derivative financing Derivative
transactions contracts transactions contracts
BEEET AEEET BEEET BEEET
HK$’m HK$’'m HK$'m HK$'m
Gross total positive fair
value 29,657 19,433
Default risk exposures
after the effect of valid
bilateral netting
agreements 12,808 46,036 6,604 29,482
Less: Value of recognised
collateral
- Debt securities (489) - - -
- Others (9,104) (1,308) (5,813) (2,167)
Default risk exposures
after the effect of valid
bilateral netting
agreements net of
recognised collateral 3,215 44,728 791 27,315
Default risk exposures by
counterparty type
Corporate 518 2,266 - 1,306
Bank 12,290 43,770 6,604 28,176
12,808 46,036 6,604 29,482
Risk-weighted amounts
by counterparty type
Corporate 50 1,272 - 1,106
Bank 893 11,782 300 7,313
943 13,054 300 8,419

Notional amounts of
recognised credit
derivative contracts that
provide credit protection
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5. XY F=EHE R 5. Counterparty credit risk-related exposures (continued)

E (&)

5.2 & (FERRE) 50X

THXSHFERER

iR

TN M A A B PR IR
1T b R HE J7 A5t
HTFETITELAESY
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E A S
A E AR
2RI
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Gross total positive fair
value

Default risk exposures
after the effect of valid
bilateral netting
agreements

Less: Value of recognised
collateral
- Debt securities
- Others

Default risk exposures
after the effect of valid
bilateral netting
agreements net of
recognised collateral

5.2 Counterparty credit risk exposures under the standardised (credit risk) approach

The following table summarises the Group’s exposures to counterparty credit risk arising
from derivative contracts calculated using the Current Exposure Method. There is no
effect of valid cross-product netting agreements on these exposures.

2015 2014
BRRERX S HHRET S

Securities IETEEY Securities T EAY
financing Derivative financing Derivative
transactions contracts transactions contracts
BEEET BEEET BEEET BEEET
HK$’'m HK$’'m HK$'m HK$'m
14,098 13,926
- 532 - 399
- 532 - 399
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5. XY F=EHE R 5. Counterparty credit risk-related exposures (continued)

E (&)

5.2 1 (EEER) S

THXZHEFERERR
RiE (8D

(continued)

5.2 Counterparty credit risk exposures under the standardised (credit risk) approach

LISe Gy 4R 2
B R R R
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NERAL
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EEEE
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EEEE
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bRy
AR
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BT T RENH
Eit et

2015 2014
BFRERX S A S
Securities TETHAEYN Securities AT HEY
financing Derivative financing Derivative
transactions contracts transactions contracts
BEEHET AREET BMEEET AEEETT
HK$’'m HK$’'m HK$'m HK$'m
Default risk exposures by
counterparty type
Sovereigns 105 - 29
Public sector entities 6 - -
Corporates 215 - 85
Regulatory retail 132 - 190
Other exposures which
are not past due 74 - 95
Past due exposures - - -
532 - 399
Risk-weighted amounts
by counterparty type
Sovereigns 17 - 2
Public sector entities 1 - -
Corporates 215 - 86
Regulatory retail 99 - 142
Other exposures which
are not past due 74 - 95
Past due exposures - - 1
406 - 326

Notional amounts of
recognised credit
derivative contracts that
provide credit protection
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Unaudited Supplementary Financial Information (continued)

5. Counterparty credit risk-related exposures (continued)

5.3 Credit derivative contracts which create exposures to counterparty credit risk

The notional amounts of credit derivative contracts which create exposures to
counterparty credit risk are shown as follows:

2015 2014
AEEET BHEETT
HK$’'m HK$'m
Used for credit portfolio
Credit default swaps
Protection bought - -
Protection sold - 78

6. Assets securitisation

The Group adopts the ratings-based method under IRB approach to calculate the credit risk
for securitisation exposures as an investing institution. Since this approach employs
mapping of external credit ratings for risk weights calculations, the Group adopts the three
ECAIs (Standard & Poor’s, Moody’s and Fitch) recognised by the HKMA for this purpose.

The Group monitors the risks inherent in its securitisation assets and re-securitisation assets
on an ongoing basis. The external credit ratings, assessment of the underlying assets and
market prices are used for managing credit risk associated with the investment. For interest
rate risk in its banking book, control measures for asset backed securities and mortgage
backed securities include, but not limited to AFS EV and PVBP.

The Group had no outstanding exposures that are held with the intention of transferring
exposures booked in the banking book and trading book into securitisation transactions as at
31 December 2015 (2014: Nil).
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i EER (&)
6. EESSAHE (&) 6. Assets securitisation (continued)

TR ARG EEE S Securitisation exposures arising from the Group’s investing activities are analysed as

BRI R ARIESTAT follows:
6.1 B LXERE bR 6.1 Securitisation exposures

2015 2014
RITHR R PRATHR LR
Banking book Trading book Banking book Trading book

AEEET  EREET ERTET B EET

HK$’m HK$’m HK$'m HK$'m
EiEAERNE G EE On-balance sheet exposures
EEHEEEK Residential mortgage loans 17 - 394 -
B4 G Student loans - - 19 -
171 - 413 -
K A BRI & Off-balance sheet exposures - - - -
255 A R BT Reduction in securitisation exposures was due to repayments of principal.
A20154E12H31H » &5 There were no securitisation transactions in trading book subject to the IMM approach as
e PO Al e FH P A 05 T at 31 December 2015 (2014: Nil).
AN IFEAC S (2014
) -
A20154E12 H31H » i There were no securitisation exposures that the Group has allocated a risk-weight of
S IR R R e AR A A 1,250% as at 31 December 2015 (2014: Nil).
FEEE 71,250 % Ja f i 22
(20144F : i)
A20154E12H31H » A& The Group did not have credit risk mitigations which are treated as part of securitisation
R Y= X transactions as at 31 December 2015 (2014: Nil).
— 5y W (5 & B B 4% R
(20144F : i)
2015F12H31H - Wi There were no re-securitisation exposures as at 31 December 2015 (2014: Nil).

6 25 AL MU0 B oK 4
(20144 © f8) -
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6. Assets securitisation (continued)

Unaudited Supplementary Financial Information (continued)

6.2 Breakdown by risk-weights of the securitisation exposures (excluding

SHEA TR EER S re-securitisation exposures) under internal ratings-based (securitisation)
Y8 25 AR 2 A1 B R approach
(FEEEERUERE
eoRiE)
2015 2014
Eeeay [mehill ) Feeza v il i
R AR i BAHE B A BAHLE
Securitisation Capital Securitisation Capital
exposures requirements exposures requirements
AMEET AEEET AREET AR EE T
HK$’'m HK$’m HK$'m HK$'m
7% 7% 66 - 244 1
8% 8% 15 - 32 -
10% 10% 2 - 11 -
12% 12% 43 1 67 1
15% 15% - - - -
18% 18% - - - -
20% 20% 12 - - -
25% 25% - - - -
35% 35% - - 18 1
50% 50% - - - -
60% 60% 24 1 29 1
75% 75% - - - -
100% 100% 9 1 12 1
250% 250% - - - -
425% 425% - - - -
650% 650% - - - -
UREEAR Deducted from capital - - -
171 3 413 5

ST L R AR I R
RHEN TR EEA

) -

Reduction in securitisation exposures and

repayments of principal.
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6. EESSAHE (&) 6. Assets securitisation (continued)

6.3 A LERIEERE & 6.3 Summary of accounting policies for securitisation exposures

FTBOREE
WBHEE - RERER The Group held certain securitised debt securities at the end of the reporting period. They
AHE TR EZ A are classified and measured for accounting purpose in accordance with the Group’s

7% o WEEZR T IR
A ERRINEE 2.8 T &/
HE 211 TR TR

accounting policies as outlined in Note 2.8 “Financial assets”, 2.11 “Recognition and

derecognition of financial instruments”, 2.12 “Fair value measurement” and 2.14

Sy 514K R mpairment of financial assets” to the Financial Statements. For those investments
BRI LR )~ 2.12 “Impairment of financial assets’ to the Financial Statements. For those investment
PANEERE ) K& 214 measured at fair value, further details on their valuation are outlined in Note 5.1 “Financial
" GREAERE AL instruments measured at fair value” to the Financial Statements.

H & BORmEg
FitE o LA PEEE
& > HHMAE L E—
BERTIIRIA M B s
i 5.1 TLIAEESHEDY
ERETH -

7. HEEEEARTER 7. Capital charge for market risk

I (RS TEET Under the standardised (market risk) approach

HMEE RIS GFEHD Foreign exchange exposures (net)
FRE R Interest rate exposures
- e B B R R - Non-securitisation exposure

e S Commaodity exposures

oA B R I Equity exposures
TEAEEAEEL T Under the internal models approach

AN R FlI R0 — SR R A General foreign exchange and interest rate exposures
TSR & AR TR Capital charge for market risk
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2015 2014
BREET ABREETT
HK$'m HK$'m
230 191

19 7

1 1

1,433 1,347
1,683 1,546
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Unaudited Supplementary Financial Information (continued)

FofFe (201 SEIRT3E (AR

(fEET) #AN) - i /m b g
AAREORR CAE 2 B (E &
AR« TRINMALB LA
T R AR R — T 5
bR A A BRI U AR R
(R 2R

Market risk regulatory capital charge is calculated under the Banking (Capital) (Amendment)

Rules 2011 to incorporate capital charge for stressed VAR. The following table sets out the

IMM VAR and stressed VAR' for the general market risk exposure calculated under the IMM

approach of the Group.

SR s SAF
RA12R migds  BeE PHRE
31H  Minimum Maximum  Average
Ay At 31 for the for the for the
Year | December year year year
AT ETT BT ET BN OET BT AT
HK$'m HK$'m HK$'m HK$'m
SN B M b 2 NERE =,  IMM VAR for foreign exchange 2015 374 34.7 155.3 71.6
FEVEERRE and interest rate risk
2014 95.8 48.8 122.4 81.3
SN R 2 AEE R ETEDE IMM VAR for foreign exchange 2015 27.9 25.8 77.7 36.2
JE0EiE risk
2014 30.0 23.2 69.2 394
FIRE > NEEREFEE IMM VAR for interest rate risk 2015 425 28.3 134.7 69.1
R
2014 94.5 50.6 1171 82.7
SN R IR i 2 =7 B @\ Stressed VAR for foreign exchange 2015 380.5 246.7 593.0 381.3
S and interest rate risk
2014 298.8 154.6 491.2 327.0
SN > < B s (B Stressed VAR for foreign exchange 2015 97.1 46.5 139.6 75.6
risk
2014 70.6 50.5 222.8 99.1
TR\ 2 57 1B i (L Stressed VAR for interest rate risk 2015 414 .1 259.8 618.0 377.0
2014 274.5 176.4 441.7 336.5

o

1. G R E B AR N E
B b e 2 B e AL A
T 99% E{5/KTFR 10 Kff
FHAGTR - ZEER R (R
JE\be (B S AR EIRY 0% » I
Bl AR 12 (A B
RIS SR AT -

Note:

1. IMM VAR and stressed VAR measures used for market risk regulatory capital purposes are calculated to a

99% confidence level and use a 10-day holding period. The stressed VAR uses the same methodology as

the VAR model and is generated with inputs calibrated to the historical market data from a continuous

12-month period of significant financial stress relevant to the Group’s portfolio.
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7. TR EEELRZENR () 7. Capital charge for market risk (continued)

TEYIRNEENETEIE TH The graphs below show the regulatory back-testing result of the Group’s market risk under
AL T EROEEERA MM approach.
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2015 N (] JBE HI = 45 SR BE There were four actual losses exceeding the VAR for the Group in 2015 as shown in the
s REEE 4 REEAC ST back-testing results (2014: Nil).

%ﬁﬁﬂl&zﬁa’j H (2014

) o
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Unaudited Supplementary Financial Information (continued)

8. Capital charge for operational risk
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2015 2014

BAYEET  EREET

HK$’'m HK$'m

Capital charge for operational risk 6,170 5,664

The Group uses the standardised (operational risk) approach to calculate its operational risk
capital charge.

. Equity exposures in banking book

Equity holdings in other entities are accounted for in accordance with the underlying
intentions of holdings at the inception of acquisition. The classifications for equity holdings
taken for relationship and strategic purposes will be separated from those taken for other
purposes (including capital appreciation). Investments in equity shares which are intended to
be held on a continuing basis, but which do not comprise investments in associates, joint
venture or subsidiaries, are classified as available-for-sale securities and are reported in the
balance sheet as “Investment in securities”.

For equity exposures in banking book other than associates, joint venture or subsidiaries,
the Group applies the same accounting treatment and valuation methodologies as detailed
in the Notes 2.8(4), 2.11, 2.12 and 2.14 to the Financial Statements, further details on their
valuation are outlined in Note 5.1 “Financial instruments measured at fair value” to the
Financial Statements. If additional investment is made subsequently such that an investee
becomes an associate, joint venture or subsidiary, then the investment is reclassified in
accordance with the Group’s accounting policies.

Gains or losses related to equity exposures are summarised below:

2015 2014

BEEET BFoET

HK$’'m HK$'m

Realised gains from sales 642 531
Unrealised gains on revaluation recognised in reserves

but not through income statement 160 778
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10. Risk management
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Overview

The Group believes that sound risk management is crucial to the success of any
organisation. In its daily operation, the Group attaches a high degree of importance to risk
management and emphasises that a balance must be struck between risk control and
business development. The principal types of risk inherent in the Group’s businesses are
credit risk, interest rate risk, market risk, liquidity risk, operational risk, reputation risk, legal
and compliance risk, and strategic risk. The Group’s risk management objective is to
enhance shareholder value by maintaining risk exposures within acceptable limits. The
Group has a defined risk appetite statement approved by the Board, which is an expression
of the types and level of risk that the Group is willing to take in a controllable way in order to
achieve its business goals and to meet the expectations of its stakeholders. For details of
the Group’s risk management governance structure, please refer to Note 4 to the Financial
Statements.

Credit risk management

Credit risk is the risk of loss that a customer or counterparty is unable to or unwilling to meet
its contractual obligations. Credit risk exists in the trading book and banking book, as well as
from on- and off-balance sheet transactions of the Group. It arises principally from lending,
trade finance and treasury businesses. For details of the Group’s Credit Risk Management,
please refer to Note 4.1 to the Financial Statements.

Market risk management

Market risk refers to the risk of loss arising from movements in the value of foreign
exchange, interest rate, equity and commodity positions held by the Group due to the
volatility of financial market price (foreign exchange rate, interest rate, equity price,
commaodity price). The Group adopts a moderate market risk appetite to achieve a balance
between risk and return. For details of the Group’s Market Risk Management, please refer
to Note 4.2 to the Financial Statements.
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10. Risk management (continued)
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Market risk management (continued)

The Group uses the VAR to measure and report general market risks to the Risk Committee
(“RC”) and senior management on a periodic basis. The Group adopts a uniformed VAR
calculation model, using a historical simulation approach and two years of historical market
data, to calculate the VAR of the Group and subsidiaries over a one-day holding period with
a 99% confidence level, and sets up the VAR limit of the Group and subsidiaries.

The Group adopts back-testing to measure the accuracy of VAR model results. The
back-testing compares the calculated VAR figure of market risk positions of each business
day with the actual and hypothetical revenues arising from those positions on the next
business day. Generally speaking, the number of back-testing exceptions in a rolling
12-month period will not exceed four times, given a 99% confidence level. The graph below
shows the back-testing result of the VAR against actual revenues of the Group.

20155 5 X EE R &
Daily Back-testing in 2015

There were three actual losses exceeding the VAR for the Group in 2015 as shown in the
back-testing results.
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10. Risk management (continued)
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Interest rate risk management

Interest rate risk means the risks to a bank’s earnings and economic value arising from
movements in interest rate and term structures of the bank’s asset and liability positions.
The Group’s interest rate risk exposures are mainly structural. The major types of interest
rate risk from structural positions are repricing risk, basis risk, yield curve risk and option
risk. For details of the Group’s Interest Rate Risk Management, please refer to Note 4.2 to
the Financial Statements.

Liquidity risk management

Liquidity risk is the risk that banks fail to provide sufficient funds to grow assets or pay due
obligations, and need to bear an unacceptable loss. The Group maintains sound liquidity risk
appetite to provide stable, reliable and adequate sources of cash to meet liquidity needs
under normal circumstances or stressed scenarios; and to survive with net positive
cumulative cash flow in extreme scenarios without requesting the HKMA to act as the lender
of last resort. For details of the Group’s Liquidity Risk Management, please refer to Note 4.3
to the Financial Statements.

Operational risk management
Operational risk is the risk of loss resulting from inadequate or failed internal process, people

and system, or from external events. The risk is inherent in every aspect of business
operations and confronted by the Group in its day-to-day operational activities.
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10. Risk management (continued)
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Operational risk management (continued)

The Group has implemented the “Three Lines of Defence” for its operational risk
management. All departments or functional units as the first line of defence are the first
parties responsible for operational risk management, and carry out the duties and functions
of self risk control in the process of business operation through self assessment and self
enhancement. The Legal & Compliance and Operational Risk Management Department
(“LCO”), together with certain specialist functional units in relation to operational risk
management within the Group, including the Human Resources Department, Information
Technology Department, Corporate Services Department, Financial Management
Department and General Accounting & Accounting Policy Department (collectively known as
“specialist functional units”), are the second line of defence. They are responsible for
assessing and monitoring the operational risk conditions in the first line of defence, and
providing them with guidance. The LCO, being independent from the business units, is
responsible for assisting the Management in managing the Group’s operational risk,
including the establishment and review of the operational risk management policy and
framework, designing the operational risk management tools and reporting mechanism, and
assessing and reporting the overall operational risk position to the Management and RC.
Specialist functional units are required to carry out their managerial duties of the second line
of defence with respect to some specific aspects of operational risk and its related issues.
Besides taking charge of operational risk management in their own units, these units are
also required to provide other units with professional advice/training in respect of certain
operational risk categories and to lead the group-wide operational risk management. Group
Audit is the third line of defence which provides independent assessment to the
effectiveness and adequacy of the operational risk management framework and is required
to conduct periodic audit of the operational risk management activities of various
departments or functional units within the Group regarding their compliance and
effectiveness and to put forward recommendations for remedial actions.
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BRERREE (8) Operational risk management (continued)

AEEE T H RN The Group has put in place an effective internal control process which requires the
HIFEFE - BHFTE EAEENET establishment of policies and control procedures for all the key activities. The Group adheres

TBUR KB E it - kB to the fundamental principle of proper segregation of duties and authorisation. The Group
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EZRFIEARA] « REH indicators, self-assessment, operational risk events reporting and review to identify, assess,
AR R - T monitor and control the risks inherent in business activities and products, as well as
i ~ R IE R B4R DB ) Kok purchase of insurance to mitigate unforeseeable operational risks. Business continuity plans
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HEOTAREA] - 545 - B Adequate backup facilities are maintained and periodic drills are conducted.
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EERRER Reputation risk management

S i RN B EEER Reputation risk is the risk that negative publicity about the Group’s business practices,
LEFRNABTE (RN whether genuine or not, will cause a potential decline in the customer base, or lead to costly
EEEE ) RS IREFR litigation or revenue decrease. Reputation risk is inherent in other types of risk and every
WELE/ N ~ A S YRR Bk aspect of business operation and covers a wide spectrum of issues.
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Ko HEBCRMHEHIE S (EE proactively at an early stage when an incident occurs. Since reputation risk is often caused
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SEE SRR A E A established Key Control Self-Assessment framework, including risk assessment tools, to
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10. Risk management (continued)
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Reputation risk management (continued)

In addition, the Group has put in place a comprehensive framework to continuously monitor
reputation risk incidents in the financial industry. This continuous monitoring enables the
Group to effectively manage, control and mitigate any potential adverse impact from an
incident. The Group also adopts robust disclosure practices to keep our stakeholders
informed at all times, which helps build confidence in the Group and establish a strong public
image.

Legal and compliance risk management

Legal risk is the risk that unenforceable contracts, lawsuits or adverse judgments may
disrupt or otherwise negatively affect the operations or financial conditions of the Group.
Compliance risk is the risk of legal or regulatory sanctions, financial losses or losses in
reputation the Group may suffer as a result of its failure to comply with all applicable laws
and regulations. Legal and compliance risks are managed by the LCO, which reports directly
to the CRO. As part of the Group’s corporate governance framework, the policy for the
management of legal and compliance risks is approved by the RC as delegated by the
Board.

Strategic risk management

Strategic risk generally refers to the risks that may cause current or future negative impacts
on the earnings, or capital or reputation or market position of the Group because of poor
business decisions, improper implementation of strategies and inadequacies in the
response to the changing market condition. The Board reviews and approves the strategic
risk management policy. Key strategic issues have to be fully evaluated and properly
endorsed by the senior management and the Board.

The Group regularly reviews its business strategies to cope with the latest market situation
and developments.
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10. Risk management (continued)
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Capital management

The major objective of the Group’s capital management is to maximise total shareholders’
return while maintaining a capital adequacy position in relation to the Group’s overall risk
profile. The Asset and Liability Management Committee (“ALCQ”) periodically reviews the
Group’s capital structure and adjusts the capital mix where appropriate to maintain an
optimal balance among risk, return and capital adequacy.

To comply with the HKMA'’s requirements as stated in the Supervisory Policy Manual
“Supervisory Review Process”, the Group adopts the internal capital adequacy assessment
process (“ICAAP”) and reviews it annually. Based on the HKMA’s guidelines on Pillar I,
ICAAP has been initiated to assess the extra capital needed to cover the material risks not
captured or not adequately captured under Pillar |, and therefore minimum Common Equity
Tier 1 capital ratio, minimum Tier 1 capital ratio and minimum Total capital ratio are
determined. Meanwhile, operating ranges for the aforementioned capital ratios have also
been established which enable the flexibility for future business growth and efficiency of
capital utilisation.

Stress testing

The Group supplements the analysis of various types of risks with stress testing. Stress
testing is a risk management tool for estimating risk exposures under stressed conditions
arising from extreme but plausible market or macroeconomic movements. These tests are
conducted on a regular basis by the Group’s various risk management units in accordance
with the principles stated in the Supervisory Policy Manual “Stress-testing” published by the
HKMA. The ALCO monitors the results against the key risk limits approved by the RC. The
Financial Management Department reports the combined stress test results of the Group to
the Board and RC regularly.
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Appendix

Subsidiaries of the Bank

The particulars of subsidiaries are as follows:

R E8TRAR
HRE R 2 Eaili=eN
Place and date of Issued TEEK
B incorporation/ share capital/ FiE1#2%  Principal
Name operation registered capital Interest held activities
FAEREIRTAIRAE] e Ry 100.00% SR{TER;
Nanyang Commercial Bank, Limited 1948 £ 2 H 2 H 3,144,517,396 T Banking business
Hong Kong Ordinary shares
2 February 1948 HK$3,144,517,396
ERSTHRIRAE e Ry 70.49% $RITERS
Chiyu Banking Corporation Limited 1947 F£ 4 H 24 H 300,000,000 #JT Banking business
Hong Kong Ordinary shares
24 April 1947 HK$300,000,000
FIMERAF (BEE) ARAFE o Ry 100.00% {5 H-RARTE
BOC Credit Card (International) Limited 1980 £ 9 H 9 H 480,000,000 #JT Credit card
Hong Kong Ordinary shares services
9 September 1980 HK$480,000,000
FEERT () REAARAHE T Ry 100.00% LEE MRS
Bank of China (Hong Kong) Nominees 1985410 H1 H 27T Nominee services
Limited Hong Kong Ordinary shares
1 October 1985 HK$2
hEERIT () BtERAH e Ry 100.00% (SEtRAEARTS
Bank of China (Hong Kong) Trustees 1987 £ 11 H6 H 3,000,000 7T Trustee and
Limited Hong Kong Ordinary shares agency
6 November 1987 HK$3,000,000 services
FEREEETAARAT] o ARy 64.20% {SCARTS
BOC Group Trustee Company Limited 1997 12 H1H 200,000,000 #&7T Trustee services
Hong Kong Ordinary shares
1 December 1997 HK$200,000,000
FIREAeMES (FHE) ARAFE kS = A R () 100.00% #E{T4EMREMEEEE
BOCHK Financial Products (Cayman) 2006 =11 H 10 H 50,000 =T Issuing structured
Limited Cayman Islands Ordinary shares notes
10 November 2006 US$50,000
FEMEER CRYID ARAHE HE A 100.00% ¥ERiA K

BOCHK Information Technology
(Shenzhen) Co., Ltd.

HER(E BRGARTS CRYID BIRAFE
BOCHK Information Technology Services
(Shenzhen) Ltd.

PR P BB R (B A TR A H]
BOCI-Prudential Trustee Limited

e (REA) HIRAE

Che Hsing (Nominees) Limited

1990 44 A 16
PRC
16 April 1990

]

19934F£5 H 26 H
PRC

26 May 1993

i

1999 10 H 11 H
Hong Kong

11 October 1999

&

1980 44 A 23 H
Hong Kong

23 April 1980
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70,000,000 7T
Registered capital
HK$70,000,000

FEFEA
40,000,000 7T
Registered capital
HK$40,000,000

EyElidn)
300,000,000 7T
Ordinary shares
HK$300,000,000

iy
10,000 J&7T
Ordinary shares
HK$10,000

100.00%

41.10%"

100.00%

LUE S
Property holding
and investment

18 BRI

Information
technology
services

SRLIRTS

Trustee services

FRHEAE

Nominee services
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Appendix (continued)

Subsidiaries of the Bank (continued)

EERii ¢ EETRA
3RE R 23 EEA
Place and date of Issued FEEE
B incorporation/ share capital/ FE1#2:  Principal
Name operation registered capital Interest held activities
BT (REA) BIRAE o A R () 70.49% FeEVER:
Chiyu Banking Corporation (Nominees) 1981411 H3 H 100,000 #JT Investment
Limited Hong Kong Ordinary shares holding
3 November 1981 HK$100,000
fREAIRAE HHE A () 70.49% FEVER:
Grace Charter Limited 2001 £5 H4 H 287C Investment
Hong Kong Ordinary shares holding
4 May 2001 HK$2
AR S E A IR A E] I A () 100.00% #&ERE
Kwong Li Nam Investment Agency Limited 1984 45 H 25 H 3,050,000 #&T Investment
Hong Kong Ordinary shares agency
25 May 1984 HK$3,050,000
BERE RS T (P BIRAE i FEfEA 100.00% SRATERH;
Nanyang Commercial Bank (China), 2007 £ 12 H 14 H 6,500,000,000 A i Banking business
Limited PRC Registered capital
14 December 2007 RMB6,500,000,000
FEERESYT (REEA) AIRAE T A () 100.00% H AR
Nanyang Commercial Bank (Nominees) 198048 H 22 H 50,000 & Nominee services
Limited Hong Kong Ordinary shares
22 August 1980 HK$50,000
R TEAIRAE T A () 100.00% {ZELARTS
Nanyang Commercial Bank Trustee 1976 £10 H 22 H 3,000,000 #&T Trustee services
Limited Hong Kong Ordinary shares
22 October 1976 HK$3,000,000
BAE SR EREARAE o A R () 100.00% FHBEE K
Po Sang Financial Investment Services 198049 H 23 H 335,000,000 &7 el
Company Limited Hong Kong Ordinary shares Gold trading and
23 September 1980 HK$335,000,000 investment
holding
BAIHERRAFE i W EmE Y 100.00% &5 M 375
Po Sang Futures Limited 1993 410 H 19 H 335,000,000 #T Securities and
Hong Kong Ordinary shares futures
19 October 1993 HK$335,000,000 brokerage
HEBEEARAE s W m Y 70.49% e ETERE
Seng Sun Development Company, Limited 1961 £ 12 5 11 H 2,800,000 #T Investment
Hong Kong Ordinary shares holding
11 December 1961 HK$2,800,000
FrisEARAE s W E ey 100.00% W2ERrA K&
Sin Chiao Enterprises Corporation, Limited 1961 429 H 13 H 3,000,000 &5 YA
Hong Kong Ordinary shares Property holding
13 September 1961 HK$3,000,000 and
investment
FrEEEEARAE A A () 100.00% (SEEARH
Sin Hua Trustee Limited 1978 410 H 27 H 3,000,000 #5T Trustee services
Hong Kong Ordinary shares
27 October 1978 HK$3,000,000
PERE RS AR A E] o A () 100.00% &E&HARS
Sino Information Services Company 19932 H 11 H 7,000,000 T Information
Limited Hong Kong Ordinary shares services
11 February 1993 HK$7,000,000
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fFe% (48) Appendix (continued)
AT ZHIE AT () Subsidiaries of the Bank (continued)

*

FER S S F R ESEEATR AT * BOCI-Prudential Trustee Limited is a subsidiary of a non-wholly-owned subsidiary of the Bank and, accordingly,
EARRITIE N —RIEREE A is accounted for as a subsidiary by virtue of the Bank’s control over it.

I AT - BRI T X

AN FEPERIRE - ZA IR A

HRATHIMS S A E] o

R E R % A TR A 50 Sino Information Services Company Limited commenced members’ voluntary winding up on 26
2015 410 H 26 Hi# Ak = October 2015.
EHENEER -
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Definitions

In this Annual Report, unless the context otherwise requires, the following terms shall have the meanings set out below:

Terms Meanings

“ABS” Asset-backed Securities

“ALCO” the Asset and Liability Management Committee

“AT1” Additional Tier 1

“ATM” Automated Teller Machine

“BOC” Bank of China Limited, a joint stock commercial bank with limited liability established

under the laws of the PRC, the H shares and A shares of which are listed on the Hong
Kong Stock Exchange and the Shanghai Stock Exchange respectively

“BOCHK Charitable Foundation”

Bank of China (Hong Kong) Limited Charitable Foundation (formerly known as the
“Bank of China Group Charitable Foundation”), a charitable foundation being
established in July 1994

“BOCHK (Holdings)’

BOC Hong Kong (Holdings) Limited, a company incorporated under the laws of Hong
Kong

“BOCHK?” or “the Bank”

Bank of China (Hong Kong) Limited, a company incorporated under the laws of Hong
Kong and a wholly-owned subsidiary of BOC Hong Kong (Holdings) Limited

“BOCI-Prudential Manager”

BOCI-Prudential Asset Management Limited, a company incorporated under the laws
of Hong Kong, in which BOCI Asset Management Limited, a wholly-owned subsidiary
of BOC International Holdings Limited, and Prudential Corporation Holdings Limited
hold equity interests of 64% and 36% respectively

“BOCI-Prudential Trustee”

BOCI-Prudential Trustee Limited, a company incorporated under the laws of Hong
Kong, in which BOC Group Trustee Company Limited and Prudential Corporation
Holdings Limited hold equity interests of 64% and 36% respectively

“Board” or “Board of Directors”

the Board of Directors of the Bank

“CE” Chief Executive

“CET1” Common Equity Tier 1

“CFO” Chief Financial Officer

“CIC” China Investment Corporation
“CRM” Credit Risk Mitigation

“CRO” Chief Risk Officer

“CVA” Credit Valuation Adjustment
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Definitions (continued)

Terms

Meanings

“Central Huijin”

Central Huijin Investment Ltd.

“Chiyu” Chiyu Banking Corporation Limited, a company incorporated under the laws of Hong
Kong, in which BOCHK holds an equity interest of 70.49%

“DCE” Deputy Chief Executive

“‘DVA” Debit Valuation Adjustment

“EAD” Exposure at Default

“ECAI(s)” External Credit Assessment Institution(s)

“EL” Expected Loss

“‘EV” Economic Value Sensitivity Ratio

“FIRB” Foundation Internal Ratings-based

“Fitch” Fitch Ratings

“HKAS(s)” Hong Kong Accounting Standard(s)

“HKFRS(s)” Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standard(s)

“HKICPA” Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants

“HKMA” Hong Kong Monetary Authority

“Hong Kong” or “Hong Kong SAR”

Hong Kong Special Administrative Region

“ICAAP” Internal Capital Adequacy Assessment Process

“IFRS” International Financial Reporting Standards

“IMM” Internal Models

“IRB” Internal Ratings-based

“LCO” the Legal & Compliance and Operational Risk Management Department
“LCR” Liquidity Coverage Ratio
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Definitions (continued)

Terms Meanings

“LGD” Loss Given Default

“Listing Rules” the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited

“MBS” Mortgage-backed Securities

“mC” the Management Committee

“MPF” Mandatory Provident Fund

“MPF Schemes Ordinance”

the Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance, Chapter 485 of the Laws of Hong
Kong, as amended

“Mainland” or “Mainland of China”

the mainland of the PRC

“Medium Term Note Programme”

the medium term note programme was established by BOCHK on 2 September 2011

“Moody’s” Moody’s Investors Service

“NCB” Nanyang Commercial Bank, Limited, a company incorporated under the laws of Hong
Kong and a wholly-owned subsidiary of BOCHK

“NCB (China)” Nanyang Commercial Bank (China), Limited, a company incorporated under the laws

of the PRC and a wholly-owned subsidiary of NCB

“ORSO schemes”

the Occupational Retirement Schemes under Occupational Retirement Schemes
Ordinance, Chapter 426 of the Laws of Hong Kong

“‘OTC” Over-the-counter

“PD” Probability of Default

“PRC” the People’s Republic of China
“PVBP” Price Value of a Basis Point
“RC” the Risk Committee

“RMB” or “Renminbi”

Renminbi, the lawful currency of the PRC

“RMD” the Risk Management Department
“STC” Standardised (Credit Risk)

“STM” Standardised (Market Risk)

“STO” Standardised (Operational Risk)
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Definitions (continued)

Terms Meanings

“Standard & Poor’s” Standard & Poor’s Ratings Services

“Stock Exchange” or “Hong Kong Stock |The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
Exchange”

“the Group” the Bank and its subsidiaries collectively referred as the Group
“us” the United States of America
“VAR” Value at Risk
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